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In the District Court of the United States for the

District of Oregon,

Be it remembered, that on the 15 day of February,

1912, there was duly filed in the District Court of

the United States for the District of Oregon, an

Amended Libel, in words and figures as follows,

to wit

:

[Amended Libel.]

/;/ flic District Court of the United States

for the District of Oregon

in Admiralty,

STEAMER "SAMSON," BARGE NO- 8, BARGE
NO. 9 and BARGE NO. 27,

COLUMBIA CONTRACT CO., a corporation,

Claimant and Stipulator,

SHAVER TRANSPORTATION COMPANY, a

corporation,

Libellant.

To the Honorable Charles E. Wolverton, and the

Honorable Robert S. Bean, Judges of the above en-

titled Court:

By leave of Court first had and obtained The

Shaver Transportation Company, an Oregon corpor-

ation, brings this its amended libel in a cause civil and

maritime in collision, against the Steamer "Samson,"

Barge No. 8, Barge No. 9, and Barge No. 27, their

tackle, apparel and furniture, engines and boilers, and

articulately alleges and propounds as follows:

ARTICLE I.

Libellant is and at all times herein mentioned was a
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corporation ori^-anizcd and operating under the laws

of the State of Oregon, and has its principal office in

the City of Portland, State of Oregon, and has paid

the license fees by kiAV required, and is (jualified to sue

in an\' court.

ARTICLK II.

The Steamer "M. F. Henderson" at all times and to

wit on July 22, 1911, was the property of the libellant

and was a steamer used in towing on the Columbia

and Willamette Rivers, and was of the length of 158

feet, breadth of beam 31 feet, depth 7 feet 5 inches,

and was on said last nam'ed date of the value of to wit

fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00).

ARTICLE III.

On to wit July 21, 1911, "The Standard Oil Com-

pany, Incorporated Under the Laws of the State of

California," a corporation of the State of California,

hereinafter called the Standard Oil Company, re-

quested Oregon Round Lumber Company, an Ore-

gon corporation, to ])rocure and furnish a steam tug

to act as the motive power in towing the Standard

Oil Company's oil Barge Xo. 93 from Astoria, (Ore-

gon, to Portland, Oregon: and Oregon Round Lum-

ber Com])any, ])ursuant to said recjuest, on Jul}- 21,

1911. and as agent for the said Standard ()i] Com-

panv, refjuested libellant to furnish only the motive

power for towing said P)arge No. 93 from Astoria to

Portland as aforesaid under tlie supervision and direc-

tion of the i)ilot, officers and crew of the s.'iid Stand-

ard Oil Comi)any.
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ARTICLE IV.

Pursuant to such request and instructions and di-

rections the Steamer "M. F. Henderson" made fast

to said Oil Barg-e No. 93 on the port side of said l^arge

at to wit six o'clock P. M. on July 21, 1911, at As-

toria, Oregon, and proceeded on the voyage from As-

toria to Portland up the Columbia River without inci-

dent until to wit 1 :30 A, M. of July 22, 1911. At this

time last mentioned the night was clear and dark,

without haze or fog, and no moon, and the *'M. F.

Menderson" and Oil Barge Xo. 93 were proceeding at

to wit three (3) knots past the land, well under con-

trol, with all lights set and burning, as required by

laws to wit, a green side light on the starboard side of

Oil Barge Xo. 93 and a red side light on the port side

of the "Henderson," two white lights on the mast-

head of the "Henderson," and one white stem light on

the "Henderson." At the low^r end of Puget Island

in the Columbia River the pilot and lookout on the

"]\1. F. Henderson" and Oil Barge X'o. 93 observed

to wit, two miles away up river, what afterward

])roved to be the "wSamson" with Barges Xo. 8, X^o. 9

and X\x 27 in tow, going down the river, coming

around the point of Puget Island. The "Samson" at

this time was running at, to wit, more than four (4)

knots past the land. There was a strong ebb tide, to

wit, a nine foot tide of about half head. The "vSam-

son" was towing the barges aforesaid as what is

known as a spiked tow, to wit, Barge X'o. 8 was made

fast to the starboard side of the "Samson," projecting
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forward beyond the *'Sanison;" Barge Xo. 9 was made

fast to her port side i)rojecting forward equally with

Ihirge No. 8 on the starboard side; and Barge No. 27

was between them, the stern of said barge being in

line with the stem of the tow^-boat "Samson." At

this time the "Samson" and her tow showed Oil Barge

No. 93 and the "j\I. F. Henderson," proceeding as one

vessel under power of the "Henderson" and under the

direction and control of said Oil Barge No. 93, her

side lights, two masthead lights, and one white light

on the foru'-ard end of Barge No. 8 on the starboard

side of the "Samson," and there was no light on Barge

No. 9 on her ])ort side, nor were any other lights dis-

played by the "Samson" or her tow. The "Samson''

is 110 feet 4 inches in length, 25 feet 4 inches beam,

and 15 feet 6 inches deep, and her draft at this time

was feet. Barges No. 8 and No. 9 are to

wit 160 feet length, 38 feet beam, 9 feet depth, and at

this time had a draft of feet. Barge No. 27

is 150 feet long, 36 feet beam and 9 feet depth, and

at this time had a draft of feet. Oil Barge

No. 93 is 300 feet in length, 34 feet beam, and at this

time had a draft of 20'/> feet. I'he "Al. F. Henderson"

was of the dimensions aforesaid, and at this time had

a draft of 5 feet. I'he channel in the Columbia River

at and near the ])lace hereinbefore described, to wit,

between Puget Island and the Oregon shore, is half

a mile w ide, and the cliannel for \'essels of the draft of

the "Samson" citid her tow is, to wit, 2500 feet wide;

and r)ari>'e No. 93 and tlie "I lendcrson" were, bv their
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lights then set and burning as aforesaid, in clear view

of the "Samson" for a distance of at least two miles

for a time of at least minutes. When
the ''Samson" and her tow were, to wit, not less than

half a mile from the ''Henderson" and Oil Barge No.

93, said Barge 93 gave the signal to the ''Samson"

that said Oil Barge No. 93 would continue on the

starboard side of the channel and pass to the port of

the "Samson," to wit, one long blast of the whistle;

which signal was promptly answered and accepted

by the "Samson" to wit by one blast of the whistle.

Barge No. 93 and the "M. F. Henderson" were at

this time near a ]:)oint on the river known as Bugby's

Hole, and were well on the starboard side of the chan-

nel toward the Oregon shore, and were hauled and

for a long time previous thereto had been hauled well

inside the Hunting Island range lights to show to the

"Samson" before the whistle blast was given that

Barge No. 93 intended to keep to the starboard side of

the channel and ])ass to the port of the "Samson."

Notwithstanding such signal and its answer, the

"Samson" did not effectively alter her course, and

both her side lights remained visible to Barge No. 93,

and T)arge No. 93 continued to haul more and more

toward the Oregon shore, and the "Samson" con-

tinued to approach Barge No. 93. The "Samson" not

hauling toward her own side of the channel, to wit,

her starboard side toward Puget Island, Barge No.

93 gave a warning signal of her continued intention

to pass on the port side of the "Samson," to wit one
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\on^ l)last of tlie whistle, when the "Samson" was well

ahle to safely conform her course to such notice, to

wit fully five minutes away, and still the "Samson"

not altering her course, the Barge No. 93 and the

"Henderson" immediately ])ut their helms hard aport

and made for the Oregon shore, hut too late to avert

a collision. The "Samson" and her tow collided with

the "M. F. Henderson" at, to wit, a point approx-

imately near the forward end of the freight house of

the "Henderson" and crushed tlie hull and the house

of the "Henderson" so that she shortly sank and he-

came a total wreck. As the hoats came together.

Barofe Xo. 93 immediatelv let iro her anchor and

came to rest within, to wit, 300 feet of the Oregon

shore and approximately near that point on the ri\er

designated as Bughy's Hole. The force and shock of

the collision broke the lines hy which the "Hender-

son" was made fast to Oil Barge Xo. 93, and the

shock, together with the current of the river, carried

the "Henderson" some distance, to wit feet

helo\v the Oil Barge Xo. 93 at anchor, and the "Hen-

derson" sank in feet depth of water and be-

came a total wreck as a vessel and a total loss, save

cind excei)t for certain salvage of machinery as here-

inafter alleged.

ARTICLE V.

That said collision and loss and damage were

wholly occasioned b\- the fault and negligence of the

Sleanier "Samson."
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ARTICLE VI.

That at the time of said colHsion the Steamer ''Hen-

derson" had on her, not a part of her regular equip-

ment and in addition to the said value of $50,000.00,

as supplies and stores, articles of the value of fifteen

hundred dollars, which were wholly lost hy reason

of said collision and libellant is thereby damaged in

the sum of fifteen hundred dollars with interest.

ARTICLE VII.

That libellant has expended in the raising of the

said ''Henderson" after said collision, and of salvage

of said "Henderson" and equipment the sum of, to

wit, ten thousand dollars, and libellant has been and is

damaged by reason of said collision in the sum of ten

thousand dollars, with interest.

ARTICLE VIII.

That by reason of said expenditure as just aforesaid

libellant recovered salvage of the value of to wit, six-

teen thousand dollars.

ARTICLE IX.

The total net damage sustained by libellant by

reason of the said collision was and is the sum of to

wit, forty-five thousand five hundred dollars

($45,500.00) with interest.

ARTICLE X.

Xo parts of said loss and damage has been paid to

libellant and the Steamer "Samson," Barges X^o. 8,

Xo. 9 and Xo. 27 refuse to pay said damages or any

part thereof.
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ARTICLE XT.

The Steamer "Samson" and I>arges No. 8, No. 9

and No. 27 are now on the Columhia River, and they

and all the matters and thin.c^s alleged herein are with-

in the admirally and maritime jurisdiction of the

United States and of this Honorahle Court, and the

Columbia Contract Company, an Oreg-on corporation,

has claimed the said "Samson" and barges as owner

thereof and has filed in this Court and cause a stipu-

lation in the sum of fifty thousand dollars ($50,000)

stii)ulating to abide the decree of this Honorable

Court.

ARTICLE XII.

That all and singular the ]:)remises are true.

WHEREEORE, libellant prays that ])rocess in due

form of law may be issued against the said Steamer

"Samson" and the said Barge Xo. 8, the said Barge

Xo. 9, and the said Barge Xo. 27, and each of them,

their boats, tackle, ci])i)arel and furniture, and that

this Honorable Court will pronounce for the afore-

said demand of libellanls against the aforesaid Steam-

er "Samson" and the said I)arge Xo. 8, said Barge Xo.

9 and said I>arge Xo. 27, and against any and all per-

sons claiming the same or who may intervene for any

cause therein, and decree that the demand of libel-

lant be ])ai(l with interest and costs; and for such oth-

er and further relief as to right and justice may apper-

tain and as tliis Court is com])etent to give.

SHAVER TRAXSPORTATIOX COMPAXV.
Wy J. W. Shaver,

President.
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WILLIAMS, WOOD &
LINTHICUM,

Proctors.

[Endorsed] : Amended Libel. Filed Feb. 15, 1912.

A. M. CANNON,
Clerk U. S. District Court.

And afterwards, to wit, on the 22 day of April, 1912,

there was duly filed in said Court, an Answer, in

words and figures as follows, to wit:

[Answer.]

(Title.)

Columbia Contract Company, a corporation, owner

and claimant of the Steamer "Samson," Barge No. 8,

Barge Xo. 9 and Barge No. 27, as the same are pro-

ceeded against in the Amended Libel of Shaver

Transportation Company, a corporation, in a cause

civil and maritime in collision, answers said libel and

complainant as follows:

FIRST.

The claimant admits the incorporation of the libel-

Ian t and has no knowledge or information sufficient

to form a belief as to the other allegations of the first

article of said libel and therefore denies the same.

SECOND.
The claimant has no knowledge or information suf-

ficent to form a belief as to the allegations of the sec-

ond article of said libel and therefore denies the same.

THIRD.
The claimant has no knowledge or information suf-
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ficcnt to form a l)elicf as to the alleviations of the third

article of said libel and therefore denies the same.

FOURTH.
Answering;- the alleviations of the fourth article of

said lihel the claimant allei^es:

The Steamer "Samson" with Rarge No. 8 made

fast to her starboard side, Barge No. 9 made fast to

her port side and projecting forward equally with

Barge No. 9 on the starboard side, and barge No. 27

between Barges No. 8 and No. 9 and in line with the

steam of the "Samson," all of said barges being load-

ed with rock and being towed by the "Samson" as

what is known as a spiked tow, on the 21st day of

July, 1911, proceeded on a voyage down the Colum-

bia River from to the Columbia

River jetty without incident until about 1:30 A. M.

of July 22, 1911.

At about the time last mentioned the steamer "Sam-

son" and her tow Vscre coming down tlie river, well

under control, with <ill lights set and burning as re-

quired by law, to-wit, two mast headlights, the side

lights and the white lights on each outside barge, and

as the "Samson" arid her tow ])assed what is known

as lUigb}- Light, to-wit, about 1 :30 A. >.I. of July 22.

1911. tlie l^ilot and one of the sailors on board tlie

"Samson" sighted what afterwards proved to be the

Steamer "M. V. Henderson" \\ith her tow. Oil Barge

\(^. 93 about (^ne mile away and coming up the ri\er.

Thii "M. V. Henderson" and her tow first ()i)ened up

lier red liij'ht and then the jjrcen one. tlie Samson and
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her tow at this time being pretty well over to the

Pusret Island side or starboard side of the channel.

As the Samson with her tow came a little closer the

"M. F. Henderson" with her tow gave a signal to the

''Samson" that the ''M. F. Henderson" with her tow

would pass to the port side of the ''Samson," to-wit,

one long blast of the whistle, and immediately the

Samson accepted and answered said signal to-wit, by

one long blast of the whistle. Thereupon, the *'Sam-

son" put her helm hard aport and the Samson and

her tow kept swinging to the Puget Island side or

starboard side of the channel. The "M. F. Hender-

son" and her tow were steering bad and would first

open up her green liglit and then close it out again,

and whilst the "Samson" had ported her helm in order

to afford the "M. F. Henderson" and her tow plenty

of room yet the "M. F. Henderson" with her tow kept

heading right in to the "Samson." Orders had been

given by the pilot of the "Samson" and obeyed at

once to put the "Samson" helm hard aport, and about

that time the "M. F. Henderson" gave a second sig-

nal by one big blast of the whistle which was the sig-

nal indicating her continued intention to pass to the

port side of the "Samson," and which signal was im-

mediately answered by the "Samson" by one long

blast of the whistle. The Samson was at this time

hard aport and immediately thereafter the Oil Barge

No. 93 came close to the "Samson" and seemed to

sheer off a little to the starboard side of the channel,

and thereupon tlie "Samson" backed up wide o])cn
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and w liile backin^;" the Oil Rarge struck the port scow,

t()-\vit, Baroe Xo. 9, and about the same time struck

the port bar^c^e, to-wit, Bar^e Xo. 9, the Oil Barge the

"M. F. Henderson" struck the said port barge to-wit,

Ban^e Xo. 9 witli her stem and at or about the same

time the forward ])arge to-wit. Barge Xo. 27 struck

the *'M. F. Henderson" at a point near the forward

part of the freight house of the M. F. Henderson and

the colHsion and subsequent sinking of the "M. F.

Henderson" occurred.

The Claimants admit the allegations of the fourth

article of said libel gi\ing the dimensions of the "M.

F. Henderson" Oil Barge Xo. 93, the "Samson,"

Barge Xo. 8, Barge Xo. 9 and Barge X'^o. 27 as be-

ing approximately true.

Further answering the allegations of the fourth

article of said amended libel, the claimant denies each

and ever}- other allegation of said article not herein-

before specifically admitted.

FIFTH.

Claimant denies that said collision and loss and

damage were wholly, or in ])art, occasioned by the

fault and negligence of the steamer "Samson."

hTirlhcr answering the fifth allegation of said

amended libel, the claimant alleges that said collision

and loss and damage was occasioned solely by the

fault and negligence of the steamer "M. F. Hender-

son" and of her tow, ( )i1 Barge Xo. 93.

SIXTH.

The Claimant has no kn(nvledci*e or information stif-
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ficient to form a belief as to the allegations of the

sixth article of said libel and therefore denies the

same.

SEVENTH.
Claimant has no knowledge or information suf-

ficient to form a belief as to the allegations of the sev-

enth article of said libel and therefore denies the

same.

EIGHTH.
Claimant has no knowledge or information suffic-

ient to form a belief as to the allegations of the eighth

article of said libel and therefore denies the same.

NINTH.
Claimant has no knowledge or information suf-

ficient to form a belief as to the allegations of the

ninth article of said libel and therefore denies the

same.

TENTH.
Claimant denies liability for said loss and damage

to the "M. F. Henderson" and has reftised and still

reftises to pay same or any part thereof.

ELEVENTH.
Claimant admits the jtirisdiction of the Court and

tlic other allegations of the eleventh article of said

libel.

TWELFTH.
Claimant denies the allegations of the twelfth ar-

ticle of said libel.

Claimant further answering said libel, and by way

of a cross-libel, alleges:
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ART] CI.K I.

Claimant is and was a I all limes herein mentioned

a corporation org-anized and operating under the laws

of the State of Oregon, and has its i)rincipal office in

the City of Portland, State of Oregon, and has paid

the license fees h}' law recjuired and is ([ualified to sue

in an}' court.

ARTICLE II.

The Steamer "Samson," Barge Xo. 8, Barge No. 9

and Barge Xo. 27 at all times and to-\vit, on July 22,

1911, were the property of the claimant and were used

on the Columbia and AVillamette Rivers.

ARTICLE III.

The Steamer "Samson" with Barge X'^o. 8 made

fast to her starboard side. Barge Xo. 9 made fast to

her port side and ])rojecting forward equally with

barge Xo. 8 on the starboard side, and barge Xo. 27

between Barges Xo. 8 and Xo. 9 and in line with the

steam of the "Samson," all of said barges being load-

ed with rock and being towed by the "Samson" as

what is known as a spiked tow, on the 21st day of

July, 1911, ])roceeded on a voyage down the Colum-

bia River from below Coble to the Columbia Ri\er

Jctt}' without incident until about 1 :30 A. M. of July

22, 1911.

At about the time last mentioned the steamer

"Samson" and her tow were coming down the river,

well under control, with all lights set and burning as

re(|uire(l 1)\- law, to-wit, two mast hea.dlights, the side

lights and the w hite lights on each outside barge, and
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as the "Samson" and her tow passed what is known

as Rugby Li^^ht, to-wit, about 1 :30 A. M. of July 22,

1911, the Pilot and one of the sailors on board the

"Samson" sighted what afterwards proved to be the

Steamer ''M. F. Henderson" with her tow. Oil Barge

No. 93 about one mile away and coming up the river.

The "M. F. Henderson" and her tow first opened up

her red light and then the green one, the "Samson"

and her tow at this time being pretty well over to the

Puget Island side or starboard side of the channel.

As the "Samson" with her tow came a little closer

the "i\I. F. Henderson" with her tow gave a signal to

the "Samson" that the "M. F. Henderson" with her

tow would pass to the port side of the "Samson" to-

wit, one long blast of the whistle, and immediately

th.e Samson acce])ted and answered said signal, to-

wit, by one long blast of the whistle. Thereupon, the

"Samson" put her helm hard aport and the Samson

and her tow ke|)i swinging to the Puget Island side

or starboard side of the channel. The "M. F. Hen-

derson" and her tow^ were steering bad and would

first open up her green light and then close it out

again, and whilst the "Samson" had ])orted her helm

in order to afford the "M. F. Henderson" and her

tow plenty of room yet the "M. F. Henderson" with

her tow kept heading right in to the "Samson." Or-

ders had been given by the pilot of the "Samson" and

obeyed at once to put the "Samson" helm hard a])ort,

and about that time the "M. F. Henderson" gave a

second signal bv one biir blast of the whistle which
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was the signal indicating her continued intention to

pass to the port side of the "Samson," and which sig-

nal was immediately answered by the "Samson" by

one long blast of the wliistle. The Samson was at

this time hard aj^ort and immediately thereafter the

Oil Barge Xo. 93 came close to the "Samson" and

seemed to sheer off a little to the starboard side of the

channel, and thereupon the "Samson" backed up wide

open and while backing the Oil Barge struck the ])ort

scow, to-wit. Barge Xo. 9, and al^out the same time

struck the port barge, to-wit. Barge Xo. 9, the Oil

Barge the "M. F. Henderson" struck the said port

barge to-wit. Barge Xo. 9 with her stem and at or about

the same time the forward barge to-wit. Barge Xo.

27 struck the "M. F. Henderson" at a point near the

forward part of the freight house of the "M. F. Hen-

derson" and the collision and subsec|uent sinking of

the "M. F. Henderson" occurred.

ARTICLE IW
Said collision was not caused or contril^uted to by

any negligence on the part of the claimant or of those

in charge of said Steamer "Samson." Barge XV). 8,

Barge Xo. 9 ?ud Barge Xo. 27, but was caused wholly

b\' the fault and negligence of tlie Steamer "M. F.

Henderson," and her tow.

ARTICLE W
Bv reason of said collision the claimant was dam-

aged in the sum of $r)04.12, to-wit:

Loss of one day's use of the Steamer ''Samson"

and the cost of operation S133.50
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Loss of one day's use for the Steamer ''Her-

cules" (which was making a joint trip in

connection with the "Samson," and the cost

of operation 111.00

Loss of one day's use of six barges at $15.00

per day and loss of one day's use of three

barges at $12.00 per day 126.00

Amount paid for repairs to barges necessitated

by reason of said collision 188.62

Loss of use of said barges while being re-

paired 45.00

ARTICLE Yl.

No part of said loss and damage has been paid to

claimant and the Steamer "M. F. Henderson," Oil

Barge No. 93 and libellant herein. Shaver Transpor-

tation Company refuse to pay said damages or any

part thereof.

ARTICLE VII.

Said Steamer "M. F. Henderson" is now within this

district and within the jurisdiction of this court.

ARTICLE VIIL

All and singular the premises are true and within

the jurisdiction of the United States, and of this Hon-

orable Court.

WHEREFORE, claimant prays that said libel

may be dismissed with costs and that claimant may

have and recover of and from Shaver Transporta-

tion Company, libellant herein, and owner of the

Steamer "M. F. Henderson" the sum of six hundred

and four and 12/100 dollars to satisfy the claims of
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claimant for damages with interest and costs, and that

chiimant may have such other or further rehef as may

be proper.

Proctors for claimant.

Ux\ITED STATES OF AMERICA,
District of Oregon.—ss.

DANIEL KERN being first duly sworn says that

he is the President of Columbia Contract Company,

the claimant herein, and has read the foregoing an-

swer and cross libel and knows the contents thereof

and that the same is true as he verily believes.

DANIEL KERN.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 22nd day

of April, 1912.

W. A. JOHNSON,
Notary Public for Oregon, residing

at Portland, Oregon.

[Endorsed] : Answer. Filed Apr. 22, 1913.

A. M. CANNON,
Clerk U. S. District Court.

And afterwards, to wit, on the 6 day of June, 1912,

there was duly filed in said Court, a Supple-

mental Li])cl, in words and figures as follows, to

wit:

[Supplemental Libel.]

/// fJie Disfricl Court of the Iniited States

for ihe PisO'ict of Ore^^^on

ill . Idmiraliy.

STICAMER "SAMSON," P>ARGE NO. 8, ILXRGE
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xNO. 9 and BARGE NO. 27,

COLUMBIA CONTRACT COMPANY, a corpora-

tion,

Claimant and Stipulator,

STANDARD OIL COMPANY, Incorporated Under

the Laws of the State of California, a corpora-

tion,

Respondent,

SHAVER TRANSPORTATION COMPANY, a

corporation,

Libellant.

To the Honorable Charles E. Wolverton, and the

Honorable Robert S. Bean, Judges of the above en-

titled Court

:

By leave of Court first had and obtained. Shaver

Transportation Company, an Oregon corporation,

brings this its supplemental libel in a cause civil and

maritime in collision, against the Standard Oil Com-

pany Incorporated Under the Laws of the State of

California, a corporation, and articulately alleges

and propounds as follows:

ARTICLE I.

Libellant is and at all times herein mentioned was

a corporation organized and operating under the laws

of the State of Oregon, and had and has its principal

office in the City of Portland, State of Oregon, and

has and has paid all license fees by law required and

is qualified to sue in any court.

ARTICLE 11.

The Standard Oil Company Incorporated Under
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the Laws of the State of Oreo^on, is a corporation of

the State of California, and will hereinafter be called

the Standard Oil Company.

ARTICLE in.

The steamer "]\L F. Henderson" at all times and to

wit on July 22, 1911, was the property of the libel-

lant, and was a steamer used in towing on the Colum-

bia and Willamette Rivers, and was of the length of

158 feet, beam 31 feet, depth 7 feet 5 inches, and was,

on said last named date, of the value of to wit fifty

thousand dollars ($50,000.00).

ARTICLE l\\

On to wit July 21, 1911, the Standard Oil Company

requested the Oregon Round Lumber Company, a

corporation of the State of Oregon, to procure and

furnish a steam tug to act as the motive power in

towing Oil Barge No. 93, the property of said Stand-

ard Oil Company, from Astoria, Oregon, to Portland,

Oregon ; in pursuance of which request Oregon

Round Lumber Company on July 21, 1911, acting for

said Standard Oil Company, requested the libellant

to furnish a steamer to act as motive power only, for

towing said Barge Xo. 93 from Astoria, Oregon, to

Portland, Oregon.

ARTICLE V.

Pursuant to such request, ^le said Steamer ''M. F.

Henderson" was by libellant chartered to the said

Standard Oil C()m])any for the purpose aforesaid, to

wit, to furnish motive power only, and was made fast

to the said ()il Bari^c Xo. 93 on the ])()rt side (^f said
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barge at to wit six o'clock P. M. on July 21, 1911, at

Astoria, Oregon, and immediately thereafter pro-

ceeded on the voyage from Astoria, Oregon, to Port-

land, Oregon, wholly under the direction and under

the control of the respondent, the Standard Oil Com-

pany. Said Barge No. 93 and the said ''Henderson"

as her motive power, as aforesaid, proceeded up the

Columbia River without incident until to wit 1 :30

A. M. of July 22, 1911. At this time the said "Hen-

derson" and the said Oil Barge No. 93 w^ere proceed-

ing up the Columbia River at the rate of to wit three

(3) knots per hour past the land, well under control,

with all lights set and burning as required by law,

to wit, a green side light on the starboard side of Oil

Barge No. 93, a red side light on the port side of the

"Henderson," and two white lights on the masthead

of the "Henderson" and one white stem li^fht on the

"Henderson," all as required by law. The night was

clear and dark, without haze or fog, and no moon. At

the lower end of Puget L'^land. in the Columbia River,

the pilot and lookout on the "^1. F. Henderson" and

Oil Barge No. 93 observed to wit two miles up the

Columbia River, lights which afterwards proved to

be the Steamer "Samson" with Barges No. 8, No. 9

and No. 27 in tow, all of which were and are the prop-

erty of the claimant herein, Columbia Contract Com-
pany, an Oregon corporation. The "Samson" was

running at to wit more than four (4) miles per hour

past the land, and there was at this time a strong ebb

tide, to wit a nine (9) foot tide of about half head.
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The "Samson" was towing the barges aforesaid, as

what is known as a spiked tow, to wit, Barge No. 8

w^as made fast to the starboard side of the "Samson,"

projecting forward beyond the "Samson;" Barge Xo.

9 was made fast to the port side of the ''Samson,"

projecting forward equally with Barge No. 8; and

liarge N(\ 27 was between them, projecting forward

beyond both of them, the stern of the last named

barge being in line with and close to the stem of the

tow-boat "Samson." At this time the "Samson"' and

her tow showed Oil Barge No. 93 and the "Hender-

son" (proceeding as one vessel) her side lights and

two masthead lights and one white light on the for-

ward end of Barge No. 8 on the starboard side of the

"Samson," but there was no light on Barge No. 9 on

the port side, nor were any other lights displayed by

the "Samson" or her tow. The "Samson" is 110 feet

4 inches in length, 25 feet 4 inches beam, 15 feet 6

inches deep, and her draft at this time was

feet. Barges No. 8 and No. 9 are to w^it 160 feet in

length, 38 feet beam, 9 feet in depth, and at this time

had a draft of feet. Barge No. 27 is 150

feet in length, 36 feet beam and 9 feet in dei)th, and

had at this time a draft of feet. Oil Barge

Xo. 93 is 300 feet in length, 34 feet beam, and at this

time had a draft of 20^^/ feet. The "Henderson" at

this lime had a draft of 5 feet. The channel in the

Columbia River at and near the i)lace hereinabove de-

scribed, towit between Pu^et Island and the Oregon

shore, is to wit half a mile wide, and the channel for
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vessels of the draft of the ''Samson" and her tow is

not less than 2500 feet wide; and Barge No. 93 and

the ''Henderson" (proceeding as one vessel) were, by

their lights then set and burning as aforesaid, in clear

view of the "Samson" for a distance of at least two

miles, and for a time of at least minutes.

When the "Samson" and her tow were to wit not

less than half a mile from the "Henderson" and Oil

Barge No. 93 (proceeding as one vessel, as aforesaid),

said Barge No. 93 gave the signal to the "Samson"

that the Oil Barge No. 93 with the "Al. F. Hender-

son" as her motive power, would continue on the

starboard side of the channel and pass to the port

of the "Samson" to wit, gave one long blast of the

whistle, which signal was ])romptly accepted and an-

swered by the "Samson," to wit, by one blast of the

whistle. Oil Barge No. 93 and the "Henderson" (pro-

ceeding as one vessel) were at this time near a point

on the river known as Bugby's Hole, and were well

on the starboard side of the channel toward the Ore-

gon shore, and were then hauled and for a long time

previous thereto had been hauled well inside the

Hunting Island range lights so as to show to the

"Samson" before any whistle blast was given, that

Oil Barge No. 93 with the "Henderson" as her mo-

tive power, intended to keep to the starboard side of

the channel and wished and intended to pass to the

port of the "Samson." Notwithstanding such signal

and its answer, the "Samson" did not effectively alter

her course, and both her side lights remained visible
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to Barge No. 93 and Oil Barge Xo. 93 continued to

liaul more and more toward the Oregon shore in or-

der to avoid the "Samson" and pass to her port, as

indicated; but the "Samson" continued to approach

Barge Xo. 93 and the ''Henderson" (proceeding as

one vessel) and did not haul toward her own side of

the channel, to wit toward the starboard side or the

Puget Island side, and therefore Barge Xo. 93 gave a

warning signal of her continued intention to pass to

the port side of the "Samson" to wit another long

blast of the whistle, and such signal was given when

the "Samson" was well able to safely conform her

course to such notice, to wit while the "Samson" was

fully five minutes away; but the "Sanlson" did not alter

her course, and Barge Xo. 93 and the Steamer "Hender-

son" as her motive power, both immediately put their

helms hard aport and made for the Oregon shore, but

too late to avert a collision. The "Samson" and hci*

tow collided with the ''M. F. Henderson" at to wit v.

])()int near the forward end of the freight house of the

"Henderson" and crushed the hull and house of the

"Henderson" so that she sank and became a total

wreck. Barge Xo. 93 then immediately let go her

anchor and came to rest to wit 300 feet from the

Oregon shore and approximately near that point on

the ri\er designated as Bugby's Hole. Tlie force and

shock of the collision broke the lines 1)\- which the

"I lenderson" was made fast to (^il Barge Xo. 93, and

the shock, together witli the current of the river, car-

ried tlic "1 lenders(ui" some distance, to wit
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feet, below Oil Barge No. 93 at anchor, and the "Hen-

derson" sank in feet of water and became a

total wreck, as aforesaid, and a total loss, save and ex-

cept for the salvage of certain machinery as herein-

after alleged.

ARTICLE VI.

Heretofore, to wit, April 22, 1912, Columbia Con-

tract Company, the Claimant and Stipulator herein,

filed its answer to the libel of the libellant herein, in

and by which said claimant, Columbia Contract Com-

pany, alleged, among other things, as follows:

"At about the time last mentioned the steamer

"Samson" and her tow were coming down the river,

well under control, with all lights set and burning as

required by law, to wit, two mast headlights, the side

lights and the white lights on each outside barge, and

as the "Samson" and her tow passed what is known

as Bugby Light, to wit, about 1 :30 A. M. of July 22,

1911, the Pilot and one of the sailors on board the

"Samson" sighted what afterwards proved to be the

Steamer "M, F. Henderson" with her tow. Oil Barge

No. 93 about one mile away coming up the river. The

"M. F. Henderson" and her tow first opened up her

red light and then the green one, the Samson and her

tow at this time being pretty well over to the Puget

Island side or starboard side of the channel. As the

Samson with her tow came a little closer the "AI. F.

Henderson" with her tow gave a signal to the "Sam-

son" that the "AT F. Henderson" with her tow would

pass to the port side of the "Samson' 'to wit, one long
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blast of the whistle, and immediately the Samson ac-

cepted and answered said signal to wit, by one long

blast of the whistle. Thereupon the ''Samson' put her

helm hard aport and the Samson and her tow kept

swinging to the Puget Island side or starboard side

of the channel. The "M. F. Henderson" and her tow

were steering bad and would first open up her green

light and then close it out again, and whilst the

"Samson" had ported her helm in order to afford the

"M. F. Henderson" and her tow plenty of room yet

the "M. F. Flenderson" with her tow kept heading

right in to the "Samson." Orders had been given by

the pilot of the "Samson" and obeyed at once to put

the "Samson" hard aport, and about that time the

"M. F. Henderson" gave a second signal by one big

blast of the whistle which was the signal indicating

Iier continued intention to pass to the port side of the

"Samson," and which signal was immediately an-

swered by the "Samson" by one long blast of the

whistle. The Samson was at this time hard aport

and immediately thereafter the Oil Barge No. 93

came close to the "Samson" and seemed to sheer off

a little to the starboard side of the channel, and there-

upon the "Samson" backed up wide open and while

backing the Oil P>arge struck the port scow, to wit,

I>arge No. 9, and about the same time struck the port

barge, to wit, Rarge No. 9, the Oil Barge the "M. F.

Henderson" struck the said j)ort barge to wit. Barge

Xo. 9 with lier stem and at or about the same time the

forward l)ari>e to wit. Iiar^-e No. 27 struck the "M. b\
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Henderson" at a point near the forward part of the

freight house of the M. F. Henderson and the col-

hsion and subsequent sinking of the ''M. F. Hender-

son" occurred."

ARTICLE Vn.

If the aforesaid allegations of the said answer of

the claimant and stipulator, Columbia Contract Com-

pany, shall by the evidence be proven true, then the

sinking and loss of the Steamer ''M. F. Henderson"

was occasioned by the negligence of the Oil Barge

No. 93, or the joint negligence of said Oil Barge No.

93 and the said Steamer "Samson," and in order to

prevent a multiplicity of suits and to bring all parties

interested or liable in this suit, libellant brings this

its libel against said respondent The Standard Oil

Company Incorporated Under the Laws of the State

of California, and alleges that said Standard Oil Com-

pany is a joint tort feasor with and jointly concurred

with the Steamer "Samson" in such negligence as

caused the total wreck of the said Steamer ''M. I".

Henderson" as aforesaid.

ARTICLE VIII.

At the time of the said collision the Steamer "Hen-

derson" had on her, not as a part of her required

equipment, but additional to the said value of fifty

thousand dollars ($50,000.00) aforesaid, supplies and

stores and articles of the value of fifteen hundred dol-

lars ($1,500.00), which were wholly lost by reason of

said collision.
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ARTrcLE rx.

Libellant has expended in the raising of the said

engines, after the said collision, and in the salvage

of the "Henderson," the sum of to wit ten thousand

dollars ($10,000.00); and libellant has been and is

damaged by reason of said collision, in addition to the

other sums aforesaid, in the sum of ten thousand

dollars ($10,000.00).

ARTICLE X.

That b}' reason of the said expenditure, as aforesaid,

salvage has been recovered of the value of to wit, six-

teen thousand dollars ($16,000.00).

ARTICLE XL
That the total net damage sustained by the libel-

lant b}' reason of said collision was and is the sum of

to wit forty-five thousand five hundred dollars ($43,-

500.00), with interest, no part of which said loss or

damage has been paid to libellant by Oil Barge Xo. 93

or by the claimant, or by anyone.

ARTICLE Xll.

That all and singular the premises are true and

within the admiralty and maritime jurisdiction of this

lloncjrable Court.

WHEREFORE, lil)ellant prays that process in due

form of law, according to the custom and practice in

admiralty, may l)e issued against The Standard Oil

Company Incor])orated Lnder the Laws of the State

of California, its officers and agents, warning and

re(|uiring it to appear and answer iinlo tliis libel; or,

in default thereof, that a decree l.^e taken iii^'ainst the
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said The Standard Oil Company Incorporated Under

the Laws of the State of CaHfornia, for the rehef

prayed for in this supplemental libel; and libellant

prays for such other and further and different process

and relief as to this Court may seem meet and con-

sonant with the customs and practice of courts of

admiralty.

WILLIAMS, WOOD & LINTHICUM,
WOOD, MONTAGUE & HUNT,

Proctors for Libellant.

[Endorsed]: Supplemental Libel. Filed Jun. 6,

1913.

A. M. CANNON,
Clerk U. S. District Court.

And afterwards, to wit, on the 29 day of June, 1912,

there was duly filed in said Court, an Answer to

Supplemental Libel in words and figures as fol-

lows, to wit

:

[Answer of Claimant to Supplemental Libel.]

(Title.)

Columbia Contract Company, a corporation, claim-

ant and stipulator, answering the Supplemental Libel

of Shaver Transportation Company herein alleges:

FIRST.

The claimant admits the incorporation of the libel-

lant and has no knowledge or information sufficient

to form a belief as to the other allegations of the first

article of said supplemental libel and therefore denies

the same.
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SECOND.
The claimant has no knowledge or information suf-

ficient to form a ])elief as to the allegations of the sec-

ond article of said supplemental libel and therefore

denies the same.

THIRD.
The claimant has no knowledge or information suf-

ficient to form a belief as to the allegations of the

third article of said supplemental libel and therefore

denies the same.

FOURTH.
The claimant has no knowledge or information suf-

ficient to form a ])elief as to the allegations of the

fourth article of said supplemental libel and there-

fore denies the same.

FIFTH.

Answering the allegations of the fifth article of

said supplemental libel the claimant alleg'es:

The Steamer "Samson" with Barge Xo. 8 made

fast to her starboard side, Barge Xo. 9 made fast to

her port side and projecting forward equally with

Barge X'^o. 8 on the starboard side, and Barge Xo. 27

between Barges Xo. 8 and Xo. 9 and in line with the

stem of the "Samson," all of said I>arges being loaded

with rock and being^ towed bv the "Samson" as wliat

is known as a s])iked tow, on the 21st day of July,

1911, proceeded on a voyage down the Columbia

Ri\er from (joble to tlie Columbia River jetty with-

out incident until al)()Ut 1 :v^0 A. M. of July 22, 1911.

At about tlie time last mentioned the steamer "Sam-
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son" and her tow were coming down the river, well

under control, with all lights set and burning as re-

quired by law, to-wit, two mast headlights, the side

lights and the white lights on each outside barge, and

as the ''Samson" and her tow passed what is known

as Bugby Light, to-wit, about 1 :30 A. M. of July 22,

1911, the Pilot and one of the sailors on board the

''Samson" sighted what afterwards proved to be the

Steamer "M. F. Henderson" with her tow. Oil Barge

Xo. 93 about one mile away and coming up the river.

The "M. F. Henderson" and her tow first opened up

her red light and then the green one, the "Samson"

and her tow at this time being pretty well over to the

Puget Island side or starboard side of the channel.

As the "Samson" with her tow came a little closer

the "M. F. Henderson" with her tow gave a signal

to the "Samson" that the "M. F. Henderson" with

her tow would pass to the port side of the "Samson,"

to-wit, one long blast of the whistle, and immediately

the "Samson" accepted and answered said signal to-

wit, by one long blast of the whistle. Thereupon, the

"Samson" i)ut her helm hard aport and the "Sam-

son" and her tow kept swinging to the Puget Island

side or starboard side of the channel. The "M. F.

Henderson" and her tow were steering bad and woukl

first open up her green light and then close it out

again, and whilst the "Samson" had ported her helm

in order to afford the "M. F. Henderson" and her tow

plenty of room yet the "M. F. Henderson" with her

tow kept heading right in to the "Samson." Orders
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had been <:2^iven by the pilot of the "Samson'' and

obeyed at once to put the "Samson" helm hard aport,

and about that time the "M. F. Henderson" gave a

second signal by one big blast of the whistle which

was the signal indicatinsf her continued intention to

pass to the port side of the "Samson," and which sig-

nal was immediately answered by the "Samson" by

one long blast of the whistle. The "Samson" was at

this time hard aport and inmiediately thereafter the

Oil I)arge Xo. 93 came close to the "Samson" and

seemed to sheer off a little to the starboard side of

the channel, and thereupon the "Samson" backed up

wide open and while backing the Oil Barge struck

the port scow, to-w^it, Barge No. 9, and about the

same time struck the port barge, to-wit Barge No.

9, the Oil Barge the "i\I. F. Henderson" struck the

said port barge to-wit, Barge No. 9 with her stem

and at or about the same time the forward barge, to-

wit, Barge No. 27 struck the "M. F. Henderson" at a

point near the forward part of the freight house of

the "M. F. Henderson" and the collision and stibse-

quent sinking of the "M. F. Henderson" occurred.

The Claimant admits the allegations of the fourth

article of said amended and supplemental libel giving

the dimensions of the "M. F. Henderson" Oil Barge

No. 9vS, the "Samson," Ikirge No. 8, Barge No. 9 and

Barge No. 27 as being a]:)proximately true.

I^urther answering the allegations of the fourth

article of said amended and su])])lemental libel, the

claimant denies each and exerv other allei^ation ^)\
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said article not hereinbefore specifically admitted.

SIXTH.

The claimant admits the alleg^ations of the sixth

article of said supplemental libel and alleges that the

facts as stated in its answer are true.

SEVENTH.
Answering- the seventh allegation of said supple

mental libel, claimant admits that the sinking and

loss of the Steamer ''M. F. Henderson" was occas-

ioned by the negligence of Oil Barge No. 93, but de-

nies that said loss and damage was occasioned by the

joint negligence of the Steamer ''Samson" and Oil

Barge No. 93 and further denies that said collision

and loss and damage was wholly, or in part, occas-

ioned by the fault and negligence of the Steamer

"Samson."
Further answering the seventh allegation of said

supplemental libel, the claimant alleges that said col-

lision and loss and damage was occasioned solely by

the fault and negligence of the Steamer "AT. F. Hen-

derson" and of her tow, Oil Barge No. 93.

EIGHTH.
The claimant has no knowledge or information

sufficient to form a belief as to the allegations of the

eighth article of said supplemental libel and there-

fore denies the same.
NINTH.

Claimant has no knowledge or information suffic-

ient to form a belief as to the allegations of the nintli

article of said supplemental libel and therefore denies

the same.
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TENTH.
Claimant lias no knowledoe or information suffic-

ienl to form a belief as to the allegations of the tenth

article of said supplemental libel and therefore denies

the same.

ELEVENTH.
Claimant has no knowledge or information suffic-

ient to form a Ijelief as to the allegations of the elev-

enth article of said supplemental libel and therefore

denies the sam.

TWELFTH.
Claimant dnies the allegations of the twelfth article

of said supplemental libel.

Claimant further answering said supplemental libel,

and by wa\' of a cross-libel, alleges:

ARTICLE L

Claimant is and was at all times herein mentioned

a corporation organized and operating under the laws

of the State of Oregon, and has its principal office

in the City of Portland, State of Oregon, and has paid

the license fees by law required and is qualified to sue

in any court.

ARTICLE II.

1^hc Steamer '"Samson," Barge No. 8, Barge No. 9

and Barge No. 27 at all times and to wit, on July 22,

1911, were the property of the claimant and were

used on the Columbia and Willamette Rivers.

ARTICLE III.

^V\\Q Steamer "Samson" with Barge No. 8 made fast

to her starl)(>ar(l side, I)ar^-c No. 9 mride fast to her
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port side and projecting forward equally with Barge

No. 8 on the starboard side, and Barge No. 27 between

Barges No. 8 and No. 9 and in line with the stem of

the ''Samson," all of said barges being loaded with

rock and being towed by the "Samson" as what is

known as a spiked tow, on the 21st day of July, 1911,

proceeded on a voyage down the Columbia River from

below Goble to the Columbia River Jetty without in-

cident until about 1 :30 A. M. of July 22, 1911.

At about the time last mentioned the steamer ''Sam-

son" and her tow were coming down the river, well

under control, with all lights set and burning as re-

quired by law, to-wit, two mast headlights, the side

lights and the white lights on each outside barge, and

as the "Samson" and her tow passed what is known

as Bugby's Light, to-wit, about 1 :30 A. M. of July

22, 1911, the Pilot and one of the sailors on board

the "Samson" sighted what afterwards proved to be

the Steamer "M. F. Henderson" with her tow. Oil

Barge No. 93 about one mile away coming up the riv-

er. The "M. F. Henderson" and her tow first opened

up her red light and then the green one, the "Sam-

son" and her tow at this time being pretty well over

to the Puget Island side or starboard side of the

channel. As the "Samson" with her tow came a little

closer the "]\I. F. Henderson" with her tow gave a

signal to the "Samson" that the "AT. F. Henderson"

w ith her low would ])ass to the port side of the "Sam-

son" to-wit, one long blast of the whistle, and im-

mediately the "Samson" accepted and answered said
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si^criial, to-wil, by one long- blast of the whistle. There

upon, the "Samson" put her lielni hard a]^ort and the

"Samson" and her tow kept swinging;- to the Pu^-et

Island side or starboard side of the channel. The

"M. F. Henderson" and her tow were steerin^^ bad and

would first open up her green light and then close it

out ag'ain, and whilst the "Samson" had ported her

helm in order to afford the ''M. F. Henderson" and

her tow plenty of room yet the ''M. F. Henderson"

with her tow kept heading right in to the "Samson".

Orders had been given by the ])ilot of the "Samson"

.'md obeyed at once to put the "Samson" helm hard

aport, and about that time the "M. F. Henderson"

gave a second signal by one big blast of the whistle

whicli was the signal indicating her continued inten-

tion to pass to the port side of the "Samson," and

which sio-nal was immediatelv answered bv the "Sam-

son" by one long blast of the whistle. The "Samson"

\\as at this time h:ird aport and immediately there-

after the Oil Barge No. 93 came close to the "Sam-

son" and seemed to sheer off a little to the starboard

side of the channel, and thereui)on tlie "Samson"

backed uj) wide open and while backing the Oil

Barge struck the j^ort scow, to-\vit. Barge Xo.

9 and about the same time struck the ])ort

Barge, to-wit, P)arg-e No. 9, the (^il Barge

the "M. F. Henderson" struck the said i:)ort

barge to-wit, P>arge Xo. 9 with her stem and at or

<'i])oul tlie same time tlie forward ])arge to-wit, Barge

Xo. 27 struck the "M. V. Henderson" <'it a point near
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the forward part of the freight house of the ''M. F.

Henderson" and the colhsion and subsequent sinking

of the ''M. F. Henderson" occurred.

ARTICLE IV.

Said colHsion was not caused or contributed to by

any neghgence on the part of the claimant or of those

in charge of said Steamer ''Samson," Barge No. 8,

Barge No. 9 and Barge No. 27, but was caused wholly

by the fault and negligence of the Steamer M. F.

Henderson," and her tow.

ARTICLE V.

By reason of said collision the claimant was dam-

aged in the sum of $604.12, to-wit:

Loss of one day's use of the Steamer "Sam-

son" and the cost of operation $133.50

Loss of one day's use of the Steamer ''Her-

cules" (which was making a joint trip in

connection with the "Samson," and the cost

of operation 1 1 1.00

Loss of one day's use of six barges at $15.00

per day and loss of one day's use of three

barges at $12.00 per day 126.00

Amount paid for repairs to barges necessitated

bv reason of said collision 188.62

Loss of use of said barges while being repaired 45.00

ARTICLE VI.

No part of said loss and damage has been paid to

claimant and the Steamer "AT. F. Henderson," Oil

Barge No. 93 and Standard Oil Company incorporat-

ed under the laws of the State of California and libel-
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lant herein Shaver Transportation Company refuse

lo i)ay said damage or any part thereof.

ARTICLE \U.

Said Steamer *'M. F. Henderson" is now within

this district and within the jurisdiction of this court.

ARTICLE VIII.

All and singular the premises are true and within

the jurisdiction of the United States, and of this Hon-

orahle Court.

WHEREFORE, claimant prays that said libel may

be dismissed with costs and that claimant may have

and recover of and from Shaver Transportation Com-

pany, libellant herein, and owner of the Steamer "M.

F. Henderson" or from the Standard Oil Company in-

corporated under the laws of the State of California

and owner of Oil Barge No. 93, or against Shaver

Transportation Company and the said Standard Oil

Company incorporated under the laws of the State of

California, the sum of six hundred and four and

12/100 dollars to satisfy the claims of claimant for

damages with interest and costs, and that claimant

may have such other and further relief as mav be

])r()per.

TEAL, MIXOR .S: WIXFREE,
Proctors for claimant.

[Endorsed]: Answer to Sup])lemental Libel.

Filed Jun. 29, 1912.

A. M. CANNON,
Clerk U. S. District Court.
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And afterwards, to wit, on the 27 day of August, 1912,

there was duly filed in said Court, Answer of Re-

spondent to Supplemental Libel, in words and

figures as follows, to wit:

[Answer of Respondent to Supplemental Libel.]

(Title.)

No. 5420.

Answer of Respondent Standard Oil Company In-

corporated Under the Laws of the State of Califor-

nia to the Supplemental Libel filed against it in per-

sonam by Shaver Transportation.

This respondent. Standard Oil Company Incor-

porated Under the Laws of the State of California, a

corporation, brings this its answer to the supplemen-

tal libel exhibited in this cause in personam against

this respondent, and for answer shows and alleges to

the court as follows:

ARTICLE I.

This respondent believes it to be true that the libel-

lant herein is incorporated as in the supplemental libel

set forth and has its principal office as stated in said

Hbel.

ARTICLE IL

This respondent, Standard Oil Company Incorpor-

ated Under tlie Laws of the State of California, is a

corporation, as stated in the supplemental lil)el,

though it is mis-described therein as incorporated un-

der the laws of the State of Oregon, this respondent

being in fact incorporated under the laws of the State

of California.
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ARTICLE III.

Respondent admits that the Steamer ''F. M. Hen-

derson" in all times as in the su])|)]emental lihel stat-

ed was the i)roperty of the lihelant and was a steamer

sometimes nsed in towinj:^ on the Colnmbia and Wil-

lamette Rivers, bnt this respondent does not know its

length, beam, or depth, concerning which the respond-

ent leaves proof thereof to libelant as the libelant

may be advised, bnt this respondent denies that at the

time of the accident and injnr}' to the Steamer "Hen-

derson" as in the libel set forth the Steamer "Hen-

derson" was worth fifty thousand dollars or any value

exceeding the sum of twenty-five thousand dollars.

ARTICLE TV.

Touching and concerning the allegations in Article

IV. of the supplemental libel of the libelant, this re-

spondent says the true facts touching and concerning

the request alleged to have ])een made by this re-

spondent upon the Oregon Round Lumber Company

to ])rocure and furnish a steam tug to tow Oil Barge

93 from Astoria, Oregon, to Portland, are as follows:

On towit, July 21, 1911, this res])ondent had an agree-

ment with the (Oregon Round Lumber C()m])any, a

corjxjration, for the towing of :ill vessels which might

be owned by this respondent and the towing of which

might 1)e recpiired b}' this respondent and which were

l)l\ing ])etween Astoria, Oregon, and IV)rtland, Ore-

gon, and on towit, July 21, 191 1, this resjiondent, then

ha\ing its ()il I)arge 9v^ in the ])ort of Astoria bound

for Portland, (^rei'on, tlierc to dischari^-c a certain
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cargo of oil with which the said Oil Barge 93 was

loaded, requested said Oregon Round Lumber Com-

pany to furnish a tug under the contract of said Ore-

gon Round Lumber Company with this respondent to

tow this respondent's said Barge from Astoria to

Portland, aforesaid, pursuant to which request the

said Oregon Round Lumber Company on towit, July

21, 1911, furnished to this respondent the Steamer "F.

M. Henderson," the owner of wdiich steamer by libel-

ant was unknown to this respondent; thereupon, the

said "Henderson" took in tow said Barge 93 of this re-

spondent and undertook to safely tow said Barge from

Astoria to Portland.

Except as to the facts herein set forth, this re-

spondent denies the allegations of Article IV. of the

supplemental libel of the libelant, and particularly

that the Oregon Round Lumber Company, acting for

this respondent, requested the libelant to furnish the

said Steamer the "Henderson" to tow said Barge 93.

ARTICLE V.

This defendant denies that, except as stated in Ar-

ticle IV. of its answer herein, said Steamer "Hender-

son" was chartered by this respondent, or that the

libelant chartered the said vessel to this respondent

to furnish motive power, only, or that it was char-

tered at all except as stated in Article I\^ of this an-

swer. But this respondent admits that the said

"Henderson" was made fast to said Oil Barge 93 on

the port side thereof early in the evening of July 21,

1911, and thereupon and thereafter, and almost im-



42 The Steamer Samson

mediately, the said Steamer ''Henderson" proceeded

on her voyage from Astoria, Oregon, to Portland,

Oregon, with said Barg-e 93 in tow and for ultimate

delivery to this resi)ondent at Portland, Oregon, and

while she was so proceeding, this respondent, pursu-

ant to negotiations which had heen had theretofore

with llie Columhia River Pilots Association, had on

hoard of the said Barge 93 to generally pilot the said

Barge and the tug towing the same up said River, and

while the said passage was heing made, and uj) to the

time of the collision in the said su])])lemental lihel

referred to, the i)ilot in charge of said Barge, who had

general supervision of said Barge, g"ave to the master

of said tug "Henderson" general instructions touch-

ing the movements of the said vessels. But this re-

s])ondent denies that said passage was undertaken

wholly under the direction or control of this respond-

ent, but alleges the fact to be that both the master of

the said tug ''Henderson" and the said pilot had

charge of the movements of the said vessels. That

the said "Henderson" at the time of being furnished

as aforesaid was su])plied with a master wliom this

respr)ndent believed to be competent and with a full

com])lement of a crew. And it is true, as in the said

Article V. alleged, that while ])assing up the River

and at the time of the collision complained of, said

"Henderson" and said Oil Barge 93 were i)roceeding

U]) the Columbia River at the rate ni about three kn(^ls

l)cr hour: that they were well under c^^ntrol, with all

lights set and burning as recpiired by law: that the
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nioiit was clear. While the said vessels were pro-

ceeding- up the said River, and at or in the neighbor-

hood of Piiget Island in the Columbia River, the pilot

and lookout on the said ''Henderson" and Oil Barge

93 observed to-wit, approximately two miles up the

Columbia River, lights which afterwards proved to

be lights of the Steamer "Samson" with Barges No.

8, No. 9 and No. 27 in tow, which said Steamer ''Sam-

son" and her said Barges were then the property, as

this respondent believes, of the claimant herein, Co-

lumbia Contract Company, an Oregon corporation,

said "Samson" running at to-wit, more than five

miles per hour past the land, and there was at this

time a strong ebb tide, though the amount thereof

this respondent does not know. The said "Samson"

was towing the Barges to which she was fastened, to-

wit. Barges No. 8, No. 9, and No. 27, in what is known

as a "spiked tow," to-wit, Barge No. 8 was made fast

to the starboard side of the "Samson" projecting for-

ward beyond the "Samson;" Barge No. 9 was made

fast to the port side of the "Samson" projecting for-

ward approximately equal with Barge No. 8, and

Barge No. 27 was between the two said Barges, pro-

jecting forward beyond both of them, the stern of

the last-named Barge being in line with and close to

the stem of the "Samson." At this time the said

"Samson" and her tows showed to Oil Barge No. 93

and the "Henderson" proceeding as one vessel, the

two side-lights of her, the said "Samson" and two

mast-head lights and one white light on the forward
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end of Barge No. 8 and the forward side of said

Steamer "Samson," l)nt there was no H![^ht on Barge

Xo. 9, nor was there any other hght visible by the

said "Samson" or her tows. The said "Samson" is

110 feet 4 inches in length and some 25 feet 4 inches

l)e:im ; and about 15 feet 6 inches deep. Barges Xo. 8

and 9 are to-wit, approximately 160 feet in length,

and about 38 feet beam, and 9 feet in depth. Barge

Xo. 27 was approximately 150 feet in length, 36 feet

beam, and about 9 feet in dei)th. This respondent

cannot say what draught (^f water the said Samson

and her Barges were drawing. Oil Barge Xo. 93 and

the "Henderson" proceeding up the River as one ves-

sel were by their lights then set and burning as afore-

said in clear view of the "Samson" and her tows and

for a distance of at least two miles, and when the said

"Samson" and her tows were, to-wit, not less than a

half to three-quarters of a mile distant from the said

"Henderson" and "Oil Barge 93, said Barge 93, by

direction of the pilot in general charge of the naviga-

tion of said Barge and her tug, gave the signal to the

"Samson" that the said Barge and her said tug the

"Henderson" would continue on up tlie River and

pass to the port side of the said "Samson," giving one

long blast of the whistle for that purpose, and which

was designed to convey the meaning aforesaid, and

thereu])on, the said signal was ])rom])tly accepted in

answer to the said "Samson" I3}' one long blast of her

whistle. Said Oil [>arge 93 and her said tug the

"Henderson" were at this time near to a point (»n
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the River known as "Bugby's Hole" and were well

on the starboard side of the River, coming up the

River, and were well on the starboard side of the

channel and toward the Oregon shore, and were then

hauled, and for a long time previous thereto had been

hauled, well inside the Hunting Island Range Lights

so as to show the "Samson" before any whistle blast

was given that Oil Barge 93, with her said tug, the

"Henderson," intended to keep the starboard side of

the River and wished and intended to pass the port

side of the "Samson." Notwithstanding such signal

and its answer, the said "Samson" did not effectively

alter her course, and both her side lights remained

visible to Barge 93, whereupon the said Barge con-

tinued to port her helm and the said Barge and her

said tug continued to haul more and more toward the

Oregon shore in order to avoid the "Samson" and

pass to her port as intended, but the "Samson" con-

tinued to approach Barge 93 and the "Henderson"

did not haul to her own side of the channel, and there-

upon, Barge 93 gave a warning signal of the contin-

ued intention of said Barge and her said tug the

"Henderson" to pass to the port side of the "Samson"

by giving another long blast of the whistle, and such

signal was given at a time when the said "Samson"

was well able to safely conform her course to such

notice, but the "Samson" did not alter her course and

Barge 93 and her said Steamer "Henderson" both

immediately put their helms hard aport and made

for the Oregon shore, ])Ut too late to avert a collision.
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The ''Samson" and her tow collided with the said

"Flenderson" at to-wit, near the forward end of the

freight house of the "Henderson" and crushed the

hull to some extent of the said "Henderson" and her

house, so that the said "Henderson" sank, but she

(lid not become a total loss, for that she was after-

wards raised and a considerable salvage realized.

Said Barge 93 then immediately let go her anchor

and came to rest, to-wit, about 300 feet from the Ore-

gon shore and not far from that point on the River

designated as "Bugby's Hole." The force and shock

of the collision broke the lines by which Barge 93 was

made fast to the said "Henderson" and the shock, to-

gether with the current of the River, carried the

''Henderson" some distance down the River below

Oil Barge 93, where the "Henderson" sank, though it

is not true, as alleged in Article \\ of the supple-

mental libel that the said "Flcnderson" became or was

a total loss.

So that, as this respondent alleges, in respect to all

of the allegations contained in Article Y. of the sup-

l)lemental libel, that the allegations thereof are sub-

stantial!}' true, being true as herein alleged, and not

otherwise. But the responsibilit}' for the said col-

lision, as charged in the said supplemental libel, rested

with the said steam tug "Samson" and her said tows,

and the said tug "Samson" disregarding the signals

which had been given to her, and by negligent and

careless management causing the damage of the said

libelant com])laine(l of. Tiiat the I)arges of the said
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tug ''Samson" and to which the said "Samson" was

fastened, were heavily laden rock barges, each barge

containing approximately one thousand tons of rock,

which said rock was being towed by the said tug

''Samson" to the mouth of the Columbia River for use

in connection with some jetty work then being car-

ried on.

ARTICLE VI.

Respondent admits that heretofore and about April

22nd, 1912, and after the libelant herein had filed its

libel in rem against said tug "Samson" and her

Barges, charging the specific acts of negligence here-

inbefore referred to, the Columbia Contract Com-

pany, a corporation of the State of Oregon, having

theretofore filed its claim to the said "Samson" and

her said Barges, filed its answer to the libel of the

libelant, which had theretofore been filed, and in and

by which said answer said claimant, Columbia Con-

tract Company alleged, among other things, tKe facts

and circumstances set forth and charged to have been

alleged in said answer in Article \ I. of the supple-

mental libel of the libelant herein filed against this

respondent, all of which allegations, however, are

in fact untrue, as charged in the libel of the libelant

filed herein and against this respondent. But in re-

s])ect to the charges set forth in Article \'II. of said

supplemental libel, this res]:)ondent denies that if the

allegations in the said answer of the said claimant and

stipulator, Columbia Contract Company, shall by the

evidence be proven true, then the sinking and loss of
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the Steamer "Henderson" was occasioned either hy

the negligence of Oil Barge 93 or the joint negligence

of the said Oil Barge 93 and the said Steamer "Sam-

son," for that, as this respondent now alleges, under

the contract between this respondent and said Ore-

gon Round Lumber Company and under the terms by

which the said Steamer "Henderson" was furnished

to this respondent for the towing of its said Barge 93,

this respondent became, at most, a bailee as to the

said libelant herein, and its said vessel, the "Hender-

son," and became and was such bailee for hire, and

the advantages from such bailment were mutual, i. e.,

this respondent availed itself of the said "Hender-

son" for the towing aforesaid and the hire for the

use of said steamer was paid to the Oregon Round

Lumber Company in accord and with the contract

between that company and this respondent, and in the

manipulation and management of the said Barge 93

and the general directions given in the movement of

the said Barge and the said "Flenderson" by the pilot

in charge of the navigation of the said Barge 93 and

the said "Henderson," said pilot, who is a pul)lic

licensed state officer, exercised reasonable, sound

judgment and discretion in the course of and in con-

nection with the said voyage, and exercised ordinary

care and diligence in respect thereto, and if any in-

jury occurred to the said "Henderson" and for which

the said "Samson" and her Barges are not respon-

sible, the injury was one fr>r which this res])(Mident is

not responsible.
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While this respondent admits that the said supple-

mental libel, as charged in Article YII thereof, is filed

in order to prevent a multiplicity of suits and to bring

all persons interested into the libel proceedings by the

libelant first inaugurated against the said ''Samson"

and her Barges, it is not admitted by this respondent

that by the supplemental libel filed herein a multi-

plicity of suits will be avoided, or that by the supple-

mental libel herein it is competent on the part of the

libelant under the Admiralty Procedure laid down and

determined to bring this respondent by the service of

the supplemental libel herein upon this respondent in

personam into the case so by the libelant begun orig-

inally against the "Samson" in rem, but all such ef-

forts on the part of the libelant in this proceeding are

without authority of law, and this respondent denies

that it is or at any time was a joint tort feasor with,

or jointly concurred with, the Steamer '-'Samson" in

the negligence causing the wreck of the said wSteamer

"Henderson," and the respondent now prays for such

relief as might be awarded to this respondent had this

respondent excepted to the said libel for such mis-

joinder. And this respondent now alleges that this

respondent cannot be held to answer in this proceed-

ing without some specific act of negligence, with

which the said respondent is in no way charged by

the supplemental libel herein.

ARTICLE VIT.

Answering Article XT FT. of the supplemental libel,

this respondent denies all knowledge and informa-
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tion sufficient to form a belief as to wliether or not

at the time of the colHsion the Steamer "Henderson"

had on her su])])hes, stores and articles of the value

of fifteen hundred dollars, or of any value, and which

cargoes were wholly lost by reason of the said col-

lision ; but the libelant admits that there were some

stores and supplies not necessary as a part of her

required equi]:)ment and which were on the vessel at

the time of the collision and which may ])robabl\'

have been lost, but the res])ondent leaves to the libel-

ant the i^roof as to all such matters, for this respond-

ent now charges that if there were any such supplies,

articles and stores not necessary as a part of her re-

(|uired ec|uipment, then the libelant cannot recover

for the same or for an}' part thereof.

ARTICLE MIL
Answering Article IX. of the supplemental libel,

this respondent denies all knowledge or information

sufficient to form a belief as to the amount alleged

l)y the libelant to have been expended in the raising

of til engines after the collision and in the salvage of

the said "Henderson," and respondent leaves to lil^el-

ant proof as to such matters as the libelant may be

advised may be necessary.

ARTICLE IX.

Answering Article X. of the supplemental libel,

this resi)ondent denies all knowledge or information

sufficient to form a belief as to whether salvage has

been reco\erc(l from the said "Ilenderson" in the sum

of sixteen thousand dolL'irs, or an\' other sum. What-
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ever sum has been so secured must be credited by the

said ''Henderson" and Hbehmt, the owners thereof,

against the Hbelant's chiim for damage by reason of

the colHsion.

ARTICLE X.

Answering Article XL of the supplemental libel,

this respondent denies that the net damage sustained

by the libelant b}^ reason of the collision was and is

the sum of, to-wnt, $45,500, with interest, or any other

sum exceeding the sum of $16,000, for that, as here-

tofore in this answer set forth, said ''Henderson" was

not at the time of the said collision of the value of

$50,000, nor did she have any value exceeding the

value of $25,000. That the said "Henderson" was

subsequently raised by the said libelant and brought

to the City of Portland. That she was about from

ten to fifteen years of age prior to the time of the col-

lision, and while her value may have been in excess of

v$25,000 when she was first constructed, her value did

not exceed at the time of the collision the sum of $25,-

000. Large amounts of her machinery were salved.

And whereas, the owners of the said "Henderson"

claimed to have recovered by way of salvage of the

said vessel the sum of $16,000, after an alleged ex-

pense of $10,000 to secure the said salvage, as a mat-

ter of fact the said vessel could have been repaired and

the said vessel restored to as good a condition as be-

fore the collision by an expenditure of the sum of

from $14,000 to $16,000. So that, as this respondent

now a\ers, damage to the libelant by reason of the



52 Tlic Steamer Samson

collision did not exceed from $14,000 to $16,000. But

this respondent admits that no part of any damage

w hich may ha\e been sustained 1)\' the "Henderson"

has ever ])een paid by this respondent.

That all and singular the j^remises herein stated

are true.

Wherefore, this respondent, having now fully an-

swered the supplemental libel of the libelant filed

herein, prays to be hence dismissed, with the costs

and clisbtu'semcnts l)y the rspondent incurred in this

])roceeding.

ZERA SNOW,
WALLACE McCAMANT,
GEO. B. GUTHRIE,

Proctors for Respondent.

[Endorsed] : Answer of Standard Oil Company to

Supplemental Libel. Filed Aug. 27, 1912.

A. M. CANNON,
Clerk U. S. District Court.

And afterwards, to wit, on the 29 day of September,

1913, there was duly filed in said Court, an Opin-

ion, in words and figures as follows, to wit:

[Opinion on the Merits.]

(Title.)

CLSILMAX, District Judge.

Claimant relies on the follc^wing authorities:—
The Merchant Prince, Law Rpts. (1892).

1 Prob. Div. 170. in Court of App., 1892:

ThcOlympia,01 Fed. R., 120,
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C. C. A., 6th, Cir., 1894;

The F. W. Wheeler, 7^ Fed. R. 824,

C. C A., 6th Cir., 1897;

The Ohio, 91 Fed., 547; C. C. A., 6th Cir. 1898;

The Fontana, 119 Fed., 853; C C. A., 6th C,

1903.

The Edmund Moran, 180 Fed., 700;

C. C. A., 2nd Cir., 1910;

Nicholas Transit Co. v. Pittsburgh S. S. Co.,

196 Fed., 65; Dis. Ct., W. D. N. Y., 1912;

The Lackawanna, 201 Fed., 77^]

Dist. Ct., W. D. N. Y., 1913;

Union S. S. Co. v. N. Y. & Va. S. S. Co.,

65 U. S. (24 How.) 307; 16 L. C. P. Co. Ed.,

699; U. S. Sup. Ct., 1861;

The Bywell Castle, Law Rpts., 4 Prob. Div.,

219, in the Court of Appeal, 1878;

The Maggie J. Smith, 123 U. S., 349;

31 L. C. P. Co., Ed., 175;

U. S. Sup. Ct., 1897;

The Phoenix, 50 Fed., 330 ; Dist. Ct.,

S. D. N. Y., 1892;

The Lake Shore, 201 Fed., 449;

Dist. Ct., N. D. Ohio, 1912;

The Centurion, 100 Fed. R., 663;

C. C. A., 6th Cir., 1900;

The Maria Martin v. Northern Trans. Co.,

79 U. S. (12 Wall.), 31; 20 L. C. P. Co. Ed.,

251; U. S. Sup. Ct., 1871;

The Columbia, 23 Blatchf., 268;
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C C E. D. X. v., 1885;

W. Va. Central & P. Ry. Co. v. The Isle of

Pines, et al, 24 Fed, 498; Dist. Ct.

S. I). X. v., 1885;

The A. W. Thompson, 39 Vtd., 115;

Dist. Ct., S. D. X. v., 1889;

The Louise, 52 Fed., 885; C. C. A. 4th Circuit,

1892;

The Lisbonense, ^^ Vql\. R., 293;

C. C A. end Cir., 1892;

The Georg-e W. Cliilds, 67 Vq(\., 269;

Dist. Ct. E. D. Pa., 1895;

The \'ictory, 68 Fed., 395;

C. C. A. 4th Cir., 1895;

The ^Maryland, 182 Vi^d., 829;

Dist. Ct. E. D. \'a., 1910;

The Laura Lee, 24 Fed., 483;

Dis. Ct., E. D. La., 1885;

The City of Alexandria, 40 Fed. 697;

Dist. Ct. S. D. X. Y., 1889;

The Havilah, 50 Fed., 331;

C. C. A., 2nd Cir., 1892;

La Xorniandie, ?^ Fed., 427;

C. C. A. 2nd Cir., 1893;

The James Gray v. The John Eraser,

62 U. S. (21 How.) 184, 16 L. C P. Co.,

Ed. 106; L. S. Sup. Ct., 1859;

The SturiL^is v. P>oyer, 65 U. S. (24 Mow.).

110; 16 L. C. W O). Fd., 501 ; L\ S.

Sup. Ct. 1S()0;
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The J. H. Gautier and the Herbert Manton,

5 Benedict, 469; Dist. Ct., S. D. N. Y., 1872;

Affirmed 14 Rlatchf., 37, C. C S. D. N. Y., 1876;

The John Cooker and the James W. Eaton,

10 Benedict, 488; 13 Fed. Cases, 665,

(Fed. Case Xo. 7337), Dist. Ct. E. D. N. Y.,

1879;

The Doris Eckhoff, 32 Fed., 555;

Dist. Ct. S. D. N. Y., 1887.

The Umbria, 166 U. S.. 404; 41 L. C. P. Co.

Ed. 1053; U. S. Sup. Ct., 1897;

This question was before the court on the question

of the right of hbelant to maintain a suit for colhsion

in rem against one of the vessels and in personam

against the owner of another, charged to be involved

in the collision. (The "Samson," 197 Fed., 1017).

The cause is now for decision, after evidence taken, and

is brought to recover for the wreck of the Steamer

"Henderson," in a collision with the tow of the tug

"Samson," the collision occurring on the Columbia

River between Astoria and Portland. The suit is in

rem, against the "Samson" and the three barges form-

ing her tow, and in personam against the Standard Oil

Company, the owner of the oil barge being towed by

the "Henderson" at the time she was struck.

The collision took ])lace between 1 ;30 and 2 ;00 A.

M., July 22, 1911, in the main channel of the Colum-

bia River, between Puget Island and the Oregon

shore, near Bugby's Hole, during the flood season on

the river, with a nine-foot tide at half ebb. The night
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was dark, but clear, witli no moon.

Tlic "Henderson," a stern wlieel steamer, 158 feet

long, with a v31-foot beam, was coming up stream,

lashed to the port (piarter of her tow, overlapping the

stern of Jier tow some hundred feet, and with her bow^

turned slightly in towards the tow. The oil barge

was without propelling power of her own.

The tug "Samson"— 110 feet long—was going

down stream with a tow of three scows, each about

150 feet long, 36-foot beam, and each loaded with

about a thousand tons of rock. Fler scows were ar-

ranged in what is known as a "spike" tow, one scow

on her pc^rt cjuarter; another on her starboard-quar-

ter and the third between the other tw^o, projecting in

front of them some fifty feet, and immediately ahead

of the "Samson", the port and starboard scows flar-

ing from the center scow, making a flotilla, in general

outline, not unlike the "clul)" ui)on a i)laying card.

The collision occurred upon the upper "reach" of an

approximately straight stretch of channel, some three

or more miles long. This stretch of channel was

marked with certain range lights—two at the foot, on

the AX'ashington side, and one at the head of it, ui)on

the Oregon shore—and is known as the "llimting

Island Range."

At the ])lace of th(,' collision, the channel was about

twenl\-fi\e hundred feet wide. ^Fhe "Henderson"

and her tow met and ])assed. to starboard, of the

Steamer "Kern" about two miles 1)e]ow the ])oint of

collision. The "Samson" rounded the ])oint r>f I^^get
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Island over a mile above the point of collision, thus

coming- into view from the Washington side of the

ri\er.

After sighting the ''Samson/' wdiile two miles

apart, the oil barge, wdiose captain was directing her

towing, whistled once, wdien the vessels were about

a half mile apart, thus signalling passage port to port,

or on the Oregon side of the ''Samson." The "Sam-

son" answered promptly, accepting the signal. Both

sets of vessels were properly equipped with lights.

From this point the testimony is conflicting and

cannot be reconciled. The captain of the oil barge,

considering the "Samson" was not complying with

the signal with sufficient promptness, repeated it

when the vessels w^ere about five hundred feet apart.

The situation, as stated, discloses that the point of

collision, with reference to the width of the channel,

is the controlling factor in determining who was re-

sponsible for the collision. For the libelant it is con-

tended that this point was to the Oregon side of the

range marks, and by the claimant that it was on the

Puget Island side.

Much testimony has been introduced concerning the

maneuvering of the vessels immediately preceding

the collision; how the lights a])i)eared from one upon

the other, and the subsequent signals given by the

boats as well as the handling of helms just before the

collision. But none of it is of a character to sliift,

or divide the responsibility for the relative ])osition of

the vessels, witli reference to the marked channel,
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after the g;ivinj^ of tlie first signal and its acceptance

in ample time and with ami)le room to have avoided

the collision, with the vessels involved under con-

trol.

Tt is j^rohahlc that it was the port stone harg^e which

struck and crushed the "Henderson's" port bow, a

hole heins^ made in her how about fourteen feet

across, and beginning about thirty-five feet back from

her stem.

That the "Henderson" was not struck further aft

by the center stone barge is probably explained by

the flare of the stone l)arges, the exact extent of

which cannot be known, but, whether the "Hender-

son" was struck by the center scow, or the port scow

is deemed unimportant, for the angle of the courses

of the encountering vessels would have been substan-

lially the same in either case.

The "Henderson" when cut awa}- and free from

the oil barge, sank almost immediately and, without

any control of her movements, drifted down stream.

The oil barge dropped her anchors. The "Samson"

carried her tow astern of the oil barge, after the col-

lision
;
got the lines off the stone l)arges and anchored

them.

There is a great deal of conflict in the testimony of

the witnesses ui)()n the vessels concerned about how

long a time elai)se(l after the collision before the oil

barge (lr()])])ed lur anchors, Libelant C(^ntends that

the}' were dro])])ed inimediatel}'. 1'he witnesses of

libelant on the "Henderson" and oil bari^-e are cor-
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roborated on this point, and that of the place of col-

lision by a number of drift net fishermen, who were on

the river, a short distance below the collision. These

fishermen, in putting out their drift nets, used the

range lights primarily marking the channel for the

benefit of vessels.

The oil barge, when anchored, was within a short

distance of the Oregon shore, with no more room than

was required to sw^ing at anchor. Claimant under-

takes to account for her position upon the theory that

she had such headway as to carry her up stream,

across the range and over to the Oregon shore. The

fact that she was onlv making* three miles an hour at

the time of the collision, coupled with the further

facts that it was ebb tide, with a strong current; that

the "Henderson" had been backing full speed astern

for half a minute before the collision; that the force

of the collision was such as to break the five heavy

lines fastening the "Henderson" to the oil barge rend-

ers it improbable that she would go a quarter of the

distance from the range to the Oregon shore, even

without dragging her anchors, whereas she was an-

chored three quarters of the way in from the range

towards that shore.

This was an old and good anchorage ground. It is

unlikely th.at the anchors dragged. The evidence

shows that they w^ere dropped in not to exceed thirty

seconds after the collision,—one anchor weiehino-

seven thousand pounds, and the other sixty-three hun-

dred pounds.
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Hie stone baro-es were anchored to the Oregon

side of but near tlie range. These stone barges were

evident I}- carried thus far towards Puget Island after

tlie colHsion, l)efore the hues of the "Samson" were

gotten off them, then drifted down the cliannel to the

j)()int of anchorage.

The momentum of the stone l)arges, going down

the ri\er at six or seven miles an hour, with a favor-

al)le current would, natural]}', carry them further to-

wards the Washington shore than the oil barge would

go towards the Oregon shore, traveling at the rate of

three or four miles par hour, when struck, with an ad-

verse current.

That the point of collision was well to the Oregon

side of the channel is still further shown by the point

to which the "Henderson" drifted. While it cannot

be determined how great was the momentum of the

oil barge or the stone scows; nor how^ far across the

stream they wotild be carried by it, the crushing and

immediate sinking of the "Henderson," left it inert

to be carried by the current, uninfluenced by any

other force. It drifted and lodged in the shoals on

the shore of Tcnas lllihee Island, wliicli was ui)on the

Oregon shore of the main clKinnel of the river, about

thirty-five hundred feet below the i)oint of collision.

The testimony of those aboard shows that the

"Henderson" bumped on the bottom as she drifted,

which could only h.'ive been ui)on I he slioals to the

Oregon side. Claimant seeks to explain tlie position

in wliich tlie "I lenderson" was left b\' contending that
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she was drawn towards the Oreg'on side of the river

by the waters of CHfton Channel, which separates

Tenas IlHhee Island from the main Oregon shore.

The deepest parts of this channel are twelve to fif-

teen feet—not one-third the depth of the main chan-

nel, and could have had no appreciable effect upon the

'^Henderson," unless she was well in towards the Ore-

gon side when she was struck.

After anchoring her barges, the ''Samson" and one

of her boats went to the "Henderson" and shoved and

i:>ulled her upon the shoals of Tenas Tllihce Island. The

Captain of the ''SaniASon" testified that, in going to the

relief of the "Flenderson," he crossed the range.

Tlierefore, it is clear that the "Henderson" could not

have been on the Washington side, while the ''Sam-

son," through her movement and that of her stone

barges, subsecfuent to the collision, might have been.

It is contended In- claimant that it is bv this action

on the part of the "Samson" in towing and shoving

the "Henderson" that she was gotten over to the Ore-

gon side of the river. But it cannot thus be accounted

for. The "Henderson" would not drift across the

main current and, if in tlie center of the main current

of tlie river, marked l)y the range lights, she would

have drifted further down in the time required by tlie

"Samson" to get her lines off her tows, anchor them

and go to the "Henderson." If the "Samson" had

found her upon the Washington side of the channel,

she would, probably, have towed her to that shore,

and not to the Oregon side, across the dee]) channel.
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takino- tlic chances of licr sinking*.

Tt is clear that llie fanU was with the ^'Samson/'

The faihn-e of the oil barj^e, or the "Henderson," to

i^'ive a (lan^-er sij^nal, as ])rovi(le(l by Rule T., pre-

scribed for j)ilots in inland water, and the repeating of

the oil barge's first signal are not shown, by the evi-

dence, to have helped to cause the collision.

The ])ilot of the "Samson" understood the first sig-

nal and had his tow under control. If it was un-

wieldy, he should have kn(nvn it and acted in time.

1^he giving of a danger signal would not, in any event,

lia\e avoided the collision, because it would not have

helped him control his tow, if unwieldy.

Having concluded that the sole fault was that of

the "Samson," the supplemental libel against the

Standard Oil Company, the owner of the oil barge,

w^hose captain was in charge of her towing u]) the

river, will be dismissed. The relief asked by the an-

swer, in the nature of a cross-libel against libelant

and the res])ondent. Standard Oil Company, is also

dismissed for the same reason.

It has already been held herein that the three stone

barges would be responsible with tlie "Samson" for

an\' damage from the latter's fault. (The John Cook-

er, Fed. Case Xo. 7?^?)7). Tn view of the fact that the

"Samson" and the stone barges were both owned

and claimed by the i)rescnt claimant, taken in con-

nection with other circumstances of the case, the

court must adhere to the former ruling.

1^lu' "1 lenderson" was raised; i)rouuht into the drv
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dock and practically rebuilt. There was salvage of

a portion of her machinery. Therefore, the value of

the ''Henderson," less the net salvage, is the measure

of libelant's damage.

There is a wade range in the testimony as to the

value of the ''Henderson," the amounts varying from

$20,000 to $45,000, in the opinion of the different wit-

nesses. The evidence shows that, at the time of the

wreck, the "Henderson" was ten years old and in good

condition. There is evidence by her builder that the

"Henderson" and her equipment cost upwards to

$51,000; that, in 1911, labor and material were higher

than in 1901, when she was built. Some of the wit-

nesses testified tliat there had been an advance of

twenty-five per cent. She was built as a passenger

and freight boat, Ijut, owing to the extension of rail-

road lines, or other reasons, it appears that she had

ceased to l)e of use in the passenger service.

A number of the witnesses who have testified as to

the value of the "Henderson" have made lump valua-

tions. Captain J. H. Johnson, who built the "Hender-

son," and whom the evidence shows to have been a

man of much experience in building boats, went

greatly into detail in his estimate of the cost and de-

preciation of the "Henderson," ])laced the value of

the "Henderson" at the time of the wreck at v$43,-

888.21. The testimony of this witness has l)cen ac-

corded great weight, yet it does not appear that suf-

ficient allowance has been made in his estimate for

(lepreci;ition during the ten years the "Henderson"
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was ill use. Among" tlie items affeeted are:—the

paintino^, house, boilers, en^^ines, furniture and other

minor items. The testimony of this witness shows, in

estimating tlie depreciation, he took into considera-

tion the present efficiency alone, without regard to

the ])rol)al)le length of life of the articles valued, fix-

ing the depreciation as low as two per cent, on one

item, his contention being that the depreciation might

he considered as resembling the quadrant of a circle,

while at the last, the falling off would be rapid—

a

perpendicular drop. At the beginning, for a consider-

able ])eriod, it would be very little below the high level

of the article when new.

It is concluded that this witness, in disregarding,

in his estimate of value, the relation borne by the first

cost to the probal)le length of life of the different

items, placed the valuation v$5,000 too high. The to-

tal value is, therefore, fixed at v$38,888.21.

The gross value of the salvage is found to be $16,-

835. There is a dispute concerning the amount that

should l)e charged against this on account of the cost

of salvage. The work of sah'ing was done by other

of libelant's boats. It is contended that more boats

than were necessary engaged in this ^\•()rk and that

too great a charge has been made for them. It is

not ])rol)able that more men or boats were used dur-

im^- a busy season than ai)i)earc(l necessar}', mereh' for

the ])ur]K)se of seeking recovery at the end of a long

law -nil. 1'lie evidence f.'iils to disclose that any of

them were unnecessarv. While the amount chare"ed
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for the boats appears high, as compared with their or-

dinary employment, yet, when considered that the

need was immediate and urgent; that Hbelant had to

interrupt other employments in which the boats were

engaged, to secure their services, the charge does not

appear excessive.

The cost of salvage is found to be v$8,414.84, from

which should be deducted $100.00, which was after-

w^ards realized on certain timbers used in the salvage

work, making $8,314.84. The net value of the salvage

from the vessel is, therefore, found to be $8,520.16.

Deducting this from $38,888.21, the value of the

''Henderson" as found, there would remain v$30,-

368.05, the amount of libelant's damage occasioned

by the loss of the ''Henderson." To this should be

added the value of the supplies and provisions aboard

the "Henderson" at the time of the wreck—$418.71

and $83.99, respectively—making the total recovery

to which libelant is entitled $30,870.75, with interest

at the legal rate from July 22, 1911.

Libelant to recover costs. The costs of res])ond-

ent. Standard Oil Company, to be divided equally be-

tween libelant and claimant.

[Endorsed] : Decision on Merits. Filed Sep. 29,

1913.

A. M. CANNON,
Clerk U. S. District Court.

.\nd afterwards, to wit, on the 23 day of October,

1913, there was duly filed in said Court, a Final

Decree, in words and figures as follows, to wit:
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[Final Decree.]

(Title.)

This cause liavini;" been heretofore regularly sub-

mitted ui)on the pleadings and the evidence adduced

])}' the several parties heret(^ and received upon the

issues herein, Shaver Transportation Company, Li-

bellant, appearing by Mr. C. E. S. Wood and Mr. Krs-

kine Wood, Columbia Contract Company, claimant,

appearing by ^Ir. Wirt Minor and Mr. Rogers Mac-

Veagh, Standard Oil Company, Incorporated Under

The Lavv's of The State of California, Respondent,

appearing by ]\Ir. Zera Snow and Mr. Geo. B. Guth-

rie, and a stipulation for the release of the Steamer

"Samson" and Barges numbers 8, 9 and 27, having

heretofore been duly filed and accepted, in and by

which the stipulators, Columbia Contract Company

and United States Fidelity and (Guaranty Company

agreed to abide by the decree of this Court, and of the

appellate court; and the Court being duly advised in

the premises

:

IT IS NOW ADJUDGED AND DECREED that

liljellant, Shaver Transportation Company, have and

recover of and from the claimant herein, Columbia

Contract Company, a corporation, and from United

States Fidelity and Guaranty Conipany, its stipulator

on the stipulation filed herein for the release of the

steamer "Samson" and lier barges numbers 8, 9 and

27, the full sum of tliirty thousand eight hundred and

se\entv dollars and se\'ent\'-fi\'e cents ( SvS0,8/'0.73 ).
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damages suffered by said libellant from the said col-

lision referred to in the libel of libellant ,which dam-

ages are now found and stated to be said sum of $30,-

870.75, together with interest thereon at six per cent,

per annum from July 22, 1911, together with all costs

and disbursements, taxed at $675.79, and that execu-

tion issue for the said several sums of money now de-

creed in favor of said lil^ellant on the demand of li-

bellant or its proctors.

IT IS FURTHER ADJUDGED AND DE-

CREED that the supplemental libel of Shaver Trans-

portation Company, libellant herein, against Standard

Oil Company, Incorporated Under The Laws of The

State of California, l)e and the same hereby is dis-

missed, and that the costs and disbursements of said

Standard Oil Company Incorporated Under the

Laws of The State of California be and they are here-

by taxed at $382.70, and that said Standard Oil Com-

pany Incorporated Under The Laws of The State of

California do have and recover of and from libellant

one-half of said costs, to wit v$191.35 and do have and

recover from Columbia Contract Company one-half of

said costs, to wit, the sum of $191.35, and that execu-

tion therefore issue severally and respectively against

libellant and claimant on demand of said Standard
Oil Company Incorporated Under The Laws of The
State of California or its proctors.

That this decree be entered as a decree of the Court
and as of date this 23rd day of October, 1913.

EDWARD E. CUSHMAN,
District Judge Sitting at the Trial.
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[Endorsed] : Final Decree. Filed Oct. 23, 1913.

A. M. CANNON,
Clerk U. S. District Court.

And afterwards, to wit, on the 27 day of October,

1913, there was duly filed in said Court, a Cost

Bill, in words and fig"ures as follows, to wit:

[Respondent's Cost Bill.]

(Title.)

TOTAL COSTS AND DISBURSEMENTS IN-

CURRED BY RESPONDENT.
Clerk's fees up to and including entry of de-

cree $

Proctors prevailing" fee 20.00

Proctor's fee for taking the following depo-

sitions at $2.50 each:

1 Deposition William Kalberg before A. W.
Person, Notary,

2 Deposition Captain C. B. Sorley, before A.

W. Person, Notary,

3 Deposition John Osterwald before ?^Iary E.

Bell

4 Deposition Fxhvard Sullivan before Mary

E. Bell

5 Deposition Charlie Johnson before Aviary

E. Bell

6. Deposition Ilenr}- Sta}'ton bef(^re Mary

E. Bell

7 I)e])osition Ole (irove before Mary E. Bell

(S Deposition Eddie Grove before Mary E.

licii ;



The Steamer Samson 09

9 Deposition J. W. Shaver before Mary E.

Bell

10 Deposition J. W. Shaver before Mary E.

Bell

(Recalled on the question of damages)

11 Deposition J. W. Shaver before Mary E.

Bell

(Recalled in rebuttal on damages)

12 Deposition J. N. Smith before Mary E Bell

13 Deposition A. L. Pease before Mary E. Bell

14 Deposition J. H. Johnston before Mary E.

Bell

15 Deposition O. S. Hosford before Mary E.

Bell
;

16 Deposition A. M. Conway before Mary E.

Bell

17 Deposition Charles M. Nelson before Mary

E. Bell

18 Deposition William B. Honeyman before

Mary E. Bell

19 Deposition Joseph Supple before Mary E.

Bell

20 Deposition Alfred Duncan before Mary E.

Bell

21 Deposition Joseph Paquet before Mary E.

Bell

22 Deposition Robert ]\IcIntosh before Mary

E. Bell

23 Deposition Daniel Kern before Mary E.

Bell
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2\ I )t'i>()siti()n j. h'. ( 'opclaiid hcforc Mary I^.

IW'll

25 I )c'i)()sil ion (i. Kii'kliani Siiiilli before Mary

1-:. ilell

2(> I )c])(>siti()ii fVtcr Carstcn Ix-fore Mary E.

r.cii

27 I )('|)()siti(>n !)ain\'l Kcin Ix'fore Mary 1^.

r.rii

(Recalled)

2S hcposilion (
". W. Ilall Ix-tore Mary [•:. lUdl

20 I )(•))( )^il ion I. II. l.a.Moree l)el'o!-e Mar\' hi.

lull

M) Dcposilioii ('. W. I>:ilc before Mary !•:. r.cll

31 hcposilion S. II. Slia\cT before Mar}' \\.

r>eii

,^2 hcposilion T. \\. I'ollcii before Mar\' 1^.

r.cll

.\> hcposilion C A. Pnia'ca bcfoi-c Mar\' K.

hell 82.50

Paid Tclcr (arslcn for snr\'e\' of "llen-

dcrs(Mr' 50.00

Taid Joseph Snpple for snr\'e\' of "lien

dcrs( »n" 75.00

(2 trips and snr\e\- of daniaj.;*es)

W'ilnesses :

Taid Tclcr ( 'arslcn, cxpcrl wilness 20.00

Paid loscpli Snpple, cxpcrl wilness 20.00

William kalbcfL;. I day's allcndantn' and

niilcas^i' fi'oni San I *cdro. ( 'alif(»rnia, 1270

miles 1 17.25
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C. P>. Sorlcv, 1 (lay's allcMidancc and 1 mile 3.20.

Notaries l'\'C's lw)r Takiiii^ 1 )ri)()sili()iis :

Taid A. VV. Trrson for takini^ drposilioii

William Kalhrrir ^).55

Paid A. W. Prrsnii onr liaK Notary's fees

l"(»r taking deposition (aptaiti Sofley ^).15

Paid Miss l»ell one half fees for reportinj^"

and fninisliin*; Iranseript of evidence 207.00

$() 14.45

Costs taxed at $3«'^2.70 hy order entered Dee. 15,

1013.

A. M. CANNON,
Clerk.

hy C. II. MAkSIl,

I )(.'i)nty.

I )i strict of (^reij^on,

M nllnomali ( 'onnt v— ss.

I, /era Snow, heini; first dnly sworn, (U'pose and

sa\': I am one ol the proctors for respondent al)o\-e

named and am moi'e fannliai' with the costs and dis-

!)nrsen)ents incnri-ed h\' the respondent in this snit

than the respondent, or an\ ollicer oi respondent.

The lore^()in<4" statement ot costs and dishnrsemen t s

is correct as 1 \'eril\ heliexe, and nnder the final de

cree ol the canst' the respondent is entitU'd to reco\er

the same as t'ollows: one halt of the ainonnt aj^'ainst

the lihelant, Shax'er Tr.insporta t ion Companw and

one halt ol the anionnt aiL;ainst the claimant, C^)hnn-

hia Contract (j)mpan\.
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T further say tliat in tlic course of the investigation

in l)ehalf of respondent it l)ecame necessary to have

surveys made (^f tlie Steamer "Henderson'' touching

and concerning' the damage to the said vessel, the

amount of whicli damage was disputed l)y the re-

spondent, and that Peter Carsten and Joseph Supple,

both practical boat builders of the City of Portland,

were ensfao'ed to make such survev; that thev each

made a survey of the Steamer "Menderson" and of the

damage thereto, the said Joseph Sup])le making two

tri])s for the ]nn*])ose and furnishing estimates of the

amount of damage, the said I'eter Carsten making

one trip for the purpose, and that there was paid to

each of the said parties by the respondent for the

time consumed in making surveys and estimates the

respective amounts set out in the foregoing state-

ment of costs and disbursements. Subsequently, and

at the trial of this suit both of the said witnesses were

recjuircd to, and did, aj)pear on the first day of the

commencing of the trial and thereafter they were ex-

cused from time to time until they were finally called,

^riie time consumed in the trial approximated not less

than thirteen (13) days, being the time constimcd at

the tried before the court and the time consumed in

taking testimony before the referee. That the amotint

actuall}- paid the said w itnesses for their attendance

and testimony \\'as tlie sum of Twenty ($20.00) Dol-

lars each, and 1 ha\e therefore taxed the amount

actuall}' i)aid them instead of per diem, wliieh is erpu'v-

,'ilent to some thirteen da\ s attendance.
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That the witness WilHam Kalberg, whose testi-

mony was given before a Notary Public in Portland,

Oregon, was an important and necessar}^ witness, and

whose testimony was material to the issues in the

case; that said Kalberg was not in the employ of the

respondent, but having learned as to the whereabouts

of the said witness, his attendance at Portland, Ore-

gon, was secured and his deposition was taken and

he was brought to Portland, Oregon for the purpose

of giving his testimony and the cause not being ready

for trial at the time of his attendance, his deposition

was taken before A. \\\ Person, Notary Public. The

amount actually paid to the said witness for his at-

tendance, including his fare and expenses from San

Pedro, California, to Portland. Oregon, was $114.25;

that the distance by regular travel from San Pedro,

California, to Portland, Oregon, wdiich is a steamer

route, is approximately 1270 miles, which would ap-

proximate a mileage cost for the witness of $127.00

one way, and the one day's attendance his fees and

mileage one way would amount to $130.00, but I have,

t:ixed as the costs of the said witness only the amount

actually paid to the said witness, to w^it, $114.25, and

with one day's attendance makes the total taxed for

the said witness, $117.25.

ZERA SNOW.
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 27th day of

October, 1913.

C. :\IcCORMAC SNOW,
(Seal) Notary Public for Oregon.
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[Endorsed] : Cost Bill of Standard Oil Co. Filed

Oct. 27, 1913.

A. M. CANNON,
Clerk U. S. District Court.

And afterwards, to wit, on the 28 day of October,

1913, there was duly filed in said Court, a Cost

Bill, in words and fiq-ures as follows, to wit:

[Libelant's Cost Bill.]

(Title.)

Bill of Costs claimed by Libelant:

Clerk's fees $

ALarshal's fees, serving monition 4.24

Proctor's prevailing- fee 20.00

Proctor's fee for taking 33 depositions at $2.50

each, as follows:

Deposition of William Kalberg before A. W.
Person, Notary

Deposition of Captain Sorley before A. W.
Person, Notary

Deposition of John Osterwold before ^larv E.

Bell

Deposition of Edward Sullivan before Mary

E. Bell

Deposition of Charlie Johnson before ^slary E.

r>cll

Deposition of Ole Grove l)cforc Mary E. Bell

Deposition of Eddie Grove before Mary E.

r,cll

Deposition of TI. E. Stay ton ])cf()rc Mary E.

Ik'll



The Steamer Samson 75

Deposition of J. W. Shaver before Mary E.

Bell

Deposition of J. N. Smith before Mary E. Bell

Deposition of A. L. Pease before Mary E. Bell

Deposition of J. H. Johnson before Mary E.

Bell

Deposition of J. W. Shaver, (recalled on the

question of damages) before Mary E. Bell

Deposition of O. W. Hosford before Mary E.

Bell

Deposition of A. M. Conway before Mary E.

Bell

Deposition of Charles M. Nelson before Mary

E. Bell

Deposition of William B. Honeyman before

Mary E. Bell

Deposition of Joseph Supple before Mary E.

Bell

Deposition of Alfred Duncan before Mary E.

Bell

Deposition of Joseph Paquet before Mary E.

Bell

Deposition of Robert Mcintosh before Mary
E. Bell

Deposition of Daniel Kern before Mary E. Bell

Deposition of J. E. Copeland before ]\Iary E.

Bell

Deposition of J. W. Shaver (recalled in rebut-

tal on question of damages) before Mary E.

Bell
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Deposition of G. Kirkliam Sniitli before Mary

E. Bell

Deposition of Peter Carsten before Mary E.

Bell

Deposition of Daniel Kern before Mary E. Bell

Deposition of C. W. Bale before Mary E. Bell

Deposition of J. H. LaMoree before Mary E.

Bell

Deposition of C. W. Bale before Mary E. Bell

Deposition of S. H. Shaver before Mary E.

Bell

Deposition of T. E. Follett before Mary E. Bell

Deposition of C. A. Puriea before Mary E. Bell 82.50

Cost of taking deposition of Alex Martinson

and Charles Kayser before United States

Commissioner 30.25

Carried forward $136.99

Brought forward $136.99

One-half cost of reporting the depositions of

Captain Sorley before A. W. Person, Notary 9.20

Paid ]\Jiss Mary E. Bell for court reporting

and original transcript 207.00

Witness Fees:

Ed Sullivan, 7 days and 1 mile 21.10

Charles Kayser, 1 day and 1 mile 3.10

Alex Martinson, 1 day and 1 mile 3.10

Eddie Grove, 5 days and 75 miles 22.50

Charlie Johnson, 5 days and 75 miles 22.50

Olc (jrove, 7 daws and 1 mile 21.10
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Elias Dahl, 2 days and 80 miles 14.00

Martin Loaland, 2 days and 1 mile 6.10

John Ostervolt, 7 days and 1 mile 21.10

D. C. O'Reilly, 1 day and 1 mile 3.10

Joe Oleson, 1 day and 50 miles 8.00

H. F. Stayton, 7 days and 1 mile 21.10

Henry Kness, 3 days and 1 mile 9.10

J. W. Shaver, 13 days and 1 mile 39.10

C. B. Sarley, 1 day and 1 mile 3.10

Chris O'Bryan, 4 days and 1 mile 12.10

Michael Moran, 1 day and 1 mile 3.10

J. H. Smith, 1 day and 1 mile 3.10

A. L. Pease, 1 day and 1 mile 3.10

J. H. Johnson, 1 day and 18 miles 4.80

O. W. Hosford, 1 day and 1 mile 3.10

A. M. Conway, 4 days and 1 mile 12.10

Charles M. Nelson, 1 day and 1 mile 3.10

William B. Honeyman, 1 day and 1 mile 3.10

G. Kirkham Smith, 1 day and 1 mile 3.10

Total $678.19

WOOD, MONTAGUE & HUNT,
Proctors for Libelant.

Costs taxed at $675.00 by order of Court entered

Dec. 15, 1913.

A. M. CANNON,
Clerk.

by G. H. MARSH,
Deputy.
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[ EiulorsedJ : Bill of Costs Claimed by Libelant.

Filed Oct. 28, 1913.

A. M. CANNON,
Clerk U. wS. District Court.

And afterwards, to wit, on the 29 day of October,

1913, there was duly filed in said Court, Objec-

tions of Libelcint to Cost Bill of Res])ondent, in

words c'lncl fi^^ures as follows, to wit:

[Objections of Libelant to Cost Bill of

Standard Oil Co.]

(Title.)

Libelant objects to the following items in said cost

bill, to wit:

"Paid Peter Carsten for survey of ''Hender-

son" $ 50.(X)

Paid Joseph Supple for survey of "Llender-

son" 75.00"

Libelant's objection to these items is that disburse-

ments made for surveys are not taxable.

Libelant further objects to the following items, to

wit

:

"Paid Peter Carsten, expert witness $ 20.00

Paid Joseph Sup])le, expert witness 20.00"

for the reason that money paid to hire ex])crts to tes-

tify is not a taxable cost.

And libelant further objects to the following item,

low it

:

*'i*aid William I\all)erg, 1 (la}''s attendance

and mileage from San Pedro, Calif(^rnia.

1270 miles $1 17.25"
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Libelant's objection to this item is that said wit-

ness came from without the District of Oregon and

the most that can be allowed him for mileage is 100

miles at ten cents a mile, equivalent to $10.00.

WOOD, MONTAGUE & HUNT,
Proctors for Libelant.

[Endorsed] : Objections to Cost Bill. Filed Oct.

29, 1913.

A. M. CANNON,
Clerk U. S. District Court.

And afterwards, to wit, on the 1 day of November,

1913, there was duly filed in said Court, Claim-

ant's Objections to Cost Bill of Libelant, in

words and figures as follows, to wit:

[Claimant's Objections to Cost Bill of Libelant.]

(Title.)

To the Honorable Edward E. Cushman, Judge of

the District Court of the United States for the Dis-

trict of Oregon, sitting in Admiralty.

Comes now Claimant herein Columbia Contract

Company, a corporation, by its proctors, and objects

to the Bill of Costs filed by Libelant herein, Shaver

Transportation Company, a corporation, and respect-

fully shows to your Honor that said Bill of Costs con-

tains items which are not properly taxable by said

Libelant against Claimant herein and should therefore

l)e stricken out and disallowed, in the resjx^cts and for

the reasons lureinafter set forth, to wit:
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I.

The thirty-three items, taxed at $2.50 each and de-

scriljed as "dei)ositic)ns," rei)rescntinf^', with the exce])-

tion of tlie first two (dcscril)cd res])ectively as depo-

sitions of W'ilhani Kalherg and Captain Sorley before

A. \V. Person, Notary), testimony taken before Miss

Mary E. Bell, Special Examiner, did not constitute

de])ositions, and Libelant, h}' its proctors, is therefore

not entitled to tax same.

E\'en if stich testimony were taxable as depositions,

the 9th, 13th, and 24th items, being the testimony of

the same witness, J. W'. Shaver, though appearing at

different places in the transcript of testimony, should

be charged for as one deposition only, not as three

separate depositions ; likewise the 22nd and 27th items,

being the testimony of the same witness, Daniel Kern,

should be charged for as one, not as two ; and the 28th

and 30th items, being both the testimony of the same

witness, C. W. Bale, who testified only once (as ap-

pears from the transcript of testimony herein), and

being thus duplicate charges for the same thing,

should one of them be in any event, disallowed and

stricken out.

II.

If this Court should consider the testimony given

])efore the S]:)ecial Examiner i)r()])erly taxable as de-

p(jsiti(,)ns, nevertheless the 18th and 2()th items, repre-

senting res])tcti\el\' the testimon}' of Joseph Supple

and Peter Carsleii, sliould be disallowed and stricken
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out for the reavSon that the said witnesses Supple and

Carsten were not called by Libelant, but by Respond-

ent in personam, as appears from the transcript of

testimony. Similarly the 19th, 20th, 21st, 22nd, 23rd,

27th, 28th, 29th, 30th, 31st, 32nd, and 33rd (twelve

in all) items, representing respectively the testimony

of Alfred Duncan, Joseph Paquet, Robert Mcintosh,

Daniel Kern (twice), J. E. Copeland, C. W. Bale

(twice), J. H. La Moree, S. H. Shaver, T. H. Follett,

and C. A. Puriea (ten in all), should be disallowed

and stricken out, for the reason that all of the said

ten witnesses were not called by Libelant, but by

Claimant, as appears from the transcript of testimony.

Consequently it is submitted that all of the fourteen

above enumerated items should, under Equity Rule

50, be disallowed and stricken out.

Respectfully submitted,

TEAL, MINOR & WINFREE,
WIRT MINOR,

Proctors for Claimant.

ROGERS MACVEAGH.

[Endorsed]: Objections to Cost Bill of Libelant.

Filed Nov. 1, 1913.

A. M. CANNON,
Clerk U. S. District Court.

And afterwards, to w^it, on the 1 day of November,

1913, there was duly filed in said Court, Objec-

tions of Claimant to Cost Bill of Respondent in

words and figures as follows, to wit:
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[Claimant's Objections to Cost Bill of

Standard Oil Co.]

(Title.)

To tlie Honorable Edward E. Ciisbman, Jiidg^e of

the District Court of the United States for the Dis-

trict of Oregon, Sitting in Admiralty.

Conies now Claimant herein Columbia Contract

Company, a corporation, by its proctors, and objects

to the Statement of Costs and Disbursements filed by

Respondent in ])crsonam. Standard Oil Company, in-

corporated under the Laws of tlie State of California,

a corporation, and respectfully shows to your Honor

that said Statement contains items which are not

properly taxable by said Respondent in i:)ersonam

against Claimant herein and should therefore be

stricken out and disallowed, in the respects and for

the reasons herein set forth, to wit:

I.

Items numbered 3 to 3v3 inclusive, being all of the

items numbered 1 to 2>Z inclusive excepting numbers

1 and 2, represent proctor's fees of v$2.30 each for tes-

timony taken before Miss Mary E. P)ell, S])ecial Ex-

aminer. Such testimony did not constitute deposi-

tions, and Res])ondent in ]:>ersonam, by its i^roctors.

is therefore not entitled to tax same.

Even if such testimon}' were taxable as depositions,

items numbered 9, 10, and 11, being tlie testimonv of.

the same witness, though ai)])earing at different

l)laces in the transcript of testimony, should be



The Steamer Samson 83

charged for as one deposition only, not as three sep-

arate depositions; and Hkewise items numbered 23

and 27 should be charged for as one, not as two.

Items numbered 28 and 30 are described respectively

as **C. W. Ball" and "C. A\\ Rale" and charged for

separately; but as it appears from the transcript of

testimony that only one witness named "C. W. Bale"

testified, that no witness named "C. W. Ball" ap-

peared, and that the said witness C. W. Bale testi-

fied only once, the item numl)ered 28 and described

as "C. W. Ball" should in any event be disallowed

and stricken out.

II.

If this court should consider the testimony given

before the Special Examiner properly taxable as de-

positions, nevertheless only two of the items herein

objected to, namely items numbered 19 and 26, should

be allowed, for the reason that they are the only ones

corresponding with the witnesses called by Respond-

ent in personam, all the witnesses described in the

rest of the items numbered 3 to ^?> inclusive being

witnesses called by either Libelant or Claimant, as ap-

])ears from the transcript of testimony herein ; conse-

ciuently cill of the items numbered 3 to c>d> inclusive,

with the exception of items numbered 19 and 26,

should, under Equity Rule 50, be disallowed and

stricken out.

III.

The item included under the heading of "Wit-

nesses" and described as "C. B. Sorlev, 1 dav's attend-
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ancc and 1 mile, $v3.20," should be altered so that the

sum of $3.20 be ehani^ed lo $3.10, as the proper al-

lowance for 1 mile is ten cents, not twenty.

IV.

Claimant does not intend the abo\'e objections to

be taken as a waiver of its objection, previously

])r()Ui^iu before this Court, to the whole of the State-

ment of Costs and Disbursements filed by Respond-

ent in personam, on the "round that Claimant should

not be held liable for any of the costs of Respondent

in personam, a ]:)arty not broui^iu into the case at bar

1)}- Claimant ; and Claimant insists that for that rea-

son any taxation against Claimant of any part of the

costs or disbursements of Respondent in personam is

impr()i)er, inequitable, and should be disallowed.

Res])ect fully submitted,

TEAL, .MIXOR c^^ AVTXFRKE,

WIRT MINOR,
Proctors for Claimant.

ROGERS MACVEAGH.
Since preparing the above, an order has been made

vacating the ruling of this Court sustaining objec-

tions b\' Libelant to certain items in the cost bill of

Respondent in jx^rsonam, and therefore Claim.'uit, b}'

its proctors, also objects to the two items of $30.00

and $75.00 each, described as ha\ing been ])aid to

Peter Carsten and b)se])h Sui)])le respectively for sur-

ve}' of the "Henderson," to the two items of $20.00

each described as ha\in.g been ])ai(l to the same per-

sons as ex])ert witnesses, and to the witness fee and



The Steamer Samson 85

mileage from San Pedro, California, described as hav-

ing been paid to William Kalberg, on the grounds

that the charge for the survey is not properly taxable

against Claimant herein, and that the fees for "expert

witnesses" and the allowance of mileage from San

Pedro, California, wxre not necessarily incurred and

are in excess of the amounts in such cases allowed by

law, and that therefore each and every one of the five

items hereby objected to should be disallowed and

stricken out.

WIRT MIXOR,
ROGERS AIACVEAGH,

Proctors for Claimant.

[Endorsed] : Objections to Cost Bill of Respond-

ent. Piled Nov. 1, 1913.

A. M. CANNON,
Clerk U. S. District Court.

And afterwards, to wit, on the 15 day of December,

1913, there w^as duly filed in said Court, an Opin-

ion on Objections to Cost Bills, in words and fig-

ures as follows, to wit

:

[Opinion on Objections to Cost Bills.]

(Title.)

WOLVERTON, District Judge:

In this case a decree was rendered in favor of the

Shaver Transportation Company, Libelant, and

against the Columbia Contract Company, Claimant.

A supplemental libel was filed against the Standard

Oil Company. Respondent. This latter was dis-
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missed, and tlie Standard Oil Company awarded its

costs, one-half against the lihelant and one-half

ag-ainst the claimant. Cost-hills have heen filed 1)y

lihelant and respondent. The claimant has interposed

ohjections to hoth cost-hills, claiminj^^ that it is not

liahle to pay the item of 3^ depositions and the fur-

ther items i)aid, Peter Carsten, $50, and Joseph Sup-

ple, $75, for survey of Menderson; also paid Peter

Carsten, vS20, and Joseph Sup])le, $20, expert wit-

nesses; \\'illiam Kall)ero", one day's attendance and

mileage from San Pedro, California. 1270 miles,

S117.25, and as to the latter for the reason that Kal-

berg was entitled to mileage only for 100 miles each

way, he ha\'ing attended as a witness from without

the district. The libelant objects to the cost-bill of

respondent as to all the items above mentioned ex-

ce])t the one relating to depositions.

As it relates to the item of 33 depositions at S2.50

each for attorney's fees, it appears that at the hearing;

of the cause before Judge Ctishman, from the Western

District of Washington, he, being unable to conclude

the case, appointed ]\liss IjcII, the reporter, special

examiner to take such other testimony as was desired

and report the same to the court. These depositions

were all taken before her as such officer, and so re-

])orte(l. It is objected that tlie depositions should ncn

in a legal sense be so termed, l)ecatise taken before a

special examiner; hence that the attorn x's fee respect-

ing them sliould 1)e disallowed, l^he (|uestion seems

to be concluded by the Supreme Court of the I'nitcd
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States, in the case of Missouri v. Illinois and The

Sanitary District of Chicago, 202 U. S. 598, 600.

There the court says:

"The words of the statute are broad enough to em-

brace the testimony, unless they are taken very

strictly, and the trouble to the parties in having to

visit different places was similar to that caused by the

taking of depositions adverted to by Judge Treat in

Strauss v. Meyer."

In this case, the testimony was taken before the ex-

aminer and reported in the form of depositions, which,

the court observed, was "quite distinct from that of

testimony taken in court and reduced to writing by a

reporter." And the costs were allowed.

The case at bar stands upon the same footing prac-

tically as that, and therefore this item of costs must

be allowed here. The further objections, namely, that

some of the depositions were duplicated and some

w^ere taken at the instance of the libelant are not well

taken.

The next tw^o items of cost may be considered to-

gether, namely, Peter Carsten, $50, and Joseph Sup-

ple, %7d. These items w^re incurred on account of the

survey made by Carsten and Supple with the purpose

of rendering testimony concerning the same in court.

It is strongly urged that these items should be al-

lowed by virtue of the discretion that the court has

respecting the allow^ance of costs in equity and ad-

miralty cases. Counsel are in error as to the proposi-

tion that the court has a discretion as a general rule to
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allow costs not taxable under the law. . The dis-

cretion extends ordinarily onl}- to the apportionment

of costs. 'Dial is lo say, tlie C(nirts of chancery and

admiralty have tlie power to apportion the costs,

whatever the}' ma\' 1)e, the costs bein^' leiL^itimate, to

the parties in the case as may seem just and proper in

e(iuit}'. This is as far as the .i^eneral rule extends.

Benedict's Admiralty, Sec. 550; The Scotland, 118 U.

S. 507, 519; Tuck v. Olds et al., 29 Fed. SH?>: Union

Ice Co. V. Crowell et al., 55 Fed. S7 : and The F. A.

Sliores, jr., 79 FqcI 987.

A party to a cause has the burden of preparing* his

own case for trial, and usually expenses to which he is

])ut in the i)reparation of the case are not allowable

as costs. Costs, it is said, are a creature of the statute

(Tuck V. Olds, supra), and tlie case must be an ex-

ceptional one if anytliin^f^" l:)eyond is ever allowed as

costs.

Reference is made to The Europe, 175 Fed. 596, a

case decided in this court, as authority for allowinii^

the survey cliaro-es of Carsten and Supple as an item

of costs. Tn that case, however, tlie items of sur\'e\',

whatever they were, seem to ha^•e 1)ecn allowd, not as

costs 1)ut as ])art ni the damages which the lil^elant

was entitled to recover, and hence tlie case does not

apply herein, as it pertains to the matter of costs. 'Hie

cost of premium for securing" a 1)ond for rele<ise of a

shi]) 1)ears l)Ut little analoi^'x' to the costs for making*

^urve\' wliere it is done at the inst:ince of a i)art\' for

the purpose of usiniii' it as testimony in the case.
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The two items to Peter Carsten and Joseph Supple,

of $20 each as expert witnesses, will be allowed, upon

the same grounds as they were allowed by Judge

Cushman, namely, because it is disclosed by respond-

ent's affidavit that these witnesses were in attendance

for the purpose of testifying for a length of time suf-

ficient to amount to more than $20 at the regular fee

for witnesses, and that respondent did actually pay

each of the witnesses $20.

The item of SI 17.25 for the attendance of William

Kalberg must be disallowed, except to the amount of

SI 3, by authority of the case of United States v.

Southern Pacific Company, 172 Fed. 909, 911.

It is further claimed that the court, in its discretion,

might allow the actual mileage because of the peculiar

circumstances which required the attendance of the

witness, and this under the authority of The X^ernon,

36 Fed. 113, 117. But the showing here does not pre-

sent any peculiar circumstance why the personal at-

tendance of the witness was refpiired. In tlie end the

testimony was taken by deposition, and not in open

court, so thcit there is no special reason why the court

should extend its discretion, whatever it may have,

in that direction, to enlarging the legal fee allowed for

the attendance of witnesses.

[Endorsed]: Opinion. Filed Dec. 15, 1913.

A. M. CANNON,
Clerk,

by G. H. MARSH,
Deputy.
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And afterwards, towit, on Monday, the 15 day of De-

ceniher, 1913, the same l)eini;- the Judicial

day of the Rei^uhir Xoyeml)er Term of said

Court; present: tlie Jlonorahle CHAS. E. WOL-
VERTON, l^nitcd States District Judge presid-

ing, tlie following proceedings were had in said

cause, to-wit

:

[Order Settling Costs Bills.]

(Title.)

This cause was heard U])on the objections filed by

the libelant and claimant to the cost bill of the re-

spondent, Standard Oil Com])any, and upon objec-

tions of claimant to the cost bill of libelant, and was

argued b}' Mr. lu-skine W'ood, of proctors for the

libelant and b}' Mr. Rogers McX'ey, of proctors for the

claimant, and by ^\x. Zera Snow and Mr. C. McCor-

mack Snow, of proctors for the respondent ; on consid-

eration whereof, it is Ordered and adjudged that the

following items in said cost bill be, and the same are

hereb}' disallowed

:

C. W. Bale, Attorney's fee for deposition $ 2.50

Peter Carsons, for suryey of the Menderson.... 50.00

Joseph Su])]:)le, for suryey of the Henderson 75.00

^Mileage and witness fees, Wm. Kalberg 117.25

except that $13 be allowed as costs for said

witness, anel it is further ordered that the re-

maining items in said cost bill be, anel the same

herelw are allowed.

and that libelant's costs be, and tlic same are hereb\'

taxed at S675.69 and that Respondent's costs, be and

the same are herebx- taxed at S3(S2.70.
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[Testimony.]

In the District Court of the United States for the

District of Oregon.

SHAVER TRANSPORTATION COMPANY,
Libellant,

vs.

COLUMBIA CONTRACT COMPANY,
Claimant.

STANDARD OIL COMPANY,
Respondent.

IN RE: SAMSON.
C. E. S. Wood and Erskine Wood, Proctors for Li-

bellant.

Mr. Wirt Minor, Proctor for Claimant.

Mr. Zera Snow and Mr. Guthrie, for Standard Oil

Company.

Edward E. Cushman, District Judge.

Portland, Oregon, Tuesday, January 7, 1913, 10 A. M.

CAPTAIN EDWARD SULLIVAN, a witness

called on behalf of the libellant, being first duly sworn

testified as follows.

Direct Examination.

Questions by Mr. ERSKINE WOOD:
Captain, what is your business?

A. River pilot.

O. On what river?

A. The Columbia and Willamette Rivers.

O. How long have you been engaged in that oc-

cupation ?
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A. A])ont 25 years.

O. (^n this river all the time?

A. Xo, on the two rivers,

O. On the two rivers?

A. All the time, yes.

O. What was the date of this eollision, do yon re-

member?

A. Inly 21, 1911.

g. Was it the 21st?

A. The 22n(l, T wonld say. The morning" of the

22nd.

(J. I wish yon wonld tell the eonrt briefly, the di-

mensions and descriptions of the oil barge.

A. The Standard Oil Barge is a steel sea-going

barge, designed to carry fnel oil in bnlk. She is 280

feet long, 45.4 beam, 23.4 depth of hold. vShe is fonr-

mast rigged with fore and aft sails, barcjne. She has

steam boiler for generating steam for her pnmps dis-

charging cargo, steam windlass, steam steering gear,

steam towing engines, and steam whistle, and cap-

stans and winches for handling the line and hawser,

and land gear.

(). lias she an}- pro])elling power?

A. Xo i)ropelling power of her own.

Q. What sort of anchors has she?

A. She has tw^o j^atent anchors. I don't know

jnst the weight of them. Hiey are very large, and an

excellent gear for handling the anchors. The best,

])rol)al)l\', that is known.

O. Oan \()n tell how that gear works?
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A. Well, they arc arranged, after the anchor is

hove in, it hangs in the hawser pipe, and runs over a

wild cat, over a drum which is held from revolving

hy com])ression hrakes. That in turn is held by a

screw. They are something similar to the brake or

wheel on a car to slack it or hold it in place, and in

letting go the anchor, after it is hove in, the gear thai

handles the

—

Mr. MINOR (Interrupting): Louder, please.

A. It is prepared for letting go by detaching it

from the engine, which is probably a friction or a

clutch, and this compressor then holds the chain from

running out ; it holds this drum from revolving which

it passes over; and to let it go, is simply loosening

this wheel about half a turn, ])erhaps, and the anchor

by its weight runs out rapidly. The chains is large.

T lliink perha])s Xfj^ inch diameter. Links in the

chain ; ^•ery heavy gear.

O. Do you know an^^thing about the dimensions

and style of the boat Henderson?

A. The Henderson is a stern wheel steamer, built

of wood, 160 feet long in the hull, and a wheel 20 feet

in diameter, making a total length of about 180 feet.

She is 31 foot beam, with a guard on either side pro-

jecting out two feet, making 35 feet over all.

O. Stern wheel boat?

A. Stern wheel boat, yes.

Q. How was the manner of lashing these boats

together for the tow?

A. Well, they are made fast alongside. \x\ this



94 T]\c Sfcaiiicr Samson

particular steamer, about 100 feet of her length would

he alongside the harge, and the remaining 80 feet

would extend out heyond the stern oi the barge.

Mr. SXOW: That is 100 feet of the length of the

Henderson ?

A. 100 feet of the length of the Henderson would

lie alongside the oil barge, and the remaining 80 feet

would extend out beyond the stern.

O. And at what angle do the two boats lie to each

other?

A. \\'ell, it is customary and usual to let them lie

at an angle with the bow of the tow boat towards the

steamer, instead of being ])arallel with the beam, or a

straight line of the side of the two vessels; the bow

of the tow-boat is brought in at an angle, I should

judge, of this particular boat, at this particular time,

about three feet from a straight line parallel of her

stem with the side of the barge. Then if the boat was,

say, l/jA feet deep, would be practically 13 feet from

her stem as she \^y to the side of the oil baro^e.

(J. W hat is the reason for ])lacing the boats at this

slight angle, instead of parallel to each other?

A. Well, it heli)s the steering. The steamer—the

tendency of the steamer is to ])ush the head of the

barge aground. Xaturally, the pulling comes from

the after end of the boat. The tow line leads from

the bow of the steamer to near the stern of the barge,

and the tendenc}' is to ])ull it around. To obviate that

the bow of the barge is brought a little across nearer

llu' bow of the steamer, so the current will catch on
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Hhat side to allow for that push and a sufficient

amount to—that is adjusted by the feel of the hand-

ling of the boat; when they start out, they determine

whether it is too much or too little, and they change

it accordingly. That is quite an important matter.

Q. Then, as I understand you, the towboat being

lashed to the port quarter of the oil barge has a tend-

ency to push the bow of the oil barge over to the star-

board all the time; is that right?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And to obviate that, you turn the barge at a

slight angle across the towboat in order that she may
catch the water on her starboard bow, and steady

herself that way. Is that it?

A. That is the idea. That is it, yes, sir.

O. Were you on board as pilot that night?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You were in control of both boats, were you?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was any steering done from the Henderson?

A. None at all.

O. Where were you on the oil barge?

A. Standing on the forecastle. The pilot house

of this particular barge is built on the forecastle. T

])resume the idea is on account of having sails, it gives

those who are in charge, and the man steering an op-

l)ortunity to be ahead of the sails, so that he will have

a clear view forward; so this ])ilot-house is arranged,

probably, about 25 feet from the bow. I don't know
exactly as to that, but T should imagine about that.
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It is only a small structure built there, about, ])er-

Iiai)s, 6x10 feet, and built on the after part of this

deck.—of this forecastle.

Mr. MIXOR: After part of what?^ I didn't hear

yoti, Captain.

A. It is built on the after part of the deck ; that is,

it is on the extreme after part of this forecastle deck,

and this deck covers or forms a room underneath in

which the winch and the anchor windlass is located,

and the}' have access to that from this deck, by an

iron L'ldder on either side of the steamer—of the ves-

sel, and from the main deck into this place are two

iron doors, one either side near the ladders; so a man

can ^o down the ladder and ^o into this door, and i^'o

in the jdace in which the anchor windlass is located,

and at nio^ht time there are ligiits burnini^ there all

the time. In the day time it is lighted by small sky-

lights in this deck, that allows the daylight to get

throuofh. At ni^'ht time the electric lights are burn-

ing there all the time.

(j. How high is the forecastle deck above the

main deck?

A. I think about 7^4 feet, T should judge.

O. Is there anything on the steanier to obstruct

the view of the ])il()t on the forecastle?

A. Xone Vv'hatever. Clear \iew forward, and also

would be clear view aft by sim])l\' stei)ping to one side

or the other of this ])il(^t house. 7^he ])lace where the

])il()t stands or stays is an\\\here on that deck, in

front of tlie ])ilot house or to (')ne side, so he has a
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clear view in all directions.

'O. Where are these wheels that let go the an-

chors in relation to the forecastle deck?

A. Well, they are nnderneath this deck, and al-

most in a line with tliese different doors. Each one is

sparated from the other, and abont in a line with these

doors, so that a man goes right into the anchors, to

these winches the first thing.

O. On this i^iarticular night in question, was the

oil barge lashed to the steamer at this slight angle

that you have been talking about?

A. Yes, sir.

O. WHien did you leave—first, T will ask you

where did you lash onto the Henderson?

A. In front of Astoria. She was brouglit into the

river by the steamer, I think it was the Atlas, and

dropped there. It let go of her, and she was adrift

and the Henderson went alongside and made fast to

her in the river.

O. You say it lashed on with what lines?

A. \\>11, she had a head line of seven inch Ma-

nilla, seven inch in circumference, and onto the end

of that was a wire pendant of Js inch steel wire. Then

she had two breast lines leading from her bits on the

bow across the deck—the rail of the oil barge, ^ inch

steel wire; then a tow line leading from this 1:)ow

—

Mr. SXOW (Interrui)ting) : When you say %
inch, do you mean Yj^ diameter?

A. y^. diameter. \\'ire is measured by diameter

—

rope by circumference.
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Mr. SNOW: In s])cakin£i' of wire rope you speak

of diameter, and of Manila roi)e, you si)eak of cir-

cumference?

\. \'es, that is the \va}' rope is used; speakin*^" of

se\'cn inch Manila. ro])e, it is seven inch circum-

ference, and wire rope, al\va}'s the term is used for

diameter. This tow line was one inch wire, steel

wire; then two stern lines that leads from the steamer

across to the ()])posite side of the har^^e across its

stern. The}' have seven inch Manila in circumference,

with seven inch steel wire ])endants.

Q. ^'ou didn't state how the tow line was lashed.

A. Well, the tow line, it has an eye in it. Tt is

passed over the steamer and ])ut over one of the hits,

and through a chock or cleat there, whatever con-

veniences for them, and carried then in a forward di-

rection to a specially made cleat on the how, one made

unusually heavy and fastened strong for this purpose,

and leads to that and is made fast in a suhstantial

m.mner, so the entire power of the boat is pushing

against this wire, and it necessarily has to be strong,

lliat is, the main strain of the towing is done on this

wire, the tow line.

(J. What time did }'ou lash together at Astoria?

A. I remember we left there about 8:45 after be-

ing there
;
probably got under w\ay about 8:45 P. M.

(j. On what da}' was that?

A. ^rhat was on the 21st of July.

i). Wliat was the tide, ihen. Captain?

A. Well, the tide on that da}', according to the



The Steamer Samson 99

tide table, says high water at 9:40 P. ]\I. Be al)out an

liour of flood left when we started.

O. How would that influence your progress?

A. Of course, it would accelerate our speed as lonir

as it lasted.

O. Going up the river, you mean?

A. Going up the river, running in the direction in

which we would be going. While it lasted, it would

make cjuite a difference in our speed.

O. The ebb tide started in about 9:40.

A. The ebb tide, according to the table, started at

about 9:40 at Astoria.

O. What time did you reach Skamakowa light,

lower Skamakowa?

A. We passed there about 12 o'clock. I noticed

particularly, because eight bells rang and we changed

watches ; a new (juartermaster came on and new

barge officer.

Q. About how far was that from where you start-

ed from ?

A. That, according to the engineer's scale, as giv-

en us, was 20 miles from Astoria; that is what we

estimate always, at least. We call it 20 miles ; known

as 20 miles from Astoria generally.

Q. About how far up the river from Skamakowa

light had you proceeded when you sighted the Sam-

son ? I mean roughly, about how far?

A. Well, I would think about four miles.

O. About four miles, do you say?

A. Yes.
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Q. What would l)c the (Hfference, approximately,

in the limes of the tide l)etween Astoria and the place

of collision ?

A. yM)()Ul an hour and 43 minutes, I believe, is es-

timated for that place.

C). What do vou mean hv that? \Vh<'it i)lace is

the tide earlier at ?

A. Well, it would he earlier at Astoria, near the

sea, and that much later at this point.

O. Now, about where were you, do }'()U think, in

relation to Puc^et Island, when you sic^'hted the Sam-

son ?

A. Well, T think we were passing the point about

in the vicinity of an old trap that is there; somewheres

in tiiat vicinity. Of course, that was a point that

wasn't definitely located, because there was no reason

to locate it. 14ie night was dark, and the high land

looked similar, but I think, judging from Cathlarnet

lights I saw, that I happened to notice, that we were

about that trap, or possibly a little above it.

O. Have you any idea how far above the yxnn'i

of the island that would be, the lower point of the

isk'ind.

A. No, T couldn't say.

Mr. SNOW: ^'ou mean Cathlamet, \Vashington?

A. Yes.

O. And at that time. Captain Sullivan, what

course were }'()U steering?

A. Well, I was steering on tlie range light kn(n\n

as 1 hinting Island Range.
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O. And were they ahead of you, or astern of you?

A. They were astern ; was looking astern to see

them.

Q. T wish you would just locate these lights on

this chart here.

Mr. MINOR: Unless the chart is identified in

some way, as being prepared by some person who is

an engineer and knows it to be correct, I shall have to

object to it.

COURT: Will you furnish that proof later?

Mr. ERSKINE WOOD: Yes.

COURT: Counsel undertakes to furnish that

proof later.

Mr. ERSKINE WOOD: I will show it was pre-

pared in the office of the United States Engineers

here in Portland.

COURT: [f he undertakes to furnish the proof

later to the effect that it is an accurate and correct

map, he may proceed with it.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: We will furnish that, but

even without that proof, it seems to me witness can

testify, and say these things are approximatelv right,

and he can locate his position.

COURT: If you can prove the map by the witness

himself, of course.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: When he identifies the lo-

cation, it will have to ])e marked or initialed and get

it in the record to corres])ond. Don't just say "here"

and "there."

O. First, I will ask you. Captain Sullivan, wheth-
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er yoii recognize thai map as an approximately cor-

rect sketch of the ri\er at this point?

A. I do.

O. Then will ^on indicate where the Ilnntini;"

Island Range lights are.

Mr. M IXOR: Tntil the ma]) is in evidence, I don't

think he can do that. If he offers it in evidence, T

think he can use it.

COURT: J api)rehend that it has heen identified

now. has it ?

Mr. ERSKINE WOOD: Ves.

Mr. MIXOR: '\T\s, but not offered. He says he

recognizes it as ai)i)roxiniately correct.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: Is that the map you official-

ly use on the river?

A. That is the official chart made by the (Govern-

ment engineers. WT^ would recognize that as stich.

This is a different scale.

COURT: I think the witness can point out on the

map, and identify these locations. Then it can all be

offered together.

Mr. MIXOR: They might not offer it at all.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: We intend to offer it. We
were going to do just as tlie court suggests. We
were going first to get it on the ma]), and then offer

it in e\'i(knce. We will offer it now, if tliat will re-

lieve }'()ur mind on that ])()int.

COURT: It will be admitted.

Marked "Libellant's Exhibit 1."

(}. Xow, Cai)lain, will you indicate nu that nia]>
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where the Hunting Island Range hghts are?

A. This indicates one of the hghts. The other is

hack in the woods. It doesn't show. It is off the

water. This is on the water line showing there. (In-

dicating).

O. Where is the range that is marked by these

lights?

A. This is the mark (indicating).

Mr. SNOW: Mark it on the map. .

A. It is marked on the ma]:).

O. How is it marked on the map?

A. This line (indicating).

O. What is the line?

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD : The line on the map marked

''range." Is that it?

A. That is the idea, yes.

•Q. Captain, mark the light |that you have cJe-

scribed as the Hunting Island Range light, on the

edge of the water, with the initial ''L," and your own

initials E. S. under it.

A. (Marking.) Is that the idea?

O. Yes. Now, will you fix there an arrow show-

ing the down-stream current in the ColumlMa River

—

indicating which is downstream.

A. (Marking) Right under that?

Q. '*E. S." under there. Now, will you explain to

the court what you mean l)y steering with these range

lights over your stern.

A. This range light is intended to mark a dredged

channel in llie shoal along in this point. In order to
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get into this dredged clianiu'l. lliese ranges are put m
a line, that is the rear hglit would he hrought in line

wilii the front light, and that would mark approx-

iniatel}' this line as it is shown on the cliart, and in

steering on that range, it would he necessary to get

these over the stern, if we were going upstream, in a

row, and when they show that they are in a row over

the stern, then we are on this range. That is the

idea.

O. Will you indicate, as nearly as you can, your

position at the time you sighted the Satiison coming

downstream ahove you.

A. This would he the range (indicating). T had

better draw that line in full across there.

O. Now, just mark that with a letter. Just mark

*'oil barge" there (Witness does so). At that time,

then, you mean to indicate that you were still on the

ranges?

A. Still on the ranges.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: I don't think that is very

legible. If no objection, T will put that in. What is

this—"E. S."?

A. Yes.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: What is this—''barge"?

A. Barge.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: I will mark that spot (mark-

ing).

(J. Do }()U mean to indicate, Ca|)tain, that you

were on the ranges at that time?

A. Yes, sir.
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Q. And slightly above the lower point of Puget

Island?

A. Yes, sir.

'O. Now, about how far upstream would you think

the Samson was at that time?

A. The distance, vou mean?

Q. About how far up from you?

A. Well, from the measurements I have taken on

that chart, it shows about a mile and a half away.

Q. Well, will you indicate on the chart about

where you think she was when she came in sight.

(Witness indicates.)

Mr. SNOW : That is the Samson, is it?

A. Yes.

O. Is that round circle underneath the ''Samson"

meant to indicate the Samson?

A. Indicates the Samson.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: If you will allow me, I will

say ''A'' is the position of the oil barge when the Sam-

son was sighted, and ''B" the position of the Samson.

Is that right, Captain ?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Indicate on the chart, Captain, the high bluff

on the Oregon side that has been spoken of. (Wit-

ness does so.)

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: "High bluff E. S."

Mr. SNOW: What is the extent of that bluff?

That is, how much territory does it cover?

A. Well, it is the terminus of a bluff, or a point of

land tliat runs a long distance. This is the end of it.
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Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: This is the downstream end

of it?

A. Yes, sir. ft runs ])arallel with the river until

it leaves the river and ^oes back. This is low land

(indicating). lUit it is the terminus of a lon^;" hij^"h

j)()int.

O. About how far u]) the river does it run from

the i)oint? Wm\ have marked that with a cross.

A. Well, U]) the river it would run about to this

])oint ; it would leave the river (indivating).

Air. C E. S. WOOD : Say about the distance. That

doesn't mean anything in the record.

O. About opposite the i)oint w^here the Samson is

marked with the "B"?

A. Yes.

O. Now, Captain, from these relative positions of

the oil barge and the Samson, I want you to tell the

Court the course you steered, and the signals you

gave, just as you think it happened.

Mr. SXOW: How many men had you on the

barges also? Just tell that in connection with the

working of the barge.

A. There was a quartermaster steering, and the

officer on watch, and myself WTre the crew of tin-

barge at that time.

Q. Where were they on the barge?

A. The (|uartermaster was in the i)il()t house on

the forecastle head. 1'he officer was standing by me
or in com])any with me, on the bow, or forward of this

])il()t house.
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O. Now, go ahead and tell what happened from

that point on.

A. 1 first noticed the lights of the steamer mak-

ing the turn around this bend in the river at this point

indicated here by "B," and in looking again, I no-

ticed that both side lights, that is the red and green

light of the steamer, were showing: also her tow^ing

lights, which were two white lights on a mast, and a

single white light onto one side, w^hich, T presume,

was the starboard bow of the tow. Now, this steamer

and this tow is a very familiar sight to me. I see

them each time I go down the river, which probably

averages twice each week, and T at once recognized

v^diat it was b}' these lights, the peculiar arrangement

of the lights, and T knew it was the Samson with three

of these rock barges loaded with rock, and I made pro-

vision at once to pass her on the right-hand side; not

only to go out of the way to do so, but to indicate to

her pilot that T intended to do that by putting the

helm slightly to port and running off in a direction

at somewhat of an angle to this range we were run-

ning until we reached a point—until these ranges

were open from this side, what we call the lower side,

the right-hand side, or the Oregon side, of this range;

until they were well open. That might bring us 500

or 600 feet below that range.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: Before we get too far away,

let me correct something. ^^)U say to right, passing

to right. ^V)u mean \'our right?

A. Helm to port, to the right of the range, to the
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Orci::;^on side of the rai^^e; then I straii^iitcned up par-

allel with this rano-e, ahonl i)arallcl with this range,

and steered for this i)oinl, this hi_Q"]i hlnff, which

shows ai^ainst the sk\- line (juite plain.

O. What ])art of the hlnff on the map?

A. To a ]){)int of the hluff as indicated here hy this

cross. That would indicate the point of the bluff as

it comes to here.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: "Hi,o-h bluff, E. S.'^

A. Yes, and steered in the direction of that bluff,

usinc!^ that as a mark to steer for, and indicated to

the (juartermaster that was the i)()int and the direc-

tion which I wanted to take, about paralleling this

range, and within what I estimate to be about half a

mile, the Samson coining in this direction towards us,

and we going; when al)out a half a mile apart, I blew

a long blast of the steam whistle of the barge. This

was promptly answered by the Samson, one blast.

We continued on our course in the same direction, ap-

proximatel}' ; the Samson seemed to be on a course

—

both her lights were showing—that would interce])t

our course if we kept on going till we met. Well, I

had no reason to a])prehend, or to think, or to suspect

that this Samson didn't understand this whistle, as

she IkuI answered it, and that at the proper time, she

would not ])ut her helm to ])ort and shear off, and

])ermit us to go on otn* way withotit trouble.

Mr. SXUW: Would ])ut her helm to port?

A. \W)uld put her helm to ])ort a.nd shear off to the

rieht-hand, .';s the whistles indicated. 1^his bluff or
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shore, of course, is a rocky shore ; we were approach-

ing this all the time getting nearer this bank; the

Samson continued coming on without apparently

changing her course, and we reached a point where I

judged we were about 500 feet apart ; the relative po-

sitions of the boats seemed to be about the same. We
hadn't changed. It was scarcely reasonable for me to

turn anv further to the ri^iit on account of the shore.

T assumed that he would take

—

still would take some

precaution to get out of the w\ay, but I was becoming

alarmed that it wouldn't hap])en until we had gotten

so near the shore that there would be some danger

of colliding with the bank, so I blew another blast of

the whistle that was more of a warning to him that

wx were crossing him, coming together, drawing his

attention to the fact that we were together; that par-

ticular part I don't remember whether he answered it

or not. I believe it is claimed by the Samson that they

did, but that I didn't hear it would be unusual, be-

cause it was getting to the place where it might be

serious for me. Just jorior to this time, the man who

was standing"— T asked the man who was standing: on

the bow if there was any one who could handle the

anchors if needed.

O. When, you say? Prior to this time?

A. Just ])rior to the blowing of the whistle.

Mr. SNOW: Second whistle?

A. Prior to this time, and he replied that he could

let go the anchors, so that I felt no further appre-

hensi(Mi on that point.
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COURT: Who is that you speak of?

A. The officer of the deck; the officer of the deck

with me; ihc officer of the l)aroe, tlie oil ])ar,q"e. There

was an officer siipi)osed to l)e on watch at all times,

and that was his i)osition. Still the Samson's course

didn't seem to alter, and there were some—it appeared

to me at that ])oint there would he some danger of us

getting" together. So I ordered the helm of the harge

hard to \)ov{, and swung in for the shore, and told the

man to stand 1)\' his anchor, and he disa])peared and

went helow on this deck. I didn't see him any more.

(). Now, right there, 1 will interrupt you to ask

Mdiy you asked him to stand hy his anchors.

Mr. SXOW: 1 don't think that makes any differ-

ence, your Honor.

Mr. ERSKIXE \VOOI3: I think it docs. I would

like to have him answer that question.

COURT: Objection overruled.

A. After turning the barge to shore it would be

impossible then to recover and get back here on the

Ci^urse cigain, without these anchors. That would be

an utter im])ossibility, because the current catches the

side of the barge and she is a heavy shij) and the tow-

boat wouldn't have had the power to turn her rig'

again. It was absolutely necessary to use the an-

chors to keep her from going on the beach. That

was the idea. The barge answered her helm ])romptly

and swung ra])idl}- towards the beach. The Samson

came on i)ast tlie bow, and 1 saw that the barge would

clear, but she was going to catch the Henderson with
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lier tow. So I called to the pilot of the Henderson,

the pilot house of the Henderson, and told him to

stop and hack with his helm to port, full speed. I

saw the harge—the i)ort harge of the tow of the Sam-

son strike the how of the Henderson just forw^ard of

the house; hroke her adrift from the harge and left

us free. I paid no further attention, of course, to that

])art, hut immediatel}^ ordered the man helow to let

go his anchors, wdiich was ]:)romptly done, and T think

they were not more than thirty seconds, or at the out-

side forty seconds, hetween the time of the crash,

the two hoats colliding, and these anchors were on

the hottom. That is my opinion.

O. How did your oil harge come up upon her an-

chor chains?

('Questions unanswered.)

Proceedings herein were adjourned until 1 :45 P. V

.

Tuesday, January 7, 1913, 1 :45 P. M.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: May it please the Court, we

have two witnesses who were on the oil barp'e at the

time, aiid whose testimony was to be taken by de])o-

sition, but the barge arrived in town this morning,

and leaves here at seven o'clock tomorrow morning,

and wc ])refcr—in fact, the rule requires that if we

can, we take their depositions orally before the Court.

And to enable them to get away on their trip, we
would like to interrupt Captain Sullivan's testimoir

and ])Ut these two men on the stand.

ALEXANDER MARTLWSOX, a witness called on

l^ehalf of the libellant, being first dulv sworn, testi-

fied as follows.
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Direct Examination.

Oiiesiions by Mr. ERSKIXE WOOD:
Mr. Martinson, wliat is your business?

A. 1 am boatswain.

O. I didn't understand you.

A. I say I was boatswain.

O. What is your reg'ular lousiness now?

A. Sailor.

(\ How lon9" have vou been a sailor?

A. About for 30 years.

(j. In what parts of the world?

A. All parts of the world.

O. Were you on Oil Barge 93 at the time of the

collision with the Samson and her rock barges?

A. Yes, sir.

'O. What position were you in then ?

A. I was boatswain at the time.

O. Where were you on the oil barge?

A. I was on the forecastle head—forecastle head.

O. What were your duties there?

A. Well, I was assisting the pilot. T was keeping

look-out, you know, along w ith the pilot.

O. How long had you been on watch—do you re-

member?

A. Just about an hour and a half. I came on

watch at 12 o'clock.

O. What orders did you get from Captain Sulli-

van about letting go the anchors of the barge?

A. Well, the only thing what I remember, tliat is

when he sung out "Let go the anchor," and 1 let these
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anchors go. That is all I can remember. That is a

long time ago.

O. Well, tell me what yon did, how you let go the

anchors.

A. Well, there is just a round wheel you have,

kind of compression, and you just open that up a lit-

tle bit and the anchor goes right down.

Q. Where were you when he sung out to let go

the anchor?

A. Well I w^as about amidships ; about 40 feet

away somewhere, from the anchor.

O. About 40 feet away from the anchors?

A. Yes, about 40 feet aw^ay at the time he sung

out.

O. And what deck were you on?

A. On the main deck at the time.

Q. How did you hap])en to be on the main deck?

That wasn't your regular position, was it?

A. No, sir, but when I saw there was going to be

a collision, I went off the forecastle head, and went

down on the main deck, and I had in my mind to go

and close those water-tight doors.

O. How quickly did you let go the anchors in re-

erard to the time of the collision?

A. That is only a matter of second, you know.

About 20 or 30 seconds, something like that; only

made a couple of jum]3s and T was right there, and

opened up and the anchors went right down. That is

only a matter of a few seconds.

O. How manv anchors did vou let sfo?
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A. Let go first the starboard, then I went over to

the other side, the pcM-t, .'ifterwards.

O. How (Hd they go out—fast or slow?

A. Well, they go out fast, you know; when we

open u]), they go out fast.

O. And after the anchors hit the bottom, how^ do

the chains go out ?

A. lliat depends on the headway of the ship. If

the ship's got much headway, go fast. If the ship got

slo w headway, go slower.

O. How did they go this night?

A. Slow.

O. This night, after the anchors hit the ])ottom,

the chains went out slow—is that right?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Did the oil barge ha\'e much headway that

night, at this time—at the time you let go the an-

chor?

A. I don't think so. Very little headway.

O. Do you know how much anchor chain you had

outj'

A. 1 couldn't tell. I don't know^

O. W'here was the barge in relation to the shore,

when she lay at anchor—when daylight came?

A. W as ])retty close on the Oregon shore.

(}. About how close?

A. Well, 1 couldn't tell you exactly the distance,

but 1 don't think there was room enough for a barge

to swing without touching the shore, in mv estima-

tion.
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O. You mean she would be less than her own

length from the shore?

A. Yes, I tliink something like that, because I

don't think there was room enough to swing.

O. Had she moved any from the time the anchors

held her, after the collision, until the next morning?

A. No, sir, she hasn't moved any.

O. When the oil barge came up on her anchor

chains, did she come up with a jerk, or did she come

up easy?

A. \"cry slow. No strain on it at all.

Q. Mr. Martinson, T notice you are limping to-

day?

A. Yes, sir.

O. When did that happen?

A. Oh, that happened now in Frisco, last trip. A
piece of ice fell on my foot.

O. x\t the time of the collision you were not lame,

were you ?

A. No, no, I was all right.

COURT: You stayed on the barge all the rest of

that night ?

A. ^ es, sir, your Hon^r.

O. Mr. Martinson, do you remember the orders

that were given about the helm before the collision?

A. Yes, sir, T remember.

O. What were they?

A. Well, after we blew the first signal, one whis-

tle, the pilot told me the man at the wheel to port his

helm, which he did, and the ship answered the helm
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right away.

'Q. And swung towards which shore?

A. On the Oregon shore.

O. The Oresfon sliore?

A. Yes, sir.

O. And what other orders were given about the

helm ?

A. Well, there was another order given after the

second whistle—hard aport. And the pilot say to

the Henderson to port her helm, back her, something

like that. I don't remember exactly.

O. Said that to the Henderson?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Do you remember how your oil barge was

headed after the order to put the oil barge hard aport?

A. Was headed to the Oregon shore, right in,

right for shore.

Q. How far away did the shore seem to be?

A. Well, it was dark. I thought we was on shore

already, the way it looked to me in the dark.

Q. You thought you were getting too close to

shore?

A. Yes, I thought we were on shore already, the

way it looked to me.

'O. Where did you seem to be pointing after your

first whistle?

A. Point towards the Oregon shore already.

O. What part of the Oregon shore?

A. Well. I am not accpiainted there. I don't

know anv name.
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O. Well, did you notice anything on the shore that

would indicate what part you were pointing to?

A. Well, no. It seems was high land there, you

know; something high there.

O. A high land?

A. Yes, sir, high land. That is where we was

pointing to.

O. That is where you were pointing?

A. Yes, we were pointing for that high land.

O. That was after the first signal?

A. Yes, sir.

O. And after the second wdiistle, when the helm

was put hard aport.

A. We was pointing right towards land, right in-

to it. I don't know. I couldn't tell you exactly; it

was dark, and I couldn't sav much.

"0. Do you know anything about the range lights ?

A. Xo, sir, T don't. I am not acquainted with

them.

Q. Do you know which rock barge hit the Hen-

derson? Could you say anything about that?

A. Well, I tell you, that all went so quick I hardly

can tell and remember, you know. It was dark, you

know. No, I couldn't tell that.

Cross-examination.

Questions bv Mr. MIXOR:

Where were you at the time the first order to port

e helm was given ?

A. I was in the forecastle head.
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O. To whom was tliat order given?

A. To the man at the wheel.

O. To whom?
A. I'he man at the wheel, the (|uartermaster you

mig'ht eall him.

O. Now, how \n\\^ was that order given before tlie

second one was given, or rather, whistle? How long

was the order to whistle before the second order to

whistle was given ?

A. Port your helm? Well, a few minutes.

O. The first order to whistle—after that first

whistle, he ordered the quartermaster to port the

helm ?

A. Yes, sir.

'Q. And after the second order—after the second

whistle, he ordered him then to ])ut it hard aport?

A. Yes, sir.

O. How long was it between the two orders? Be-

tween the two whistles, in other words.

A. Between the two whistles?

Q. Yes.

A. I don't know. Three minutes or something.

Three or four minutes betw^een the two whistles.

O. Three or four minutes?

A. Four minutes, something like that.

O. ^^ou were look-out, were you?

A. Sir?

O. ^'ou were look-out, were you?

A. Yes, I had nothing particular to do. I had to

just assist the ])ilot there, and see that the orders were
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obeyed that he gave, you know, to the man at the

wheel, and so on. That \v:\s all I had to do.

O. You were look-out on the barge?

A. Well, I had some kind of look-out, but I had

no responsibility in tlie look-out part, you know\ I

was just there, you see.

O. Did you see the Henderson at the time the first

order was given—did you see the Samson at the time

the first order was given?

A. Yes, sir, I saw her long before that.

•Q. Saw her long before that?

A. Yes.

O. How long before that did you see her?

A. I saw her about four or five minutes, some-

thing like that, I think.

O. Four or five minutes before that?

A. Before the first whistle was blowed.

O. And that was the first order given after vou

saw^ the Samson ?

A. After we saw the Samson, the order was given

from the pilot—after the pilot saw^ the Samson, you

know, he told me to blow one whistle, which I did.

O. That was about four or five minutes after you

saw the Samson?

A. Yes, sir, was a little after I saw the Samson.

O. Who blew the whistles, you? Did you blow^

them ?

A. I blew the whistle.

Q. So foiu* or five minutes after you first saw the

Samson, vou blew the first whistle?
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A. Yes, sir.

'O. Now, did you l)lo\v the second whistle?

A. Yes, sir.

O. And you l)lcw tliat four or five minutes after

you l)lew tlie first one?

A. No, a])out three minutes, sometliin^^;- hke that,

tliree or four.

O. Al)out how man}'?

A. Tln"ee or four minutes.

O. Tlu'ee or four minutes?

A. ^'es, three minutes, four minutes, somethin^^^

like that. T can't remember exactly.

O. Could you tell how^ far the Samson was away

when you blew the first wdiistle?

A. AW^ll, I think it was a mile, something like, a

little bit less.

O. Could you state how far the Samson was away

when you first saw her?

A. Well, she was a good bit away then. I couldn't

tell exactly how far she was; could see those lights.

Q. Could you tell how far she was away at the

time you blew the second whistle?

A. Then she was getting pretty close. I can't re-

member how far, exactly the distance.

"0. How close?

A. AW'll, that is a thing I couldn't tell you exactly

how close she was.

Q. She was getting so close at th<it time that you

had become alarmed, hadn't you?

A. AN'hat vou sav?
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O. She was coming so close at that time that you

had become alarmed for fear there would be a col-

lision, hadn't you?

A. Yes, after we blew tlie second whistle.

O. But before you blew the second whistle you

had become alarmed, hadn't you?

A. Xo, not then, no, sir.

O. Hadn't up to that time?

A. No, sir.

O. Hadn't Caj^tain Sullivan gotten alarmed at

that time?

A. I don't know whether he got alarmed. I don't

know.

O. Don't you remember that before you blew the

second whistle, Mr. ^Martinson, that Captain Sulli-

van said in your hearing

—

COURT: T think maybe the witness misunder-

stands you about the word "alarm."

'0. I mean, didn't you get afraid or scared that

the collision was going to occur, before the second

whistle was blown?

A. No, no.

O. Didn't Captain Sullivan become scared before

the second wdiistle was blown, that there would be a

collision?

A. I couldn't tell you anything about that.

O. Do you remember that before the second whis-

tle was blown, Captain Sullivan said in your hearing:

"That man don't seem to alter his course." He says,

"Give him another whistle."



122 TJic Steamer Sajiison

A. Yes, sir, that is quite correct. I rcuicnibcr

that.

Q. ^\)u rcnicnihcr that, do \-ou?

A. ^>s, sir. that is wliat the ])ilot said.

Q. Now, did you go down to close the water-tight

coini)artments before or after the second whistle?

A. After the second whistle.

Q. How long after the second whistle?

A. AWdl it was only a matter of a short time, you

know.

O. W^ell, T know, but how long, about?

A. Well, that is something I couldn't say exactly.

I cannot judge the time of that collision. It all went

so quick, you know, I can't remember those things in

l)articular.

'O. Went down right away, didn't you?

A. After I blew the second whistle, yes, sir, and

I saw the boat was coming too close, and I thought

there was going to be a collision, so went down on the

main deck.

O. Xow, you say you heard Captain Sullivan tell

the man on the Henderson to port his helm and to

back ?

A. Yes, sir, I heard that.

(). When did he tell that to the pilot of the Hen-

derson ?

A. That was after he blew the second whistle.

O. After he blew the second whistle?

A. Yes, sir.

C). How loni^: after?
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A. Well, about right away after that, you know,

a few seconds.
^

'0. Was that before or after you went down?

A. That was before T went down on the main deck.

O. Before you went down on the main deck.

A. Yes, sir, I was on the forecastle head at the

time.

Q. Where was the Samson at that time when you

went down on the main deck?

A. Well, she was on our j^ort l:)ow.

O. How far away?

A. Well, that T couldn't tell you.

Q. And neither barges had passed you at that

time?

A. What is that?

O. Had any of the rock barges passed where you

were standing at that time?

A. They all were there tied up to the boat. They

all was in a bunch there.

O. I say, had any of the rock barges in front of

the Samson passed where you were standing at the

time you went down below?

A. Xo, sir, not at the time when I went below. I

saw them come right on top of us. That is the time

I went down on the main deck.

O. Xone of them had passed you at that time?

A. Xot me.

O. \\>re you standing front or behind Captain

Sullivan ?

A. Behind Captain Sullivan.



124 The SfcaiJicr Samson

'Q. How far?

A. I don't rememl)er llie distance.

O. Al)ont how far?

A. T was walking around. T couldn't tell you the

distance. I don't stand in one place all the time, just

keep movino- around.

Q. Had any of these barg-es passed Captain Sul-

livan at the time he gave that order to the Hender-

son ?

A. T couldn't tell you that.

Q. Well, he gave that order before you w^ent down

on the main deck?

A. Yes, sir, gave that order; gave the order to the

Henderson to port their helm and back her, before I

went d(nvn on the main deck.

O. Before you went on the main deck.

A. Yes, sir.

O. And you can't tell me exactly how far the

Samson and her barges were away from you at that

time?

A. No, sir, I can't.

Q. None of them had passed you?

A. No, not me.

Q. And you can't say whether any had passed

Captain Sullivan at that time or not?

A. No, sir.

O. How do you go down from the fc^recastle deck

t^) the main deck ?

A. A couple of steps there, a ladder there, and

you go dov* n a cou]^le of steps, four or five ste])s.
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O. Are those steps in front of where Captain Sul-

livan was standing, or behind him?

A. Behind him—that depends on how turned

around. If he turns toward forward, you know,

would be behind. Tf he was facing aft, they would be

in front.

O. Were they further forward on the barge than

Captain Sullivan was, or were they further aft?

A. Which? The steps?

O. Yes.

A. I don't understand that very well.

O. Do you know where Captain Sullivan was

standing?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Now, were those steps aft of where Captain

Sullivan was standing, or in front—further toward the

bow of the barge than where Captain Sullivan was

standing?

A. Those steps are abaft of the bow of the ship,

you know.

Q. Then they are further forward than where

Captain Sullivan was standing, are they?

A. No, they are further aft than where Captain

Sullivan was standing.

'Q. Further aft than where Captain Sullivan was

standing?

A. Yes, sir.

O. How much further aft?

A. That is what I told you before. I don't know
exactly where he was standing at the present. He
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was walkino- around. T was walking around, so I

didn't look at those thinj^'s.

Q. Those ste])s come down at the hack of the

forecastle deck, do they?

A. Yes.

O. Not at the front of the forecastle deck?

A. No, they come ahaft of the forecastle deck.

O. Abaft of the forecastle deck?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Did you hear any other signals given beside

what you have stated— just the two whistles?

A. Well, at the time the collision just occurred, a

little hit before that, a few seconds, I couldn't tell ex-

actly the time, but the Henderson she was blowing

some signals, too, but I didn't pay much attention to

what she was doing.

O. Was it after you went down on the main deck?

A. It was just at the time I went down on the

main deck.

'O. At the time you went down on the main deck?

A. ^^es, about that time.

O. You blew all the signals which were blown

from the barge, did you?

A. Yes, sir.

O. And the barge didn't blow any danger signals

at all?

A. No, sir.

O. Now, you say that the Henderson blew this

signal before or after the collision?

A. What signals do vou mean, sir?
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Q. The danger signal, yon say?

A. That was just a Httle bit before the coUision,

von know.

O. Now, I call your attention to your deposition

taken here on the 2nd day of August, 1912, in which

you say, the Henderson was blowing danger signal.

''O. When did she blow it ? A. Just when we

bumped. ^Q. Not until then ? A. Sir? O. Not until

just at the collision? A. ^>s, no, just at the col-

lision."

A. Well, just as I said, it was just about the same

time. Tt was a matter of seconds, you know, it hap-

pened, and I don't remember those things. It is now
about ci year and a half ago, and I don't remember

those things, but just as I said, she blew the signals

just about the time. There was not many seconds

apart when it all occurred.

O. Was it at the time of the collision, or before

the collision, or after the collision?

A. It was just a little bit before the collision, be-

fore she struck the Henderson, when the Henderson

blew those signals. That is as near as I can come

to it.

Q. You remember when the deposition was taken,

don't you? \ c^w remember when your testimony was

taken in this case before, don't you?

A. Yes, sir, I remember that.

O. Now, at that time didn't you testify that it

was just at the collision?

A. Well, now, \ can't remember. It was all about
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the same time. Tt was just a matter of a few seconds,

or a lialf a second, you know. Ft was just a few sec-

onds. I don't rcmcnd)er exactly, so I couldn't say

about those little thin^Qs. ^^)U know it all went so

(|uick.

(J. Did you answering" this question ''Not until

just at the collision?" say, "\>s, no, just at the col-

lision"?

A. Well, as I sa}- now, it was just at the time or

a few seconds before: just when it occurred, at the

same time, you know.

O. Is that what you sw(^re to before?

A. Well, T—what \ said before, and what T say

now, that is as near as T can come, and that is the

truth as I say, and that is all I can judg'e by. That is

all I know.

O. When you were examined in this case before,

didn't you, in answer to this question "What sig^nals,

if an}', did the towboat give after the collision", say,

"Well, the Henderson was blowing danger signals"?

And to the question "After the collision", say "Yes,

sir": and in answer to the f|uestion "^V)U don't re-

member her giving any signals before the collision?"

say, "Xo. I can't remember that." Isn't that what

\'ou swore to before?

A. Well, I said like before: just exactly the same

as I said now. Vou know that is as near as I can get

to it, in the wa\' you i)ick these things out.

(J. I don't want to deceive \'ou, Mr. Martinson.

Mere is a co])y of wh.'it this deposition was. I wish
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you would read from here down to there (indicating)

and state whether the answers you gave then were

correct, or whether the answers you give now are

correct. I call your attention to the parts of the de-

position which T read to you awhile ago.

COURT: What page of the deposition is that?

Mr. MINOR: Page 21, your Honor, of the copy

which I have.

A. Well, yes. I don't—yes, that is as close as I

can get.

COURT: S])eak louder, so every one can hear.

A. Well, those things the way I read them can be

understood, you know, different ways, your Honor,

the way I read this.

O. Well, you did testify, then, when you w^ere ex-

amined 1)efore, which examination took place the 2nd

day of August, 1912, as follows: ''Q. What signals,

if any, did the towboat give after the collision? A.

Well, the Henderson was blowing danger signals.

O. x'Vfter the collision? A. Yes, sir. Q. You don't

rcmem])cr her oivin"" anv sii>"nals before the collision?

A. No, I can't remember that." That is what you

testified before?

A. Well, before the collision, T understand that is

a few minutes, or something, before, but it all went so

c[uick at once, you know, and when the l)oat was com-

ing bump against her, she blew the signals, some kind

of whistles. I don't remember what she blew, because

my mind was occupied with something else. And T

said there just as it is now.
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(J. That is tlic way you testified before, just as I

read it to you?

A. \\\s, that is liere, you can take it up wliich

way you want to. That is as near as I can come.

O. Was the statement you made at that time cor-

rect, (M- the statement }'()U make now?

A. ] think correct now, and the Last time, as I

said, it was as near correct too. It is whicli wav vou

t;ike it a1)(Uit those things. It all went so quick, in a

hurr}', that there wasn't man}- minutes between it.

(). Xow, Mr. ?^Iartinson, a'ou think she beiran

blowing danger signals before the collision?

A. Well, that is—

Mr. SNOW ( Interrupting) Xo, he doesn't say that.

A. ( Continuing) A second or two before.

]\lr. SXOW: I object to that. You are assuming

a fact not proven in this case. He hasn't so testified.

COURT: Pursue your cross-examination.

O. Vou said awhile ago that the Henderson blew

some whistles just before the collision—just as you

went down on the deck?

A. Yes, sir, that is what I remember, just when

she was going bump into us, she blew the signals.

O. \ou said that was before the collision took

l)lace?

A. A second or so after: a second or so before the

collision took place; that is as near as I can tell.

O. When you testified before in this case, you

testified that you didn't remember her giving any sig-

nals before the collision.
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A. Before the collision, you know; a long time be-

fore the collision. She didn't give any signals, you

see, three or four minutes, two or three minutes, be-

fore the collision. She didn't give no signals then.

O. As a matter of fact, did she give these signals

before or after the collision took place?

A. Well, just about at the time, you know; a lit-

tle bit before it, you know.

O. A little before?

A. Second or so.

O. So when you testified before, you were incor-

rect in saying she didn't give any signals before the

collision ?

A. Well, just before the collision—just the same

as now.—As I said, you know, just about the same

time as the collision occurred; a little bit before that,

why, she gave the signals. That is as near as I can

come to it.

Questions bv Air. SNOW:
Mr. Martinson, you say that the Henderson was

giving some distress signals some little time after the

collision? What did you mean by distress signals?

A. She was blowing her whistle, you know. I

couldn't say exactly. As I said before, I didn't pay

much attention what signals they were, in fact, you

know, because my mind was occupied with something

else, but I know she blew some signals, you know,

whatever it was, you know. It all went so quick; in

fact, she didn't have much time to blow her signals

before she disappeared.
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Q. After the collision, as I understand you, she

blew a few distress signals?

A. Yes.

O. What do you mean by distress signals? What

do you mean by that?

A. Well, four blows, you know, we call, you know,

what we call distress signal.

O. Where was the Henderson then with reference

to the oil barge? The oil barge was it anchored.

Where was the Henderson when blow^ing the distress

signal?

A. She was blowing signals when she was along-

side, just the time wdien she—all got quiet at once

—

didn't have no time to blow those whistles.

O. That is what you mean by after the collision.

You mean when she was still alongside there, and

before she had finally broken loose from the barge?

A. After she broke loose from the barge, I don't

remember whether she blew any whistles or anything

like that. It all went so quick.

Redirect Examination.

Questions by Mr. ERSKINE WOOD:
Mr. Martinson, I don't expect you to name it in

minutes, but I want to know whether it was a long-

time or a short time before the collision, that Sullivan

gave the order to the Henderson to port her helm and

back. Was that a long time or a short time?

A. 11iat was very—oh, a short time; it wasn't

very long, you know. Tt was after I blew—after we
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blew the second whistle, you see. Then he says at the

same time, he says, to port your helm and back her to

the Henderson, or hard aport, or something like that.

I don't remember exactly.

Q. How close did the Samson appear to be upon

you at that time?

A. Well, she was pretty close then, but the dis-

tance, as I said before, I couldn't tell you.

'O. Did you notice the Henderson after the col-

lision?

A. No.

Mr. MINOR: I didn't ask anything about that.

You can go into it if you want to. I didn't cross ex-

amine him on that. I have no objection to your go-

ing into it if you want to.

(Witness excused.)

CHARLES KAYSER, a witness called on behalf

of the libellant, being first duly sworn, testified as

follows.

Direct Examination.

Questions by Mr. ERSKINE WOOD:
What is your occupation?

A. Seaman.

O. How long have you been a seaman ?

A. About 12 years.

Q. How long have you been on the oil barge?

A. 20 months now.

O. You were on her at the time of this collision

with the Samson ?
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A. Yes, sir.

O. Where were you on the oil barge at the time

of the colHsion ?

A. In my bed.

O. What woke you up if you were asleep?

A. The crash of the Samson running into the Plen-

derson.

O. Had you heard anything else before that?

A. I heard our whistles. I heard one whistle and

then fell asleep again, and heard another whistle

shortly after that. I fell asleep again after the second

whistle.

O. \o\\ were just half asleep there?

A. Yes.

O. And the crash woke you up?

A. Yes.

O. Then what did you do?

A. I jumped out of bed, half undressed and run

up on deck. I thought we were on the rocks or some-

thing, and when I was running out, IMartinson came

running in, and we ran to the anchors, and I asked

what was the matter, and he didn't answer me. Just

went for the anchor and let go the starboard anchor

and then the port, before T saw the Henderson drift-

ing to stern, she was sinking'.

O. How far had you ran from your bunk to where

you met IMartinson?

A. About 18 or 20 feet.

(j. And Martinson was running in? Is that it?

A. Yes.
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O. How soon would you say it was the anchors

were let go after the collision ?

A. Oh, it was only a matter of seconds. Just the

time it took me to run out from my bunk, to run these

twenty feet and for Martinson to run for the anchors.

'O. How far did he run to the anchors from the

point you met him?

A. Probably 25 feet.

Q. How did the oil barge come up on her anchor

chains?

A. Very slow. I noticed that when the starboard

anchor was down, I could just watch the chain going

out. I think Martinson left the brake open, and the

chain could hardly go out any more.

O. Hardly go out any more after the anchor hit

the bottom?

A. After the anchor w^as on the bottom.

Cross-examination.

Questions by Mr. MINOR:

How many whistles did you hear that night ?

A. I heard all the whistles. The two whistles the

barge blew, the one and then another one.

Q. Only heard two?

A. Yes.

O. What time did you go to bed ?

A. 12 o'clock.

O. Twelve?

A. Yes, sir.

'O. You didn't hear anv whistle blown before vou
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heard this whistle that you said

—

A. (Interrupting) No, sir.

O. (Continuing) was blown for the Samson.

A. 1 don't remember any.

O. You always wake when the whistle blows,

don't you?

A. What?

O. You always wake U]) when the whistle blows?

A. Yes, the whistle is just above us ; that is, our

whistle. I don't hear the Henderson's whistle.

O. Do you know where you were in the river at

the time you went to bed?

A. What?

O. Do you know where you were in the river at

the time you went to bed ?

A. No.

O. You are not acquainted with the river. Do you

remember passing any boat about the time you w^ent

to bed?

A. No.

'Q. Or a little after?

A. No.

O. You don't remember any whistles at that time?

A. What?

O. You don't remember hearing any whistles at

that time?
. _

A. No.

O. ^'ou don't remember two whistles being

blown ?

A. No.
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O. After you went to bed?

A. No. Might have been blowing some whistles,

but I didn't pay no attention to them. We meet steam-

ers quite frequently on the river.

O. What is that?

A. I say we meet steamers quite often on the river

coming up, so I don't pay any attention to the whis-

tles.

Q. If two whistles were blown just before you

heard tiie first one, wouldn't you have heard them?

A. I suppose I would.

O. You don't remember hearing them?

A. No.

Q. You didn't hear any answers to these signals?

A. No.

O. No answer at all?

A. No.
;

Q. You weren't really awake, were you?

A. I was what?

Q. You were not really awake, were you?

A. No, just drowsy.

Q. You couldn't say whether one or two whistles

were blown at the time, could vou?

A. Yes, I can hear that distinctly.

O. What?

A. I can hear that, one or two whistles.

O. Why did you fail to hear one, and hear only

the last one of the two blown?

A. No.

O. Why not ?^
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A. The steam whistle is too close. T don't think

that is 25 feet away from my bed.

O. Now, if the bar^-e blew two whistles a short

time before, in ])assing another steamer, and those

didn't wake you np, isn't it possible that you failed to

hear the first—the first whistle that the barge blew

when she blew two whistles?

A. ^laybe T wouldn't have paid no attention to

those two whistles that were blown, this one and then

the other one, if it hadn't been for the accident, be-

cause shortly after the second one T got u|), and I re-

member.

Q. Now Mr. Martinson testified that between the

time of the first and second wdiistle was about three

or four minutes.

A. Probably. I can't tell.

O. You can't tell. But you had gone to sleep be-

tween the two, had you?

A. Just drowsy, just half asleep.

O. Did you hear anything else except these two

whistles?

A. If I remember right, I heard some whistles, I

don't know who blew them, the Henderson or the

Samson, after—T think it was when I got out of bed,

when I jumped out of bed.

O. Did you hear the crash ?

A. Oh, sure. The barge was shaking.

O. You heard that, did you?

A. Sure.

O. Did that crash occur before or after vou gfot

out of bed ?
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A. That crash woke me up, and I jumped out.

"Q. The crash occurred before you got out of bed?

A. That was the thing that woke me up.

O. You say it occurred before you got out of bed ?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Now, did you hear any orders given ?

A. No, but I think I heard the pilot sing out ''Let

go the anchors" when T got up.

Q. After you got up?

A. Yes.

O. Was that after or before you saw Mr. Mar-

tinson ?

A. It was before T saw him.

Q. Before you saw him?

A. Yes.

•Q. But that was after the crash?

A. Yes.

O. And that was the onlv order you heard Sfiven

at all?

A. Yes.

Redirect Examination.

Questions by Mr. ERSKINE WOOD:
Mr. Kayser, how close to the Oregon shore was the

oil barge at anchor?

Mr. MINOR: This is another matter. If you go

into that, I have a right tp cross-examine.

A. I don't think it was a ship's length off.

O. Where do you think the point of collision was,

with relation to the spot where you were at anchor?

A. It must have been close to there.
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Recross Examination.

Ouestions by Mr. MIXOR:

Vou don't know where you were when the colHsion

took place, do you ?

A. Xo. just what I could guess by the way we

were anchored.

O. And you only giiess where the point of col-

lision was from where you found yourself anchored?

A. What?

O. Vou only gruess where the collision took place

from where you found yourself anchored?

A. Yes. I judge by the way the chains went out.

If she had had much headway, we would have been

more off. and the chains would have been drawn out.

O. I sav. vou are onlv gfuessins: from where vou

found yourself anchored ?

A. Yes.

O. Have no other means

—

A. Xo.

O. (^Continuing) Of knowing where the collision

took place?

A. Xo. I didn't see it.

*0. And you have no means of detenuining how

long after the crash before the anchors were let down

have you?

A. Oh. yes.

Q. What means have you of telling?

A. It took just time to jump out of bed and run

op to the door, and Martinson to run in, so that it

wn- n}] a matter of a few <=econds. how manv seconds
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I couldn't tell.

O. Did Martinson run in the room where you

were ?

A. Xo, he run by that.

Q. Ran by where you were ?

.\. Well, he ran by the room: that is, where we

sleep at.

Q. He ran by that room?

A. Yes.

*Q. How far by that room ?

A. I think the anchors are about six or eight feet,

maybe from my bed : that is, to the brake.

Q. In another room, though, is it?

A. Xo, under the forecastle head-

Q. Underneath where you were?

A. Yes.

O. Did you see him run by?

A. Sure. I just see him at the door. I ran to the

door to look out on deck, and he came rushing in and

ran by me.

O. He didn't rush in the room where you were,

did he?

A. Xo.

Q. That is what I wanted to get at. He ran by the

door where you were?

A. Yes.

O. Just when he ran by the dr>or. you were stand-

ing at the door, were you ?

A. Well, I was just going toward me dc<»r.

O. You didn't undertake to make any time upon
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the time of the crash, or the time he ran by, or the

time the anchors ran ])y, do you?

A. Well, as I said, it was a few seconds.

O. You didn't time it at all, did you?

A. A\niat do yon mean ?

(). Hid }-()U have a watch?

A. Xo, 1 had no watch in hand.

'O. And }'()U didn't make any ])articular reckoning

of the time, did you?

A. No, but I can judge how long it takes me to run

up to that door, and how long it takes him to run to

the anchor.

O. Can you tell how many seconds? You said a

few seconds.

A. Oh yes.

(). How manv?

A. Well, it can never have been more than thirty

seconds.

O. Wouldn't have been more than thirty seconds?

A. No, and that allows a few minutes for him to

run in from deck.

O. Allows how much?

A. A few seconds for him to run in from deck.

Redirect Examination.

•Questions by Mr. ERSKINE WOOD:
1 think we should understand the relation of this

room. Exi)lain how^ your l)unk was located on this

shi]) with reference to the forecastle, where the an-

chors are, and whether or not there are tw^o doors.

A. You see the forecastle head is the fore part of
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the ship, and the anchor is located right in the middle.

That is, the windlass, and our room is on the star-

board side, so in order to get to the windlass, we goes

off quarter like to the starboard side in order to get

the windlass after we run l)y tliat door.

O. By your cabin door?

A. Yes, the door I mean where I met Martinson,

is the door leading from the after part of the fore-

castle head to the main deck.

O. Then you mean you ran out of your Inmk-

room?

A. Yes.

O. Through the door which leads from the main

deck into the forecastle?

A. Yes.

Q. And that is where you met Martinson?

A. That is where T met Martinson, yes.

'Q. And how far is it from the door of your cabin

to the door where you met Martinson, approximately?

A. Fifteen feet. I don't know whether fifteen

feet.

Q. And from the door where you met Martinson,

how far to the anchor windlass?

A. About ten feet.

(Witness excused.)

CAPTAIN EDWARD SULLIVAN resumes the

stand.

Direct Examination Continued.

Questions by .Mr. ERSKIXE WOOD:
(Last question read as follows): How did your



144 The Steamer Samson

oil l)aro^e come up on her anchor chains?

A. Apparently there was no jar.

^Ir. MINOR: I didn't hear that.

A. Apparently there was no jar to the ship when

comings up on these chains; none that I heard.

O. \\ hat does that indicate. Captain?

A. It indicates that tlie boat had lost the cfreater

part of her headway, or all of her headway, practi-

cally, hecatise as heavy a vessel as that is wouldn't

be very easy to stoj); if she was moving, it would make

considerable motion on these chains if she had any

motion.

O. Bring" her up v^ith a jerk, is that it?

A. Yes, sir.

O. About how far were you, Captain, from the

Oregon shore, when }'oti came to anchor?

A. \\>11, I estimated to be 150 feet from the stern

of the barge to the trap, the old piling which was

there, which is near the water line. Of cotirse some-

times when the tide is high, the water line is a little

further away than others. But that was near the

water line, and I estimate 150 feet from tlie stern of

the barge.

O. Will you indicate on this chart the position in

which vou think vou L'lv to the anchor? (Libellant's

Exhibit 1).

A. The next morning the anchors—this is a little

tide land here, and this is the rock sh.ore. It ends

here. ( )ur anchors were abreast this tide k'lnd. abc^ut,

and the barge lay astern, and I think this tra]) piling



The Steamer Samson 145

is possibly in this direction, allowing that for about

the scale (indicating). That is to say perhaps 80 feet

from the anchors to the bow of the barge, allowing

for slack of the chain, and the chain laying on the

bottom, and then the length of the barge would be

another 280 feet, that would be maybe, 350 feet from

the end of this tide land down here, to her stern.

'Q. Well, mark that with a cross, the point where

you think the oil barge lay at anchor. (Witness does

so.) The cross immediately to the left of the words

"oil barge at anchor" with the initials ''E. S." under

it, represent your idea of the position of the barge

when she lay to the anchor?

A. Yes.

O. What would be your idea as to the distance the

oil barge traveled from the time of the collision to the

anchorage place, if she traveled any?

A. T think possibly less than her length—than

once her length.

O. That would be less than 280 feet?

A. Yes.

O. Did she move anv between the time of comine

to anchor there, and the next morning?

A. She did not.

O. What became of the Henderson, Captain?

A. Well, as far as T could see, she drifted down in

the direction in which the channel ran; T should think

in a straight line, 1)Ut of course, only lasted a few

minutes until the lights went out, then T couldn't see

her :\w\ more; too (l:irk ; and she drifted off down the
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channel about in tlic i^'eneral direction of the channel

towards this way the current runs.

O. Did her lights i^o out soon?

A. Ves, very soon. Jt wasn't more than, it seems

to me, two or three minutes, a very short time, J^oin^^

(Hit. We launched the boat, the captain of the barge

did, immediately after the anchors were down, and

sent to their rescue, but it seems before he got there,

the boat got there, the fishermen picked them up.

O. Can you identify on the chart the a])]:)roximate

position of the Henderson when you saw her the next

morning, the point where she drifted to? (Witness

indicates). Mark that "Henderson aground.''

Mr. SNOW: Is that where the Henderson sunk?

O. That is, she was almost directly between the

u])]:)ermost point of Tenas Tllihee Island, and the low-

er ]:)oint of Puget Island?

A. Yes, sir.

O. And on the Oregon side of the ri\'er?

A. Yes, sir.

O. How does the oil barge steer. Captain?

A. It steers very good.

O. Obeys her helm readily?

A. ^'es, sir.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: How was it that night?

A. Sir?

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: How did she steer that

night ?

A. She steered well. She steers well all the time.

(]. Captain .^ulliwin, were the lights on the barge
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and the Henderson burning regularly according to

the rules that night ?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Captain Sullivan, what is the width of the

channel there at the time, from the high bluff across

to Puget Island?

A. I think about 1800 feet, I believe the chart so

gives it.

O. From what?

A. From the closest ])oint.

'O. I mean, from the high bluff marked with a

cross here, and just below it, where you came to an-

chor.

A. 1 believe that is 2500 feet,

O. How is the water?

A. There is a little bar on the Puget Island side,

perhaps 150 feet from the island, or such a matter;

that, I think on that, is shallow, and beyond that

there seems to be deep water all the way to the bluff.

We were anchored in eight fathoms of water 150 feet

from shore.

O. Then it is practically deep water from shore

to shore ? i

A. Yes, for any draft vessel excepting that nar-

row bar on the island.

Q. I will ask you mark that narrow bar on the

shore there. Is that where is Ostervolt's seining

ground ?

A. Yes.

O. Mark it that way.



148 The Steamer Samson

A. This is the l)ar indicated by this dotted line in

the chart where no soundings are taken at all, and

extends about 150 feet. My idea is it extends out

about 150 feet from the shore line, or the water's

edge of this shore. Then beyond that point, all of

this water is deep here, and at this point where we

were anchored, there were eight fathoms of water,

and all this channel seems to be deep, at least between

here and here, except that little strip close to shore

—

deep water.

O. How many sloughs indicated on the chart on

the Puget Island side?

A. Three.

O. Do you know whether there are some others

or not ?

A. I think there are. 1 think one or two more

sloughs. I know of one more.

O. Can you indicate where that one is?

A. I think there was one in the neighborhood of

this old trap and one in between these two, I think.

(J. If you are not sure, don't mark it.

A. J am not sure.

O. Then don't mark it.

Mr. SNOW: Mark the slough you ;ire sure of.

How about this one here?

A. I think that slough is there.

Cross-examination.

Questions by Mr. MIXOR:

Captain Sullivan, I wish you would come here .and
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mark on this chart where you were when you gave

the first signal to the Samson. (Witness marks on

Libellant's Exhibit 1). Mark it as ''first signal."

Now, mark on that chart where the Samson was at

that time.

A. (Indicating) Of course I can't locate her posi-

tion in the river. I can only locate about the distance

away. It might have been nearer one bank or the

other. I couldn't tell that very well, so I will say

there.

O. Now, mark where the collision took place.

(Witness does so). Now, mark where you were the

time you gave the second signal to the Samson. (Wit-

ness does so). Now, mark where the Samson w^as at

that time. (Witness does so). Now, lay out on that

chart, if you please, the course which your barge pur-

sued from the time that you first sighted the Samson

to the time that the collision took place.

A. This, I suppose, is the starting point.

O. There, right there you have it.

A. (Drawing on Libellant's Exhibit 1) This is

my understanding. T will change that a little bit. I

will make that a little further in this direction.

O. Now, Captain, you say the Samson was about

a mile and a half from you when you first saw her?

A. r think so.

O. And you say at the time you were at a point

you marked here, marked with a cross on this chart?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Do ^'()U remember testifying in this matter be-



150 TJic Steamer Samson

fore the Tns])cctors for the United States?

A. I do.

O. Where (hd you locate yourself in that exam-

ination ?

A. (Indicating-) At this ponit, ahout.

O. Rii^^ht off the lower point of the island, did

you?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Now, you make yourself further upstream, do

you?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Why do you do that?

A. Well, at the time of this examination, I made

this statement, of course, followino- this collision ; it

occurred in the nii^ht, and I had no opportunity to ol)-

serve the situation hy dayli^-ht, or, in fact, no oj)-

])ortunity at all to ohserve it up to this time. AH'

recollection of the position we were in was hased on

the fact of seeing* the lights at Cathlamet, wdiich arc

in here, and I was under the im])ression they could

onl}' he seen from a ]X)int helow the foot of this island.

Now, of course, I didn't notice when I passed this

island, or in fact, at any time, on account of seeinsT

these lights of the Samson ; I didn't locate myself ex-

acth', hecause there was no reason or occasion for

doing such a thing; so T remembered in looking back

at this rang^e and seeing these lights, and seeing the

Samson, so T concluded that this was the ])()int, be-

cause 1 thought the high trees on this island extended

down to the ])oint. And ])assing that, that a man on
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the bridge of a ship, his view would be shut out of

these Hghts; but when I looked again in day light, I

found that the trees are a long way from this point,

a long way from this point to where the trees are;

and that is covered with low brush, over which these

limits can be seen. Then when I calculate the dis-

tance we would have to run from here to here, and

look at it from that standpoint, I found it too great;

that we couldn't have made it in the time I stated, at

the speed we were going; and the Samson coming

from here to here, at the speed they were going, we

couldn't have met at that point, and I concluded I

was mistaken, and I w^ish to correct that mistake now.

O. At the time you testified before, you were

pretty positive about where you were?

A. I thought I was.

0. And that was your best recollection at that

time?

A. Yes.

O. And that examination occurred a short time

after the accident occurred, didn't it?

A. And also this examination occurred a short

time after the accident. A short time after the inves-

tigation, I examined that.

O. I say, the examination which was made before

the inspectors occurred a short time after the acci-

dent occurred, didn't it?

A. \'ery true.

O. When the whole matter was fresh in your mem-

ory, was it?
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A. \'es, but I say this was also fresh in my mem-

ory, because I examined those conditions a few days

later than that.

(J. \'(ni could sec the H^hts of Cathlamet from

tlic foot of the island?

A. Ves.

O. And up from that point?

A. Yes, sir.

O. And why do you say you were mistaken when

you testified before, and as a matter of fact you were

there at a point you now mark, and not at the point

which you said you were at the time you testified be-

fore the Inspectors?

A. T said I think T was mistaken.

O. \\liy do you say that?

A. Because the distance from here to here (indi-

cating) or from here to here is too great to travel in

that length of time, at the speed we were going.

O. The only reason you have now for changing

your testimony in regard to your location and the

Samson, is the fact that you found out, upon that ex-

amination, that the collision couldn't have taken place,

if }'ou were at the place where you said you were at

the time }ou first saw the Samson's lights. Isn't that

right j"

A. It wouldn't hardly have taken place at that

point.

O. \nu found cmt it couldn't take place at that

point?

A. I think s(^, ves.
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O. And now you are locating the position that

you were from where you think the colHsion took

])lace, are you not?

A. Yes, not based on memory of the present time,

but on examination a few days hiter.

Q. And at the same time you are placing the po-

sition where you were when you first saw the light of

the Samson from the place where you think the acci-

dent took place?

A. I am correcting that. T think I was mistaken.

Q. Yet, when you testified, Captain Sullivan at

that time, you were quite as positive as to where you

were, as vou are now, weren't vou?

A. Yes, I think so.

O. And it was only when, upon cross examination

you discovered that you were making your barge

come as far as the Samson was going, that you

thought you could be mistaken, wasn't it?

A. No; wxll, yes, that had something to do with

it.

Q. That was developed upon cross examination of

vou, wasn't it?

A. Yes.

O. And until that time you didn't recognize you

were making your barge go as fast as the Samson was

going?

A. Well, until that time I hadn't taken any meas-

urements or computed distances.

O. You had the chart ])efore you?

A. Yes, sir.
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O. And you had the chart at the time you located

the ])osition ?

A. But it dichi't occur to me.

O. But you h^catcd where you were at the time

you first saw hq^hts on tlie Samson on the chart, didn^t

you ?

A. As T thou,^ht.

O. And you located where the Samson was at that

time on the chart, didn't you?

A. Yes, sir.

O. And you located also where the collision took

place on that chart ?

A. Yes, sir.

O. And you located where you anchored on that

chart?

A. Yes, sir.

O. And where the Henderson w^as on the chart?

A. ^>s—no, I beg" your pardon. Xot on this chart.

These charts were made afterwards. We used a

smaller chart there.

n. I thou2:ht it was the same?

A. Xo, this is a chart made on a lar,!::^er scale, with

this range put on it, and that chart the Court has is of

a different scale with no range put on it, and a very

much smaller scale than this. This was made by the

United States Engineers at a later date, and wasn't

in use at the time.

O. The two charts are the same except the scale?

A. One is a larger scale, and would make a dif-

ference in computing distances.
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Q. But I say it is the same chart except one is on

a larger scale?

A. Yes, but it would make some difference.

Q. Then on that chart there, the one like the one

the Court now has, you located yourself at all these

different times, and located yourself at different

places from wdiere you now locate yourself?

A. Yes, I think you brought that upon yourself.

I think you were the one that did it.

O. Now Captain Sullivan, do you remember pass-

ing the Daniel Kern that night?

A. Yes, sir.

'O. Where did vou pass her?

A. Well, I think we were about abreast of this

bar here, this point, I think (indicating).

Q. You think you passed her about abreast of that

sand barr?

A. I think so, yes.

Q. You remember passing her, do you?

A. Xtxy distinctly.

O. I wish vou would state where vou were located

at the time. T wish you would mark on this chart

exactlv where vou think vou were at the time when
^ ^ -I

you passed the Daniel Kern (Witness indicates on

Exhibit 1). Now, there are two marks there. Which

one is it, Captain ?

A. This was a mark used for some other pur-

pose.

O. That is where you passed tlic Daniel Kern?

A. Yes.
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O. What is the other mark for?

A. That is the point we were arguing about just

now.

O. That other mark is the ])oint w^here you testi-

fied y(ni were when examined ])efore?

A. That is the idea.

'O. Put that down on your chart, will yon?

A. What will I say?

O. "Point wliere I testified barg-e was when first

sighted Samson." Do you know at what time it was

when you passed the Kern?

A. No.

O. Did that oil l:)arge keep a log?

A. No.

O. Do you know how long it was after you passed

the Kern before you saw the Samson?

A. Not exactly.

O. Well, how^ far was the Kern ahead of the Sam-

son ?

A. T couldn't say.

O. Couldn't you state approximatel}- how far it

was ahead of the Samson?

A. I would think two miles.

O. Two miles?

A. Yes.

O. Now, if as a matter of fact. Captain Sullivan,

the Daniel Kern was only, say, less than a mile ahead

of the Samson

—

A. ( Interrupting) 1^hat is what he said.

O. I sa\', if the Samson, as a matter of fact

—
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A. (Interrupting) Xo, it wasn't a matter of fact.

Q. I say, if, as a matter of fact, the Daniel Kern

wasn't more than a mile ahead of the Samson, you

must have seen the Samson ])efore you passed the

Kern ?

A. No, sir. She must have heen more than a mile

ahead of her.

O. What is that?

A. She must have ])cen more than a mile ahead

of her.

O. Suppose she wasn't.

A. Why would you suppose such a thing?

Q. You know as a matter of fact, that the captain

of the Kern says he wasn't more than a half a mile

ahead.

A. Yes, I know, but T know, as a matter of fact,

he didn't tell the truth.

Q. Now, I have a right to his statement in regard

to where he was. If, as a matter of fact, now, he is

right and you are wrong, and the Kern wasn't more

than a mile ahead of the Samson, then you sighted

the Samson before you passed the Kern, didn't vou?

A. Xo, sir.

'O. Yet you say you were a mile and a half from

the Samson at the time you first saw her.

A. Yes, and I think that the Kern was two miles

ahead of the Samson.

Q. Two miles ahead of the Samson ?

A. At the time that I saw it, T think so.

O. X^ow, how far was it from where you placed
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the Kern, where you passed the Kern, to where you

were when you first saw the Samson?

A. Well, niii^ht he a quarter of a mile.

O. A (juarter of a mile?

A. Yes.

O. On which side did you pass the Kern?

A. On the—on lier starhoard side.

O. You passed her just opposite of the way you

undertook to pass the Samson, didn't you?

A. I did.

'O. And you think the Kern was two miles ahead

of the Samson ?

A. I think so.

O. Now, Captain, you have testified this time that

before you g-ave the second whistle, you told the

cjuartermaster, I believe it was, to look to his anchor,

to stand by his anchor.

A. No, I didn't testify that, sir.

O. What did you testify, Captain Sullivan?

A. T said, after I blew the second w^histle.

O. You told the cjuartermaster to stand by his

anchors?

A. Stand by the anchors.

(). The (juartermaster doesn't testify that way.

A. No, he doesn't seem to remember, but T make

the statement just the same.

O. When you testified before, did you testify you

Q-ave that order to the f|uartcrmaster

?

A. 1 think so.

C). l^he boatswain. Did \'ou tcstifv vou crave the



The Steamer Samson i^^

boatswain that order?

A. I think so.

O. As a matter of fact, you didn't, Captain. At

least, the testimony don't show you did. How do you

remember now, and didn't remember then?

A. Possibly the matter was not brought out.

O. You were asked at that time all the orders you

gave, weren't you?

A. I think so, but perhaps that one particular

point wasn't brought out.

Q. But you were asked, both on direct examina-

tion and on cross examination all the orders that 3^ou

gave, weren't you?

A. Yes.

Q. That is a fact, isn't it?

A. I think I remember saying that I told him to

stand by his anchors.

Q. But the evidence don't show it. Captain: Now,

if the evidence doesn't show it, how did it happen that

you didn't tell that when you were examined before,

as one of the orders that you gave?

A. I don't know.

Q. Captain, what change did you make in your

course after you sighted the Samson ?

A. What change?

Q. Yes.

A. I hauled off to the right-hand side of the ranee.

About, oh, a matter of 600 feet, perhaps, and ran in

that direction parallel with the range until we met

the Samson.
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'O. 'S'ou ran in lliat direction parallel with the

range nntil yon met the Samson?

A. Approximatcl}', yes.

O. \'on didn't give any other order nntil after you

gave the second whistle?

A. Well, T don't know as to that, what orders. Of

course, 1 would have to keep this man keeping the

harges ahead steady; might he ])ort and starhoard, or

different things, for he had to keep the head steady;

[ couldn't say.

O. \^iu don't remember giving any other order?

A. Not particularly, no.

(). You didn't give anv order to the helmsman to

change your course at all when you blew the first

whistle?

A. No.

O. The only time you changed your direction was

when you first saw the Samson's light, and then after

}-ou gave the second whistle? Those were the only

two changes vou made in vour course, weren't thev?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Those were all the orders vou gave?

A. ^^es, all that T can recollect.

O. When you gave the second whistle, or gave the

order to give the second whistle, and the second whis-

tle was given, you then ordered your helmsman to put

his helm hard a])()rt?

A. After the second whistle was given, yes, sir.

O. And he did put his helm hard ai)()rt, did he?

A. ^'es, sir.
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O. And I understood you to say that the barge

obe^^ed her hehii very well, steered well?

A. Yes, sir.

O. So she went off to port pretty suddenly then,

didn't she?

A. Yes, sir.

0. Now, Captain, I wish you would look at this

chart one minute, and ex])lain to the Court this fact.

You have marked a point here where you gave the

second whistle; you marked a point where the col-

lision took place ; and you say that after the second

whisile was given, you gave the order "hard aport,"

and that the barge obeyed her helm readily. Will you

tell the Court, then, how this barge could have gone

from I he point where you gave the second signal, to

the point of the collision with her helm hard aport?

A. I don't quite get your meaning. The idea you

want me to convey to the court that this barge would

turn around on a pivot, a ship 200 feet long?

O. No, sir, I don't want you to give any idea at all.

I want vou to tell the Court how it was, if v^our barcre

obeyed her helm well, when you gave the order "hard

aport," that seemingly, by the course you have

marked on this chart, the oil barge went, not to star-

board but to port ? You marked the course from the

point of collision, so it can't make any difference.

A. Of course, the distance there would onlv be

given on a scale, llie distance between these two

points, I presume, if measured, would be a matter of

400 feet, but that wasn't the idea convcved in mak-
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m^ these marks, tliat there was 400 feet difference

between the point of this whistle and this colHsion.

That wasn't the idea that 1 intended to convey. Of

course, the l)(>at was .c^oinc^' ahead under full speed,

pushin^;* aheadwith this towboat, and she would

travel in a circular direction, not turning on a pivot ; a

vessel as long as she is wouldn't do that. So the idea

would he that she would travel in that circular direc-

tion with head towards shore after the helm was put

over.

O. AWdl, after the helm was put over, instead of

turning to the left, she ought to turn to the right,

shouldn't she?

A. J don't know of anything said about turning

to the left.

O. Look at the course and see if she isn't going

to the left still.

A. I think you confine me too close to the scale on

the chart there.

'O. That is the way you ])ut it down, isn't it?

A. Yes, that is the way it was put down.

O. So that isn't the course really, is it?

A. Approximately.

O. Then you ha\'en't put the jilace where the sec-

ond signal was given, on the chart correctly, have

you ?

A. Approximately.

[). And \-()U ha\en't ])ut the i)lace the collision oc-

curred correctly, have }'()U?

A. A])proximately.
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O. Then, will you tell me how the oil barge could

get from the place where the second signal was given

to the place of collision with her helm hard aport?

A. No, I don't think that I can answer your ques-

tion.

O. Well, it is for you to answer to the court.

A. Perhaps, if I had anticipated such a question,

where you would pin me down so close to these marks,

T would have made them in a more accurate way. T

am only saying approximately what the point was, or

approximately what the distance was.

O. Then you can't explain that on the chart?

A. Not very well ; not in the manner in which you

require it.

'0. Again, Captain, I want to call your attention

to the place where you put the Samson when the sec-

ond signal was given. Vou say there (indicating)?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. I want also to call your attention to the place

where you put the collision at that time. Now, what

lights did the Samson show after the second whistle

was given, about the time of the collision ?

A. What lights would she show?

O. What lights did she show, after the second

whistle and to the time of the collision?

A. Well, she showed a portion of the time her red

and green lights, and a portion of the time her green

light was shut out just before the collision.

Q. Now, if the Samson went from the point where

you say she was at the time of the second signal, to
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the point of the colhsion, what Hght would she show?.

Look al the chart and see.

A. Well, if this matter was ])ut down with refer-

ence to such a case of this kind; of course, if this was

followed exactly, as that chart is, you might say she

would only show the port lights; if these marks were

faithfully followed out, as laid down here.

O. Now, Captain, she couldn't show the port light

at all ; she must show the green light there altogether,

if she went from this ]K:)int here, which is the point

you put her down ?

A. lUn here is the point of collision.

O. But if she wxnt from there, the point where

you put her at the time of the second signal, to that

point, which is the i)oint of collision, she could only

show the green light, couldn't she?

A. Ves, I can be mistaken in that.

O. ^'ou are by the chart?

A. Yes.

O. ^'ou have everything mixed up there?

A. A little bit.

O. A'^ery much mixed, because, as a matter of

fact, the Samson showed both red and green lights all

the time.

A. Practically.

(). Except just as the collision took place?

A. Yes.

(). Show on the chart right.

A. l^hc Samson would be wrong, so we will move

her back a little.
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Q. Suppose you move her back a little. How
much further are you going to move her back?

A. Well, say, about this point.

O. Now^, mark out there ''corrected location of the

Samson at the time of the second signal" (Witness

does so). Now^, you don't change your point of col-

lision.

A. Practically not, no.

O. And you don't change the point where the oil

barge was at that time. Is that right? At the time

the second signal was given? I want the Court to

understand, Captain, if you can make him understand

it,— I can't understand it.—
A. Well, I suppose the Samson is too far out in

the stream is the trouble, is all. That would be more

like it.

'O. Then put "third corrected location of the Sam-

son"
—

"second corrected location of the Samson"

(Witness does so). And now you don't w^ant to

change your point where the oil barge was at the time

the second whistle was given?

A. No.

O. Nor the point where the collision took place?

A. No.

Q. Now, look at the chart will you, and tell me
which was fiu'ther from the point of the collision at

the time that the second whistle was given—the Sam-

son or the oil barge.

A. Well, it looks as if the oil barge was.

O. As if the oil barge was nearer the ooint of col-
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lision?

A. No, llic oil hari^'c is farther from the point of

collision than tlic Samson.

(j. According to this chart as now corrected, it

shows the Samson was nearer the point of collision

than the oil harge?

A. Ves.

'O. And how fast was the Samson traveling?

A. She was traveling perha])s twice the speed of

the oil barge.

O. So you still have the Samson located wrong?

A. Have the oil barge located wrong now.

O. Take care of the oil barge location.

A. Will move her ujx then. Will move her up to

about here.

O. All right, i)ut that "corrected location of the

oil barge." (Witness does so.) Now, Captain, if the

Samson went from the place where you have now

put her to the point of collision, and the oil barge

went from the place where you have now i)ut her to

the point of collision, what lights could you see on

the Samson?

A. Both lights.

O. What angle are they going to go by?

A. Sufficient angle to show both lights.

O. What angle, about ?

A. 1 can't figure that out. ^^)U will have to judge

for \'ourself.

O. \'()U mean to say tliat two ships coming to-

gether at that angle, one going that way, and the
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other this way, coming together at that angle, that

you can see the red hght of the Samson ?

A. Well, this would he the angle they would come

at. If I were on this how couldn't I see?

*0. You have this hoat here. There is where the

boat is now, and your boat is here (indicating on Li-

bellant's Exhibit 1).

A. But with no reference to the way that boat is

headed. That is simply the point. She might be

headed in this direction, or she might be headed this

way, or this way, as far as that point of land is con-

cerned.

O. I understood you to say on your direct exam-

ination that she didn't change her direction at all, as

far as 3'ou could tell from the time you first saw her

until the collision.

A. T don't think so, generally.

Q. There is where you put her to start with, didn't

you? That is right, isn't it?

A. Approximately.

O. Now, how could she get to the point of col-

lision if she ran on that same line without changing

her direction ?

A. Well, I believe that I said that I didn't know

exactly the point in the river which she was.

O. Well, fix her in the river anywhere you choose.

A. Well, I would have no way of doing that.

0. And say how she got there.

A. This is a dark night. That is a long ways up

there.
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O. Put her in I lie river amwlicre voii choose.

A. I can't do that. I woulchi't agree to do that.

T woulchi't care to put her in any part of tlie river, he-

cause 1 would have no way of knowing. \ only said

I thought approximately.

Q. Well, if she were here at the time you saw her

when the second whistle was hlown, and was going

this way, coming tow^ards you, she would never get

to the point of collision, would she?

A. \\1iy?

O. Because she is coming* towards vou, isn't she,

if going that way? \\)u can't see her lights, can you?

A. I don't understand.

O. Tf she started from the point where you i)lace

her at the time the second signal was given, to the

])oint which you ha\'e marked here as the point of

collision, if going to that point in a straight line, you

cotdd never see her red light from where you were,

could }'i)U?

A. Why?
O. Because the angle w^ould shut it off, w^ouldn't

it?

A. I think not.

O. ^'ou mean to say that you can see the red

light of a vessel coming in that direction, the direc-

tion that is to say, in which the Samson would ha\-c

hccn coming, hetwcen the point where she was, when

}'ou ga\e the second signal, and the point where the

collision took place, from the i)oint where you were

at the time \()U gave the second signal?



The Steamer Samson 1^^

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: Do you understand that,

Captain?

A. No, I don't.

O. Now, listen and see if you understand this.

A. I was listening with all my ears.

O. If the Samson came from the point where you

say she was at the time the second signal was given,

to the point of collision without changing her course

— I understand you to say you were running aport

after that second signal was given—hard aport, is that

right ?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, will vou tell me how you could see the

red light of the Samson when she was running on a

line between the point where you say she was at the

time you gave the second signal and the point where

the collision took place?

A. 1 can't understand you.

O. Vou can't tell how it was?

A. No, I don't understand you.

O. You can't understand that question?

A. I can't understand the way you put it.

(Question read as follows: Now, will you tell me

how you could see the red light of the Samson when

she was running on a line between the point where

you say she was at the time you gave the second sig-

nal and the point where the collision took ]:)lace?)

A. I couldn't see her red light?

Q. I say, will you tell me how you could see her

red light when running on that line?
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A. I don't believe I could tell yoti. It she is head-

ed in a direction towards the barge, why, I could see

both her lights. If she would change her position any

wa\', so tlie red light would be shut out, I couldn't sec

it.

O. In order to get to the point of collision

—

A. (Interrupting) She would have to come to-

wards the barge. She would have to show both lights.

O. In order to get to the point of collision from

the place where she was at the time you gave the sec-

ond signal, she had to run on a line from that point

where you place her at the time of the second signal,

to the point where you say the collision took place,

didn't she?

A. Ves.

'O. Xow, therefore, she wasn't running in the di-

rection in which you were running at the time you

gave the second signal, was she? You were running

at an angle, weren't you?

A. \'es, Init we were running also at a point where

she was intercepting our course.

O. [ say, you were running at an angle with her,

weren't you?

A. Yes, that is what I claim.

O. I want to know how you could see her red

lights when you were running at an angle with her,

and she was running with her starboard side towards

you?

\. I claim she was running directly towards me or

there couldn't have been a collision.
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O. Could she have run directly towards you if she

had run from the point where you placed her when

the second signal was given, to the point of collision?

A. I think so.

O. And you put your helm hard aport too?

A. She was going- all the time, and we, of course,

didn't get much out of her way. We didn't move

out of the track far enough that she didn't hit us, so

we couldn't have been running at an angle away from

her.

O. Now, Captain Sullivan, I understand you to

sav that the Henderson was ac^round down here on

the point of Tenas Tllihee Island. Is that right?

A. Yes.

O. Between, we will say, almost in a line between

the point of Tenas Tllihee Island and Cathlamet?

A. Probably.

O. About how far from the island?

A. I think about 800 feet.

O. About 800 feet ?

A. Yes.

O. And vou said in vour direct examination that

you now locate yourself, at the time when you first

gave the Samson the signal, off some slough. What
slough was that?

A. I don't believe I said anything about a slough.

O. I understood you to sav off some slou^-h or

fish trap.

A. I said fish trap.

O. Isn't the fish trap at the mouth of the slouch?



172 The Steamer Samson

A. I don't know. I didn't say anything about a

sloui^h.

(.). Vou sav vou knew where the slou£i:hs are there.

A. No, I didn't.

COURT: He was talkin^^;- about the sloughs on

the island, and the trap is on this side.

A. Xo, the trap on the island.

O. He says the trap on the island opposite to

where he was at the time when he first saw the Sam-

son.

A. T think there is a slough just immediately

ab()\e that trap, or very close to it, if I recollect; I

think, but I don't pretend to know about those sloughs

there.

O. Where is the Ostervolt house?

A. Where is it?

O. Yes. Locate that on the map. (Witness does

so). And you place yourself now just below, you say,

a fish trap?

A. No, T said about oi)posite a fish trap.

O. Then make that "fish trap" on the chart will

you? (Witness does so.) Now, you i)ut yourself in

opposite the fish trap, but you have put yourself fur-

ther out in the river, haven't you, than the fish trap?

A. No, I haven't intended to. Well, I was then

—

that is what I intended to, but I will i)ut it opi)ositc

that (marking on ma])).

O. Tlicn ])ut this "corrected fish trap."

A. No, I won't do that. I was not correcting it,

bill I merel\' mistook. I thought this was the mark
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which I represented to be the boat.

O. Well, put it down ''second location of fish

trap."

A. No, I won't do that. T thought this was the

boat.

O. I would like to have it marked that way by the

reporter, if the witness will not do it.

yiv. SNOW: I don't see any occasion for that, if

your Honor please.

COURT: You can just mark it ''second location"

if you misunderstood. (Witness marks.)

O. Xow, how long was it, in your judgment, after

the second signal was given, before the collision oc-

curred?

A. Oh, I would think thirty seconds.

'O. Thirty seconds?

A. Yes.

O. So you didn't give a second signal until you

were within thirty seconds of the Samson?

A. No, I said 500 feet. I was just figuring how

long it would take to run 500 feet, at the rate we esti-

mated we were going.

O. Now, on your examination before the in-

spectors, you placed that distance at 200 feet, didn't

you ?

A. I tliink not. T see there is— T see there was

two; I think T was miscjuoted the second time. T

think the first time there was 500 feet. It says 500

feet, and the second time I think I was misquoted.

I see it there in reading it over, but I didn't intend to
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make sucli a statement, if 1 did. Somebody has put

it down wrong".

O. Now, Captain, 1 couldn't find anywhere in this

evidence— I have been looking it over at noon—that

\()u made any statement other than 200 feet.

A. I think if you will look in the evidence at the

preliminary hearing, you will find 500 feet.

O. T don't know anything about that, but on this

examination?

A. I have been miscpioted there.

O. On this examination, it appears you said it

was 200 feet, doesn't it ?

A. 1 see it does, but I don't think 1 made that

statement.

O. ^'ou think that is a mistake?

A. I think a mistake, yes.

'Q. All right; w^e will call the reporter. You are

rei)resented here as saying, in answer to this ques-

tion : "About how far before the accident did you

give this order?" That is the question. "A. Well, I

would think that we w^re at that time 200 feet apart,

it seemed to me, and T should judge—of course the

question of time would be hard to determine, how

long that would take. That might h.ave been a min-

ute's time, it might have been a fraction more or less:

that T couldn't determine. It is a time a i)erson

doesn't thin.k of time. He has so many other things

to think of." That is the way the reporter has ex-

tended your testimony, isn't it?

A. It is in the main correct, but the 200 feet.
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O. And you think it does appear that way from

this evidence?

A. I think the 200 is a mistake.

Q. You think now it was 500 feet?

A. Yes.

Q. And you think you went that 500 feet in how

long a time?

A. Thirty seconds.

Q. And how do you figure you went 500 feet in

thirty seconds, Captain Sulhvan ?

A. Well, the testimony, I think, on the part of the

Samson, is about seven or eight miles an hour, and

ours, we estimated at three miles an hour; that would

be eleven miles an hour. That would be five minutes

to the mile, 500 feet is about one-tenth of a mile, ap-

proximately one-tenth of a mile; five minutes a mile.

That would be one-half a minute, wouldn't it?

A. Now, Captain Sullivan, if the Samson was go-

ing seven miles an hour, and you were going three

miles an hour, in thirtv seconds vou would sro 440

feet.

A. Well, that would be pretty close to 500 feet.

Q. You think it was thirty seconds?

A. I think so.

O. At that time you had realized, had you not,

that a collision was imminent, if not necessary?

A. No, hardly. I didn't hardly think so.

•Q. You did not?

A. No.

O. Even at that time, vou didn't think a collision
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was imminent?

A. No, I thoiio-lu we were in a pretty dang^erous

position, to he sure, l)iit I didn't hardly expect a col-

lision then.

*0. ^'ou saw the lights of the Samson nearly all

the time, did yon?

A. Yes, sir.

O. And she was showing both lights nearly all the

time?

A. Ves.

Q. She showed both lights all the time until just

before the collision?

A. Yes, sir.

C). And then vou saw the red li^ht onlv?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Now, Captain Sullivan, what did you make of

her course? Did you understand it?

A. What?

O. Did you understand her course?

.v. 1 don't understand you.

O. l^id you understand her course? Did you un-

derstand the course the Samson was taking?

A. I guess I am too dense.

O. Well, at the time you gave the whistle the first

time, }'ou gave that whistle for the purpose of sig-

nalling to the Samson that xou w ere going to pass to

port, didn't }'ou?

A. Yes.

O. At the time that you gave the whistle to the

Samson I lie second tiirie, yon gave the Samson also a
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whistle signifying that yon were going to pass to

port?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Now, could you pass to port if the Samson

maintained that same course that she had been main-

taining all the time that you were watching her?

A. No.

O. Then, did you understand the Samson intended

to pass to port then ?

A. Why, I had no reason to think otherwise.

Q. Could the Samson, within that space, going at

the speed she was going, with these barges in front

of her, have passed to port?

A. If she were swinging, they could.

Q. But if not swinging; you say wasn't swinging

at that time.

A. I had no reason to think she wasn't swinging,

because I would suppose they would surely take some

precaution.

O. Couldn't you see whether swinging or not?

A. I couldn't tell, no.

Q. She had a bright light on one of her barges,

didn't she?

A. That was the unfortunate part of it. If had

been a bright light on both barges, I could have told.

O. But you couldn't tell with a bright light on one

of the barges ?

A. I couldn't tell, no.

Q. You couldn't tell with the red and green lights?

A. Not very well.
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Q. You couldn't tell at all?

A. Oh, could tell to some extent, but not very well,

that distance.

O. Now, as a matter of fact, you didn't under-

stand then, what she meant by keeping on that course,

did you?

A. 1 couldn't imagine, no.

'O. And didn't you say to one of the officers on

the barge: "What is the matter with that fellow?

He doesn't seem to know what he is doing?"

A. I don't think so.

O. One of the witnesses, Mr. Martinson, I think it

was, testified.

A. 1 made the remark that I wondered what was

the matter with that fellow^ that he didn't alter his

course.

O. You couldn't understand what he meant by

that, could you?

A. No.

O. At the time you gave the second whistle. Cap-

tain Sullivan, you saw then that the collision was im-

minent, didn't you?

A. No.

O. Didn't you say that at or before you gave the

second whistle, you told the boatswain to stand by his

anchors?

A. In case they were needed.

O. N'ou did tell him that, didn't you?

A. lUit standing 1)\ , is not letting go.

O. 1 know it isn't, but at that time }()U thought it
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possible.

A. I wanted him to be ready in case we needed

them.

•Q. And you thought there was danger, feo he

w^ould have to prepare for it in advance?

A. Not from the Samson at no time. I thought

if we turned, would be danger of going ashore.

O. Only danger of going ashore?

A. That was my trouble.

O. Didn't think any danger of hitting the Sam-

son?

A. Not at that time, no.

O. Now, Captain, in your examination before the

inspectors, I will ask you to state whether or not you

didn't testify as follows: "O. If the Samson was

going this way, you certainly would have to be comx-

ing that way, wouldn't you, to have got hit? A. Yes,

sir. 0. ^ ou understand now what I mean ? A. If

we were continuing" the course? O. Yes. A. You

see, for instance, we were steering, as I said in my
testimony, about for this point of the bluff when w^e

sighted her. D. Yes. A. At that time she would be

steering at an angle to our course. We w^ere not

steering aliead, as it appeared to me; we were show

ing our port light, and her both lights were showing

coming in this direction (indicating). O. Which in-

dicated to you that she was on an angle. A. She w^as

on an angle coming toward us, while we were heading

for the bluff, and I was alarmed that we would not

pass one another before we w^ould reach a point where
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we would l)e endangered by striking the shore at this

bkiff,—very much so. Still I supposed that some ef-

fort would be made, that this situation could be seen

])y the ])artics on the Samson, and some effort would

be made to shear off. I h()])ed that would occur be-

fore we would reach a point where we would be sure

of striking this bluff, but when it was apparent that

could not be done, then the onh' hopes for me to save

this oil barge was to turn her direct to the shore as

fast as she could make the turn, which could only be

done by the helm being hard aport as far as could

be done. That was the only hopes left. And to fur-

ther save the Henderson l)y tr} ing to back, to swing

the stern down as 1 saw that she was going to be

struck. I saw at this point as she passed its bow that

the oil barge would not be injured, but that the Hen-

derson would surely catch the blow. Of course my
first thought was to swing the oil barge clear, and

then I saw later on that the Henderson was bound

to catch this blow. Then I hoped to save that by

backing. Of course, that was all momentary, and

was only just a last resort." Did you so testify?

A. Yes, sir.

(J. Xow, that was at the time when }'ou ordered

the helm hard aport, wasn't it?

A. N'es.

O. And at that time you thought the only way

of escaping the collision with the Samson was to put

\()ur helm hard aport?

A. ^'es, sir.
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O. And then you saw also that there was immi-

nent danger of a colHsion, and at that time you gave

the Henderson orders, as I understood you to testify,

today, to port her hehii and back.

A. What time do you refer to, Mr. Minor?

Q. I understood you to say today, Captain, that at

the time you gave this order to your helmsman on

the barge to put his helm hard aport, at the same time

you turned to the Henderson and told them to put

the helm hard aport and back?

A. I thought you were talking with reference to a

whistle, was the question you asked me. Did you ask

me a question, at the time I blew this whistle, did I

think there was danger to the oil barge from a col-

lision?

O. Yes.

A. Is that the question?

Q. Yes.

A. I said no.

Q. Yes.

A. Then what further? What has this question

got to do with that ?

Q. I read what you testified to before.

A. What has this question to do with that?

'0. I read you what you testified before, and you

said you so testified.

A. Before the whistle blew?

O. No, sir; at the time the whistle blew.

A. This was after the whistle was blown.

Q. I understood you to testify, and your helms-
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man testified, that when you l)lew the second whis-

tle, }'ou put the hehn hard a])ort.

A. After.

O. ^^)u testified today that you did at tlie time

you gave the second whistle. At least, that is my
understanding of it.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: Mr. Minor, I call your at-

tention that that answer covers a long lapse of time

after the collision.

Q. Now, did you testify this morning, as I under-

stood you to, that when you blew the second whistle,

you gave the helmsman order to hard aport?

A. T seem to recall that I said after the second

whistle was blown.

(J. 1 low long after before you gave the order to

hard aport?

A. I don't think I said that.

O. How long was it then ?

A. Oh, I couldn't say. That is a lapse of time

\\hich would be so small.

'O. Tell as nearly as yoti can.

A. Well, I wotildn't undertake to sav how lon^.

O. Why wouldn't you tell, Captain?

A. I said soon after.

O. Well, how soon after?

A. Well. I couldn't, T don't think, form anv esti-

mate of it.

O. W'ds it five seconds after?

A. Possiblx': ])ossil)ly ten.

O. Ma\be ten seconds after?
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A. Possibly ten seconds.

0. Was it as much as 15 seconds after?

A. I don't think so, hardly; probably ten seconds.

O. I understand you to say now there was a light

on one of the rock barges?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Which one?

A. The starboard barge.

O. Was there none on the other one?

A. None that I saw.

Q. You won't say there was none, but there was

none you saw?

A. 1 said none that I saw.

O. Now, I understood vou to sav this morn in p-

that the Samson answered your first whistle?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Did I understand you to say that she did or

did not answer the second whistle?

A. I don't know. I didn't say.

'Q. Why is it you can't say whether she answered

the second signal or not?

A. Oh, I might not have been—I might have been

very much occupied.

O. Why was your mind so occupied at that time?

A. Oh, for various reasons, perhaps. I can't say.

I didn't hear it.

Q. Captain, as a matter of fact, now, wasn't the

most important thing for you to know, at the time

you gave the second whistle, whether the Samson un-

derstood that whistle or not?
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A. Thai would have no bearing on ihe case at all.

Q. Why not?

A. What could I do? What benefit would the

whistle be? What could the whistle do to change her

course?

O. I say, wasn't the thing that you must neces-

saril\- have had most in mind been to know whether

the Samson understood your second whistle, or not ?

A. I don't think it had any bearing on the case

at all.

O. Why did you whistle to pass by?

A. I simply whistled as a warning.

(J. Warning to do what?

A. Expected of course he would answer.

'O. You whistle as a warning to signify what

course you are going to take, don't you?

A. Exactly.

O. You expect an answer, don't you?

A. Exactly.

O. The rules recjuirc an answer?

A. Xot necessarily.

O. Don't the rules recjuire an answer?

A. 1^1 e rules say

—

O. f say, don't the rules require an answer?

A. \'es, they would.

O. If the rules rerpiire you to blow a signal, and

recpiire the other boat to give an answer, isn't it \'our

business to know that the signal is answered, or not ?

A. Xot necessarily.

( ). Whv not?
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A. ]i is not up to me to answer the signal.

O. It is up to you to know whether your signal

is understood or not isn't it?

A. Xot necessarily. It is up to him. I simply

blow the whistle, and it the other fellow doesn't an-

swer them

—

•Q. I call your attention to certain rules, and par-

ticularly to Rule 3 on Page 22 of these Pilot's Rules,

Edition of April 1, 1911, which reads as follows: ''If,

when steam vessels are approaching each other, either

vessel fails to understand the course or intention of

the other, from any cause, the vessel so in doubt shall

immediately signify the same by giving several short

and rapid blasts, not less than four, of the steam whis-

tle." Did you observe that rule?

A. Did I what?

O. Did you observe this rule?

A. In this case?

O. Yes.

A. I don't think that rule had anvthinof to do with

the case.

O. \\>11, did }-ou understand the course of the

Samson?

A. Why, I could see by his lights the course he

was steering.

O. Could you see by his lights he intended to pass

you to port or to starboard?

A. I couldn't tell by the lights what he intended

to do.

O. You couldn't understand by the lights what
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his course meant?

A. T saw l)y the lii^iils what he was doing, hut

coulchi't understand what lie was intending' to do

—

what he could do.

O. This rule savs: "Tf, when steam vessels are

a|)i)roaching each other, either vessel fails to under-

stand the course or intention of the other, from an}'

cause, the vessel so in douht shall immediately sig-

nif\' the same by giving several short and rapid blasts,

not less than four, of the steam whistle." Now, you

didn't understand the intention of the Samson, did

}'OU ?

A. Oh. yes, I did.

O. Wliat was their intention?

A. r suppose he intended to pass to port. Tie an-

swered the whistle to that effect.

O. You supposed he intended to pass to ])ort ?

And yet his course was such to show you he couldn't

|)ass to i)ort ?

A. I didn't say he couldn't pass to port. T say he

didn't i)ass to port, hut I said that I supposed that he

would pass to port.

( ). Well, he didn't show any intention of passing

to port, did he?

A. He didn't show an}' intention he couldn't pass

to port. He didn't disregard my signals. He an-

swered regularly and i)romptly; could pass to port.

O. You say he didn't answer the second signal?

A. I said I didn't know.

(). ^'ou ou":ht to have known, hadn't vou?
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A. Not necessarily.

Q. Whvnot?
A. Why should I?

Q. I am asking you why you shouldn't have

known ?

A. T say not necessarily. That is my answer.

O. What was the ohject of your giving the sec-

ond signal?

A. To further warn him, asking if he understood

the signal to pass to port.

O. Then you asked if he understood your signal?

A. Yes.

O. And he didn't answer?

A. He says he did.

O. But you didn't hear?

A. I didn't hear it.

O. Therefore, you didn't understand whether he

understood was going to pass to port, or not?

A. That wouldn't make any difference.

O. T say, you didn't understand his course, did

you ?

A. I did understand his course hy the lights.

O. And his lights showed what?

A. That he was steering in our direction.

O. He was steering to what?

A. Towards us.

O. And didn't intend to pass to port?

A. I didn't know whether he intended or not.

Q. The lights didn't show he intended to do it.

A. I supposed he would. T had no right to as-
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sumc anything' else.

(J. The Hghts didn't say that, (Hd they?

A. I say the Hghts dichi't show what he intended

to do. I couldn't tell what he intended to do. That

is the (juestion you put.

O. That is what I want to know. This rule re-

(juires if you don't know his intention,— it don't say

course only—hut it you don't understand his course

or intention.

A. But I did understand his intention.

'Q, When?
A. He answered my one whistle.

O. When did you understand it?

A. The first whistle that was hlown.

O. Did you understand it at the time you gave

the second whistle?

A. I supposed he would turn to port.

O. Did vou understand it?

A. L'nderstand what?

O. His intention ?

A. I had no reason to suppose he didn't intend

passing to port.

Q. Why did you give the second whistle?

A. Simply as a warning he should make some ef-

fort to get out of the way, if he wasn't making all the

effort he could.

O. Ca])tain Sullivan, you have run tlie Samson,

haxen't xou ?

A. I have.

'O. ^'ou have run on her towing harges?
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A. Not that kind of barges.

O. You pass her frequently towing those barges?

A. Very often, yes.

O. I would like to have you tell the Court how the

Samson was going to steer away from you within

thirty seconds after you gave your second whistle, and

pass you to port. Was it possible, now, for the Sam-

son to do that?

A. I think so.

O. You think so?

A. Supposing that she was swinging.

Q. Supposing that she wasn't swinging.

A. I had no reason to sup])ose she wasn't swing-

ing. Ilow^ did I know she wasn't swinging?

Q. Didn't you say the lights didn't show a change

of course?

A. Suppose just on the point of swinging.

Q. The lights didn't show?

A. I would have no reason to know whether

showed plain or just on the point of the green light

closing out.

'Q. The lights didn't show anything, did they?

A. Xot at that time.

Q. So you couldn't tell whether swinging or not?

A. Well, 1 couldn't tell, but I had no right to as-

sume that he wasn't swinging.

Q. Then you didn't understand his course, did

you?

A. I understood his course; that he was showine

both his lights.
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Q. Well, you didn't understand what course he

was running on ?

A. Well, I could understand that much of it.

O. Captain Sullivan, I understand you were going

about three miles an hour?

A. That is what we estimate.

O. What was the current at that time in the river?

A. T don't know—have no way of telling.

O. Have you no idea what it w^as?

A. No. Couldn't say.

'O. When vou are G:oimj three miles an hour, in

what s])ace does it take you to make a landing with

Oil Barge 93?

A. I never tried it.

O. \o\x do land her, do you?

A. Yes, hut not under those circumstances.

O. How Ions: a time—how far or how Ions: a dis-

tance from the landing is it, before you stop your

way? Your towboat.

A. That would dc])en(l on the speed she was go-

ing.

O. Suppose she was going three miles an hour?

A. That would depend on the conditions under

which she was landed.

O. Take an}' conditions you choose.

A. I will say, take tonight. In the first place, I

would sto]) a great deal further off than would he

necessarw because I would ha\c to find out what she

was going to do; then ])erhai)s I would liave to go

ahead afterwards, and under anv circumstance, I
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would probably stop her further off than necessary

because I couldn't tell exactly what she would do.

Would take plenty of time for it.

O. How much time do you take, anyway, for stop-

?3 •
pmg

A. I wouldn't undertake to say how much time.

Never timed it—couldn't tell.

Q. How much space do you take in order to stop?

A. If the water was still, probably would take

400 or 500 feet, or twice 500 feet.

Q. What is that?

A. Probably would slow down and stop twice 500

feet away.

O. If the water was still, stop a thousand feet

away ?

A. Very likely.

O. If the water wasn't still, how far would you

stop?

A. I don't know; would depend on how swift it

was.

Q. You think, after you stop the engines of your

towboat in still water, the oil barge 93, if going about

three miles an hour, would drift 1,000 feet?

A. I don't think that.

Q. Then why do you stop a thousand feet off?

A. Well, to be sure—that w^ould have nothing to

do with what I might think she would do or what

she would do.

Q. How far do you think she would drift?

A. I couldn't say ; wouldn't undertake to say with-
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out cxjierinicnting.

O. Mow far do you sa}' yon were standin^^ from

the l)ow of the oil bari^e?

A. About 25 feet.

(J. I didn't hear.

A. About 25 feet.

'O. If you were stancUng 25 feet from tlie oil

baro'c bow, do you steer by her stern or l)y the

bow ?

A. By both; principally by the bow.

O. Principally by what? I didn't hear?

A. By both stern and bow.

O. Princi])ally by—you said ]:)rinci]xally l:)y some-

thing.

A. T said both stern and bow. I would use both

the bow and the stern.

O. Xow% if vou w^ere standinsf 25 feet from the

bow, could you tell whether she was paying off or

not?

A Sufficiently to steer, yes. Sufficiently for all

purposes necessary to steer.

O. ^'ou could ?

A. Yes, sir.

O. What do you mean by sufficiently for all pur-

poses?

A. Well, so that I could direct her course, and

keep her in the river.

'O. But this nii'ht, ;is T understand, vou reallv wert^

Steering by the stern, weren't you?

A. Well, because the range was astern. I^hat wa'A
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the principle.

O. I say you really were steering by the stern,

weren't you?

A. Part of the time—not altogether.

O. ]3o you know where these rock barges were

anchored the next morning?

A. Not exactly.

O. Do you know api)roximately where they were

anchored?

A. Yes, they seemed to be anchored up on the

range, down—oh, in the neighborhood of that fish

trap.

Q. On the range?

A. Yes, appeared to be on the range. One of

them, I think, was a little below the others.

Q. Don't you know, as a matter of fact, that they

WTre anchored within 200 feet of the Puget Island

shore ?

A. No, I don't know that. I don't think that is a

fact. I don't think it is a fact. I think it was said,

but I don't think it is a fact.

O. You don't think that is a fact?

A. No, I think they were nearer the range. I

think they were.

O. During all the time that you saw the Samson,

did you notice any change in her course?

A. Oh, I wouldn't undertake to say. Possibly I

did, possibly I didn't. I don't remember that. I

didn't pay any particular attention.

O. When you were examined before

—
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A. I rcmeml)cr that T saw her lights all the time.

O. When \c)U were examined before, did you say,

in answer to the question: "Was there any change

in her course?" "I could not see that there was."

A. I couldn't say T— I don't remember that there

was or wasn't.

O. Did you so testify ?

A. 1 o'uess 1 did.

(_). That was true at the time you testified, was it?

A. It must have been, yes.

O. Now, I will ask you, Captain Sullivan, whether

on the examination before the inspectors, you didn't

testify "The second whistle wasn't necessary but it

was only served as a warning. It was my nervous

condition of fear that we were going to get together,

and to give him further warning, that I was afraid

we were coming together." Didn't you so testify?

A. I guess I did.

O. Is it true now, tlien ?

A. \'erv likelv.

Q. Now, as a matter of fact, it is true, isn't it?

A. Yes.

O. Now, I will ask you, Captain SulHvan. whether,

on your examination before, you didn't testify as fol-

lows: **0. During all that time you saw that the

Samson was continuing on the same course. A. She

seemed to l)e ; yet, she could have changed her course

and still ^oi awav. ( ). Could she have chano^ed her

course after vou crave the second whistle, and ha\'e

"'otten a\\a\'? A. I don't think so." Didn't vou so
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testify?

A. I don't remember just what led up to the ques-

tion, but I think now that I possibly said, in the light

of what happened, that I didn't think she could have

done so. Isn't that the way?

O. Further in the same connection, in answer to

the question "You don't think so," didn't you say, ''I

don't believe that she could?" Didn't you so testify?

A. I g'uess so, if it is there.

'O. Was that true at the time vou o-ave that tes-

timony?

A. Yes.

O. It is true now, too?

A. Yes.

:\Ir. ERSKIXE WOOD : Mr. Minor, will you read

the rest of the page, or shall I?

Mr. MINOR: You can afterwards, I guess. I hav-

en't looked at it to see. I will see. I will read the rest of

it. ''"0. So, when you gave the second whistle, you then

were satisfied she could not get away? A. Well pro-

viding she wasn't already under preparation. If she

had been making arrangements to change her course,

and w?s sw^inging, she might have avoided it. If at

the time I l)]ew this whistle, the last whistle, if she had

been swinging, or making some arrangement, it

seemed to me that she could have avoided the col-

lision. I would like to say in regard to that, from the

fact there was no light on that barge it left me in a

position where I could not accurately tell where that

corner of the barge was, or how much she was swing-
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\uQ-. That would not make any difference so far as

lie was concerned, but it left that impression on my
mind, that I didn't know where that barge was, and

possibly that she was swinging, and i)ossibly the

screens of those lights might not exactly indicate but

what she was heading a little away, or swinging suf-

ficiently that we could have got clear." You did so

testify?

A. Well, 1 think the rest of that story there would

entirely alter the point that you were trying to make.

Q. I say, did you so testify, Captain ? Did you so

testify?

A. Why, I think so; if it is in that book.

O. Then you didn't understand what her course

was, did you?

A. The point you are trying to make

—

Q. Pardon me for interrupting you. I am not tr}--

ing to make any point, but trying to get the truth.

A. What is the question again?

O. What T want to know^ is did you understand

her course at that time?

A. I did.

O. V'es you say here in the answer that you didn't

understand what that barge meant, didn't }-()U? What

the li^ht on the bar^^e meant?

A. T don't get your meaning?

O. In this answer you said that would not make

any difference as far as he was concerned but "it left

that impression on my mind that I didn't know just

where that barge was, and possibly that she was
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swinging, and possibly the screens of those Hghts

might not exactly indicate but what she was heading

a little away, or swinging sufficiently that we could

have got clear." Now, you didn't understand where

the barge was, did you?

A. The barge had nothing to do with her lights.

We were talking about her lights were we not?

Q. I say you didn't understand where the barges

were.

A. But T understood where her lights w^re.

O. That barge light bothered you, didn't it?

x\. I didn't say bothered me. I said T knew where

her side lights were which are the things to go by.

Q. As a matter of fact when you testified before,

you were under the impression that the rules re-

quired her to carry a light on each barge, the star-

board and port barge?

A. Yes.

O. And vou found vou were wron«-?

A. Yes.

O. And therefore the fact that she only had one

light on these barges bothered you, didn't it?

A. Well, if you want to put it that way, yes.

O. Captain, at the time you were examined be-

fore, I will ask you whether or not you didn't testify

as follows: "How long after the collision before

your barge came to anchor so that it was safe, and

you could look around? A. Oh, I think it was per-

haps in tlie neighborhood of five minutes. I should

deem it was." Did vou so testifv?
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A. I guess so.

O. Well, was that correct at that time?

A. Possibly.

'O. It is correct now, then, is it?

A. ^>s.

O. Now, I understand you to say that when you

(lid look around, the Henderson had sunk or had not

sunk?

A. Xo, T saw her before she sunk. T saw her while

her lights were still burning.

O. But vou didn't look around until vou efot vour

barge safe?

A. Oh, I suppose T did. There would be nothing

to prevent my looking in her direction.

Q. Then your testimony that you gave before,

you say, 'T should think it was perhaps in the neigh-

borhood of five minutes. I should deem it was." Be-

fore the barge came to an anchor so that it was safe,

and you could look around. So it must have been

five minutes before you looked around, wasn't it?

A. I don't quite understand why I should want to

look in an}' particular direction. That is, T don't un-

derstand the (juestion or don't understand the an-

swer—why I gave such an answer.

O. It is there. Captain. That is where I read.

A. I don't see— I don't understand just exactlv.

(J. I now understand you to say that some fisher-

men took the men off the Henderson?

A. I don't know that.

"O. Didn't vou so testifv this morning?
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A. 1 heard that

0. Then you don't know that?

A. No, I think I said that the crew of the small

boat sent away reported that the fishermen took the

men off.

O. Now, Captain, on your examination before the

inspectors, did you not testify as follows: "Had the

Henderson sunk at the time vou had time to look

around? A. No; no. When T saw her, when I first

noticed her, her electric li^^hts were burning. So of

course the electric light plant is located on the deck

in the engine room, and tliat could not have been

under water. Q. How long after you looked around

before she sank? A. Oh, I should judge it was two

or three minutes—five minutes?" Did you so tes-

tify?

A. T guess so.

O. Now% Captain, I will ask you whether or not

you didn't testify also in that examination as fol-

lows: "O. I also understood you to say at that time

when you were 200 feet from this accident, you saw

a collision was imminent, indeed, in your judgment,

inevitable. A. No, I didn't say that ; T said I thought.

O. Well, you thought it was inevitable. A. That

there was danger of a collision at that point yet when

T blew that whistle, T still was not positive. There

was more apprehension on my part that I was getting

too near to this shore, with this barge inshore, an un-

wieldy barge like that, than there was of a collision,

because T thought that this man had the proper re-
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gard for the conditions, and would use sufficient in-

telli^"ence, that he was swinging" his harc^e and still

that we would not strike, hut if T went much further

in that direction to avoid a collision, I was in danger

of getting- the harge on the heach, consecjuently it

was ap])rehension on nn' ])art and a warning to him

to make greater effort to keep off with a port helm

to prevent the i)ossihility of my getting ashore, than

it was that we were going to collide. That is the

idea. O. At that time, then, when you gave the second

whistle, you were more afraid of being driven on the

Oregon shore than you were of a collision with the

Samson or her tow? A. That is the exact situation.

O. \'et, at that time, I understand you ordered the

helm hard a])ort? A. \es. It would have been a

greater— it would have been a less damage to have

driven that barge ashore than it would to be struck

b\- that tremendous mass of rock, which of course

would sink. If she had run on the shore, of course, at

some point there—it turned out my judgment was

right—which was on this sandy beach, and if she

struck that, it would have been no damage beyond

grounding and she might have been pulled off." Now,

}'ou so testified on your examination before, did you?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Now, as a matter of fact, then, at that time

you did fear a collision with the Samson, did yoti?

A. I wouldn't think that wotild indicate that

—

that testimony.

(). Then, Ca])tain, \\h\' did you ptit yotn* helm
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hard aport?

A. To avoid any possibility of a collision.

O. Well, if you didn't fear a collision with the

Samson, you wouldn't have put your helm hard aport,

and driven yourself on the beach, would you?

A. It would indicate I had some apprehension of

a collision.

O. Tt would indicate you had such apprehension

of a collision with the Samson that you took a chance

of running your barge ashore rather than take a

chance of having a collision with the Samson, doesn't

it?

A. Yes.

O. And, so that, at that time, when you put your

helm hard aport, and gave that second whistle, you

thought a collision so imminent that you thought it

safer to run your barge ashore or take the risk of run-

ning your barge ashore than to take the risk of a col-

lision with the Samson, didn't you?

A. I thought so.

'O. Then, Captain Sullivan, that being the case,

why didn't you observe the rule which T read you and

sound the four whistles?

A. What benefit would that have been?

O. The rules reciuire it, don't thev?

A. Xo.

O. Don't the rules sav that? 'Tf when steam ves-

sels are approaching each other, either vessel fails to

understand the course or intention of the other, from

any cause, the vessel so in doubt shall immediatelv
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signify the same h}' giving several short and rapid

blasts, not less than four of the steam whistle.'* Now,

you were so much afraid of a collision with the Sam-

son at that time that you were willing to take a chance

of running ashore, were you not?

A. Well, I don't know why there is any use in an-

swering your question to explain my position

—

O. Well, explain it.

A. (Continuing) But the situation is, that thirty

seconds, as the time we agreed on from the time this

whistle was blown until this thing" was over, and then

during that period of time this blowing, and this

blowing of the danger signal and answering, and

seeing if he really did intend to change his course

would seem to me to be a foolish waste of time, if I

thought there was danger of a. c(^llision. The most

reasonable thing would be to put in that time trying

to avoid a collision instead of fooling away time to

blow danger whistles because the point was too close.

The danger signal might have been reasonable when

the first whistle was blown if he had shown some pe-

culiarit}' in his movements, but not at that time. Ala}'

it please the Court, I would like to make a further ex-

planation on that point. I think that, in the Rules

and Regulations, there is a little (juotation in italics,

that in all cases

—

( ). ;\ little louder, so we can all hear.

A. In all cases where danger is imminent, all rules

should be disregarded, or practically to that effect

wliere tlie safetv of the \'essel is concerned: that we
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shall disregard all rules to do anything necessary to

preserve the vessel, or to .avoid a collision. I think

the rules shou' that, something to that effect.

O. How fast were you going when you passed

the Kern, Mr. Sullivan?

A. Why, I would think about the speed we had

been traveling.

•Q. About three miles an hour?

A. That is the speed estimate.

Q. Now% how far did you say you thought you

had passed the Kern before you sighted the Samson?

A. I think a quarter of a mile.

O. A quarter of a mile. How far would you run

in a quarter of a mile?

A. How far would we run ?

Q. Yes.

A. A quarter of a mile.

O. What?

A. In a quarter of a mile, how far would we run?

0. How long would it take you to run a quarter

of a mile? I thought you said a quarter of a minute.

A. Three miles an hour, is twent}^ minutes to the

mile. A quarter of a mile would be five minutes.

Q. Five minutes. Captain, do you know anything

about Prairie Channel?

A. No, sir.

O. Never been down Prairie Channel?

A. Yes.

Q. Don't know anything about it?

A. No; since I have been down there it has
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chang'ed so.

(J. Ts there any cnrrenl settinp^ down Prairie

Channel ?

A. Some.

O. Wouldn't it—if the collision took place at the

point you say it did, which was right at the head of

Prairie Channel, wasn't it?

A. Xot exactly, no.

O. Below the point, wasn't it?

A. A little bit.

O. That point is the dividing line between the

head of Prairie Channel—or is where Prairie Channel

puts off from the main channel?

A. X^o, not necessarily. The Prairie Channel

would be further down the current going- into Prairie

Channel would be further down.

O. That point is where the south shore of Prairie

Channel ])uts off?

A. Xo, that is as far as that channel—that chan-

nel is reall}' nearer the center of the Columbia River

at that ])oint: you remember the range hits over close

to there.

'O. If this collision had taken place at the point

where }'ou said it took ])lace, and you had ported your

helm hard aport, wouldn't your boat have run down

IVairie Channel—vour barge?

A. Xo.

Q. ^^'hy not?

\. 1 low could it ?

O. W^ell, I didn't ask vou how could it. I asked
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von whv not.

A. Yonr qnestion is— T don't see why it conld.

Q. There is a channel there, isn't there?

A. We wasn't in that channel. We was in the

channel of the Columbia River.

O. If you put your helm hard aport, wouldn't that

tend to drive your l)arge in the direction of Prairie

Channel ?

A. No.

0. It would not?

A. No.

O. Why?
A. I don't see h(nv it could.

'O. Now, Captain, if the FIcnderson had been

struck, as you said she was struck l)y the Samson, tlie

barge of the Samson, the blow would tend to drive

the Henderson to the left, wouldn't it?

A. No, not necessarily.

Q. That seems to be a stereotyped answ^er, ''not

necessarily," but I would like to know how it would

tend to drive the Henderson.

A. To drive her against the oil barge, and the oil

barge would stop the motion in that direction; 100

feet of her length was alongside the oil barge, and if

she struck it, she would be driven against her barge;

that wouldn't drive very far to the left.

^Ir. C. E. S. WOOD: I think he should say to

whose left.

]\Ir. ]\IINOR: All right ; thanks for the suofgrestion.

O. Now, if the oil barge struck the Henderson,
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as T understand you, the stone barge struck tlie Hen-

derson, as 1 understand you, aljout the forward part

of tlie liouse— tliat is ri^q-lit, isn't it?

A. ^'es.

O. How far w<is tliat from the stem of the Hen-

derson ?

A. Well, T haven't accurate measurements. T be-

lieve that the house is 30 feet from the stem, and I

would think ]:)erhaps this is 15 feet or 20 feet, or some

such a matter. T haven't measured it.

O. You mean that the

—

A. (Interrupting^) That is the break. That shows

one break beyond tlie house. The hull of the boat

shows that it must have been about 15 or 20 feet from

the stem of the Henderson.

O. T(^ where the break commences?

A. To the break, yes. _

O. Now, I understand the force of this blow, as

you claim, broke the Henderson entirely loose from

the oil barge?

A. Yes, sir.

'O. And T understand that you claim that the rock

barges and the Henderson went on down beyond the

oil barge down the river, didn't they?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Now, they went down there with the force

of the current and of the rock barges, and the Samson

])ushing the llenderson toward the Prairie Channel,

didn't they?

A. No, she wasn't pointed towards Prairie Chan-
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nel at all.

Q. Wasn't pointed towards prairie Channel at all?

Look at the chart, please. I don't want to deceive

you. Now, note first the point where you say the

Samson was at the time the second whistle was blown,

and the point where you say the collision took place.

A. Yes.

O. Now, wasn't the Samson at that time headed

in the direction of Prairie Channel—at the time the

collision took place?

A. No, she was headed down more towards this

island.

O. Here. This is Prairie Channel (indicating on

Exhibit 1). Plere there are seven feet of water. The

deepest water across here, which indicates not a great

amount of that flow goes down there; that is the

actual depth of water at the present time in this wa-

ter across here?

Mr. C E. S. WOOD: This line across here "XY.'^

A. But if this vessel would go in a straight line

from here, she would have went up that way, but I

don't see anything that would indicate that she would

be pushed down Prairie Channel.

O. How was the Samson pointing at the time the

collision took place?

A. Something that way (indicating).

Q. Isn't that pointing towards Prairie Channel?

A. Somewhat.

'Q. That is now pointing very decidedly towards

Prairie Channel?
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A. Possibly.

O. Wouldn't the blow which the Samson struck

the Henderson tend to drive her to Prairie Channel?

A. Not much.

O. I didn't say much. Tt would?

A. A little, very little.

O. Now, if the Henderson got loose, wouldn't she

tend to drift that wav?

A. No, sir.

O. Why not?

A. Because the current doesn't run that way.

(X ^'ou say it did not?

A. T sav it does not.

Q. And where did you get the idea there was sev-

en feet of water in Prairie Channel?

A. By sounding.

Q. When did you sound?

A. About three days ago.

O. This chart indicates there is over ten feet,

doesn't it ?

A. Yes.

O. So you think the chart is wrong?

A. They filled since that.

O. Then how much water was in it in July, 1911 ?

A. Oh, it would depend on the stage of the tide.

O. The tide was high then, wasn't it?

A. A little, half tide.

(). One half tide, and the tide that night was nine

feet, [ tnulerstand.

A. ^'es, a little rise in the river.
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Q. So, that was 4;^ feet of tide, wasn't it?

A. Yes.

Q. So there must have been on this bar at that

time not less than 14 feet of water, wasn't there?

A. Possibly.

O. Don't you think that would have a tendency

to force the Henderson and the rock barges drifting

in that direction—drift her down Prairie Channel?

A. No.

O. You do not?

A. No.

Q. Captain SulHvan, did you state what time you

passed the Kern ?

A. No, sir, I did not.

Q. Can you tell me how long you passed the Kern

before the collision occurred.

A. I didn't estimate the time.

Q. How far was it from where you passed the

Kern to the point of the collision?

A. Well, I would have to measure that on the

chart. I don't know.

O. Measure it and see.

A. According to the way I get it here, 3800 feet,

according to these measurements, according to the

mark of the Kern on the chart to the point of collision

shown on the chart and that scale, it would be 3800f

feet.

'O. How long would it take you to go that dis-

tance.

A. Oh, in the neighborhood of 12 minutes, using
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that three miles an hour.

Q. Now, I understood you to say the Hghts were

Inirning" on the oil har^re and the Henderson?

A. Yes, sir.

O. What lights did you have?

A. I had a red light on the steamer Henderson, a

green light on the barge, two lights, vertical lights,

over the pilot house of the Henderson.

O. But no otlier lights?

A. There might have been a light on the stem of

the Henderson ; we are required to carry a light when

running, a running light, but whether they had one

at that time or not, 1 wouldn't be positive. I don't

think they did.

O. How were those lights fixed on these steam-

ers?

A. How do you mean?

Q. The rules require these lights to be put in a

certain position ?

A. Yes, the rules require that.

O. And in what way must they be ])ut?

A. Well, usually put on the outside of some struc-

ture. On the Henderson an ordinary stern wheel

boat, on the outside of the hurricane deck.

O. How much screen?

A. They are three feet. The screen is three feet

long, and a sufficient height.

'O. That means the screen must be three feet?

A. I believe that is the distance.

O. In front of the li^'ht, isn't it?
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A. Yes.

Q. And how near is the Hght set to tlie upright

part which constitutes the screen?

A. Usually a little hook there, a little flat piece of

iron, and a little slot in the side of the lamp, so they

can't be more than half an inch away.

O. How were they on the Henderson ?

A. I don't know.

Q. How w^ere they on the oil barge?

A. I don't know that.

Q. How were they on the Samson?

A. I have no idea.

Q. You have run on the Samson?

A. Yes, but they may have been changed since I

w^as there. There was a bridge put on since I was

there. I think at the time I was there— I don't re-

member just how they were. I know

—

COURT (Interrupting): You refer to the glove

that covers the light, and not the light itself?

A. The cover to the light itself, the lamp in which

it is contained.

Mr. MINOR: That is all.

Redirect Examination.

Questions by ]\Ir. C. E. S. WOOD:
Captain Sullivan, there were two examinations be-

fore this, into these matters, by the inspectors, were

there not ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And the first one was an ex parte examination

in which they just investigated the case for their own
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determination?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And in that yon testified, did yon not?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Well, now, in reference to the question asked

von ])\' Mr. ]\Iinor, as to whether or not a'ou had not

said different from 200 feet apart, you said that you

thong"ht—200 feet apart when the second whistle was

hlown. ^'ou said }'on thought you had said 500 feet?

A. Yes, sir.

O. And that this 200 was a mistake? Now, in that

connection I call }'our attention to your testimony in

the orii^-inal investigation before the inspectors, and

will ask you if you did not testify substantially as fol-

lows : "As we got nearer, perhaps 400 or 500 feet

away, I blew^ another blast of the whistle to warn him

to keep off, or make some other arrangements about

getting out of the way; and still there was no change,

and I ordered the helm hard aport and headed the

barge for the shore." Is that what you had in mind

in reference to your having said they were 500 feet

apart when }'()U blew the second whistle?

A. 1 think so,

(J. Then there was some testimony; ?^[r. ^lin(^r

asked }()n whether or not \'()ti had given an order to

the man to let go the cinchor, or to get ready to let

go the anchor, and on the same page of the examina-

tion by the inspectors for their own benefit, there is

this record: "I lit the Henderson (^n the port side

about the corner of the house, as near as I could tell.
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which of course broke the Hnes of the Henderson,

broke her loose from the barg-e. I immediately or-

dered the anchors let go, but prior to this time I had

notified the man on watch to stand by the anchors,

as we would probably have to anchor, and he let go

instantly." Is that the testimony you referred to

there?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Then there w^as a second examination of which

a record was made, at the time of the trial of Captain

Jordan before the inspectors, was there not?

A. Yes, sir.

'O. And that is the testimony which Mr. Minor has

been examining you on. Captain, you were cross ex-

amined as to the relation of the tug" Samson with her

barges, and the oil barge 93 and the Henderson as out-

lined and placed by you on the chart. I will ask you

whether or not you intended and so testified here, that

your locations on the chart were exact?

A. No, sir, they are only approximate and rough-

ly given, merely to illustrate the possible positions.

Q. What is the scale of that chart?

A. I think it is about a thousand feet to the inch.

I believe that is what it is. T think it states there.

O. Then when you drew the course of the Hen-

derson and the oil barge, covering a couple of inches

of this chart, did you intend that course to accurately

represent all the maneuvers of the barge and the

Henderson?

A. No.
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O. Now, I will ask you in conij^arison, relatively,

as to aecuraew how do you yourself intend this chart

to he taken, relative to your testimony of the events

as they happened? For example, when you locate

the harg-e Samson,—the towhoats Samson with her

])arq;es on the chart, and you testify that that ni^c^ht

you saw tlie red and «reen lij^ht and they didn't suh-

sequently alter as far as you could see, which do you

yourself intend to he taken as the UK^re accurate?

Your location on the chart, or }'our memory of the

events that ni£]^ht ?

A. Well, I don't quite catch your meanino-.

O. 1 mean, as I understand it, Mr. Minor ex;im-

ined you as to the location of the Samson on that chart

and you said you licid made a mistake, and altered the

position. Xow, then, you also testified, of }'our own

inde])endent memory, that the Samson's red and

o^reen liji^-hts appeared in view and slie didn't suhse-

(luently alter, as far as you could see. Xow, which

of these two statements is the more accurate, the fact

that the lights appeared in view and didn't alter, or

the location that you ])Ut on the chart?

A. Well, m}' memory of how the lights ai)peared

would he the natural one to take. Of course, the

location on tlie chart, unless it was taken accurately

with instrunients or something to give those things

—

in an off-h:in(l wa}', a m:in not accustomed to making-

charts, making drawings, usualK' makes rather a fool-

ish looking thing of it.

O. In other words, then, the chart is merelv illus-
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trative of your testimony?

A. That is the idea I hope I convey, I intended to

convey. Mr. Minor used it otherw^ise.

Q. Well, we are all tr3^ing to aid the Court here

in this matter. I want vou to come down here, and

with the aid of the Court and ourselves, take this trac-

ing- paper. (Mr. Wood draws outline of river on

blank tracing paper). Now, supposing the point A
to be the lower point of Puget Island, and the point

B the upper point of Tenas Illihee Island, and the

point C the Hunting Island Range Lights, and the

line CD the range and the point E the high bluff or

point just below Bugby's Hole ; using that merely as

a rough diagram, I wish you would take a pencil, and

illustrate as nearly as you can, the actual maneuver-

ings of the Henderson and the oil barge. Of course,

you can't do it to scale. It would be too small. You
can exaggerate the maneuvers, but try to give the

actual maneuvers made, starting from the time you

sighted the Samson until the collision took place, in

reference to the range and in reference to these points.

A. I believe that would be a difficult matter to do.

'0. Well, see if you can't make some kind of a

stagger at it, to show just what swings she made, etc.

Let me ask you a question. I don't know that you

know anything about this.

A. I am a poor hand at drawing.

Q. Do you remember trying to avoid some fish-

ermen that night just before?

A. I remember that we passed some fishermen.
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O. Do }()U rciiicnil)cr making; a swini^^ for them?

A. Well, 1 can't say that T do. It is said T did,"

bnt 1 don't remember whether 1 did or not. 1 remem-

ber the ])assino^ some fishermen. I remember there

was a fish hoixX between the Kern and the oil barge.

O. Now, I was going to say—what I am more

particularly after is the latter part of your course

where you were making an effort to go into shore, and

avoid the Samson? 1 would like to have a line drawn

illustrating that. \o\\ can exaggerate that. \o\\

needn't pay any attention to that scale. Just draw

that course roughly.

A. The line showing turns?

O. T would draw the course from the time you

saw her; take from the time you saw^ her, and take

where you ended up with the collision, and just draw-

in a roucfh general wav the line vou make. ^Mr. Snow

calls my attention to the fact that if you can, in that

distance—and thcit is what T am after—show }'our

turn from the course, then your straightening U]) and

getting on the course again, or your course, whatever

it is, then your turns to avoid the collision, etc. Show

as nearly as you can just the movements of the oil

barge that night, and with reference to the range,

particularly. Now, mind you, because I have put this

o\er the old chart, F don't want any reference to the

points on the old chart at all. I don't care anything

about the old chart. I am using this just as a dia-

gram to illustrate your maneuvers. y\s I say, this

being chart size, \-our line will be exaggerated, of



The Steamer Samson 217

course. A. (Witness drawing.) Approximately.

O. Now, then, from F to G, would represent what

—that line out there?

A. Swinging to starboard under port helm.

Q. And at what time?

A. After seeing—making out it was the Samson

that was coming with her barges.

•Q. And what time in relation to the first blast of

the whistle blown by you?

A. Well, prior to the blast. The blast was blown

after the turn was made, straightening up. That is

about half the distance there, somewhere like that.

O. So vou mean here vou commenced to cfo over?

A. Before whistling.

Q. And then the line GH represents what?

A. Well, the possible turning point, or near the

point of collision. That of course, wouldn't be quite

—

Mr. SNOW (Interrupting): This line GH, what

does that represent?

A. That means the general course before the turn.

0. That is the one you kept?

A. Yes.

O. And then from H to E, that curve, what does

that represent ?

A. Tliat means the ])arge swinging towards the

shore.

O. Trying to get out of the way of the Samson ?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, on that line— I don't want you to get

frightened now al)out accuracy; I don't mean, I don't
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ex])ect you to l)c accurate—iiulicate about when the

first whistle was l)lown and the second whistle.

A. (Drawino) Perhaps this mii^ht be a little

nearer.

Mr. SXOW: Mark that (M.

O. The first whistle at 1 and the second whistle

at 2. Is that rip^ht?

A. Approximately.

O. What is the width of the channel? \\diat

width of channel do you tliink \()U left to the Samson

on your |)ort when }(:>u were on this course, which we

will call GH, going up the river, available to him be-

tween your course and Puget Island?

A. \\'hy, 1 think about 1400 feet.

O. Have you stated what the weather was, wheth-

er there was any fog or rain ?

A. I think T did, but the weather was—the night

was dark and the sky was overcast, but the air was

clear. The lights showed.

O. The night was dark. He says, the night was

dark, the air was clear, no rain or fog.

Mr. SXOW: And the sky was overcast.

(J. Xow, in (li\iding the river between you two,

you going u]) and the Samson going down, what ])ro-

l)ortion of the channel do yott think you left to the

Samson ?

A. \\'hy. I thiiik about

—

let's see. 1 think that

was about 2500 feet right at that ])oint. T am calcu-

lating—w h}-, I think it is safe to say we left two- thirds

of the ri\-er, twu-lhirds of the distance.
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O. Now, on this same chart and in the same way,

witliont reference to particular point, but the way you

would estimate it in the water as 3^ou saw it that

night, try and outline the course of the Samson as you

made it out and observed it bv her lis^hts that niHit.

(Witness draws on chart). We will call that line then

I J, shall we? Is that rig'ht, Captain?

A. Yes.

O. Now, locate on that in the same approximate

way where you would judge, across the water in the

darkness of the night, the Samson was when 3^ou blew^

the first wdiistle? You might locate it first where she

was when you sighted her.

A. Well, she was clear of this ])oint, T think about

there.

0. K—at the point K?

A. Yes.

O. And then where was she when you blew the

first whistle?

A. (Indicating) Possibly there.

Q. At the cross L?

A. Yes.

(). And wliere when you blew the second whistle?

A. f Indicating) there.

O. Right in the letter I. \o\\ said, in answer to

one of Mr. Minor's interrogatories, that it was about

five minutes, as I understood, before your barge

—

after the collision before your barge was anchored,

and you got a chance to look around. In the first

place, I want to ask you about these measurements
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of minutes or time. What do you base your estimate

on? What is your standard? How can you tell

whether (Mie minute or not?

A. A])solutel\' no basis at all for such matters.

Absolutely none.

O. It is a £]^uess, is it?

A. r>ut Mr. Minor seems so persistent in having"

me name some sort of time that some time has to be

named, or nothing will satisfy him, but as T say

—

Q. (Intermitting) When you say four or five

minutes until you got a chance to look around, does

that mean to apply to the first part of the question to

when your barg-e came to anchor, or when you got

time to l(K)k about you?

A. I can't recall why I gave such an answer, or

wh}' such a question was asked.

O. Then let me ask you directly now. What time

would you say, not in minutes or seconds, but a long*

or short time, quickly or a little time, say from the

time of the crash until the time the anchors were let

go?

A. \Miy, a very short time, a remarkably short

time. To me who was accustomed to having anchors

let go, I was surprised at the shortness of the time.

O. Then did you intend your answer of four or

five minutes to apply to letting go the anchors?

A. Xo.

O. Or to the time when you were at ease looking

about }'ou ?

A. I ])resun"ie— I don't— T can't recall having an-
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swered that question ; that is the first that I remember

of it. I probably had reference to the time in which

tlie barge would swing*—run out and swing to her

anchors and straighten up and show she was afloat.

O. Perhai)s the best wav would be to read the

testimony, because the construction, I think, is ob-

vious. ''How long after the collision before vour

barge came to anchor so it was safe and you could

look around? A. Oh, I should think it was perhaps

in the neighborhood of five minutes." What I am
anxious to know, is it to be construed as meaning it

was five minutes until you let go the anchor?

A. No, that isn't the idea. I don't see any other

construction to make of it but that the barge had

swung to her anchor, and it had been ascertained

that she was afloat, hadn't struck the bank, and was

afloat, and the anchors were holding, and everything'

was all safe ; that the barge was safe. Then there was

no reason to be any further concerned about her. The

next question—the next thing would be anything else

lliat might need to be done, such as saving the crew,

or anything that might be done. I don't see any oth-

er reason for it.

COURT: How many witnesses are there going

to ])e in this case? I am anxious to get through this

week.

.Mr. C. E. S. \VOOD : We will finish this week, un-

doubtedly, your Honor. It is always difficult to esti-

mate, you know, the length of time the witnesses will

take, but T think we have a])out five more on the col-
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lision.

COURT: The arrangements when T came here

were that the case would take three or four days. I

have set cases and have a num])cr of witnesses sub-

i:)oenaed to attend for next week.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: I think we can safely say it

will be submitted this week.

COURT: If it isn't submitted this week, it will

have to be deferred, or complete the taking- of the tes-

timony before a master.

:^rr. C E. S. WOOD: I think there is no doubt it

will be submitted this week. But before I ^et into an-

other branch of redirect, T would like to have him just

mark what has been called Prairie Channel.

O. Will you please mark on this map Prairie

Channel, that Mr. IMinor examined you about. (Wit-

ness marks on Libellant's Exhibit 1).

O. And about what is the usual depth of that for

the past two or three years?

A. I haven't hcid any opportunity to observe for

the last seven }'ears.

(J. Xot used by dee]) \'essels?

A. Xot at all. Absolutely not at all.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: 1 offer this drawino- in evi-

dence.

Drawins^ used by witness marked "Libellant's Ex-

hibit 2r

COURT: Ca])tain, is there any difference in the

current ])etween tlie point where }'(»u sighted the Sam-

son and the point of the collision, on the different
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sides of this range? Is it swifter water on one side?

A. No, the general trend of the current is down.

COURT: No better water going up on one side

of the range than the other?

A. No, it is not until they get over towards the

shoal, the head of this slough, what they call Prairie

Channel is shallow water. This turning of the bluff

causes this current to go straight down, and a portion

spills down this way. This range is only an imagin-

ary line drawn there, but used for entirely different

purposes than what we have been using it, although

marked off for navigation in these waters, because it

is a dark place in there, and the shadow from that

hill covers the water and this range is always ob-

served by everybody, no matter how big or how small

the vessel.

COURT: Flood tide, is it strong enough to set the

current up?

A. Yes, at low water, very perceptible. 'Quite a

little flow up there. In fact, flows as far as Portland.

COURT: After the collision, what time did the

tide change, and begin

—

A. At that stage of the river, during the freshet

season would be no flood, only low water; at this time

of the year tliere would be no flood tide. It never

would flood. It w^ould only—flood tide would merely

slack it some.

COURT: After the c(~)llision, what time did the

tide change and begin to flood?

A. In Astoria it would change about six hours
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later than 9:40, which was approximately 3:40, would

be low water in Astoria: probably six hours differ-

ence: and there would be about one hour and forty

five minutes, or two hours' difference there at that

point.

Whereu])on proceedin|[^s herein were adjourned un-

til Wednesday, January 13, 1913, at 10 A. M.

Portland, Ore., January 13, 1913, 10 A. M. Wednes-

day.

CAPTAIN EDWARD SULLR'AX resumes the

stand.

Redirect Examination continued.

Questions by Mr. C. E. S. WOOD:

How much water was the oil barge drawing- that

night ?

A. 20K' feet.

O. Do you know what the draft of the Henderson

is?

A. The Henderson? About four feet, T think.

O. Do you know what the draft of the Samson is?

A. I think about 15 feet.

O. And how^ would that draft compare with her

loaded barges ?

A. Her barges, \ understand drew ten feet loaded.

O. llie draft of the Samson would be greater than

of the barges, anyway?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, I think it was conceded without regard

to the method of em])loyment, that the fTenderson
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was under the direction of Captain Sulivan.

Mr. SNOW: I think you better ask that ques-

tion.

'O. Who had charge of the navigation of the com-

])ined vessels, the Henderson and the oil barge, com-

ing up the river that night?

A. I did.

O. The Henderson was onlv furnishinp* the mo-

tive power?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you were employed by whom?
A. Well, I was supposed to be the Standard Oil

Company. They were the one that we got our orders

from.

Mr. SNOW: Whom do you mean by 'Sve?"

A. I mean as pilots—the association of pilots.

Mr. SNOW: The Pilots' Association?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You were in the employ of the Standard Oil

Company for that night, in charge of their oil barge,

weren't you?

A. Yes, sir.

0. I understood you to say that the Kern was, in

your opinion, two miles ahead of the Samson that

night?

A. Yes, sir.

O. And there is some conflict in the testimony on

that. I will ask you to give your reasons for that be-

lief. The two miles is, of course, only an estimate, is

it?
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A. Yes, sir.

O. (iive }'our reasons for lliinkin<^" that?

A. Well, I only judge from the time tliat I ])ass

her until the time that I saw the Samson's lights, and

judge largely as t(^ distance from measurements on

this chart, wdiich are su])])osed to he accurate; from

the time that I saw her, or the ])oint in which I pass

her, nntil 1 saw this other one and judge from the

length of time, it would he ahout two miles.

fX Can you give me an idea, without reference to

the chart hut with reference to the topogra])hy of the

river, at ahout what ])oint in the river you passed the

Kern ?

A. I think it was ahreast of this little har that

shows; has some w^illows on it now, just helow Puget

Island.

Q. The har is a new one?

A. New, formed there recent years.

O. And you ])assed her to starboard?

A. Yes.

O. Then what did }'ou do after passing her in re-

gard to resuming your course?

A. Well, I would like to state a little on that i)oint.

Tt is recognized by all vessels of lighter draft that

anv vessel crossing the ranc:e on a shoal that is dredo'-

ed, by a range, shoidd ha\e the right of way. No
rule, but a generally recognized custom among men

acquainted witli that business. So at the time we pas-

sed them we were right on this shoal wliere dredgecK

and running on this range, and had got on this range
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shallow water, so the Kern could—so that was the con-

dition, and he could also see this was a ship of some

sort, perhaps recognized what ship it was ; knew it

was deep draft, and of his own—he did himself, I

should say, turn off to this side, and show^ed me that

he was g'oing- to pass on that side; there was no ques-

tion about it on either side, as to where we should

pass, which side. It was entirely a matter of his ow^n

choosing, because his boat would be the greater draft.

I suppose 13 or 14 feet; she draws 13 or 14 feet.

Q. She wouldn't be greater than the oil barge?

A. No, he knows that. I think the Kern herself

was deeper than the barge; draws perhaps 13 or 14

feet, and had a uniform depth all the time. And he

knew this was a vessel of deep draft, recognized

that at once, and took this side of his own choosing;

and pulled off before we came near one another some

distance, and took that side, so when we got togeth-

er, there was no conflict at all between us; we passed

with plenty of room.

O. That wasn't exactly the point I was after.

What J want to get at is about where in the river

you passed her, and then what maneuver you exe-

cuted to ])ass her, and whether you had to go out of

}'our range course, cind if you did what you did to

resume your course?

A. Xo, we were running on the range when we

passed her, and before we passed her, continued on

this range after we passed her.

O. And again making a rough estimate, how long
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would yon tliink it was after you passed her, before

you sighted the hi^hts of the Samson?

A. Well, T think T have testified about five min-

utes.

'O. So that you had passed the Kern some consid-

erable time before you made that maneuver you have

described on sii^htini^- the lights of the Sampson in

hauling well down on the Oregon side of the range?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Did I understand you to say everybody uses

that range as a guide in coming u]) there?

A. Everybody, 1 think that navigates these

waters uses that range in some way or another.

O. Were you watching it that night?

A. Yes, sir.

O. ^\nl are ])ositive, are you then, that you haul-

ed well over toward the Oregon, side of it?

A. Yes, ver}^ ])ositive.

O. Now% you also said, if I remember correctly,

that there is a very high bluff or mountain there,

which casts a shadow^ on the river just below Bugby

Hole. \()U have also testified that you were afraid of

getting ashore. \ want to ask }'ou if }'()U ha\'e any

other way than the anchorage of the oil barge and

her relation to the shore the next morning, to determ-

ine in }'our own mind where the collision took i)lace,

in reference to the ( )regon shore, l^hat is to say,

su])])osing the oil ])arge hadn't been in existence the

next morning, ha\-e \'ou any other means ])\- which

\'ou determine in xour own mirid where tlie collision
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took place with reference to the Oregon shore?

A. Well, of course I know—I have observed how

this range runs ashore, and what point of land, if it

ran on a direct line on the range, where it would

reach the shore, and I know that I was below this

range. I observed that just shortly before this colli-

sion occurred. And then the appearance of that bluff

—how it appeared. That would be about as near as

I could tell.

O. What led you to fear that you would be on

the shore in a moment if you were crowded any fur-

ther?

A. fust from what appeared—the way it appeared.

O. You did have that decided fear?

A. Yes, sir, it appeared to be very near by.

Q. Did you observe at this time, or just before it,

your relation to the other shore of the river?

A. No, I don't think T did.

Q. Was it, or was it not visible?

A. Not particularly so ; not very easy to see that

shore unless you are are near it.

Q. Would you say, ifrom your relation to the!

Puget Island shore, and its invisibility, that you were

close on it, or far away from it?

A. Well, I wouldn't notice that in particular;

wouldn't be looking in that direction.

O. Didn't notice that at that time?

A. No.

Q. Explain your reason when you gave the

passing signal to the Samson of one blast for select-
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iiig" tlie Oreo'on side of llic channel to jxiss on?

A. Well, that is the most reasonahle way to pass,

and the usual custom that I ohserve, and I notice that

other pilots observe the same custom, that the as-

cending:^" boat takes the right hand of that shore.

O. That is indicated by one of the rules, isn't it?

A. Well, it is a rule at sea. These rules :ire not

strictl}' followed in the river. They are where it can

be done conveniently.

(). I know it is not a hard and fast rule?

A. No.

Q. Did your draft and the depth of the channel

w^ater have anything to do with it?

A. No, sir.

Q. 1 supi)ose it is agreed thrit the Cai)tain is right

;

that there is a rule here saying" all rules shall be dis-

regarded to prevent accidents.

]\Ir. Minor: We can find the rule you refer to?

A. 1 don't think those words are used, but to the

same effect.

O. No. Not the wording. Hiat is the substance

of it. 1 just want to call attention to the rule to show

you were right about it.

Mr. MINOR: That is the rule. Rule 11.

Mr. C. K. S. WOOD: Rule 11 is this: ''In obey-

ing and construing these rules, due reg"ard shall be

hc'id to <'ill dangers of navig.ation and collisic^n, and to

an\' special circumstances which may render a de-

])arture from the abo\e rules necessar\' in order to

avoid immediate danger."
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A. Yes, that is what T have reference to.

0. And this other rule, wliich T say is not a hard

and fast rule, but a mere indication—well, I will ask

you in general substance if the rule that you refer to

isn't to this effect ; that in narrow channels, rivers

and fore bays, each vessel shall ordinarly keep to its

own starboard side of the channel?

A. That is the rule, I think, that is usually ap-

plied; should be, at any rate.

O. We can refer to the rules later. T only w\ant

to get your idea.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD : Mr. Snow, on his part wants

to ask some questions.

:\Ir. SXOW: Go ahead, Mr. Minor. I will cross

examine after you get through.

Mr. ERSKINE WOOD: T would like to ask one

or two questions.

Questions by Mr. ERSKINE WOOD:
Capt:iin Sullivan, you said in response to some

questions by Mr. Aiinor that your estimate of the

speed was about three miles an hour?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And I am not sure that I showed on your

direct examination how you arrived at that. I would

like you to explain that.

A. I notice that in passing Skamokawa light,

lower Skamokawa light, it was 12 o'clock, and in the

testimony given before the United States Inspectors,

the engineers of both the Henderson and the Samson

stated the time, agreed on the time as 1 :40, each one
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about the same. I think perhaps, a few minutes one

way or the other, one a httle less, one a Httle more;

and that distance from Skamokawa hght to this point

is five miles, and five miles in an hour and forty min-

utes, is three miles an hour.

:\Ir. C. E. S. WOOD: Is that past the land or

throui^'h the water?

A. Past the land.

O. \'ou also in one part of your examination said

that there was a time when the Samson was approach-

ing you. that her green lights l)ecame obscured just

prior to the collision?

A. Yes, sir.

O. I think you ought to explain that a little more

fully, how it would be, how you were standing on the

(^il barge.

A. We were standing on the bow of the barge,

and when she passed to a point here, the light was

shut out.

O. That is, when she o'ot fair abeam of vou, in

passing down to the stern of the Henderson?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Mr. Alinor rather emphasized the fact that

you were taking a dangerous chance in running"

ashore in order to avoid a collision, and that you were

willing to take such a chance rather than have a col-

lision, and 1 w ill just ask }(>u to cx])lain again wheth-

er you exj^ected actually to run ashore, or to avoid

that necessit}', and how \ou expected to avoid it.

A. At what time?
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Q. When you put your helm hard aport and head-

ed toward the bank ?

A. Well, my great anxiety then was to avoid a

collision, and what would happen after that was

another consideration.

Q. You were, as Mr. Minor says, you were taking

a chance there of running ashore?

A. Yes.

O. 1 will ask you whether or not you expected to

go ashore or to be able to save your ship?

A. I had great fear that we would, because ord-

inarily, among commercial vessels, their anchors will

not let go as cjuick as that. T fully expected that w^e

would go on the beach, but 1 hoped that those an-

chors would drop, and was very much surprised that

they were handled so quickh\ It is not usually the

case.

'Questions by C. E. S. WOOD:
^'ou were using the anchors to check her from

going on shore, if you could?

A. Yes, that was the idea.

O. Did you notice when the oil barge was anchor-

ed the next morning, how she stood in relation to the

point and obscuring the shore line above?

A. Yes, the shore line was hid by this projecting

point ahead of her; that is, the shore line proper,

above—around this point was not visible.

Q. The Orcp"on shore line?

A. Yes.

Q. So that the oil barge Wcis in, close in behind,
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obscuring the shore line a]:)ove, I mean?

A. "S^s, behind the point, practically.

COURT: Was that Hunt's Mill Point?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Was it below the point, obscuring the upper

shore ?

A. Yes, sir, headed upstream.

Cross Examination.

Questions by Mr. SNOW:

I would like to ask a few f|uestions on behalf of the

Standard Oil Company.

A. Yes, sir.

O. You say that you have been a licensed ])ilot on

the Columbia and \Villamette Rivers for some 2h

} ears?

A. ^>s, sir.

'O. How old are you now?

A. 54 years.

O. At whose instance did you take in charge the

piloting of Barge 93 on the night in question?

A. Well, our—the one in charge of our Associa-

tion is Cai:)tain Pease.

(). \o\\ have a Pilots' Association, have you not,

of the ])ilots, who are deling the pilotage service on

the river?

A. ^'es, sir.

O. And Captain. Pease is the manager or sec-

retary of that Association?

A. Ves, sir.
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Q. Then you didn't have any communication,

directly or indirectly, with either the Standard Oil

Company, or any officer of the Standard Oil Com-

pany before you went on that barge?

A. No, sir.

O. Now, you knew, did you not, that the Standard

Oil Company had a contract with the Pilots' Asso-

ciation, for the piloting- of all oil barges at a certain

stated prices?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And as a matter of fact, when you receive

your pay for that pilotage service, you receive it, do

vou not, from the Association?

A. Yes, sir.

^Q. And the Standard Oil Company pays the As-

sociation a stipulated price for the pilotage of these

vessels?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, that is what 3^ou mean, is it, by saying

that you understood you were in the employ of the

Standard Oil Company on the night in question?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, how many vessels have you piloted, ap-

proximately, do you suppose, u]) and down the

Columbia and Willamette Rivers during the 25 years

of service you have had there?

A. Oh, I couldn't say.

Q. Well, have you had a great many, or only a

very few?

A. A great many.
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O. You have l)ecn llicn, in continuing: service as

this pilot, or as captain of some river steamer, dur-

ing this entire 25 years, Captain Sulhvan?

A. Continually; almost continually; Very short

intervals.

Q. ^^nl are now, you say, 54 years of age?

A. Yes, sir.

'Q. Now, you spoke of passing the Kern some

little time hefore you saw the lights of what proved

to he the Samson ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you know at the time you were passing

the Kern that the Samson was somewhere on the river

further uj), and coming down the river?

A. Well, yes, I would have known, if I had stop-

]")ed to think, hut T gave it no thought. I know she

has a regular time of going. I could have known if

J had thought.

(). Then vou knew that from the constant run-

ning of the Samson on the river?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Did you know where she was at the time yoti

passed the Kern ?

A. No, I probal)!}^ gave it no thought.

Q. Now, when you speak of running on that

range—what, by the way, is that range called?

A. Hunting Island.

(J. J Uniting Island Range?

A. Yes, sir.

O. ^^)U spoke of running on that range u]) the
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river, and of the Kern passing you to starboard?

A. Yes, sir.

'O. You didn't get off your range when that pas-

sing took place?

A. No, sir.

Q. Who signalled for the passing to starboard of

the Kern—you or the Kern?

A. I wouldn't say. I couldn't say. I don't re-

member.

Q. At any rate the Kern gave you the range you

were on and passed to your starboard?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, when vou saw the lioiits of the Samson

further up the river, and just abreast, or pretty nearly

rounding the ])oint of Puget Island, you decided to

pass the Samson to port?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Now, had you ported your helm before you

blew the first passing signal to the Samson?

A. Yes, sir; was well below the range before this

whistle was blown.

O. Were well below the range?

A. Yes, sir.

O. What do you mean by being well below the

range, and what do you mean by the range opening

u])? I have draAvn a diagram on that blackboard,

Ca]nain. It is not drawn to a scale, or anything of

that kind, and on that diagram T have located in a

general way Bugby Hole and the bluff, and what I

suppose to l)e the Hunting Island Range. Will vou
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Kiivll}' turn iliat l)lackboarcl so llic judge can sec it

—

counsel reminds nie that my Muntin.c^ Island ran<;e

I have drawn there b}- dottel line strikes the bluff. I

didn't intend it to be accurate at all. T will move the

bluff a little further down. Xow, where are the two

range lights?

A. Where are they?

(.). ^^es. Where are the two rans^e lio-hts located?

A. They are on this. This is known as Hunting

Island, and this is the Cathlamet Channel, and one

light is on a pile at the water's edge, and one light is

back in the woods, I think, on a tree: fastened to a

tree.

Q. Then the two lights are right behind each

other?

A. Yes, sir; one in range of the other.

O. And, as long as your vessel traveling up the

ri\er on this range can see but practically one light,

you know you are on the range?

A. Xo, the rear light is higher than the front

light, so they both show at the same time.

(). They Ixuh show?

A. Yes.

(J. Oh, they both show in line?

A. They show in line.

'O. Then what do you mean by oj^ening up the

range?

A. (Illustrating) Well, a person standing at this

])«)int \\()uld see between these lights, lliat wculd

be o[)en on that side.



The Steamer Samson 289

O. Xow, when you speak of getting below the

Hunting Island Range light, just before you blew

the passing whistle, you mean to the right of the

Hunting- Island range lights, do you?

A. Yes, towards the sea; tpwards the general

course of the river towards the sea. Towards the sea

would be below, and the other way would be above.

That is why it is called above and below. That

would be the right hand.

O. The right hcind coming up the river?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And when you speak of well opening up the

range light, you mean that you see two lights like

that, apparently. That is, you can see between the

lights?

A. Yes, can see between them.

O. Xow, is there any light at Bugby—say at this

—at the up river—on the (3regon shore, to indicate

ihe range, say, from the lower lights to any upper

lights here?

A. No, sir.

O. Then you steer entirely by the range lights to

}'our stern ?

A. Yes.

O. Xow, Mr. ]\linor asked you, Ca])tain Sullivan,

about the (juestion of whether or not had the accident

happened on the Oregon side of the river, the Hen-

derson would have drifted down wdiat he called the

Prairie Channel, and what I will call the Clifton

Channel. Ynu ansvv-ered no. What is the fact as to



240 The Steamer Saiiisoii

the currents in that nei^iiborhood? And what is the

cause of these currents. And in that connection refer

to the Iduff and the course of the river just before

striking' the ])luff, and how the l)hiff will divert the

current.

A. This bluff, as we call it, it is a little more

marked than you show; it is more of a point than you

sIhj\\\

O. WcU, take the chart for it.

A. \'ou see it bears off; the channel makes this

turn. That bluff is a spur of the main rang'e of moun-

tains that run along here. It runs directly out in this

direction, and the mountain itself, after the point is

made, breaks off here, and this is low land, and that is

just a spur running- out. The force of the river com-

ing down here strikes this spur, and has changed the

whole course of the ri\er, eventually from the Ore-

gon side to the W^ashington side. It goes clear across

from the bluff to the other side, a long distance down,

and it changes the whole character of the river, this

one bluff. Of course the water strikes here and goes

off in this direction. This is only a sand isL'md. (Il-

lustrating by means of chart).

O. That is Puget Island.

A. And this current has cut straight along down

here, and for these 23 years that I have been in the

business of piloting ships, or connected with piloting

ships, the channel has ahvays been along this island

down here, in that direction in which this range is,

and never has changed. The deepest water now, is
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closest to this bar.

Q. Close to what bar?

A. This bar shown here; this bar; that is a recent

formation.

'O. The bar at the foot of Puget Island?

A. Yes, sir. This is a bar; as you go this direc-

tion, the water gets shoal, so indicates that the deep

water goes liere and draws toward that point. This

])ar in my time was the channel of the river. I have

been right over where that is. Coming down Cath-

lamet Channel, meeting this channel, and tliat water

settling makes that shoal, and before this channel

was dredged at all, there was about 23 feet of water at

this point; l)ut after the im]:)rovements of the river

made here, to make the river 25 feet, making it deep-

er further up, this place had to be dredged, and when

this dredging was done, the Government dredger, in

order to show where that dredging was—that other

people miglit know where the dredging* was—they

set up this range, and on that range this dredging was

done. So when we were running, we would run on

that range, and would get in the dredged channel.

Then after a time, at the instance of the Pilots, the

Lighthouse Department j)Ut lights on that range, so

at night lime we could run there. We had a great

deal of running at night; leaving Portland in the day

time, the middle of the day, we would reach down

here at night. These little ])]cices could l)e crossed as

well at night, if some aid to cross by; that is, while

that range was i)ut there for this particular channel,
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A. Yes, sir.

O. Docs he l)elong to your association too?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. I believe he wasn't on duty tliat night, was he?

A. He was asleep at this time.

Q. Now, Stayton, then, was the pilot in charge of

the Henderson ?

A. Yes, sir, as I understand.

O. Stimpson was the Captain ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And Oleson was the engineer?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You only know whether or not the Henderson

obeyed your direction to port her helm and back, from

the testimony given before the Inspectors?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was your headway perceptibly checked by the

order that you gave? Could you determine that?

A. I didn't determine that.

O. Then the crash came?

A. Yes, sir.

O. And the Henderson broke loose from the oil

barge, and you gave the order to anchor the barge?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Did you say it was the port barge of the Sam-

son that rannned the Henderson just forward of her

house?

A. I am (|uite sure it was.

(). Was the oil barge injured in any way?

A. None \vhate\'er.
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0. Now, in anchoring the vessel, did you—when

she came up on her anchor chains so that they held,

was there any perceptible jerk of the barge?

A. None tliat I could detect, and I was surprised

at that.

O. What do you mean by surprised at that?

A. Well, that she wouldn't—that her headway

had been so much checked that there wouldn't be a

straining on them. Of course we had been going

along under speed, whatever the speed was.

•Q. And you estimated that speed to be about three

miles an hour?

A. Three miles an hour.

Q. Up against the current and against the ebb

tide?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you had given orders to back, and if they

were obeyed, that must have checked her?

A. Must check her, and the breaking of these

heavy wire lines, I would think would very ma-

terially check her.

Q. Now, if the headway had not been checked,

what would be the effect on these anchor chains, of

dropping them?

A. Would be Hke stopping a heavy boat with solid

iron. As the chain doesn't stretch or give way, if the

strain was sufficient, it would break off. It very often

happens these anchor chains break, if the lieadway is

not stopped. It is (juite a delicate matter to bring a

ship to anchor, without

—
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O. (Interrupting) Stopping her headway?

A. ^'es, without heino^ dang"cr of breakini^;" these

chains. A great deal of care is always used in an-

choring a ship that her way is off them—the way o ti-

the ship, and won't go against that anchor as it

touches the bottom.

O. Did you yourself observe how the anchor

chains ran out when the anchor struck bottom? Vou

heard the testimony of Martinson, didn't you, and

Kavser? You heard their testimony?
V ml

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did vou make any observation yourself as to

how the barge came to anchor?

A. 1 noticed, of course, they ran out rapidly until

they struck the bottom. 1 didn't think the w^atcr was

so deep, and when I heard the chains running out so

rapidly at first, I thought possibly she was running-

over the anchor. Then when that ceased, 1 observed

there was no motion to the vessel—that these chains

wouldn't run out any further.

O. As I understand you, Martinson, the man

on board the barge, let go both anchors, the star-

board and the ])(M-t anchor?

A. \'es, one after the other.

O. Did either anchor chains break?

A. Oh, no.

O. ^'ou anchored in six fathoms of water, as I un-

derstand you?

A. lught fathoms.

O. Eight fathoms?
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A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you say how much of the chain ran out ?

A. I don't know. I didn't notice. I don't know

whether that testimony has been given. I didn't

answer the question.

Recross Examination.

Questions by Mr. MINOR:

Captain, there are brakes on these chains to pre-

vent them from causing this jar, are there not,—go-

ing out too rapidly?

A. I don't catch the question.

0. There are brakes on these chains, aren't there,

on the anchor chains, I say? The anchors are fixed so

that the speed at which the chain runs out may be

checked by a brake, are there not?

A. Well, I don't know just how you mean. I

don't catch your meaning exactly. Just illustrate the

whole thing, the windlass, so T will understand what

you mean.

O. I understood you to say awhile ago, that if

the vessel was going too fast when you dumped an

anchor, there would be danger of the chains breaking?

A. Yes, the chain would have to be in some man-

ner stopi)ed, or it will all run out; there is a brake.

O. There is a brake on the anchor chain ?

A. Yes.

O. So as to keep the anchor chains from running

out too fast?

A. Xo, it wouldn't prevent it if the vessel was
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g'oin*^ fast. It isn't strong enough for that. It

would

—

O. (Interrupting) It would make a pull on the

anch(M* chain, then, all the time, wouldn't it?

A. It would to some extent, yes.

O. The chains are so adjusted—the anchors are

so adjusted that there is a hrake to keep the motion

of the vessel from running out and hreaking the

chains. Is that correct

?

A. Well, I don't quite understand what you ask.

O. What is the object of the brake on the chain?

A. The brake is not on the chain. The brake is

on the drum over which the chain runs.

O. What is the object of the brake on the drum

then ?

A. Well, it would be to check its going to some ex-

tent.

Q. And that, of course, would retard the motion

of the vessel all the time, would it?

A. Somewhat I judge.

O. Well, I say it would retard it though. That is

the object of it?

A. Yes, sir.

O. So that when the chains have run out their

full length, it is supposed that the force of the vessel

would be sto])i)ed so that the chciins couldn't be

broken ?

A. No, that is not the idea at all.

O. What is the idea, then?

A. It would be to stoj) the—largely to sto]) the
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chain after the anchor is out, or that is intended to be

covered by an entirely different motion; if the vessel

was going so fast that the chain would continue to

run out, beyond the point, this thing wouldn't stop

it. It would either run out to its end where it is fast,

or, if an attempt was made to brake that, something

else would break. It isn't intended for that purpose

—to stop the headway of the vessel.

Q. What is it intended for, then ?

A. It is intended to stop the chain itself.

Mr. SNOW: When the anchor strikes bottom?

A. Not altogether. Some times when it strikes

bottom, or whenever sufficient amount out, if they

want to do it. It isn't there to check the headway of

the vessel.

O. What is it put there for, then?

A. It is put there to hold the chain.

O. To do what?

A. To bold the chain when a sufficient amount oi

it is out. ^^ou understand me about as well as I do

you, I guess.

'O. Well, I don't know. Captain, if you don't un-

derstand me any better than I do you. That brake is

on the windlass, isn't it?

A. Yes.

Q. And what is the object of that brake?

A. It is to stop the chain at any point at which

they want to stop it.

Q. To control the anchor, isn't it?

A. Not altogether.
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O. To some extent, isn't it?

A. To control the chain.

O. That is part of the anchor?

A. Not necessarily.

O. Then what is the ohject of it—to control what?

A. To control the chain.

O. What is the object of controlling:^ the chain,

then ?

A. Well, there would have to be some point at

which the chain would be stopped from going out.

•Q. If you came to the end of the chain, it would

stop, wouldn't it?

A. They don't usually let it go that far.

O. That is to keep it from going that far?

A. A>s, it would dei)cnd somewhat on circum-

stances.

Q. And that brake is strong—gets stronger and

stronger as the chain goes out, does it?

A. It would only stand a certain—it is not made

to stand the strain of the vessel, so it would eventual-

ly stop, in the circumstances in which the chain runs

out.

O. I say the chain is so fixed that the more chain

vou let out, the stronsrer the brake is on the cliain

going out, isn't it ?

A. No, not fixed at all, controlled by the man who

<)])crates it.

O. By the man who operates

—

A. (Interrupting) The man who operates the

brake. The brake in this particular instance is a
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compression band controlled by a screw, and that

screw is turned and bring^s that compression tight or

loose, as the case may be. If this brake was left open,

that chain would run out—it wouldn't interfere with

its going out at all, so this man would tighten up that

compression to suit himself.

Q. And he does that for the purpose of keeping

the chain from running out too rapidly??

A. Yes, that would be to some extent.

O. What is his object in tightening up, if that

isn't it ?

A. His object would be to keep the chain from

running out.

Q. Too rapidly?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, you said something about the anchors

striking the bottom. Do you know when the an-

chors struck the bottom that night?

A. I could tell.

O. How could you tell?

A. Bv the wav the chain acted.

Q. That is the only way you could tell?

A. Yes.

Q. You couldn't tell any other way?

A. Well, that would be sufficient.

Q. There would be no jar, would there?

A. Not necessarily, no.

Q. Well, was there any jar?

A. None that I heard.

'Q. So, when the anchor struck the bottom, you
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don't know of any jar being caused by that?

A. Xo.

O. You (lichi't feci any?

A. Xo.

O. Captain, T understand you were on the ranges

wlien you first saw the Kern?

A. Yes, sir.

O. And that there is a custom in these waters for

the vessel with the deep draft to have tlie right (^f

w^ay on the ranges.

A. Yes, sir.

O. And that therefore you kept the ranges when

you met the Kern ?

A. Yes, sir.

O. And you can't tell whether you signalled the

Kern first, or whether the Kern signalled you.

A. I don't remember.

O. Xow, the draft of the Kern, and the draft of

the Samson is about the same, isn't it?

A. ] have heard so.

Q. Well, T believe you said they drew about the

same amount of water?

A. I don't think T said so.

O. I think you i)ut one of them at 14 feet and the

other at 15.

A. I said J thought that was what they drew.

O. A\'h\', when you saw the Samson, did you n(n

observe the same rule that )'()U observed wlien }'ou

saw the Kern ?

A. When we ])assed the Kern, we were (ner this
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shoal. When we passed the Samson, this shoal had

passed by. The river was deep all the way across.

Q. But if the custom is for the vessel with the

deeper draft to keep on the ranges, having the right

of way, then why should you have acted differently

when you saw the Samson ?

A. The range has nothing to do with the channel

at this point that we passed the Samson, or tried to

pass her.

0. That is true, but I understood when you first

saw the Samson you were on the ranges?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Now, why did you at that time leave the range?

A. As I said before, the range has nothing to do

with the channel at the point in which I first saw the

Samson. This range is used for a channel, as I de-

scribed, at this little part, at the point at which we

passed the Kern, but the point at which w^e passed

the Samson, the range has nothing to do with the

channel at all. It is simply there, and is used only as a

guide to determine the side of the river.

Q. Well, I understood you to say, Captain—I may
have misunderstood you—that the rule here in these

waters is that the vessel having the deep draft shall

have the right of way?

A. I didn't say that.

Q. You didn't say that?

A. No.

O. You said that was the custom here, didn't you?

A. No.
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COURT: lie referred to the shoal in the first in-

stance.

Mr. ]\irXOR: I didn't understand. 1 understood

him to say that was the custom.

O. Xow, Captain, you have said now that the port

haro'e of the Samson struck the flenderson.

A. Yes, sir.

O. Did \'ou see it ?

A. Yes, sir.

(). How far were you from it?

A. How far?

n. Yes.

A. Well, to be exact, we estimate that the bow of

the Henderson was 100 feet from the stern of the

barge—the oil barge, I mean—93—and the barges'

length is 280 feet ; that would leave the bow of the

Henderson about 180 feet from the bow of the oil

barge, and I was standing, what I estimate to be 25

feet back from the bow of this oil barge; subtracting

from 180 would leave 155 feet, about, from where I

stood to the bow of the Henderson. Then I esti-

mate that the break in the bow of the Henderson

made by this port barge of the tow of the Samson, was

15 feet from this stem: subtracting from 155 would

leave 140 feet from \\ here I stood to this break in the

bow, or where she struck. That is as near exact as I

can make it.

(). \\'li}- do }'(>u substract that? It seems to me
\()U ought to add that oughten't you?

A. I will take it back.
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'Q. Yes, you should add that?

A. Yes.

Q. So instead of being 155 feet, you would be 205

feet?

A. No, 15 feet to be added to 155, would make 170

feet.

O. You would add 30 feet to 155.

A. No, I didn't. I added 15.

Q. Let's see again, now. I understand, from what

you have said that the bow of the Henderson was

100 feet from the stern of the barge.

A. Yes, sir.

O. That the barge is 280 feet long?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Then the bow of the Henderson was 180 feet

from the bow of the barge?

A. Yes, sir.

O. And how far were you from the bow?

A. 25 feet.
;

'O. 25 feet. That means 155 feet?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. So vou add 15 feet more?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That makes you about 170 feet, doesn't it?

A. Yes.

O. Any lights on the boat by which you can see?

A. Any lights where?

O. On any boats by which you can see.

A. What boats do vou refer to?

Q. Any of them by which you could see where
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this rock l)ar^c struck the Flendcrson?

A. Lii^hts on—please designate what l)oats.

O. .Ml of them. 1 don't care. Any of them or all

of them. Any or all of them which enabled you to see

the ])lace.

A. Well, there were side lights on the Samson.

There were side lioiUs on the other two. Do vou

mean the reflection from these lights w^ould reflect on

the bow of the Henderson, making it light enough

for me to see—is that the idea?

O. 1 mean, were there any lights on any of the

boats to enable you to see where the rock barge struck

the Henderson ?

A. No.

Q. That was just by the light of the night that

you saw it ?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Xow did the middle barg-e of the Samson strike

the I lenderson ?

A. I don't know.

O. Well, from the course which she was pursuing,

would you strike?

A. I would think so.

Q. You don't think so?

A. I would think so.

(). ^'ou would think so?

A. ^'es.

(). Where would you think that would strike?

A. Well, I couldn't say. That would be behind

the house, or be}-on(l the house, be}'()nd m\' point of



The Steamer Samson - 257

vision.

O. So yon conldn't say where it strnck? Yon say

the oil barge is absolntely nninjnred.

A. Absolntely.

'Q. Was there any paint rnbbed off?

A. A little.

O. Whereabonts?

\. Abont abreast of where the bow of the Hen-

derson was.

Q. Was it not in front of where the bow of the

Henderson was?

A. I don't think so. I don't remember seeing it

there.

O. Xow, Captain, I think on yonr examination

before, yon said it was in front of that?

A. Well, I don't remember.

O. If it was, as a matter of fact, in front of where

the bow of the Henderson was, that paint was not

ru1)bed off by the Henderson, was it?

A. Well, it might have been rubbed off prior to

this time when the Henderson came along in the even-

ing. She came alongside quite a length along there,

made her line fast and pulled back to wdiere she was

finally made fast, and she might have rubbed along

there considerable. That would be possible.

O. It couldn't occur at the time of, or after the

collision, could it?

A. I wouldn't think so—not by her.

O. Xot by her?

A. For I think she went av\'ay from the point.
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O. I understand now that the green hght of the

Samson was in view all the time from the time you

first saw her until the bow of the foremost barge of

the Samson passed where you were?

A. I think so; about that time.

O. Had the Samson passed where you were at the

time of the collision?

A. Yes, I think she had, her entire full length I

would think; let's see. Well, I don't know exactly as

to that. I don't remember.

O. You don't remember whether she had or not?

A. No.

Q. Captain, when 3'ou signalled the Samson, what

signal did you gi\'e? I didn't understand.

A. When ?

O. When }'ou first signalled the Samson?

A. One whistle.

O. Long or short?

A. Medium long.

O. Well, would you call it a long blast or a short

blast, under the rules?

A. Well there is no— I don't know of anv lencfth

designated as long and short. I don't know what a

long and short blast would be.

'O. \ ou know the rules speak of a short blast.

Mr. SXOW: We don't want to be particular about

this, Ijut it seems to me this is hardly recross. This

has all been gone into before. I don't want to be

ca])tious.

COURT: There has been a great deal of rcpeti-
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tion. Nearly a clay and a half on the first witness.

Mr. MINOR: T understand that, but I merely

want to understand what it was. I understood from

Mr. Wood's examination that his testimony was

somewhat different from what I understood it was on

my cross examination. That is the reason I want to

be sure. I don't desire to prolong the matter at all,

but I understood him to say at the time Mr. Wood
v/as examining him, that he gave one long blast of

the whistle. Now, I understood before that he said

one short blast, so I just want to see whether he gave

one long or one short blast.

COURT: The court's recollection is he said one

l)last.

jMr. 3.IINOR: He said he gave one blast, and I

want to know whether he said one long or one short

blast.

COURT: What is your recollection about that?

A. An ordinary blast as used in passing. I don't

recollect in particular. Long enoup-h so the other

boat would hear it plainly, but no particular

—

O. (Interrupting) Now, the rule to which Mr.

Wood has called your attention. Rule 11 reads as fol-

lows: 'Tn obeying and construing these rules, due

regard shall be had to all dangers of navigation and

collision, and to any special circumstances which may
render a departure from the above rules necessary in

order to avoid immediate danger." Now, what is

there in that rule which would change the ordinary

rule of passing vessels?
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IMr. SNOW: If your Honor please, tliat asks for

the construction of tlie rule. He can't ask this wit-

ness to construe the rule. I don't want to he captious

al:)out the matter, hut the rule is in e\i(lence. ff the

counsel wants to put in the rules for his own con-

struction, we will i)ut our construction on the rule.

COURT: The rule is a matter of construction for

the Court. The way we understand that rule, it is a

f}"eneral rule anvwav, for emerq-encv and all cases.

Mr. MIXOR: T know that, and T just want to find

out from him what there was in the situation which

would cause that rule to have any application. Surely

I am entitled to know what there was in the situation.

COURT: ^\:)u m ay in q u i re

.

O. What w^as there in the situation there at that

time which caused that rule to have immediate appli-

cation?

A. I think that what hroui^^-ht up this answer, my
answer to the jud«'e, why T Cjuoted this rule, you

asked me the question why, instead of hlowing one

hlast of the whistle r.t that time, I didn't hlow the dan-

ger whistle, and wait for an answer to this danger

whistle from the other hoat, and then act on the dan-

ger whistle. I said that the time lost in trying to

blow a danger whistle at that time would he a foolish

waste; that that time should be used in trying to get

awa}' so that these barges would not get together, and

1 cjUoted this rule that sa}s th.at under all circum-

stances, practically says, all regard shall be had fc^r

the safetv of the \essel, regardless of the technicality
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of rules, which are only made—which are only things

devised to serve tlie best purpose in a general way.

O. Well, that is the rule to which you refer, the

one that I have just quoted, is it?

A. Yes, sir.

0. Now, Captain, I wHsh you w^ould come down

and look at this new chart. Mark on this new^ chart

where the Kern was wdien you passed her.

Mr. SNOW: Hasn't that already been gone into?

Mr. MINOR: Not on this chart.

Mr. SNOW: We didn't ask him anything about

that.

Mr. MINOR: This chart they have offered in evi-

dence.

COURT: He may answ^er the question. There

has been more or less repetition all the time.

Q. Mark on this chart where the Kern was wdien

you passed her.

A. On this chart there is not the same things

there were on the other chart. It showed the bar

there. This bar was especially spoken of.

If you will locate this bar on that chart, I will locate it.

O. Just say you can't locate where the Kern was,

if you can't.

COURT: That is the way the Court understands

his answ^er now.

Q. You can't locate where you passed the Kern

on that chart, then ?

A. No. (Referring to Exhibit 2).

O. Now, as I understand it, at the time vou saw
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the Samson, you were at the point marked F on this

chart?

A. Yes, sir.

(J. Xow, T understand at tlKit time that yon didn't

whistle?

A. No, sir.

O. I understand at that time vou did <A\q—
you put your hehii to port?

A. ^ es, sir.

O. Did you ]mt it liard aport, tlien ?

\. Xo, sir.

O. Now, I understand on this chart that at the

point marked 1, you gave the first signal to the Sam-

son ?

A. Yes, sir.

O. That at that time she was at the point marked

L?

\. Yes, sir.

*0. I understand that on this chart you gave the

second signal at the point marked 2?

A. Yes, sir.

O. And that the Samson at that time was where?

A. This point marked I.

O. The point marked I. And where did you lo-

cate the collision on this chart?

A. I didn't locate it.

Q. Well, locate it, then.

Mr. ERSKJXE AVOOl): Put the circle and line

leadino' to it. This circle and the line leading- to it is

marking the point (^f collision on Plaintiff's Exhihit 2.
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O. In answer to Mr. Wood's question, 3^011 said

you were of the opinion that you didn't testify before

the inspectors that at the point where you gave the

second whistle you were about 200 feet from the Sam-

son, but that you did testify that you were about 400

feet.

A. Repeat that question again, please.

(Question read.)

Mr. SNOW: All that has been gone over on cross-

examination.

Mr. MINOR: Mr. Wood was explaining some-

thing- in reo-ard to that.

COURT: Mr. Wood's last examination.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: Redirect on his cross.

Mr. SNOW: He went into that time and time

again.

Mr. MINOR: I asked some questions for the pur-

pose of showing he testified he was 200 feet from it.

Mr. Wood undertook to show he had testified before

another examiner.

COURT: Where you spoke of two records. Ob-

jection sustained.

Mr. MINOR: I desire to show all the record in

llrJs case and will offer in evidence.

COURT : That goes in rebuttal of the fact he made
the explanation of. He has given an explanation.

Mr. MINOR: I understand, your Honor, but if

you will allow me just one word. I think the rule is

—1)Ut if your Honor prefers the other way, of course

you can regulate the manner of taking proof— I un-
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derslaiul tlic rule is, if you wisli to impeach a wtiness,

}()U must do so by askini;' tlie (jucslions while he is

on the stand. Therefore I would not he allowed to

offer the record f(M- the ])urpose of imi)eachini^' him

afterwards. Xow, I called his attention to one place

in this record; there are four places in this record

where he testified to 200 feet. I only called his at-

tention to one.

COURT: Then the other side insists on the exact

manner of date and time.

Mr. SXOW: If we are ever to end this trla: -

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD : T want to mention th^s : My
view in all of these cases is to j^et at the truth, and I

don't personally insist on technicalities, but want it

clearly ])ut for the benefit of the court; but when it

comes to impeachment T insist this: In the first

place, there is no possibility of im])eachment. If

Captain Sullivan's testimony will be turned to, he

says this: "I don't think I said 200 feet at that last

examination. I may have said so, but I think it is a

mistake. :\nywa}', my ])resent belief is 500 feet."

Now, he didn't sa}' ])ositively that he never had said

that, so that the whole thin,!^^ of imj^eachment woidd

fail, and if counsel insists on i^'oing on with il, I will

insist that the regular technical form of impeachment

be followed.

COURT: J^roceed.

(}. Xow, Ca])tain, \'ou remember when you were

examined b}' tlie inspectors in the matter of the trial

of Charles b)rdan l^efore the U. S. fns])ectors of Roil-
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ers and Hulls on the 2nd day of August, 1911. Do

you remember that time?

A. Do I remember the trial?

O. Yes.

A. Yes, sir.

O. You remember that time?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You were examined at that time ]:)y the in-

spectors, were you?

A. Yes, sir.

O. I W'ill ask you whether or not, upon that ex-

amination, in answer to questions put to you 1)y In-

spector Edwards as follows: "Captain, you claim

that yoti gave the order when the second whistle w^as

blown, or just prior to the accident, you gave a port-

the-helm, hard over? A. Hard aport. O. Hard

aport? A. Yes, sir. Q. And you kept it that way

until—A. It w'asn't moved after that. O. Never

moved after that? A. I gave no further orders in

regard to it. O. About how long before this acci-

dent did you give this order? A. Well, I would

think that we were at that time 200 feet apart, it

seemed to me, and T should judge—of course, the

qtiestion of time would be hard to determine how
long that v\ould take. It might have been a minute's

time, it might have been a fraction more or less. That

I couldn't determine. It is a time a person does not

think of time, he has so many other things to think

of." Did you so testify. Captain, at that time and

place?
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A. I don't know. I su])pose—that is all the record

T have. My recollection is not very clear on it, a year

and a half a^^'o.

Q. Xow, Captain, T understand you to say now,

that in coniinQ* down the river, the channel sets from

tlie hluff over towards the Pui^et Island side. Is that

C(^rrect ?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Xow, where (h^es the ch:;nnel strike tlie Pugct

Island side?

A. \Miere does the channel strike the Puget

Island?

O. Where does tlie current strike the Puget Island

side.

A. What am I to understand hy channel?

O. I say the current.

A. Oh, the current? \\>il, I think ahout the foot

of the Island.

Q. Strikes ahout tlie foot of the Island?

A. Xot exactly the foot, hut in that direction, close

to the foot.

O. So, in your jud!:^'ement, the current sets frc^m

the hluff on the (3reg"on side to the foot of tlie Island?

A. I didn't say that.

O. Well, what did }'ou say?

A. I said the channel of the river, or tlie deepest

p;irt of the rixer—this hluff makes one hank of the

river, and Puget Island makes the other hank of the

river, and the river, according to the chart, rit that

])oint, is ahout 1800 feet wide, so that to run from the
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bluff to the point of Puget Island would be diagonal-

ly across this river, so that wouldn't be reasonable.

Q. I didn't ask that in that form. I say, I under-

stood you to say that the current sets from the bluff

across the river towards the lower end of Puget

Island.

A. You misunderstood me.

O. How does it set from the bluff?

A. I don't think I said anything about that. I

have no recollection of saying it.

Q. How does it set from the bluff?

A. It sets straight towards Tenas Illihee.

O. Towards Tenas Illihee?

A. Straight down, about straight down the river

from there.

0. It don't set over towards the Puget Island side

at all?

A. Not starting from the bluff.

Q. Where does it set over to the Puget Island

side?

A. Well, it starts from where it makes the turn

further up into the bend. The point I don't just know
how it v/ould be designated, but it is up above the

point in the bend of this bluff, more in Bugby Hole;

it makes a turn, starts from there, and o-oes on its

course.

O. And from that point it sets in what direction?

A. It sets toward, gradually toward Puget Island.

'O. There are shoals along Puget Island, are there

not?
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A. Xo, a little bank there.

O. I understood yon to say a scinincc i^ronnd.

A. A little bank there, but below there water deep

to shore.

O. That seinin<^ ground is ^about where?

A. About the position where this collision occur-

red.

C). That seinino- "Tound is below Ostervolt's

house or below the sloug"h above Ostervolt's house?

A. Below the house, but below that seining ground

the water is deep; only a little bank from the island

for some cause.

O. How long is that seining ground?

A. I don't know.

Q. Now, Captain, do you remember the time and

place wdien you were examined before the Inspectors

at the trial of Charles Jordan?

A. Do I remember?

Q. Yes.

A. Yes, sir.

O. I will ask you whether or not at that time and

place and in answer to questions ptit to you by Ins-

pector Edwards, you didn't testify: "How long does

it take to dro]) the anchor from the time you gave th.e

order? A. W^ell, it was instantaneous, to my notion.

O. And }()U thing that about a minute from the

time of the collision until the time you dropped the

anchor? A. W^s, it w.is. \ i)resume that it was con-

sumed, that nuich time consumed by tlie men getting

iliere." Did \'ou so testify?
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A. 1 don't remember that I did, but if it is in that

record, I presume so. I don't remember those ques-

tions exactly.

CORT: How much time did that say?

Mr. ]\IIXOR: One minute, your Honor.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: What is the point of that?

It seems to me to l^e about the same he says now

—

instantaneous.

Mr. MINOR: Now, he testifies it wasn't any time;

before he said it w^as a minute.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: I don't beheve you can im-

l^each a man on these estimates of time. They are

mere matters of guess and opinion.

O. Captain, I will ask you to state whether, upon

this examination, in answer to a question put to you

by Inspector Edwards, you didn't testify as follows:

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: Better identify that as the

trial of Captain Jordan. There were two examina-

tions.

O. This is the trial of Cai)tain Jordan. I am read-

ing- from pages 27 and 28: 'T have no means of es-

timating, only by that way. I would defy any man
to locate his position in that river by observation at

that time, and the conditions of darkness, that could

correctly state where he was at that time. This is a

high bluff. It throws a deep shadow. This low land

has all one appearance. It is a row of cottonwood

trees, which are all similar in appearance, and it all

looks alike, ^'ou could not say T am abreast of this

point', or 'abreast of that point,' or 'in this position
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or the middle. T defy any one to correctly make such

a statement and to he correct. y\y only means of

knowing was the position that this har^^e was in the

next morning, or after it got da}'light, so I could see,

and the length of time it took from the collision

until these anchors fell, which of course, has heen

verified hy witnesses or men who heard the sound.

And I defy any one to say that he was in the middle,

or to one side, or tlie other side, hecause, unless he

was very much to one side or the other side, or any-

where near an}' point in there, that he could say "I

w^as here" or 'T was there," I think it is impossihle."

Did you so testify?

A. I would like to make an explanation.

O. Well, did you so testify?

COURT: Answer tliat, yes or no, then if you have

an explanation to make, make it afterwards.

A. If it occurs in the testimony, I presume tlKit

I said it. [ don't cpiestion

—

O. do ahead and make your ex])lanation. Captain.

I have no ohjection.

A. I think that answer was provoked and j^ossihly

was led u]) to hy some other thing, hut was provoked

hy the statement made hy the other side, who on

several occasions, testified that they came U]) out of

llieir sleep and looked out

—

the crew of the Samson

I refer to, and said that they were 200 feet from the

island shore, or 300 feet from the island shore, var-

ious di^^tances, estimated distances, from a certain

shore. And 1 think that this answer was provoked
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from these statements, that any man couldn't tell by

looking directly at shore, without reference to lights,

whether he was any particular distance from shore;

but if he will use the range or some other thing, that

would entirely alter the situation.

O. But you did so testify, did you, at that time

and place?

A. I testified what is in that record. I have no

doubt that I did.

Mr. ERSKINE WOOD: Will you read the rest of

it?

Mr. MINOR: You can. I don't care to.

Mr. ERSKINE WOOD: Didn't vou also then

immediatelv following:, testify as follows: ''But haye

you an opinion that you were in closer to the Oregon

shore than the Washington shore? A. Well, it ap-

peared so that I was headed for that. It appeared

so from the location of these lights, knowing where

they lead to, and knowing the position of these lights,

I watched those to see at all times that I kept to that

side, by these lights. I know where they run out. I

haye observed them very often. These things, of

course, come under my observation, because that is

my particular line of business to see that thing. And
coming there in the night, it is necessary for me to know,

with a deep draft vessel, what location, or how I

should proceed in there, and these lights had l^een

used before, frequently, in passing ships, to get out of

the channel by going below this range, and I used

them a great deal both going and coming." Did you
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so testify?

A. I did, if it ai)i)ears in that record.

Mr. SNOW: This has all been ^one into before.

COURT : On redirect, he was asked if he had some

other way of determining where he was than where

he found himself that morning.

Mr. SNOW: And the questions read to the wit-

ness have been read before.

•'O. Captain, look at this diagram, Libellant's Ex-

hibit 2; if the course pursued by the Samson was as

you have indicated on this chart Exhibit 2, under

what kind of helm was she going from the letter J to

the letter K?
A. Well I would think a very

—

COURT (Interrupting): That might be opening

\\\) a new matter and will be a subject of redirect.

Mr. MINOR: I merely want to find out about this

course. I think I should be able to find out what helm

he was under.

Mr. GUTPIRIE: Witness Sullivan only testified

this to be an approximate idea. Every little deviation

cannot be considered a new helm.

COURT: I don't think so.

Mr. M INOR: I desire to show by tliis witness, and

offer to show that if the Samson ran on, or approxi-

mately on the course indicated by Exhibit 2, offered

in evidence on the part of the Libellant, that between

the letter K. where the Samsan was first seen, and

the letter L, the Samson changed her course, and that

between the letter E and the letter I, the Samson
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was running- on a steady helm without porting or

starboarding her hehn.

COURT: That would be this witness' opinion.

Mr. MINOR: It would be necessary if they went

that course.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: Mr. Minor, these courses

laid down don't pretend to delineate the exact course

of the vessel. They are only illustrative.

COURT: Offer denied. Exception allowed.

Q. Captain, I will ask you to state whether upon

the trial of Captain Charles Jordan, on the second

day of August, 1911, before the Inspectors of Boilers

and Hulls, you didn't testify, in answer to a question

propounded to you as follows: "The only means, I

understand, Captain, that you have by which you de-

termine where that collision actually took place was

that you judged it was at that place from the place

vv^here your barge anchored; is that rightf? A.

Exactly." Did you so testify?

A. I think so.

Mr. ERSKINE WOOD: Your Honor, if Mr.

Minor continues on this same line of examination, I

wish also to show that the witness in the same exam-

ination, following that, explained about the range

light. It is simply a repetition of the same thing.

COURT: You have already shown that by your

former question.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: It ought to be shown in

some way, though, that these answers exactly are not

literally true, because right on the same page, he fol-
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lows l)y showiiii^ that lie did use other means.

COURT: ^'ou may so show.

O. Now, Ca]:)tain, T will ask yon to state whether,

npon }(^nr examination, n])on the trial of Charles

Jordan, yon didn't testify, in answer to the cinestion

propounded hy yon to Inspector Edwards, as follows:

"That was where yon were at when yon siii^hted the

Samson? A. The Samson with her tow approxi-

mately op])osite this point here. Knowini[^* the char-

acter of the Samson and her tow, which is, of course,

somewhat unwieldy, I hauled off— T was running on this

range, as indicated by this mark: I hauled off to this

side of the range, or this side of the channel, knowing

by this range of lights that I was in that position,

and ke])t approximately a course that would lead to

this side of the channel, and when we were about

half a mile apart, I judge a half a mile apart, I blew

one long blast of the whistle, of the steam whistle

of the barge. I was standing on the forecastle head

of this barge, which has an unobstructed view for-

ward, usincf the wheel, or the rudder of the baro-e to

Steer w^ith. In the pilot house was stationed the (piar-

termaster, steering, and beside me was the look-out

or officer on deck at the time. The Samson promptly

answered our whistle. We continued on this course

towards this shore. O. Towards the Oregon shore?

A. ^'cs, sir; heading towards the \)omX of this bluff.

This point is formed b}- a bluff, which is more promin-

ent than is indicated 1)\- the chart. And at all times

was below tin's range of lights. 1^he\' were ()])en on
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this side, this indicating- ])elow. I saw plainly the

Samson's lights, saw two lights of her masthead, the

two side lights and one light which appeared to be on

the starboard side of the barge, or the starboard side

of the tow. Her lights were at all times visible to

me, and she appeared to be bearing down on the

course in which we were steering, and as I was near

this shore in a way that alarmed me, as far as near-

ness, and her both side lights still in sight, I blew

another whistle as a w^arning, which I didn't hear

answered. I didn't notice that. She still continued on

her course, and it looked like a point in which a colli-

sion would be inevitable; I ordered the helm of the

barge hard aport aand headed her for the shore. The

Samson approached and the port barge of the tow

appeared to strike the Henderson about the house on

the port side, immediately after the house, of course

it broke her away from the tow% and I immediately

ordered the anchor let go, which was promptly done

and when we swung in to anchor, we were approximate-

ly 150 feet from this shore." Did you so testify?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Is there any light on the Oregon side in this

neighborhood of the accident?

COURT: He has already said no.

3slr. 3^HX0R: I know, but I think he is mistaken.

A. Please designate the neighborhood referred to.

O. From anywhere near the place you first saw

the Samson.

A. Is there any light on the Oregon shore?
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Q. Yes.

A. What point?

'Q. AiiywhcM-c where you first saw the Samson

and tlie i^lace where }ou were wlien you first saw the

Samson ?

A. That is, between where the Samson was when

I saw^ her, and me. That is the Hght would be below

where the Samson was, as I understand, down the

stream from the Samson.

O. I didn't say downstream. T want to know

whether any light, anywhere on the Oregon shore

between the point of the shore opposite wdiere the

Samson was when you first saw her and the point

where you were at the time you first saw her.

A. There is a light at Bugby.

Q. Where is Bugby on the map there.

A. That isn't a map.

O. Well, on the chart?

A. Well, I don't see the chart.

O. You can't locate Bugby here?

A. 1 won't undertake to. There is a map there

witli Bugby located on it.

C). You can't locate it cm this chart?

A. I could.

O. Do so.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: Do the best you can.

A. { Indicating) Bugl^y Light is about this jxiint.

Q. That is about o])posite where yrni saw—where

the Samson was when you first saw her?

A. I don't know where the Samson was when I
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first saw her. I only approximated; she was in that

neighborhood.

O. Did you see that Hglit at the time you saw the

Samson?

A. Yes, sir.

O. And you couldn't tell whether that light was

nearer, or the Samson was nearer?

A. No, sir.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: Mark Bugby Light or Li-

bellant's Exhibit 2. (Witness does so.)

Redirect Examination.

Questions by Mr. C. E. S. WOOD:

Whom did you say was Captain of the Henderson?

A, His name was Stimpson.

O. He is dead now, isn't he?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And who was pilot of the Henderson?

A. Stayton.

Q. Whom else did 3^ou speak of?

A. The assistant engineer, Oleson.

Q. They all took orders from you in navigating?

A. The captain and the pilot would, but the en-

ginecY would take orders from the pilot or the captain.

Q. And from you through them.

A. Yes, sir.

O. In other words, the captain and the pilot didn't

originate any orders?

A. No, sir.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: I think it is clear to the
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court, l)ul wc have to keep the appellate record in

mind. I am i^'oin^e^ to ask Captain Sullivan under

what circumstances is this courtesy or custom of the

road, to f^^ive the deeper draft vessels rii^ht of way ap-

plicable, and what condition of the river rmd location ?

A. Only on places that are shallow, that are

dred«^ed, and outside of the dredged channel; on

these shoals there is not sufficient water for deeper

draft vessels to float. The river has been improved to

that extent. Originally the channel was not deep

enough for the draft of vessels that now go up and

down, and consequently these dredged channels were

formed, and outside of them the shoals still remain.

They are merely gutters, as it were, sluiced out with

dredges.

Q. Which of these examinations took place first?

The one where the inspectors examined into the mat-

ter for themselves, or the one where they put Cap-

tain Jordan on his trial?

A. The one in which thev made the examination

for themselves.

O. And that is the one in which you said your

distance at the second blast was 500 feet?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Now, you were asked by ^Tr. Minor, a ques-

tion about tlie only way you had to detemiine the

])lace of the ct^llision would be the location where }'ou

found ^•our liarge anchored the next morning, and

you said '* I^xactl}*." I will ask you if on the same

page (68) of the record of the trial of Captain Jordan
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you didn't follow that up like this: "And your barge

was anchored about one hundred and fifty feet from

the shore? A. I will go a little further with that.

The only way, I judge of the distance from the shore;

but, of course, being acquainted with this shore line

here I judge of the position at a cross angle of about

the position we were in with reference to the river,

up and down the river; but as to the distance from

shore I have no means of knowing excepting by this

position the barge was in, other than my general

knowledge of the river banks, how they appeared.

But to be exact about it I have no way of knowing

except by the position in which the barge was anchor-

ed." 'Question by Captain Edwards: "That is the

oil barge? A. Yes, sir. Q. Now, Captain, I under-

stood you to say that the night was so dark that you

could not tell with accuracy where you were in the

channel ; is that correct? A. Yes; that is in the main

correct. O. On a night like that no man could navi-

gate this river and locate himself accurately with ref-

erence to the shore? A. With reference to the dis-

tance? Q. With reference to the distance from the

shore? A. That is in reference to the number of

feet? O. Or with reference to his location in the

river? A. Oh yes; he would have to do that or he

could not go up and down the river. Q. If he could

tell Vv'here he was in the river, why is it he would not

know where he was from the shore? A. Now, we
will say, for instance, my knowledge of this river is

exactly how it appears in the day time or how it ap-
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pears in the daytime. I ^o there very often and I

observe it. Then I know that between these shores

there is deep water. If I don't go exactly in the mid-

dle of that river, or if I go a little to one side or the

other it is immaterial. So consequently, I don't give

it the attention so at any time I can say I am exactly

fifty or a hundred feet or two hundred feet from this

shore ; but I know that this light here, or these lights

here in the range, they lead in a certain direction ap-

proximately in the middle or to one side, and my
knowledge of all the conditions surrounding that I

could tell approximately where I was, whether I was

abreast of the foot of this island or this seining ground

here, or this bluff; but I could not say I am exactly

one hundred and fifty feet or one thousand feet from

that shore. I say that is impossible for any man to

do." Is that substantially your testimony you be-

lieve?

A. Yes, sir.

Witness Excused.

EDDIE GRO\'E, a witness called on behalf of the

libelant, being first duly sworn, testified as follows.

Direct Examination.

Questions by Mr. ERSKIXE WOOD:

Where you yo live, Eddie?

A. Puget Island.

'O. How long have you lived there? About, I

mean.

A. Well, I have been since I came there first, was
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24 years.

Q. What is your business?

A. Fishing.

O. For what?

A. For salmon and steelhead and sorts of fish Hke

that.

Q. What kind of fishing gear do you use?

A. Drift nets.

COURT : What kind of nets ?

A. Drift nets.

Q. About how long are they?

A. Well, between 150 fathoms to 300 fathoms.

Q. Where were you on the night of the collision

between the Henderson and the Samson?

A. I was there on the river.

Q. Fishing? .

A. Yes, fishing.

'Q. Who was in the boat with you?

A. Martin Loaland.

Q. What sort of a boat do you use?

A. Gasoline boat.

Q. About how long is she?

A. About 26 foot ten inches long and eight feet

wide or eight feet deep; five horse power engine ma-

chine.

Q. Where do you lay out your nets to start to

drift ? About what part of the river, I mean.

A. Just below that point there at that time.

Q. Below the high bluff?

A. Yes.
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O. The bluff on the Oreg:on side of the river?

A. Yes.

O. And which end of yotir net do you lay out

first?

A. Towards the Oregon side, towards the bluff

there.

'O. And where does the other end of your net lay

at, when you have finished laying out?

A. On this range line.

O. About on the range?

A. Yes, soniewheres around there, close on the

range.

O. Is your net straight across the channel, or at

an angle? Do you know what I mean by an angle?

A. Xo, not exactly.

^Ir. C. E. S. WOOD: Speak a little louder, will

you please.

A. No, not exactly know what he means by an

angle. We lay it out across, right across, as near as

we can.

O. Now, whv is it that vou don't want 3'our—the

east end of your net to go beyond the range? Why is

it you lay it out about on the range?

A. Well, in one way, if we get on the other side,

wliy it draws too close off 10 the island, and there is

snags and things that destroy our nets.

O. \Mien you lay out a net with its west end to-

ward the bluff, and its east end out on the range, how

does it drift?

A. Straight down on the range. It f(dlows the
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range. Kind of draws in a little toward the island

side or Washington shore.

Q. That is the east end of the net keeps about on

the range, or draws slightly towards the Washing-

ton shore?

A. Yes.

O. Now, you tell the Court how the currents are

there wdien the tide has been a nine foot tide, and is at

half ebb, how do the currents go?

A. Well, at that time the currents go towards

—

straight down until it gets towards—until it strikes

the shallow w^ater there around the point of Tenas

Illihee, and from there it goes right towards the

Washington shore, after it gets below the island.

'O. A Httle louder.

A. I say from that point at that time, the tide, it

goes about straight down.

COURT: The current?

A. The current, yes ; it goes straight down toward

Tenas Illihee, and from there it strikes the shallow

water, so it turns toward the Washington shore. I

don't mean straight across the river, but slantways

down. The tide goes toward that side.

O. Well, when you lay out your net as you have

described it, up by the bluff, is there any current

which sucks your net down the Clifton Channel or

not?

A. Not at that time.

Q. Not at what time?

A. At that time.
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O. You mean not at that stage of the water?

A. Not at that stage of the water.

0. How far down the river do you (h-ift from the

hluff?*

A. Just below that sand bar there, below the point

of the island.

O. Have you any idea—which island do you

mean ?

A. Puget Island.

O. Have you any idea how far that is—how long

your drift is?

Mr. SNOW: In distance.

A. Well, I don't know exactly how long it is.

'O. After you finish your drift, what do you do?

Where do you go?

A. Well, we haul our nets in the boats and then

we go back again to the tow head and wait for our

next chance.

Q. What is the tow head?

A. Well, there is lots of boats laying there, and we

have so many minutes between each time.

Q. You take your turn drifting?

A. Turn, yes.

(J. Yes, but I just want to know what the tow

head is.

A. It is the place where the fishermen stops.

O. Where they tie up?

A. Tie up, yes.

O. And about where is the tow head?

A. Well, it is a little wavs above the lower end
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of the island there.

O. Which island?

A. Puget Island.

'O. A little above the lower end of Puget Island?

A. A little ways above that.

O. And about how far out from the shore? Is it

close to the shore, or far out, or how far is it?

A. Just as far out as we can float there on any

tide.

Q. As far out as you can float on any tide?

A. Yes, about 40 fathoms or so from real dry

main land.

Q. Where were you and what were you doing

when the Henderson and the oil barge passed you

that night?

COURT: Are you going into that phase of the ex-

amination now?

Mr. ERSKIXE WOOD: Yes, sir.

COURT: We will adjourn until 1 :30.

Portland, Ore., Wednesday, Jan. 8, 1913, 1 :30 P. M.

Mr. ERSKINE WOOD: Mr. Minor has not got-

ten here yet, your Honor, and in his absence I might

read a short deposition which I wish to put in.

COURT: He is familiar with it?

Mr. ERSKINE WOOD: He has a copy of it.

COURT: Very well.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: How about objections to

that? Are they reserved to be made at the hearing?

Mr. ERSKINE WOOD : I guess they were ; noth-

ing said in the stipulation about it.
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Mr. C. K. S. WOOD: He might want to make

some objections to it.

Mr. ERSKIXE WOOD: Xo, they weren't; they

were made at the time.

Deposition of W^illiam Kalberg offered in evidence,

and Marked "LibeUant's Exhil)it 3" and read to the

Court.

EDDIE GROVE, Resumes the stand.

Direct Examination continued.

Oestions by Mr. ERSKIXE WOOD:

WMiere were you lying in your boat on that night

of the colhsion when you first saw the Henderson

and the oil barge coming up the river? Where were

you ?

A. On our tow head.

O. Can't you speak up a little louder?

A. On the tow head.

O. And did you wait at the tow head any length of

time, or not ?

A. Oh, we waited there a little while.

O. Wliy did you wait at the tow head?

A. For to come my turn.

Q- "1^^ .^ct your turn ?

A. Yes, sir.

O. I will ask you whether or not it was part of

your ol)ject to lie at the tow head until the Hender-

son could get by you? Was that in ^our mind, or

not?

A. Xo, not necessarily.
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O. Did vou understand what I mean?

A. T think I do.

Q. I just want you to be sure you understand

what I mean. I mean, you wxre lying at the tow

head and saw the Henderson coming up the river

down below you? That is right, isn't it?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, did you lie at the tow head partly with

the object of waiting until the Henderson could pass

you and be out of the way of your drift, or did you

not?

A. No, not really. We was mostly—most of the

time was w^aiting for our turns.

Q. All right. I thought you told me you did,

and I just wanted to be sure you understood. Well,

then, wdien it came your turn to lay out your net,

you went and laid it out and commenced to drift

down. Is that right?

A. Yes.

O. Now, then, about where were vou driftingf

when the Henderson and the oil barge passed you?

A. Just below that tow head there.

Q. Just below the tow head?

A. Yes, sir.

O. And about where would the east end of your

net be lying?

Mr. SNOW: What is the east end of the net]^

Mr. ERSKINE WOOD: The Puget Island end of

the net.

:\Ir. SNOW : The Washington side of it.
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A. Even with the ran,^*e lii^lits.

O. Al)(>ul even willi the rani^e lii^iUs.

A. Ves, sir.

{}. And llie net extended ()\er towards Tenas [lli-

hee Island?

A. Yes, sir.

O. About how far?

A. 140 or 150 fathoms.

O. And at wliieh end of the net were you lying- at

with yoitr boats?

A. The island end of the net.

O. The island end of the nets?

A. Yes.

(). About on the ranire?

A. Yes.

O. Which side of you did the Henderson and the

oil barge pass?

A. On the island side.

O. Which island?

A. Puget island.

O. Why did they pass on that side of you?

A. Because I wanted them to go on that side.

O. How did you indicate to them that you w^anted

them to go on that side?

A. Hy showing them a light.

g. What light?

A. The green light.

{}. Xnd Vvh\- did you want them to go on that side

of you?

A. So thev wouldn't destrov niv net.
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Q. And about how far away from you did they

pass?

A. As close as they could get by.

O. Did the barge seem to be steering all right to

pass you that way?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, after—well, first I will ask you whether

or not you had noticed whether the Samson had come

into view at the time that the Henderson passed you?

A. No, I didn't notice the Samson, yet.

'O. Then, what course did the oil barge and the

Henderson take right after they had passed you?

A. Swinging towards the Oregon shore .

O. Did they swing easy, or quite a sharp swing,

or how was it?

A. Oh gradually.

Q. Gradually across the range?

A. Yes.

Q. Towards the Ore^'on shore?

A. Yes.

O. Did you notice whether they swung over that

way pretty far or not?

A. They went pretty far over there.

O. What made you notice that or them so?

A. Why, we was standing there looking at them.

Q. Did you have, or did you not have any idea that

they were getting too far over that way?

A. I thought they was getting so far over that

they looked to me like they was going on shore.

Q. Do you mean going right up on the shore, or do
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you mean getting into shallow water?

A. Well, into shallow water.

Q. Do you know about how long after the Hen-

derson crossed the range towards the Oregon shore

that the Samson came into your view? Do you re-

member anything about that?

A. The Samson came into sight just as the—or I

saw the Samson in sight when the oil barge was by

me.

O. When the oil barge was by you?

A. Yes.

O. When you went across the range?

A. Was by me.

COURT: Do you mean went by you, or was by

you?

A. Was by me.

O. Do vou mean verv soon after it went by vou,

or how?

A. Yes.

O. Did you pay any attention to the whistles?

A. No—well, T heard two or three whistles. I

heard w^iistles. I heard them blow.

O. Well, do vou remember what thev were, or

not?

A. Yes, I remember that there was a whistle

from that—either from the oil barge, or from that

Henderson biowed. I don't know exactly which boat

was blowing, because I wasn't on shore.

O. What whistle was it?

A. r>lew one whistle.
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Q. Did you hear it answered?

A. Yes.

Q. Hear any more whistles?

A. A little while after that, why they blew one

more.

Q. What did you hear after that?

A. Well, I don't remember if I heard the answer

or not.

Q. Did 3^ou hear any danger whistles?

A. Yes, I heard danger whistles.

Q. Did that cause you to look up in that direc-

tion, or pay any attention ?

A. Yes, we was looking that way all the time.

'Q. All the time. Why were you? Why would

you be looking up there?

A. Well, after he—because first we was watching

that oil barge that was going, gradually going across.

It seemed to us he was getting pretty close to the

Oregon shore.

Q. Did you hear the crash of the collision?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you see the lights of the boats, or where

the boats were at the time of the collision?

A. No, not exactly. Somewheres near it.

O. Well, just roughly, about where do you think

the boats were at the time of the collision ? If vou

could see anything in the night time to give you an

idea where thev were.

A. They was right out from that bluff there.

O. Which side of the river?
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A. On the Oregon side.

O. Close in, or not?

A. Pretty close in.

O. Did you hear any anchor chains going out?

A. I heard anchor chains go right after the crash.

^Q. How did it seem to you that these danger

whistles were blown? A long or short time or what

time before the collision?

A. Oh, it was all at the same time: first the whis-

tles, then the crash, then the anchor, right after it.

O. Then the anchor, did you say?

A. Last, yes.

O. Now, what did vou do then after the collision ?

A. We picked up our net and came up back again.

O. Did you finish your drift, or not?

A. Yes, we finished our drift.

O. How far down did that take you?

A. We was just a little below that sand bar there,

just above that range of lights.

O'. Have you any idea how far that would be be-

low the point of Puget Island?

A. No, I don't know how^ far it is.

Q. Can't you just make a guess about it? I don't

mean to tie you down. Well, bye and bye T will let

you locate that sand bar on the map, and wc will show

about where you were. Now, after you picked up

your net, where did you go?

A. On the tow head.

(). P)ack to the tow head?

A. ^'es.
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O. Then where did you go?

A. From there over to the Henderson.

O. And about where was the Henderson lying?

A. Was lying abreast of that Puget Island point,

across in the line about Tenas Illihee Island point,

dow^n in the river there.

O. Which side of the river?

A. Oh, on the Oregan side of the river.

O. Over the point of Tenas Illihee Island?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And did you notice—where did you go after

you left the Henderson?

A. We went up and laid out our net again.

Q. Well, on the way, from the tow head to the

Henderson, did you notice the location of tw^o of the

stone barges?

A. Yes.

O. Where were they?

A. They were just out a little—pretty near

straight out—a little below the tow head.

Q. Pretty near straight out a little below the tow

head?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Which side of the range were they on?

A. They were on the Oregon side.

'Q. Well, about how far over do you think?

A. I don't know how far ; a little ways on the other

side.

Q. A little ways the other side of the range. Any
idea how far?
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A. No, I don't know for sure how far.

O. What made you notice their location?

A. Why, to see if I could—if they was in the road

for my drift or not.

O. You were getting ready to make a new drift,

and you w^anted to know whether they were in your

way ?

A. Yes.

O. Did you make the new drift?

A. Yes.

O. Tell me how you made it?

A. Well, we had to lay out below the barges.

O. First, I will ask you, did you decide that these

two stone barges were in your way, or not?

A. Yes, they was in our way.

*0. Then, tell me how you made the drift?

A. Well, we laid out half of it, then we waited un-

til we got below, then we finished the rest of it.

O. Laid out half the net?

A. Something like that.

Q. Which half did you lay out?

A. Why, the Oregon end, the Oregon half.

O. Until you drifted below the two stpne barges?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Then laid out the rest of the net?

A. The rest of the net.

O. Where did the rest of the net reach to then ?

A. Reached into the range lights.

O. About on the range lights?

A. Yes.
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O. When you went to look at these two stone

barges to locate their position, to see whether they

were in the way of your making the drift, how close

did you go to them ?

A. Pretty close; I don't know exactly in the dark,

really how far away we was, but we was pretty close

to them.

O. I don't know just what you mean? Could you

touch them?

A. Not when we went by them the first time.

When we went by them with the net, then we could

touch them,

O. You could?

A. Yes.

O. Did vou see whether or not thev were at an-

chor?

A. They were at anchor then, yes.

Q. You say that you first saw the Samson after

the oil barge and the Henderson was by you?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you mean after they were alongside of you,

or after they had passed up above you?

A. After they had passed me.

O. Now, there is one more thing. I don't know
whether you know about it or not. Do you know
when the Kern passed down the river?

A. No, I have— I saw the Kern, but when she

passed us, I don't know.

'O. Do you have any idea of how far ahead of the

Samson the Kern was?



296 The Steamer Samson

A. No.

O. You don't know anything about that?

A. No.

O. Did you locate the position of the other stone

])arge? The single one?

A. Yes.

O. Where was it?

A. At the upper end of that sand bar.

O. At the foot of Puget Island?

A. Yes.

O. Which side of the rans^e was it?

A. On the island side of the range.

O. Puo^et Island side?

A. Yes, Puget Island side of the range.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: With the permission of the

Court, I will ask a question. Can't you say, Eddie,

about how long the Kern had gone by before you saw

the Samson's lights?

A. I cannot.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: Do you know whether she

had got out of your sight, the Kern?

A. I don't know anything about the Kern.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: Can't fix that?

A. I don't know^ anything about that.

Mr. SXOW: I understand vou to sav that the

Kern passed down ])efore the oil barge came up.

A. X'o, I don't know anything about that Kern at

all.

COURT: Are you through with the witness?

Mr. ERSKINE WOOD: No, vour Honor, 1 just
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want him to indicate on this chart.

'O. (Mr. ERSKINE WOOD) I don't know

whether I asked you how long your net was that

night.

A. 160 fathoms.

Q. Now, will you step down here. Do you recog-

nize that as a sketch of the river at that part? Do
you recognize the points there? Where is the point

of Puget Island there? Do you see how that is?

A. I don't understand that.

O. This is Puget Island here (indicating). Here

is the lower point. Here is meant to be Bugby Hole,

and here is Prairie or Clifton Channel, the head of

Tenas Illihee Island, the range light, and this is the

line of the range, and that is meant to be the sand

bar.

A. Which is the sand bar?

Q. This is supposed to be. If that isn't right, you

locate it.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: This being the lower point

of Puget Island, you locate the sand bar yourself, if

that isn't right.

A. Yes, that is right.

Q. Show first about where the tow head is. Just

take a pencil and make a mark where you think the

tow head is, about.

A. Is that the first slough? (indicating)

O. That is the bisf slou2:h.

A. Coming around the bend?

Mr. C E. S. WOOD: Where you live.
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A. The slough where that bridge is across, the pil-

ing. Right off by this slough is where we had the

tow head. It is out from there. It is just abreast of

it (indicating).

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: A little away from there?

How would this point do?

A. Yes.

Mr. C E. S. WOOD: "A". Call this Libellant's

Exhibit 4.

Map identified offered in evidence and marked

"Libellant's Exhibit 4."

A. Where is that point supposed to be on this

map ?

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: Here is your slough where

you live. You can mark where you think it is your-

self. Here is your slough. There is where you live

—

on the large slough.

A. Yes, we live at the large slough.

O. Now, you mark the bluff about where you

think it is.

A. Must be about here, if this is the range (indi-

cating).

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: Point B on Exhibit 4 is the

point of the bluff.

A. What is that supposed to be for (indicating) ?

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: That is to show the way the

river runs. That is to indicate what is downstream.

'O. Let him indicate about where he lays

out his net?

A. (Indicating) From here into the range lights,
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bii^ some times we come in here.

COURT: A little louder.

A. Sometimes we come in here, sometimes there

and sometimes there (indicating).

]\Ir. C. E. S. WOOD : Where on this map, this be-

ing the point of the bluff, do you commence to drift?

A. Just a little ways below there we start in. You

see, the tide is going down, as we are starting here.

We get a little further down all the time we go there.

Generally we get through just abreast the tow head,

somewheres around there.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: How far off shore do you

start to drift?

A. I don't know.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: If he can say about how far

off-shore he starts to drift, then he could indicate it

on here.

A. I don't know how far out from shore we start

in. I couldn't tell.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: Now, call this a thousand

feet to the inch. That is laid out there from shore

—

call that distance out there about a thousand feet from

shore, about one inch out from shore is about a thou-

sand feet.

Q. (Mr. ERSKINE WOOD) Locate about

where you put the east end of your net on the range.

You said you put that on the range. Now, locate that

first.

A. (Indicating) Right here.

Mr. C E. S. WOOD : Here is the tow head here.
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A. Right across from the tow head. Right about

on the ranges here. Sometimes we go maybe just

barely l)y it; sometimes right in it; sometimes might

be a Httle on this side. But the nearest Hne is we just

go on the range Hne.

O. So when you finish laying out, the east end of

the net is abreast of the tow head?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Now, where do you start in laying out the west

end of your net?

A. (Indicating) This side.

O. Whereabouts?

A. Well, we start out far enough to reach in there

(indicating).

O. Above the tow head?

A. A little above the tow head.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: Did he say what was the

length of his net?

Mr. ERSKINE WOOD : He said 160 fathoms.

Mr. C E. S. WOOD: That is how many feet?

Mr. SNOW: Practicallv a thousand feet.

Questions by Mr. C. E. S. WOOD:
Now, vou indicate the best vou can where vou start

in, in reference to being by this point—where you

start in to drift.

A. Where we start in to drift?

O. Yes.

A. \\nien we are through into there, then we drift

on down.

'O. As I understand it, in laying out your net, you
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commence to lay on the Oregon side of the range?

A. Yes, sir.

O. And end up on the range?

A. Yes.

0. Then about how far from the range do you

commence to lay out? How far on the Oregon side of

the range do you commence to lay out?

A. About 140 fathoms.

O. And about how far upstream or downstream,

or abreast of the tow head, do you commence to lay

out?

A. We start about—we start out from here right

between the slough and the tow head, about.

Q. Between this slough called ''C"—between that

slough and the tow head?

A. Yes.

Q. Between the slough marked "C and the tow

head?

A. We are out here and kind of look across.

Q. Would that be about what you think, right

where you would commence something like that (in-

dicating) ?

A. I couldn't exactly say down there.

Mr. ERSKINE WOOD: It isn't meant to be ex-

act.

'O. Then we will say that the point marked ''D"

is about where you commence to drift? I will just

assume that. Now, then, you lay it out, and as you

lay it out, you drift with the current?

A. Yes, sir.
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O. And end up about opposite the tow head?

A. Yes.

O. So then, it would he a hne, would it, some-

thing- like this?

A. x\o.

O. Into the range light?

A. No.

O. Why not?

A. This is drifting down all the time while we

are putting out our net.

O. This point I marked "D" is movable, is going

down with the current?

A. Yes, moving with the tide.

Mr. ERSKINE WOOD: That would mark the

course of their boat.

O. So the line ''DE" is not right, but the point ''D"

moves downward, and the point "D" is your boat,

and moves down with the tide. That is vour idea?

A. Yes.

Mr. ERSKINE WOOD : I will ask this : Does the

dotted line from D to E mark the course of your boat

as you lay out your net? Ts that the way your boat

drifts as you lay out your net?

A. I don't quite understand what you really mean.

'O. Something like this: You start to lay out at

the point "D"?

A. Yes.

O. And you end up opposite the tow head, on the

range at the j)oint "E"?

A. Yes.
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Q. Now, you must go from one point to the other

on some kind of a Hue. What Hne would you say

would be right to show the way you pass from "D"

over to "E"?

Mr. MINOR: He hasn't said he started at "D'^

yet. You said you supposed that.

A. It is according to the wind, you know. When
it blows hard wind, we move to face more down. If

it is calm, we just face our boat just enough to keep

up with this buoy we have, so when we get finished

laying out, that is straight for our boat.

O. So the point "D" represents a buoy to which

vour net is attached?

A. Yes.

O. And that buoy drifts down the stream?

A. Yes, sir.

O. And when you finish up at "E" opposite the

tow head, the buoy should be just about straight

across?

A. Somewhere around there, as close as we can

get it.

0. Then it would be something like the line "FE"
w^ould it, something like that line?

A. Something like that when we get through.

•Q. When you finish drifting—finish laying out?

A. Finish laying out.

O. After the net is straightened out, then, on the

line 'TE" to the range, you then drift on down the

river with it, straight out that way, between the buoy

and the boat, do you? Drift on further down the
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river?

A. Yes, sir.

O. How far do you ^o before yon end \'onr fish-

ing?

A. We start to haul it up about here, and when

we get down here we get it up?

O. Start to haul it up about "H" and get it up

about "G"—is that right?

A. Well, it ought to be moved a little further.

O. Can't vou state bv the river. You start to haul

it up opposite the sand bar? Is that the idea?

A. The lower end of the sand bar.

O. And get it up about what time?

A. According to the tide—how fast the tide is

going.

Cross Examination.

Questions bv Mr. MINOR:

Where were vou when vou saw the lis^hts of the

Henderson and the oil barge?

A. On the tow head.

'O. Now, what did vou do after vou saw the licrhts

of the Henderson and the oil barge?

A. I was on the tow head there. Didn't do any-

thing.

O. Didn't do anything?

A. No.

O. How long did you stay there?

A. I stayed there until my turn came.

O. Did you stay there until after the Henderson

passed ?
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A. No.

Q. Then where did you go when your turn came?

A. Went out to lay out.

Q. Which way did you go when you went to lay

out?

A. Went from the tow head over here.

O. What direction did you go?

A. Direction?

Q, Yes.

A. The only direction we go, we went over to-

wards the Oregon shore. That is the way we go

from there. Ain't got really no rule, exactly.

O. Do you know where the upper end of Tenas

Illihee Island is?

A. Yes, I know where that is.

Q. Did you go in that direction?

A. No.

Q. You go above that?

A. Yes.
•

'
:";

Q. How much above that do you go?

A. Quite a long ways above that.

*0. About how far, do you think?

A. I don't know how far.

Q. Do you go as much above as your net is long?

A. Yes.

Q. More than the length of your net above that?

A. As I say, I don't know how long it is.

O. I know% but I say, more than the length of

your net above that, do you?

A. I don't know how far. We go from the tow
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head straight over towards the hluff.

Q. Towards the bluff?

A. Yes.

O. Now, can you mark on that diagram where the

Henderson was when you first saw her?

A. Can I walk on it?

O. Can you mark? Can you mark on that dia-

gram where the Henderson was when you first saw

her?

A. I saw her when going down here to the sand

bar.

'*0. When you were on the tow head, she was at the

sand bar?

A. Yes, or somewheres near the sand bar. Might

be further. I wouldn't say just exactly abreast of the

sand bar, but somewheres around there.

O. Somewheres around the sand bar?

A. Yes.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: He doesn't mean the sand

bar.

Mr. MINOR: No: I understand.

Q. Where were you when the Henderson passed

you ?

A. Just finished laying out my net here, and the

Henderson was just a little bit below^ me.

Q. A little bit below you?

A. Yes.

Q. How far away was the Henderson from yott

at that time?

A. Just a little ways.
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Q. Well, do you think it was as much as the length

of your net?

A. No.

Q. One half as much as the length of your net?

A. Just a little ways. As I say, it would be about

—as I should think— I don't know for sure, but some-

wheres about around 100 feet.

•Q. 100 feet below you. And she passed between

you and Puget Island?

A. Yes, close by the boat. -

Q. Now, at that time you must have been very

close to the point you mark here as ''E", were you?

A. Yes, just a little bit below there. I just fin-

ished there and before he got by me, was a little fur-

ther down.

Q. Then where did she go after she passed you?

A. She was swinging over towards this way.

Q. Swinging over towards the bluff?

A. Yes, towards the Oregon shore.

Q. She didn't swing over at a sharp angle. She

swung over gradually, didn't she?

A. Yes, kind of gradually.

Q. Not a sharp angle, but gradually.

A. Just swinging—she didn't go exactly around;

just swinging over towards the Oregon shore right

along. She was going towards that way. If she was

swinging all the time, I wouldn't say for sure, but she

was going towards that way.

Q. Did you look at her any more after that ?

A. I was looking at her all the time from that time
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until tlic collision happened.

'O. \yhat could you see of her from that time on?

A. Couldn't see nothin.q- of her, hut we could see

the masts and the boats and the lights.

O. What ligfhts could vou see? See the red light

and the green light?

A. We saw them before she passed us.

Q. Could you see them after she passed?

A. I never took no notice of that.

O. What could vou see?

A. We could see the boats.

O. See the boats themselves?

A. See the boats, yes. The Henderson and that

oil tank.

O. Could actuallv see the boats themselves; see

the hulls, could you?

A. See the outside of them.

O. Could see the outside of the hulls. Could you

see that all the way until the collision took place?

A. 1 could see the shadow of it in the water.

'Q. Was there any light to cause a shadow?

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: The reflection.

A. The reflection, T mean. We could see the

lights on the boats all the time, of course.

O. What lights could you see on the boats? That

is what I asked you.

A. We didn't pay any attention to what kinds of

lights it was, but we could see them bright lights,

towing lights.

O. How many of them were there?
»>»' * . ..
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A. I didn't pay no regular attention to how many

there were.

Q. Were those Hghts you saw on the Henderson

or on the barge?

A. I don't remember.

Q. And you can't say how many Hghts you saw?

A. No, I didn't count them at all.

Q. Was there any light on the barge at all that

you could see after she passed you?

A. That I don't know.

Q. Was there any light on the Henderson you

could see after she passed you?

A. I don't know which. If they was on the Hen-

derson or on the barge, I didn't look.

'Q. And you can't tell how many lights you saw?

A. No.

Q. But you could see the vessels themselves, could

vou?

A. I could see them, yes, when they went by me.

Q. But after they went by you, could you still

see them?

A. Yes, they was a little ways by, yes.

O. Could you see them up to the time the collision

took place?

A. Could see the mast of the oil barge.

Q. Could see the mast of the oil barge when the

collision took place?

A. Just before it took place.

O. Could you see them at the time the second

whistle was sounded?
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A. Yes.

O. See the mast on the oil barge?

A. Yes.

O. Could you see anything on the Henderson at

the time the second whistle was sounded?

A. I don't remember.

O. But you remember seeing the mast on the oil

barge at the time the second whistle was sounded?

A. Yes, sure, we could see that, because that stuck

so high up in the air.

'O. And could you see the mast on the oil barge

at the time the collision took place, or at the time the

crash took place?

A. I did not look just before. I don't remember

that because we was standing looking at it.

O. I thought vou testified that the second whis-

tie and the crash came right pretty close together?

A. Yes.

O. If vou heard the second whistle and looked

around well, bv the time vou looked around there, the

crash would be on ?

A. I say was looking at the boats when the crash

came.

Q. You were looking but you can't say whether

you could see the mast, or not?

A. I said I could see— I was looking at the boats.

We could see the lights, and could see the boat was

moving right along.

O. At the time the crash came?

A. Until the crash came, w^e could see the boats.
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'O. How far do you think they were from you at

the time the crash came?

A. That I don't know, either.

O. As far from you as the length of your drift

net?

A. I don't know how far they were from me,

—

far apart.

Q. You think they were as far from you as the

length of your drift net?

A. That is all I know; when the crash came, I was

abreast the point here, the point of the island.

O. Oh, when the crash came, you were at the

point of the island?

A. Yes.

Q. So you had drifted down to the point of the

island at the time the crash came?

A. Yes.

Q. Then I will mark—were you still on the range

lights at that time?

A. Yes.

0. So, when the crash came, you were here at

point ^T", were you?

A. I was at the point of the island.

O. About where I mark this letter 'T"? Is that

right?

A. Yes.

O. And at that time you could still see the mast

of the oil barge, and see the outline of the boats?

A. Yes, we could even see the Samson coming

down further up.
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O. I know, but could you see the outline of these

two boats—the Henderson and the oil barge at that

time? Is that right?

A. Yes, I could see the boats, yes.

O. Now, after the crash you drifted on down un-

til you had taken in your nets, did you?

A. Yes.

O. That is, down about "G," as you say?

A. Yes.

O. About how far is it from where you were when

you saw—or heard the crash, to the point where you

got your nets in?

A. I don't know how far it is.

O. How long did it take you to get there?

A. I don't know.

O. You don't know how long it took you to go

there?

A. No.

O. Now, after you took your nets in you went

back, did you, to the tow head?

A. Yes, sir.

O. And how far were you from the tow head at

the time that vou took in your nets?

A. I don't know.

Q. Can't you approximate it, even?

Mr. ERSKINE WOOD: He doesn't know what

approximate means.

Q. Can you guess at it? If you can't, say you

can't.

COURT: What is your best judgment about how
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far?

A. Oh, around a mile.

'O. Around a mile. Your boat is a gasoline boat,

is it?

A. Yes.

Q. How long would it take you to go up from

—

take your gasoline boat to go a mile?

A. That depends on the way I am traveling.

Q. Well, the way you travel when you go back to

the tow head.

A. That I don't know. I never did time it at all.

Q. Take you five minutes, you think?

A. Oh, take more than that.

Q. Take you ten minutes?

A. Yes— just according to how fast we go. We
don't always go—I don't know how fast we go.

Q. This particular night you speak of, do you

think it took you ten minutes to go from the place you

got your nets in, to the towhead?

A. I don't know, but the only thing I can tell is

just on a rough guess.

'Q. Well, what is your best judgment?

A. About 15 minutes.

Q. 15 minutes. Now, how long did you stay at

the tow head after you got there?

A. Just a short time.

Q. Then where did you go?

A. Went from there over to the Henderson.

Q. Where was the Henderson at that time?

A. He was on the ground there, laying there still.
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O. Can you mark on this map about where you

think the Henderson was?

A. I can somewhere near it.

Q. Well, mark where you think the Henderson

was. Take this pencil and mark where you think the

Henderson was at that time.

A. She was right opposite the point here, some-

wheres around; just on a rough guess, I can mark it

just as I think.

Q. Well, mark it where you think she was.

A. Oh, just about somewheres around here (in-

dicating on Exhibit 4).

Mr. C E. S. WOOD: The point "J."

O. She was below the tow head, was she?

A. Yes.

O. Did you go straight over from the tow head

to where the Henderson lay?

A. Straight?

O. Yes.

A. Why, we ran out kind of not exactly straight

for the Henderson, but kind of towards that direc-

tion (indicating).

Q. As straight as you could go?

A. Not exactly as straight as we could go, but

}ou see when we left the tow head there, I saw these

rock barges laying in here, so I went by them
;
just

saw where they were.

O. Where were the rock barges at that time? Can

vou tell me where thev were at that time. Mark on

the chart if you can.
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A. They lay just a little way outside the range

here.

'Q. Mark it as nearly as you can.

Mr. C E. S. WOOD: What does he mean by out-

side of the range? I would like to have it in the rec-

ord.

COURT: The Court understands it means out-

side of where he was when he started.

A. Outside the range; I mean the Oregon side of

the range.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: You mean the Oregon side

of the range.

0. Mark where the rock barges were when you

went to them, as nearly as you can.

A. (Indicating) On the map it don't take very

far, but I will do it as near as I think. I don't know;

somewhere about there.

Q. We will mark that *'K." How many barges

were there?

A. Two.

Q. Were they anchored?

A. I didn't look if they was anchored. I don't

remember if they was anchored then, or not, when

we went over. I don't remember.

O. Were they the same place when you got back

to them?

A. Yes, same place.

O. Were they anchored when you got back to

them?

A. Yes, were anchored then.



316 The Steamer Samson

O. Where was the other rock barge?

A. The other rock barge was down here (indicat-

ing)-

Mr. C E. S. WOOD: Which side of the range?

O. Mark where it was on the map.

A. On the Washington side of the range.

Q. Now, mark it, please. Mark it with "L."

(Witness does so.) Was it anchored?

A. She was anchored.

O. Now, when did you first see that rock barge?

A. When we was drifting—when we— I first saw

it when we was going up to lay out, when we saw it

there.

O. You were going up to lay out?

A. Yes.

O. You mean the first lay out, or the second lay

out?

A. No, the second time.

O. When you came from where you were at the

time you took your drift nets in, which way did you

go?

A. Straight up towards the sand bar, and from

there to the tow head.

'O. Then when vou ended up there, did vou see

that rock barge?

A. When we went up there?

O. When vou went up?

A. I don't remember.

O. Don't remember seeing it?

A. No.
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Q. You passed pretty close to it—where she was,

didn't you?

A. Not far away.

O. You passed—how close do you think you

passed to where she was when you did see her?

A. Right—we was drifting by it.

Q. When you went from where drifting to the

tow head, you passed right close to it, if in the same

place ?

A. Yes, pretty close, if she was there, but as I

say, I don't recollect there was any barge there when

we went up.

Q. Don't remember whether she was there or not?

A. No.

'Q. When you came back?

A. When we came back, she was there.

Q. And you drifted, undertook to drift next time?

A. Yes.

Q. You commenced to play out your net, and you

had to stop and put the net down below the two rock

barges, did you?

A. Yes.

O. And then you drifted on down, and the other

barge wasn't in your way?

A. No, that wasn't in our way. We just went

clear of that.

O. Went clear of that?

A. Yes.

O. Was that barge at anchor at that time?

A. Was anchored at that time.
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O. Anchored at that time. Did you see those

rock barges when the Samson took them away?

A. Yes.

O. Were they irt the same places at that time?

A. Yes.

O. As they were when you saw them that night?

A. Yes.

O. So, when the Samson came and took those

barges away, they were in exactly the same places

where they were anchored that night?

A. Yes, sir.

O. I understand you live up this slough here,

which is above Ostervolt's?

A. Yes.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: What is the name of the

slough ?

A. Algrove or Grove Slough. I don't know which

is really it. I have heard them call it both.

O. Now, you said something about there being

some piling at the end of one of these sloughs. Which

slough is that?

A. At the second slough.

O. The slough marked *'C," is it?

A. The one just below.

O. Where is Ostervolt's house?

A. That is right here, just right along—just down

the river, just as you go in the slough.

O. Piclow the slough, is it?

A. ^'es.

O. Below Grove Slough?
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A. Yes.

O. And where is Ostervolt's seining ground?

A. Right there.

Q. And how far down does it run?

A. (Indicating) It runs down to that where he

is working, where he is seining. Right down to that

slough that the pihngs are, *'C."

Q. That piHng was an old fish trap?

A. No, that was only drove there, across the

slough—droven in the slough there.

Q. Can you tell me where the Samson was when

you first saw her lights?

A. I can't tell, but I know she was all in sight.

Q. Where were you when you first saw the Sam-

son's lights?

A. We was just right below the oil barge here.

When the oil barge passed us, we looked up that way

and saw^ the Samson.

'Q. You saw the Samson's lights as soon as the oil

barge passed you?

A. Yes, when we looked up. If she just come in

sight, I don't know, but she was in sight then. I

didn't pay no real attention.

O. You couldn't tell me how far she was?

A. No.

Q. How far up the river she was?

A. No.

O. When you went over to the Henderson, who
was on the Henderson?

A. Nobodv on the Henderson then.
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Q. Everybody been taken off?

A. Yes.

O. Did you see the Samson j^o over to the Hen-

derson?

A. No, but I saw the Samson had a search Hght on

the Henderson.

O. Did you see her go over to the Henderson?

A. No.

Q. Didn't see her go to the Henderson?

A. Not that I can remember; so long ago.

O. Did you see any boat go from the Samson to

the Henderson?

A. No.

O. Didn't see that cither?

A. No.

O. After the colHsion, did you see the rock barges

of the Samson until you saw them anchored?

A. I saw one on the lower side of the Samson

when she showed the search light after the collision.

O. On the lower side—that means the Washin"-

ton side.

A. No, down the river.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: Her port side?

A. Well, she was really on her

—

Mr. MINOR: Starboard side.

A. She had her bow towards this wa}^ la^'ing this

way, and the barge was on that side, and her stern

was facing kind of towards the island upstream, be-

cause when she showed her search light, I could see

the rock barge.
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O. What could you see?

A. I say I could see, when she throwed her search

Hght, the other

—

O. You could see the rock on the barge, could

you ?

A. I could see the Henderson at the same time.

Q. Was there any light on that barge?

A. I don't know.

Q. You didn't see any if there was?

A. No.

Q. When you saw the Samson coming down the

river, first, what lights did you see?

A. I saw her tow lights, what we call two bright

lights.

Q. Did you see any other lights?

A. I saw a bright light, as I can remember, on

the scow.

0. How many?

A. I saw one. .

Q. Only one?

A. Yes.

'O. Did you see any red and green lights?

A. I didn't pay no attention to that at all.

Q. Where were you when the Samson picked up

these barges the next morning?

A. Was laying right here on the tow head.

Q. Right on the tow head?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you could see her go there and pick them

up ?
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A. She was lying there then when we got back

from that second trip.

O. Will you tell me how far, in your judgment, it

is from the tow head to the range of lights? How far

do you think it is from the tow head to the range

of lights?

A. I don't know how far it is.

O. Well, is it as far as your net is long?

A. That is— I don't know how far it is.

O. Do you know whether it is as far as your net

is long? In other words, Mr. Grove, if you were to

start to put out your nets from the tow head, towards

the range lights, would your net come up as far as the

range lights, in your judgment?

A. Oh, it would reach the range all right, if it was

straight.

'Q. It would reach the range?

A. I think, yes.

O. So you think your tow head was within a thou-

sand feet, that is, you say, within 150 fathoms from

the tow head—160 fathoms from the tow head?

A. Well, I don't think it is quite that far, but I

say I don't know.

(). It is within that, vou think, less than that?

A. Yes.

O. And how far did you say your tow head is

from shore?

A. Well, you see it is according to where a man

counts from. It is according to where he counts from.

If he counts from brush, it will be further than if he
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counts from beach ; it is almost dry to towhead, when

real low water, but it is a long beach going in there.

O. About how far do you think the tow head is

from the beach, at the ordinary stage of water?

A. As I said, I think it was about 40 fathoms, but

that isn't any longer than that, I don't think.

O. What whistles did you hear that you called

danger w^histles?

A. Blowing toot, toot, toot, toot; a whole lot of

whistles coming at one time.

O. Do you know^ what vessels blew these whis-

tles??

A. No, I said I don't know who blew them.

'Q. Now, something was asked you, Mr. Grove,

about currents. You say the current sets from the

point of the bluff toward the head of Tenas Illihee

Island.

A. Yes, heads down toward that way.

O. And I understanl you to say that if the water

was—if there was no tide running out, the current

would not set down Prairie or Clifton Channel?

A, No tide running out?

Q. If no tide was running out.

A. I really don't remember anything like that at

all ; low tide.

O. I didn't say low tide. I said no tide.

A. All I heard was half tide.

O. At half tide, would any current set down Clif-

ton or Prairie Channel?

A. Not really, from up there. If in kind of little
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ways outs from there, it would go kind of down, and

after it gets down there, sets down the other way.

Q. After it gets down to the head of Tenas IlHhee

Island, turns the other way?

A. When it strikes, it gets kind of shallow water,

the tide; less towards the channel, deeper the other

side.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: The Washington shore?

A. The Washington shore.

Q. It goes down toward Tenas Illihee Island, and

there the current goes down Clifton Channel?

A. No, goes pretty near straight down.

Q. A pretty large channel, this Prairie Channel?

A. But shallow, you know—no water.

O. Quite deep ; deep enough for boats that travel ?

A. In this ; very small boats.

0. Steamers like the Henderson tow up there,

don't they?

A. Yes, they can tow.

COURT: By straight down, you mean straight

down towards the head of Tenas Illihee Island?

A. Yes, the tide goes straight down towards that

way.

Q. How far above the point of Tenas Illihee Isl-

and, do you generally start to put out your net?

A. As I said, we put it out over here around right

over this way.

O. Around from the tow head over that way?

That means over towards the bluff, does it?

A. Yes, run over towards that old trap over there.
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Some old traps over there.

Q. Over towards that old trap.

Mr. ERSKINE WOOD: I want to clear that up.

O. Now, you said something about showing a

light?

Mr. ERSICINE WOOD : I don't understand, and I

don't know whether the witness does. I don't know

whether you mean that this is the course that the boat

runs to reach the point where they commenced to lay

out, or that they lay out in that direction. I just

want that to be clear.

Q. Mr. Grove, I understand that you showed the

Henderson a light when she was coming up to you?
A. Yes.

Q
A

Q
A
Q

and?

A
'Q

any

A
Q
A

had

'Q

A

What light did you show her?

Showed her the green light.

Showed her the green light?

Yes.

And she passed between you and Puget Isl-

Yes.

What light did she show? Did she show

light when she passed you?

I saw she had lights aboard.

What color lights did she show?

I don't remember what. I only saw that she

lights. I didn't look.

You don't remember what lights she showed?

I didn't pay any attention to it at all, as long

as I thought she went clear of me, that was all I

cared.
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Redirect Examination.

Questions by Mr. C. E. S. WOOD:
Eddie, when you showed your green Hght, and the

Henderson passed you, as I understood you to say,

you were right on the range?

A. Yes.

O. And after having passing you, she then crossed

over the range towards the Oregon shore?

A. Yes.

O. Who was with you in your boat at that time?

A. Martin Loaland.

O. Where do you Hve—on Grove Slough?

A. Yes.

O. This point marked here ''Grove Slough?'*

A. Right inside of there.

O. Now, when you were examined by Mr. Minor,

you said at different times that you saw the lights of

the oil barge and the Henderson ; that you saw their

hulls, and that you saw the mast of the oil barge, and

then you were asked whether you could see them

from—what was that point down here, ''G"? Now, I

think Mr. Minor asked you when you finished picking

up your net; I will say the sand bar. That is about a

mile away, I should judge.

A. He said from where we was when the collision

took place.

Mr. MINOR: From where you were at the time

the collision took place.

Mr. ERSKINE WOOD: He said it was off Pugct

Island.
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'Q. Now, I want to understand whether you mean,

in answering that, that from that point you could see

the Hghts or the masts or the hull or all of them. Just

say what you mean by that. I only want to get it

straight in the record.

A. Well, I could see that much that I knew that

that was the oil barge and the Henderson ; I could

sort of see the lights, and I could see that that was a

boat. You see I can see the boat further off. I can't

tell what boat it is, if not know the boat, but can see

it anyway.

Q. You have good eyesight, have you?

A. Oh, I can see before I can tell who it is.

Mr. GUTHRIE: You are very low in the water in

rowboats, and the other is high up?

A. Yes.

O. Did this mast go up so high that it was against

the sky?

A. I paid no attention to that, but they was pretty

high masts on that. I noticed that when they went

by.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: I want to ask a question in

rebuttal, in order to discharge him, but without pre-

cluding ourselves from going into the same question

with other witnesses.

O. Now, suppose the collision—just suppose this

—suppose the collision occurred over on the Puget

Island side of the range, and somewhere in the gen-

eral road between the range and the point markd

"C" here, the slough, and the Henderson was torn
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loose by the collision ; from your knowledge of the

current, of the river there and the channel, could the

Henderson have drifted of herself from that point

across to the point "J" where she was found?

A. Not as far as I know. She could never get

over there.

O. Well, why not? What is your reason for not

thinking so?

A. Why, she ought to have went down here.

Q. Why?
A. Why, that is the way I always find myself go-

ing down.

Q. And your boats are drifting with the current?

A. Yes, that is right.

•Q. That is your fishing boats?

A. Yes, that is right; have been doing that for a

good many years.

O. From this point below the—from a point below

the ])oint of the bluff, which way does the current set?

A. Point below the bluff?

Q. Yes, starting in from a point below the bluff, or

where you say the collision occurred, as you think it

did, and as you have said, from that point, or that

general neighborhood, which way does the current

flow?

A. It goes straight down, the way I think.

Q. Straight down the river?

A. Yes.

O. Main river?

Mr. I^RSKIXE WOOD: Take from a point 500
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feet, for example, off the bluff.

Q. Well, say a point 500 feet off the bluff, and

about opposite the point there, or near somewhere in

the general neighborhood of that fish trap. Would

your answer still be good, that the current runs

straight down the river?

A. Yes.

O. Now, if the Henderson was torn loose by a

collision occurring at a point, say, five or six hundred

feet off this bluff, in the general neighborhood of

where you say, where would the Henderson be apt to

drift?

A. Just where we found them.

Mr. GUTHRIE: Mr. Grove, did you observe the

location of the oil barge the next morning?

A. Yes.

Mr. GUTHRIE: Could you fix approximately on

the chart about the place where the barge lay. That

is, could you point out here where the barge lay the

next morning when you saw her?

A. I couldn't say for exact; if I could tell exactly

that place on the paper there.

Mr. GUTHRIE: Something like near the place.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: Let him state the river and

the bank and the point.

A. Right here at the upper end—the lower end of

it, would just—right down to that bunch of piling,

where had been an old trap; they anchored there right

out from where that bluff starts.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: How far offshore from the
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bluff?

A. Pretty close to shore.

Mr. GUTHRIE: 300 feet?

A. In my judgment, couldn't have been any more,

the way I judge, than about 150 feet from the real

rocks there, because I was alongside of her with the

])oat. I was looking at her.

O. (Mr. C E. S. WOOD) Could you locate ap-

proximately where these fish traps are—that old fish

trap?

Mr. ERSKINE WOOD: The old piling?

A. 1 don't see no piling there.

Mr. GUTHRIE: How near the point of the bluff?

A. She lay right in there where them old pilings

are.

'O. (Mr. C E. S. WOOD) : The pilings are there

now?

A. Yes.

O. ]\Iark here. We understand this is rough.

Just a general idea about w^here the pilings would be.

A. Well, I marked the bluff there.

O. Start from the tow head. Call that tow head

correct. Now locate the piling—the old fish trap.

Take the range light.

A. Them old pilings would be about here some

place.

O. The old ])ilings at the point marked ''M". Is

that right?

A. Yes, where them old pilings lay: I think they

arc : on that map.
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Examination by Mr. Guthrie.

Q. You think the barge lay just outside that old

piling the next morning?

A. Yes, I know it lay there, for I was over there

to look at it.

O. Just upstream, or just downstream, or just

abreast?

A. The stern was about down there, and it lay

downstream. The stern was low down, and the bow

starts up.

O. Located on the map as being just offshore

from "M."

A. That is as near as I can tell on this map.

It was right out from there, yes.

Mr. GUTHRIE: I mark it "N".

Mr. SNOW: Oil barge was off a point marked

A. Out right there where I put that round mark

there.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: Well, in the general neigh-

borhood of the point ''N".

A. Yes, somewhere like that, somewhere.

Witness excused.

MARTIN LOALAND, a witness called on behalf

of the libellant, being first duly sworn, testified as

follows

:

Direct Examination.

Questions by Mr. ERSKINE WOOD:
Mr. Loaland, where do vou live?
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A. Up at 16th and Thurnian Street, Portland.

Q. Speak up louder?

A. 16th and Thurnian.

O. What is your ])usiness?

A. 1 work here for the Portland Longshoremen.

O. Have you been in the fishing business?

A. Yes, was fishing with Eddie Grove this sum-

mer— 1911.

Q. How long were you in the fishing business?

A. Was fishing from the 1st of May until Christ-

mas.

O. Was that all the fishing you have done?

A. And was fishing last year in Astoria.

O. Have you fished any other years?

A. Have been fishing two years.

'O. Vou fished with Eddie Grove in the summer

of 1911?

A. Yes.

O. All summer?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Where did you fish? What part of the river?

A. In Puget Island—in the channel outside of

Puget Island.

O. Is that right, on the channel outside of Puget

Island?

A. Ves, between Oregon shore and Puget Island.

O. \Vere you in the boat with Eddie Grove on the

night of this collision?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Have you heard Grove's testimony here in the
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courtroom? You heard what he said?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Well, I think I will just ask you to go on and

tell what happened that night from the time you

were lying at the tow head. Tell what you saw and

what you did.

A. Well, we saw this

—

COURT: Speak up, so every one can hear you.

A. We were lying there; well, when we left the

tow head, we went out to lay our net, and just as we

finished laying out, the Henderson passed us; just as

we finished laying out the net.

^. Where were you then?

A. Was just a little below the tow head when she

passed us.

O. And which side of the range w-ere you on?

A. We was laying just a little inside the range,

about a couple of fathoms or so inside the range.

Q. What do you mean by inside?

A. On the Puget Island side.

Q. About a couple of fathoms inside the range?

A. Something like that; a little bit inside.

O. Then the Henderson passed you?

A. Yes.

Q. How close?

A. Prettv close.
ml

O. Then what did she do?

A. After they passed us, she headed on the Ore-

gon shore ; crossed over on the Oregon side.

O. How much of a shear did she make?
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A. Kind of just slanted out a little bit; pretty far

over towards the Oregon shore.

O. Pretty far over towards the Oregon shore?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Did you watch her at all?

A. Yes, was looking at her.

O. Why were you watching her?

A. Sir?

O. Did vou have anv reason to watch her?

A. Xo ; well, we see—we thought she was going

too far over to the other side.

O. Too far over to the Orei^on side?

A. Yes, we thought was going getting pretty far

over.

O. On account of the shallow water over there?

A. Yes.

O. Then did you see the Samson?

A. Yes, see something; just a little after the Hen-

derson passed us, just a little after.

O. Then what did you see in relation to the two

boats? Did you see their course, or notice how they

went?

A. No, I didn't pay no attention to it; just looked

over.

O. Did you hear any whistles?

A. Yes.

O. Do you remember them?

A. Yes, pretty good.

O. What did you hear?

A. I hear first blow one whistle from the TTen-
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derson, or the oil barge— I don't know which.

O. Then what other whistles did you hear?

A. A short time after blow one signal more.

O. What boat?

A. Same boat; same whistle.

'O. Did yon hear the Samson answer either of

these whistles?

A. Well, I heard her answer the first whistle, but

I don't know whether answered the last whistle or

not.

O. Did vou hear any other whistles?

A. Heard a danger whistle just a short time after

the second whistle.

O. And how soon before the collision?

A. Just a few seconds.

O. Did you hear the collision?

A. Yes, sir.

O. You heard the boats come together?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Did vou hear anvthinsf more?

A. I heard a big noise.

'O. A bis: noise?

A. Yes.

O. Did you hear the anchor chains?

A. Yes, sir; Eddie says

—

O. Then what happened? What did Eddie say?

A. I asked Eddie what that noise is. He said ac-

count of anchor chains go out.

O. And how soon was that after the collision?

A. lust the same time.
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O. You say that the danger whistles and the col-

Hsion and the anchor chains were all very close to-

gether?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Did you finish your drift?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Then what did you do?

A. We picked up our net and went back to the

tow head.

'O. And then what?

A. We went over and took a look at the Hender-

son.

0. And where was she?

A. Pretty near down to Tenas Illihee Island.

O. Pretty near down to Tenas Illihee Island?

A. Way the other side there. I couldn't say ex-

actly where, but over on the other side.

O. Was it up above the point, or down below

the point, or abreast the point of Tenas Illihee?

A. A little bit above the point, I guess.

O. Then where did you go?

A. We went up a little while after to lay out our

net again.

O. Went up to lay out your net again?

A. Yes.

O. Did you notice the stone barges?

A. Yes, sir.

'O. Did you notice where they w^re Ivins:?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Where were they lying?
{
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A. Was lying on the Oregon shore ; on the Oregon

side of the range.

Q. About how far on the Oregon side of the

range?

A. How far from the range?

O. How far were these two stone barsfes on the

Oregon side of the range?

A. Something Hke 50 fathoms from the range.

O. How much?

A. 50 fathoms from the range.

Q. And state why you looked at them. WHiy did

you look at these stone barges?

A. Well, you see we was going to lay our net, and

we see it was in our road to drift. We see that it was

in our road, and we couldn't lay out our nets.

Q. I can't understand you. Can't you speak up

loud? You can hear me, can't you?

A. Yes, sir.

'Q. Well, you talk back to me.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: And don't talk quite so fast.

(Answer read.)

O. How did vou lav out your net?

A. We lay out half of it into the stone barges. We
started in to lay it all, and we met the stone barges,

and we had to stop and we drifted below^ the stone

barges; then we finished our laying out.

O. Laid out the other half of it below the stone

barges?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Where did the Puget Island end of your net
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reach then after you laid it out below the stone

barges ?

A. Into the range.

O. About on the range?

A. Yes.

O. Did you notice where the oil barge was an-

chored the next morning?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Where was it?

A. Just a little below that point.

O. What?

A. Below that point, I believe.

O. A little bit below the bluff?

A. Yes, sir.

O. How far?

A. Well I couldn't tell exactly how far from shore.

O. Did you notice the other stone barge, or the

one that was off alone?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where was it?

A. It was laying below Puget Island.

O. Below Puget Island?

A. "S^es, down to the sand bar.

*0. Down near the sand bar?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Which side of the range?

A. The Washington side.

O. How?
A. On the Washington side.

O. How far on the Washington side of the range?
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A. Not very far, though.

Q. Can you make a guess how far, just a guess?

A. No, not very well.

O. What? Well, if vou don't know, never mind.

When you laid out your net, as Eddie Grove has tes-

tified here today, up below the bluff, how does she

drift?

A. Straight down the river.

O. Straight down the river?

A. Yes.

•Q. Is there any suction to carry her down Clifton

Channel?

A. No.

O. If vou turn something: adrift off of that bluff,

four or five hundred feet, where does it drift on a half

tide, half ebb tide?

A. Well, I couldn't tell you that.

O. If the collision was over on the Puget Island

side of the river, near the little slough where the pil-

ing is across, if the collision was in close to that, and

the Henderson was wrecked there, do you think she

could have drifted across the current to the place

where you found her on the point of Tenas Illihee

Island?

A. No, could never do it.

O. Why not? ^

A. The tide goes along Tehas Illihee Island.

COURT: The tide or the current?

A. The current goes right down.
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Cross Examination.

Questions by Mr. MINOR:

What time was it when you left the tow head

to put out the drift?

A. Well, I couldn't say the time exactly. It was

round one o'clock we left the tow head, or something^

like that.

O. One o'clock?

A. Somethino^ like that. I am not sure, thouc^h.

O. Did you see the Henderson before you left

there?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Where was she?

A. Coming up the river.

O. Coming up the river?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How far down the river was she?

A. We see her when below the sand bar.

O. Below the sand bar?

A. We see her coming up the river.

O. And below tlie sand bar?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, you left the tow head, and which way

did you go?

A. We went over to the Oregon shore, the Ore-

gon side.

O. Did you go clear across?

A. \ es, we went right across.

O. Did you go clear across?
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A. Clear across, yes.

O. Clear across the river?

A. Yes.

Q. Clear to the Oregon shore?

A. No, not close to the shore. We went out, let's

see, 160 fathoms outside from the range.

O. How far were von from the Oreo^on shore?

A. Well, I don't know how far from shore.

•'0. Can't you estimate it?

A. Xo, I couldn't tell how far it is.

'O. Were you as far from the shore as you were

from the range lights? Were you as far from the

Oregon shore as you were from the range lights—the

ranges?

A. I guess we were further from the ranges.

Q. Further from the ranges than you were from

the Oregon shore?

A. I guess so.

O. And you were 160 fathoms from the ranges?

A. Between 160 and 150—something.

O. Where were you—what were you opposite on

the Oregon shore, above or below the bluff?

A. Below the bluff.

Q. Below the bluff?

A. Yes, sir.

O. How far were you below the bluff?

A. I couldn't tell you.

'O. How far were you from the point of Tenas

Illihee Island when you were putting out your nets?

A. T don't know how far.
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O. Were you as far from the bluff as you were

from the point of Tenas Illihee Island?

A. We were further from the point of Tenas Illi-

hee Island.

O. Further from the point of Tenas Illihee Island?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Can you say how much further?

A. No.

Q. Were you above or opposite the point of Tenas

Illihee Island?

A. Was above the point.

O. Above that point. Were you above the point

where the Henderson was when you wxnt over to her

after she sunk?

A. Yes.

O. Above that?

A. Yes, above that point.

Q. How much above that point?

A. Well, I couldn't tell you in leno^th at all. I

was only down there one summer. I don't know the

length down there at all.

O. How long did it take you to put out your net?

A. Oh, sometimes six or seven minutes.

O. Six or seven minutes?

A. Something like that.

O. And how far down does your net drift before

you take it in?

A. We start in to pick up below the sand bar.

O. Below the sand bar?

A. Yes.
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O. V How far below the sand bar?

A. We jnst start in ; we get below the sand bar

and start in to pick it up.

Q. How far do you drift from the time you put it

out until you begin to take it up?

A. How far?

'O. How far do you drift from the time you get it

out until the time you commence to pick it up?

A. Well, I don't know how far when we finish lay-

ing it down.

O. How long a time elapses from the time you put

out your net, until the time you begin taking it up?

A. Half an hour.

O. Half an hour?

A. Tn a strong current. If slack water, take long-

er time.

Q. Well, a night like July 22nd, how long was it

between the time you put out your net, and the time

you began to take it up?

A. Be somewhere around half an hour.

Q. Half an hour?

A. Thirty-five minutes, or something.

Q. And how long does it take you to get the net

in after you begin to take it in ?

A. Well, that all depends on how much fish we
get.

O. Well, that night, how long did it take? The
first drift that night, after the Henderson passed you?

A. If not much fish, can take it up in ten min-

utes.
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*0. Tliat night you took it up in ten minutes, you

think ?

A. I am not sure; about, something Hke.

O. What is your best recollection of how long* it

took you to take up the net that time?

A. Ten or fifteen minutes, I guess, something like

that.

O. Ten or fifteen minutes?

A. Yes.

O. How far would you drift in that ten or fifteen

minutes?

A. I don't know how far we drift in that time.

O. Had you taken up your net at the time that

you heard the first whistle from the Henderson?

A. No, we was lying on the drift then.

O. What is that?

A. We was lying on the drift then.

O. You were drifting then ?

A. Yes.

"O. How far down had you drifted at that time?

A. Oh, below the island.

O. You were below the island, were you?

A. Below the point of Puget Island.

Q. Below the point of Puget Island?

A. Or around the point of Puget Island.

Q. And your boat, then, was on the ranges, was

it?

A. Yes.

O. And you were about the j)oint, or just below

the point of Puget Island?
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A. That is when the collision came.

O. How far were the boats from you at that time?

A. Which boat?

O. The Henderson and the oil barge.

A. When he passed us?

'Q. How far were they from you at the time that

you begun to take up your net?

A. Well, they was right up on the bluff.

O. Well, how far were thev from you?

A. Oil, a couple of miles.

O. Could you see them?

A. No, I couldn't see them when we was standing

up ; see them when we come back again.

Q. Couldn't see the boats at all?

A. Not when we stand and pick up the nets we

couldn't see them then.

Q. Could you see the Henderson when you heard

the second whistle?

A. Yes, sir.

O. How long was the second whistle before the

collision?

A. The second whistle? Just a few seconds.

Q. You say you could see the Henderson at that

time ?

A. Well, could see the shadow. Just see the dark,

couldn't see the top—could see the shadow, could see

the lights and the shadow of the boats.

Q. By shadow, do you mean the reflection of the

lis:hts in the water?
'fc>

A. Yes, could see the liofhts in the boats.fe
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O. What lights could you see?

A. Well, could see the bright lights.

O. See the bright lights?

A. Yes, sir.

O. And you think you were two miles away at

that time?

A. Xo, not at that time ; but after we picked up we

was. When the collision came, we was then, I guess,

about a mile away.

O. What is that?

A. ^^'hen the collision came, T guess we was about

a mile away from them.

O. A mile away?

A. Something like that.

O. Now, after you picked up your nets, what did

you do?

A. After we picked up?

•Q. After you picked up, what did you do?

A. AVent back again to the tow head.

O. \\^ell, how far were you from the tow head

when you finished picking up your nets?

A. Well, I don't know how far it is down there.

O. How far do you think you were?

A. Well, I couldn't make no guess at all, because

I don't know.

O. How long did it take you to get from there to

the tow head?

A. I guess it took about half an hour, something.

O. Half an hour. When you went up there to the

tow head, did vou see anv rock barsfes?
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A. Yes, sir.

O. Which one?

A. Saw the two laying over in the road.

Q. When you went from that point to the tow

head, you saw these two ?

A. Yes, sir.

'O. Did you see the one lying by itself?

A. One was drifting down.

Q. What is that?

A. The single one was drifting down when we

came up.

O. That was still drifting when you came up?

A. Yes.

O. Where was it when you came up?

A. I guess about from the sand bar—above the

sand bar.

O. Was about opposite the sand bar when you

came up?

A. Yes.

Q. Was not anchored at that time?

A. I don't think was anchored at that time.

O. Which side of that one did you pass on com-

ing up?

A. On the Washington side.

O. On the Washington side. Grove said he didn't

see that barge when he came up. You did, did you?

A. Yes, I guess I seen the barge.

O. What?

A. I guess I remember seeing the barge when we
came up.
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O. He says he didn't see it when you were com-

ino- up, but you did see it?

A. I guess I saw it that time all right.

O. And at that time it was still drifting?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, did you see the other two barges when

you came up?

A. Yes.

O. How far did you ]:)ass from those?

A. Well, you see just following—we was just fol-

low^ing Puget Island shore when we came up.

O. What is that?

A. We was following Puget Island shore when

we came up.

'(). Following Puget Island shore?

A. Yes.

Q. How far were you from the shore as you came

up?

A. Well, something like 50 fathoms, I guess.

O. What?

A. T am not sure. Just a few fathoms from shore.

O. How many fathoms do you think?

A. T couldn't tell you how many fathoms from

shore that is.

O. How close did you pass to the two rock barges

when you came up?

A. How close we passed them?

O. What is that?

A. I don't know how close we passed them. You

see we was follcnving the shore up, and the barges
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were lying outside the range.

'O. Now, were they anchored at that time?

A. Yes, sir.

O. How do you know they were at anchor?

A. I am not sure they were anchored then, but

we went to the Henderson and back again, and then

they were anchored.

O. Were they anchored above or below the tow

head?

A. T think right abreast the tow head.

O. How far were they anchored from the tow

head?

A. Well, I couldn't tell you.

O. Couldn't you approximate that?

A. No, I don't know the measures, T don't know

how far down.

O. What did you do after you got to the tow

head?

A. After we left the tow head? Went over to the

Henderson.

O. Could you see the Henderson then from the

tow head ?

A. We could see the Samson was laying over there

and went over and found that.

O. I didn't hear.

A. We went over and found that.

O. T say, could you see the Henderson from the

tow head when you got to the tow head?

A. Xo, couldn't see that.

O. Then how did you know where to go?
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A. You see the Samson, he was layinf^ over there.

O. The Samson was over there?

A. The Samson was laying over there too,

O. At that time?

A. When we went over there.

O. And you could see the lights on the Samson?

A. Yes, sir.

O. In going across did you go near these two

rock barges?

A. What?
O. In going across to the Henderson, did you go

near to these two rock barges?

A. No, went below them.

O. Went below them?

A. Yes.

O. And did vou 2:0 as nearlv in a line as vou could

from the tow head to the Henderson ?

A. Well, we was running all around there.

Q. I say, did you go as nearly as you could in the

line? You aimed to go in a straight line, didn't you?

A. No, wasn't any straight line. We went around

and looked for the Henderson and found her.

O. T thought you said the Samson was by her.

A. \'ou see the Samson was a little above.

O. And you went over to the Henderson, and went

a little below these two rock barges?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Xow, when you put out your nets the next

time, I understood you to say you had to go pretty

close to these two rock barges?
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A. Yes, sir.

'Q. And that you had to put out about half your

net

—

A. Yes, sir, put out half the net.

Q. Half the net after you passed her.

A. Before we passed her.

Q. You put out half?

A. Yes.

O. Then you put out half after you passed her?

'A. Yes.

Q. And they were at anchor at that time, w^ere

thev?

A. Yes, was at anchor.

O. Did you see them taken away the next morn-

ing by the Samson?

A. Yes.

O. Were they anchored at the same place?

A. Yes.

'O. The same place as that night, the next morn-

ing when the Samson picked them up?

A. Yes, sir.

O. After you had passed these two barges, put-

ting out your net on that occasion, you drifted on

down to the sand bar, did you?

A. Yes, sir.

O. And did you see the other barge at that time?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And was it in your way?

A. No.

O. It was not in vour wav? •'
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A. Xo, we passed her.

O. You passed her. Was she anchored then?

A. Sir?

O. Was she anchored then?

A. Was she anchored tlien ?

'O. Was she anchored at that time, at the same

place as she was when picked up ])y the Samson the

next morning?

A. Sir?

O. Was she anchored at that time at the same

place where she was wdien the Samson picked her up

the next morning?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Did you see the oil barge that night?

A.. Yes, sir.

O. What did you see about her that nig*ht? You

didn't go to her that night, did you?

A. No, we could see the dark shadow where the

oil barge was laying up there.

Q. You say the Samson was la^nng not far from

the Henderson when you went over there?

A. A little above the Henderson.

O. How far was she from the Henderson?

A. That I couldn't tell.

O. Was anybody on the Henderson at that time?

A. The Henderson was sunk when we got over

there.

\). W^'is anybody on the Henderson, at that time?

A. Xo, was nobody.

O. \i)W didn't take off any people that were on it ?
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A. No.

O. Did you testify before the Inspectors?

A. Sir?

Q. Did you testify before the Inspectors—the In-

spectors of Hulls and Boilers? Did you testify before

them ?

A. I don't know what you mean.

O. Did you ever testify in this case before?

A. No.

Mr. MINOR: I haven't all the testimony, I will

say, your Honor, so I didn't know.

Mr. ERSKINE WOOD: I will say none of these

fishermen did.

O. When did you first learn you were to be a wit-

ness in this case?

A. I don't understand what you mean.

O. Wlicn did some one first approach you to tes-

tify in this case?

A. This fall.

'Q. What time this fall?

A. Not very long" ag"o ; a few days ago.

O. Who was it y^

xA. Ole (irove.

O. Who?
A. Ole (irove.

O. And he was the first to come to vou ?

A. He was the first that told me about this—

I

was in the case.

O. And with whom have you talked about the case

before vou testified?



o54 The Steamer Samson

A. I (lon'l know cxacth' how you mean.

O. With whom liave yon talked al)ont tliis case

l)cfoi"c }(»n went on the stand?

A. h^'rst I was talkini^" with Ole (Ii"o\e, and tlieii

Mr. Shaver eanie uj) to my house.

(J. So you talked with Mr. (irove and Mr. Shaver?

A. Not at the same time. Mr. Shaver was up a

few days afterward and told me to come, down here.

'O. Was that (irove the same man who testified

awhile a,^"o?

A. Sir?

O. Is that the same man wdio testified awhile a.q'o

—drove?

A. T ^f^ive name and address.

O. Is the man who talked to you the same man

who was on the stand before—who went on the strand?

COURT: The (jrove you talked to you is your

l)arlner who fished with }'ou?.>

O. The man who talked to you was he the same

man who fished with }'oti ?

A. No, was fishing" with Eddie Grove.

O. And the other man, who is he?

A. (^le drove.

[). Who is he?

A. 1 le is sittino- there

—

the old man w ith the dark

moustache.

O. The father of Kddie drove?

A. Yes, sir.

'(). Can \'ou state where the Samson was when

\-oti first saw her?
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A. Yes, was in Bugby Hole.

Q. She was in Bugby Hole?

A. Yes.

O. Could you see her lights?

A. Yes, I could see his lights.

O. What lio^hts could vou see?

A. Only bright lights.

O. The only light you could remember seeing was

the bright lights?

A. Bright lights.

O. Did you see the red light or the green light on

her?

A. \\>11, could see— T didn't pay no attention to it.

O. You don't remember seeing the red light or the

green light on them at all?

A. Well, could see them, but T didn't pay no at-

tention to them.

'O. 1 sav vou don't remember seeing: them?

A. No.

O. Do you remember whether you did see them,

or not?

A. I don't remember seeing any lights at all.

COURT: I can't hear you. Do you recollect

whether you saw any colored lights at all?

A. I don't remember seeing colored lights.

(Witness excused.)

ELIAS DAHL, a witness called on behalf of the

libellant, being first duly sworn, testified as follows:

Direct Examination.

Questions bv Mr. ERSKTXE WOOD:
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]\Ir. Dahl, where do }'ou live?

A. Skamokciwa.

O. Skamakowa?

A. Ves.

O. What is your business?

A. Fishing.

O. How Ions: have vou been in that business?

A. About three years.

O. What kind of fishing do you do?

A. (iill net fishing.

"O. That is drifting?

A. Yes.

O. Where do you do it?

A. In the river.

O. I know; what part?

A. Oh, out from Skamokawa.

O. Where w-ere you fishing the night of the col-

Hsion between the Henderson and the Samson?

A. Up on Puget Island.

O. Who were vou fishing- with?

A. Ole Grove.

O. What kind of a boat did you have?

A. (jasoline boat.

O. Just the two of you in il?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Do vou know how many fathoms of net vou

were using?

A. Oh, between 130 and 155, I guess.

O. lietween 150 and 155?

A. Something like that.
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Q. Where were you lying at the time you saw the

Henderson coming up the river?

A. On the tow head.

O. On the tow head?

A. Yes.

Q. Where were you when the Henderson passed

you coming up the river?

A. On the tow head.

O. Still on the tow head. Wasn't your turn to

go out ?

A. No.

Q. What were you doing there at the tow head?

A. Nothing.

'Q. Did you see the Samson come around the hend

in Bugby Hole?

A. Yes.

O. Did you notice the course of the Henderson

and the oil barge at all?

A. Yes.

Q. What was it?

A. It was hauling over to the Oregon shore.

Q. Did you hear the whistles given that night?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you know what they were?

A. Yes.

O. What were they?

A. The Henderson blew one whistle first time.

COURT: What was that answer?

A. The Henderson blew one whistle.

O. Was it answered or not?
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A. Ves.

Q. ^^'l^at otlicr whistle was blown?

A. 1 1 was blown—the Henderson blew another

whistle a little afterwards.

O. Do you know whether that was anchored?

A. 1 don't know. T don't think so.

O. Did you hear any other whistles?

A. Ves.

O. A\'hat were they?

A. 1 don't know what you call them—dan^^^er

whistles or something.

O. How long" w^as that before the collision?

A. just a few seconds.

O. Did you hear the crash of the collision?

A. Ves.

O. Did you hear the anchor chains that have been

si^oken of?

A. Ves.

(J. How long after the crash of the collision did

the anchor chains go out?

A. 1 don't know. All together. All at once. The

whistles and the crash and the anchor chains, all to-

gether.

O. How do you lay out your net there to drift
'"

A. Well, we go from the tow head to get close to

the Oregon shore. Then we started from the Oregon

shore that night, and lay over to the range lights,

tow^ards the Washington side.

(). \'ou start over towards the Oregon shore?

A. \'es.
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Q. And lay your net over until the other end

reaches the range lights?

A. Yes.

Q. Why don't you lay across the range lights onto

the Puget Island side?

A. Well, you get snagged.

O. Where are the snags?

A. Down helovv the sand bar.

O. What is the course of your drift from the point

you lay out until you pick up? I just want you to tell

me about how your net drifts after you lay it out?

A. Oh, it drifts straight down the river.

Q. Does it ever suck over into Clifton Channel?

A. No.

O. Did you see the Daniel Kern that night, or do

you remember it ?

A. I am quite sure, I guess I did.

Q. You don't know. Did you see the stone barges

after they were loose from the Samson?

A. Yes.

Q. Which ones did vou see?

A. I saw them two together.

O. Did you sec the other one?

A. No.

Q. Didn't notice the other one. Did you notice

the location of those two together?

A. Yes.

O. Describe it. Tell me where it was.

A. Well, it was laying loose about out from the

tow head, just a little below the tow head, the Ore-
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o;"on side of the range lights.

O. How much the Oregon side of tlie range

Hghts?

A. 1 couldn't tell for sure.

'O. Can you make a guess?

A. About 50 fathoms, I guess.

O. Why did you notice that ?

A. I noticed when T came ])ack from the Hender-

son.

O. When did you go over to the Henderson?

A. just after they struck.

O. Did you take any people off the Henderson?

A. No.

O. Where was the Henderson when vou went to

her?

A. Well, she was back from the bluff—a little be-

low the bluff there.

Q. A little below the bluff?

A. Yes.

O. Was anybody on the Henderson when you got

there?

A. Yes.

O. How long after the collision do you think you

got there?

A. Oh, about fom* or five minutes.

O. ^'ou ran from the tow head straight to the

Henderson ?

A. Yes.

(j. Did you drift after that any?

A. No.



The Steamer Samson 361

O. What fishermen took the crew off the Hender-

son ?

A. I couldn't tell.

COURT: Did you say you couldn't tell?

A. Yes.

O. Did you notice where the Henderson was ly-

ing when she was in the shallow water aground? The

next morning, T mean ?

A. Yes.

O. Where was she?

A. She was laying abreast of Tenas Illihee Island

point. The Washington side of Tenas Illihee Island.

O. On what?

A. The Washington side of Tenas Illihee Island.

'O. The Washington side of Tenas Illihee Island?

A. Yes.

O. How far off the point of Tenas Illihee Island-

Was she out as far as the range?

A. No.

Q. Between the range and Tenas Illihee Island?

A. Yes.

O. Well, I would just like to how about how

much between the range she was?

A. I couldn't tell.

O. If the collision occurred over on Puget Island

side somewhere near or opposite that little slough

that has the piling across, do you think it would be

possible, under the conditions that night, for the Hen-

derson to drift from that point of the collision over to

where she was the next mornins'?
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A. No.

O. Wliv wouldn't it?

A. Because the current don't <yo over there.

O. Dkl you see the boats when they came togeth-

er? Did you see the boats when the collision hap-

pened?

A. Well, 1 didn't see the boats. T saw the shadow

of the boats and the li^'hts.

'Q. That is what I mean. You could see where the

boats were?

A. Yes.

(). Where do you think they were?

A. Well, they was just a little below some

trap pilings, pretty near on the ])oint there.

O. Close to the point?

A. Pretty close to the point.

O. We have been speaking about several points

here. Which point do you mean?

A. The point below the bluff.

Q. On the Oregon side?

A. Ves.

0. If the collision occurred at that ])lace, and the

Henderson drifted from the point of the collision, in

your opinion, where would she drift to?

A. Down the river.

O. How?
A. Down the river.

Q. And where would she land, in }()ur opinion?

A. She would land where she struck the bottom.

O. I mean, would it be likely that she would land
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where you saw her the next morning, or not?

A. Yes.

Cross Examination.

Questions by Mr. MINOR:

Were you a witness before the Inspectors?

A. No.

Q. When were you first approached to be a wit-

ness in this case? When did somebody first come to

you, and ask you to be a witness in this case?

A. Last December.

O. Who came?

A. I couldn't tell exactly, but T believe Shaver.

Q. Who?
A. Shaver.

Q. Whom have you talked to about this case?

A. Mr. Shaver.

Q. Anybody else?

A. Well, I don't know. I don't think so.

Q. Didn't talk to Ole Grove?

A. I don't think so.

O. I wish you would tell me about how far this

tow head is from the land.

A. I couldn't tell exactly.

Q. Well, as near as you can ?

A. Oh, about ten or fifteen fathoms from low

water mark.

Q. About how much ?

A. Ten or fifteen fathoms from low water mark.

O. Ten or fifteen fathoms from low water mark,

and hovv nnich from ordinarv water mark?
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A. 1 don't know. \ couldn't tell.

O. How much from h\^\\ water mark, then?

A. I couldn't tell that, either.

Mr. ]\rTXOR: [ don't know what the maps are

made on, your Honor, is the reason I ask these ques-

tions. I don't know whether these charts are based

on low water mark or hioii water mark.

Q. How far is the tow head from the range lights

— T don't mean from the lights but from the ranges?

A. I couldn't tell.

O. Could you tell approximately?

A. [ don't think so.

O. Couldn't tell anywhere near how far it is?

A. No.

Q. How far are the range lights from Tenas Illi-

hee Island?

A. I couldn't tell.

(3. Could vou tell th'it ap])roximatelv?

A. No.

O. How far are the range lights, in your judg-

ment, from Puget Island?

A. Well, I never measured.

O. Could you tell that approximately?

A. I don't think so.

Q. Where was the Henderson when you first saw

her?

A. Down the river.

O. How far down ?

A. A little up above Skamokawa.

(). A little above Skamokawa?
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A. Yes.

Q. How far is Skamokawa from your tow head?

A. T couldn't tell.

O. Not approximately even ?

A. No.

0. Is it as much as four miles, do you think?

A. I don't know.

O. As much as three miles, do you think?

A. I couldn't tell.

'O. Did you ever run that distance in a gasoline

boat ?

A. Yes.

O. How lonsf a time does it take to run that dis-

tance in a gasoline boat?

A. I don't know. I never looked with a watch.

Q. Never looked to see?

A. No.

O. Now, when you saw the Henderson, had you

seen the Samson ?

A. No.

Q. Where was the Henderson when you first saw

the Samson?

A. Was just about abreast from the lower end of

the island.

O. When you first saw the Samson, she was about

abreast of the lower end of the island.

A. Yes.

Q. That means from the lower end of Puget Isl-

and, does it?

A. Yes.
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'O. Not from the sand l.)ar?

A. No.

O. There is a little island below that?

A. Ves.

O. Voii mean from the main island?

A. Yes.

O. Jnst abont o])i)osite that ]M)int ; and where was

the Samson?

A. Well, he just came around the bend, up the

river.

O. You could see the Samson from the tow head

could you?

A. You could see the li.^"ht over the woods.

O. ^'ou could see it over the woods?

A. Ves, the head lights.

O. Head lights over the woods. What kind of

light was it ?

A. Bright light.

'O. Could you see the red and green lights?

A. Not then.

(}. Couldn't see the red and green lights then at

all?

A. No.

(). Did you see the red and green lights after-

wards?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Where was the Henderson when you saw the

red and green lights of the Samson?

A. 1 didn't see both lights. I saw the red, not the

green.
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O. Yon saw the red one and not the ^reen one?

A. Yes, sir.

O. So you didn't see any green liglit on the Sam-

son at all?

A. No.

O. But saw only the red light? Now, where was

the Samson when you saw the red light? Where was

the Samson when vou saw the red lisfht?

^Tr. C E. S. WOOD: Samson?

A. Just when came around the hend.

*Q. Just coming round the bend of Puget Island?

A. Yes.

0. And at that time you could only see her red

light?

A. I think so.

Q. Now, did you watch the Samson from that

time?

A. Not all the time.

O. Did you watch her at all?

A. \\^ell, some of the time.

O. Did you see her green light at all?

A. I couldn't remember.

Q. ^\)U saw her red light all the time, did vou?

A. No.

'O. You didn't see her red light all the time?

A. I don't think so.

O. Did you see her red light most of the time?

A. I don't know. I didn't watch her all the time.

O. Did you see the Samson about the time the

collision took place?
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A. Yes.

O. 1 iiiulerstnnd that yoti lieard tlic wliistlc from

tlic Henderson ?

A. Yes.

O. -\nd did }i)U hear that answered by the Sam-

son ?

A. 1 think so.

O. The first whistle)^

A. Tlie first wliistle.

O. Did you see the red h^^ht of the Samson at that

time?

A. Xo.

O. Did you see any licrht on her at that time?

A. I see a bright Hght.

O. Only tlie bright hgdit.

A. Ye%.

O. Didn't see either the red or green Hght?

A. 1 don't remember.

O. Xow, the Henderson gave a second signal chd

she?

A. I think so.

Q. Are you sure that you heard that signal?

A. I ])elieve I did.

(J. Are you sure of that ?

A. I don't remem1)er now. I think so.

O. \'()U are iK^t sure of that, though. \'ou are not

as sure of that as you are tliat you heard the first one,

are you?

A. Yes, I think I am.

(J. ^'()U tliink you are sure that you heard two sig-
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nals from her? Now, did the Samson answer the sec-

ond one?

A. I don't know. I couldn't tell.

O. Now, at that time could you see the Samson?

A. See the light on her.

O. What light could you see then?

A. I could see the bright.

O. See the bright lierht? Could vou see the red

light?

A. No.

O. Couldn't see the red light then at all?

A. I don't think so.

O. But as far as you recall, you don't remember

seeing any green ligfit on the Samson that night?

A. r don't know. T can't rememl)er.

•Q. When you saw the Henderson, what light did

you see on her? When you first saw her?

A. Well, when I first see her is bright light.

O. Did you see any other lights on the Hender-

son?

A. T don't know. I can't remember.

O. You don't remember seeing either the red or

the green light on the Henderson?

A. No,

O. l^id you see any lights on the barge—the oil

barge?

A. 1 don't know; I cannot remember.

O. Did you see any lights on the Henderson at

the time of the collision ?

A. I saw some bright lights.
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y. On the Henderson. Did you see any bright

lig-hts on the barge at that time?

A. I couldn't remember.

(). And at that time vou saw bricrht lic^hts on the

Samson?

A. Ves.

'O. Mow many?

A. Well I couldn't remember. I see the bri^^ht top

light.

O. The bright top light?

A. Ves.

O. You don't remember how many top lights?

A. I guess she got three.

O. Three. Did a'ou see all three?

A. I think so.

O. And how many did the Henderson have?

A. I guess she have two.

O. Two. Did you see those?

A. Yes, I think so.

'O. I understood you to say that the second whis-

tle from the Henderson, and the crash and the noise

from the anchor all came to you about the same time,

—came to your ears about the same time. Is that

right ?

A. Not quite.

O. What is right, then? I want to get what is

right.

A. The second whistle: then was a little while and

he blew a danger signal, then the crash together.

(). Then the crash and the danger whistle came
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about the same time, and the anchor about the same

time, too?

A. Yes, the danger signal, the anchor and the

crash, all about the same time.

Q. How long after you heard the second whistle,

before you heard the danger signal?

A. I couldn't tell—didn't look at the watch.

O. Could you approximate that time?

A. Oh, a few seconds.

O. Only a few seconds?

A. I think so.

O. You say you went over to the Henderson thai

night?

A. Yes.

O. How long did it take vou to to from the tow

head to the Henderson ?

A. About five—four, five, six minutes. I couldn't

tell exactly.

O. Four, five or six minutes?

A. Yes.

O. Where was the Henderson then ?

A. She was lying just a little below the bluff.

Q. Was she the same place she was the next morn-

ing?

A. No.

O. WHiere was the Samson at that time?

A. He was laying a little further over towards the

Washington side. About above the Henderson.

O. Below the Henderson on the Washington side?

A. Above the Henderson, on the Washinplon side
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of the Henderson.

O. The Washington side of the Henderson?

A. Yes.

Q. How far from the Henderson?

A. ] couldn't tell exactly.

Q. Could you approximate that distance?

A. No, I couldn't.

(). Were the lisfhts on the Henderson at that

time?

A. She was on the bottom.

(). What is that?

A. She was down on the bottom.

O. She was at the bottom at that time?

A. All turned over when I got there.

Q. No lights on her then?

A. No.

O. Did you go to the oil barge that night?

A. No.

'Q. You don't know how far she was from the oil

barge?

A. No, I couldn't tell.

O. And you think she was in the same place she

was when you saw her next morning?

A. No.

O. How far was she from the place where you saw

her next morning?

A. 1 couldn't tell exactly.

O. Was she stationary when you went to her?

A. No, she was sinking down.

( ). Sinking" down ?
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A. Yes,

O. What do you mean by sinking down ?

A. (loing" down with the current a Httle.

O. (joing down with the current a Httle?

A. Yes.

'O. I thought you said she was on the bottom

then ?

A. Yes, she was on the bottom, but she turned

around ; she turned around twice.

Q. Which way was her bow when you went that

night?

A. I couldn't tell. I just saw^ the middle of the

bottom, is all T see.

O. You didn't see her wheel?

A. 1 don't think so; all dark.

O. How close did you get to her?

A. Pretty close; lay right into the bottom of her,

into the hull of the boat, side of it.

(). Which side did vou i^o into?

A. Well, I couldn't tell.

O. But you went into her hull that night with

your boat?

A. Vcs.

Q. Let me understand; T don't think I understand.

Do you mean you went to the hull or inside the hull?

A. No; to the outside. We went in to it.

Q. T understand you to say you saw the two rock

barges that night?

A. Yes.

(). \\^hen did vou see them?
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A. 1 sec thcni when I come back from the Hen-

derson.

O. Did you see them when you went over to tlie

Henderson ?

A. No.

O. T3idn*t see them anywhere vyhen you went oyer

to the Henderson ?

A. No.

Q. How did you go from the tow head to the Hen-

derson? In as straight a Hue as you could?

A. No, you go down pretty near to the point of

Tenas TlHhee Island. Don't just.

O. You went straight across to Tenas Illihec

Island, did you?

A. Pretty near the point of Tenas Illihee Island.

O. To the point of Tenas Illihee Island ; then went

up from there.

A. Pretty near straight across.

O. What?

A. Pretty near straight across.

O. \ (^w went then pretty near straight across from

where you were at the tow head to the Henderson.

Is iliat right?

A. Right across from the Henderson oyer to the

tow head, pretty near straight across.

COURT: Tell how you went.

A. 1 went from the Henderson pretty near oyer

across; from the Henderson to the tow head, straight

across.

( ). ^'()U went what ?
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A. Across the river from the Henderson to the

tow head.

O. I am talking about when you went from the

tow head to the Henderson, how did you go?

A. We went straight over the river.

Q. What is that?

A. Across the river.

O. Well, you crossed the river. Where did you

cross the river? Where did you cross the river? Did

you go over to Tenas Illihee Island?

A. Well, I don't believe I understand you now.

O. When you went from the tow head to the Hen-

derson, did vou p-o across the river from Pu^ret Island

to Tenas Illihee Island?

A. Well, do you mean the first time?

Q. When you went from the tow head to the Hen-

derson that night.

A. Then I went straight for the point below tlie

bluff.

O. To a point below the bluff from the tow head?

A. Yes.

Q. Is there a point below the bluff?

A. We call it a point anyway.

O. \'ou mean a compass point below the bluff?

A. _No, a point on the shore.

O. A point on the shore below the bluff?

A. Ves.

O. And you went straight across there?

A. Yes.

O. And how long did you say it took you to go

—
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five or six minutes?

A. Something" like that.

O. And when you came hack from the Hender-

son to the tow head, (Hd you see these harges then?

A. Yes.

O. Did vou c:o back the same line you went over?

A. Xo.

O. How did you go?

A. You see wiien we went over to the Henderson,

the boat was drifting down.

COURT: Did you say it was drifting down?

A. The boat, the Henderson, was drifting down

the river. When we came back, we had to haul up

again, from the Henderson u]) to the tow head. When

we go to the Henderson we go from the tow head up

to the Henderson; when we come back, we go from

the Henderson up to the tow head a little.

O. So, when you went from the tow head to where

the Henderson was the first time, you went up the

river?

A. Just a little hit.

O. And when you went from the Henderson to

the tow head, you v^ent up the river too?

A. Just a little bit.

O. How much had she drifted in that time?

A. I couldn't tell.

Q. And on that tri]) you saw the rock barges?

A. Yes.

O. And where were they?

A. She was just the Oregon side of the range light.
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a little below the tow head.

O. A little below the tow head?

A. Yes.

O. Were they anchored?

A. I couldn't tell. I believe they was.

O. Could you tell whether drifting or anchored?

A. I don't believe were drifting, because you see

we came across, and we was hauling right for the tow

head, and the tide took us down and we came right,

just a little below that. If they was drifting, they

would go just the same as we was, and they didn't

do it.

O. Vou went below them when you came across

the second time?

A. Yes.

O. How near to them did you go?

A. I couldn't tell exactly.

O. Did vou see the other bar^e?

A. Xo.

O. Xever saw that at all?

A. Xever before morning.

O. You saw all these barges the next morning?

A. Yes.

O. Did you see them when the Samson picked

them up?

A. Xo, I didn't see them.

O. Were they anchored when you saw them next

morning?

A. Yes.

O. Thev were all anchored?
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A. Vos.

O. Where was the other bars^e anckorcd?

A. r)elo\v the sandbar.

'O. Below the sand bar?

A. just a Httle bit below the sandbar.

O. 1 don't understand vou, I s^uess, Mr. Dahl.

The next morning you went over to the Henderson a

second time, did you?

A. I think I did.

Q. And at that time where was she lying?

A. She was lying just out from the point of Tenas

Illihee Island.

Q. Above the point of Tenas Illihee Island?

A. No, just a little below the point on the Wash-

ington side of it.

O. A little below?

A. Just a little below.

Mr. C. E. S. \\'OOD: Vou mean the side towards

the Washington side of the river?

A. Yes.

(J. V(^ti say the Henderson when you—when she

passed the tow head, was falling over towards the

Oregon side. Is that what you said?

A. Ves.

Q. At what point did she begin falling over to-

wards the Oregon side?

A. I couldn't tell exactl}-.

'O. Above or below the towhead?

A. Below the towhead.

D. She besran Sfoing: over to the Oreo"on side be-
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fore she got abreast of the tow head?

A. Yes.

O. And she went over gradually, did she?

A. Yes.

O. Didn't go at a sharp angle ?

A. No.

Q. Just gradually. Now, I will ask you whether

you observed this range of lights that night?

A. What?

Q. Did you look at the range of lights at all that

night?

A. Yes.

O. When did vou look at them?

A. When we was drifting.

Q. Did vou look any other time?

A. Well, I looked when we went across the river.

"0. You mean when you went over to the Hender-

son?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you look any other time?

A. When we went back.

Q. You looked at them w^hen you came back. Did

you look at them for the purpose of ascertaining

when you came back, whether these two rock barges

were on the Oregon or Washington side of the

ranges?

A. No.

Q. Did vou look at them at the time when vou

saw these two rock barges?

A. Yes.
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O. Al the time you saw tliese two rock bar[T^<.^s,

yon looked at the raiiis^e lij^hts?

A. \'es.

O. 1 low did you liappen to look at the ran^fe lights

at that time?

A. We used to look down and look at our boats all

the time we ^o across.

COURT: What is that?

A. We used to look down, and look on the rang'c

light, and then go across the river all the time; look

for the boats, if there is any boat coming up.

O. Now, which way were you looking? Were

you sitting, when going over from the Henderson,

to the tow head, with your face toward the bow of

your boat, or toward the stern of your boat?

A. Oh, toward the bow.

O. And you w^ere coming up the river a little way

at that time?

A. Just a little up the river.

O. So the range lights a little behind you when

vou crossed that, wouldn't thev?

A. Below?

Q. I say, they would be behind you when you

crossed, wouldn't thev?

A. Well, some way, yes.

O. What?

iV. Some way the}' would be ])ehind, yes.

O. And the tw<^ rock l)arges would be in front of

}ou when you were going across, would they not?

A. Not when you get across.
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Q. What is that?

A. Not when you get across the range Hne.

'O. T say, when you got across, they would be

above you on the river?

A. Yes.

O. And when you passed the rock barges, you

then looked at the range lights, did you, and you

remember doing that ?

A. Yes, sir.

O. And for what reason did vou do that?

A. I don't know.

Q. You don't know why you did it?

A. No.

Q. And, when you went over to the Henderson

that night, you also remember that you looked at the

range lights when you crossed?

A. Yes.

O. And vou remember seeing* the ransfe ligfhts

when vou crossed?

A. Yes.

O. And you didn't see any rock barges anywhere

that night when you went across?

A. No.

"O. And when }'ou went across the next morning,

did you look at the ranges?

A. [ don't know if I did.

O. You don't remember looking at the ranges?

A. No.

O. When you saw the Samson, T understand now
that she was—that you first saw her before she turned
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into Biigby Hole? You saw tlie lights over the trees

—is that right?

A. Yes.

O. And then you say her after she turned into

Bugby Hole, and saw then her red light?

A. Yes.

O. Did the Samson have a tow line on the Hen-

derson when you were over there that night?

A. What?

O. Hid the Samson have a tow line on the Hender-

son when yoti were over there that night?

A. I couldn't tell. T didn't see her.

'Q. Did the Samson leave before you did ?

A. Xo.

O. She was still there when you were there?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you weren't there when she put the tow

line on the Henderson?

A. I don't know; 1 didn't see anything.

Redirect Examination.

Questions by Mr. C. E. S. WOOD:

You say you didn't notice the colored lights on the

Henderson or the oil barge—the red and green lights?

A. T don't think T did.

O. And do you know which side of the boat the

red lights are carried, and which the green?

A. The red is from ])ort and the green starboard.

O. Now, you say that you saw the red light on

the Samson when ^^he first, appeared way up the river.
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That would then indicate that she was crossing the

river over into Puget Island, wouldn't it?

A. Well, T just see it when she round the point

there.

O. If you saw it just as she was coming round the

point, she would he headed over towards the Oregon

side, wouldn't she? As she comes round the point,

she headed over toward the Oregon shore—isn't

that so?

A. Which light do you mean ? If I saw the red

one?

'O. All I am trying to get at is, I don't see how

you could have seen it. I want to straighten it out,

if I can. ^^ou say that as you saw her coming around

the river, you saw the red light? Now, the red light

is on the port side, isn't it? And now, as she comes

around the point above you, she is showing you her

starboard side, so how could you see the red light?

A. Well, I see it just the same.

O. How?
A. I did see it just the same, just when she turned

around. Rounding the point, you can see it.

O. How long did you hold it?

A. I don't know. I couldn't tell that. I don't

believe held it very long. I didn't notice the light

any more; just when she came round the point.

O. How long was it in a general way before the

collision that you saw this red light up the river?

A. I don't know. I couldn't tell.

Q. The red light, when she first rounded the
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point is the onl}' colored light you remember of

noticing, as I understand you?

A. ^'es, I heliexe it was.

O. Could you say about what position in the river

that would be, when you first saw this red light?

A. I don't know.

O. See here if you can show on this chart about

where it would be. This is Libellant's Exhibit 1.

This is Ostervolt's house, and (drove's Slough. That

is the big slough over there, and here is the high bluff

along here, and the head. And over here is the tow

head. There is vour tow head. Here is the head of

the Tenas Illihee Island, and here is Grove Slough.

And here, up here, is Coffee Island, around the bend.

Now, what point on this chart was it that you saw

her coming around?

A. Right there (Indicating).

'Q. I will mark it "ED". That would be the point

marked with a cross "ED" on Exhibit 1. It is the

point approximately where you think you saw the red

li"ht on the Samson as she came around. Is that

rio-ht?

A. Well, I mean just about the place on the island

whc^*e I first saw the light. I don't believe she was so

close over as that.

COURT: A little louder.

Mr. C. PI S. WOOD: That is the place opposite

the island where he saw^ her. He didn't mean t(^ lo-

cate her so in tlie river; didn't mean to locate her so

close to the island.
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0. Now, Mr. Dahl, you were with Ole Grove, were

you, that night?

A. Yes.

O. How many trips did you and Ole Grove make

in your naptha boat over to the Henderson that night,

after the colHsion?

A. One.

O. One trip after the colHsion. And that was

how soon after the collision ?

A. Well, we started from the tow head just as

soon as we saw it struck.

0. Then later on you made another trip down to

where she was sunk, as I understood, or am I riqht

about that?

]\rr. AHNOR: The next morning.

O. That was the next morning?

A. Yes.

O. Now, on this first trip, that is right after the

collision, Ole Grove says that you took your boat

—

COURT: Ole Grove hasn't been on the stand.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: I know he basnet testified,

but I am going to put him on. Well, I will put it in

this way.

'Q. Vou were in the same boat with Ole Grove?

A. Yes.

O. Are you sure you didn't take any passengers

off?

A. Not as I know.

O. Any people off the Henderson?

A. Not as I know.
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Air. C. E. S. WOOD: I just want to be sure that

is what he said, and liis fellow hoatsman was there

at the time. That is all.

Witness Excused.

Charles Johnson, a witness called on behalf of the

lihcllunt. beini^ iirst duly sworn, testified as follows.

Direct Examination.

Ouestions bv Mr. ERSKINE WOOD:

AMicre do you live, Charlie?

A. On Puget Island.

O. How long have you lived there?

A. Nine years.
,

O. Engaged in fishing?

A. All the time.

(J. With a drift net?

A. Just with drift net, yes.

O. Were vou drifting- on the river the nicrht of

this collision?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Where were you at the time the Henderson

came up the river?

A. 1 don't understand that right.

O. Where were you drifting in your boat when

the Henderson passed you?

A. 1 was three-quarters of a mile, about below

where the collision lia]^pencd when she passed me.

O. Well, where do you think the collision happen-

ed?^

A. Well, up abreast of the seining ground. T
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don't know exactly the spot.

O. And you were tliree-quarters of a mile below

that?

A. Yes, sir.

O. And where would that put you in the river?

A. Well, it would put me just below Cathlamet

Slough.

'O. Aren't there two entrances to Cathlamet

Sloug-h ?

A. No ; there is the big river, and the slough above

the river that goes to Cathlamet.

O. And you were below Cathlamet Slough when

the Henderson passed you?

A. Yes.

O. That would be, then, about opposite the sand

bar, wouldn't it?

A. Up above the sand bar.

O. Above the sand bar?

A. Yes.

O. I don't understand whether you mean above the

sand bar or abreast the sand bar.

A. Well, I said I was just below that slough.

O. Did you notice the Daniel Kern passing that

night?

A. Yes, sir.

O. And did }ou notice when the Samson came

down the river?

A. The Samson didn't pass me.

'O. No, but did you see her come into the river?

A. No.
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O. Did you see or hear the colHsion?

A. 1 heard by the whistles there was something-

wrong*. That is all.

O. Then I will jmt it this way: About how long

before these whistles do you think the Kern passed

you ?

A. just as long as it took—Daniel Kern, you said?

O. Ves, the Daniel Kern.

A. Oh. Why, that is something I can't say for

sure.

O. I mean about? Well, I wall put it this way

—

Mr. MINOR: Let him answer.

A. Well, I will say— I don't know for sure, but I

will say 25 minutes, or something like that.

O. Where were you when the Kern passed you?

A. I was on the tow head.

Q. On the tow head. Then, what did you do

after that?

A. 1 went out and laid my net out.

Q. Then after the Kern passed, you went out and

laid out vour net?

A. Yes.

O. And drifted. When the Henderson came up,

you had got down below Cathlamet Slough?

Mr. MIXOR: He hasn't said that.

A. Ves, sir.

Mr. ERSKIXK WOOD: I am just repeating

what he said.

O. How long does it take you to run from the

tow head over to where you la}' out your net?
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A. Well, I will say it takes me five minutes.

O. How long does it take you to lay out your net?

A. Be from—I will say seven minutes.

O. To lay out your net?

A. To lay my net out.

O. How long does it take you to make your drift?

A. Why, at that time of the fishing season, from

the time I leave the tow head until I get back again,

it will take me—will be from an hour and ten min-

utes to an hour and a half.

O. Can you tell how much of that time it takes

you to drift? Can you tell that?

A. What is that?

'O. How long does it take you to drift down to

where you take up?

A. Do you mean from the time I leave my net?

O. From the time you lay your net out.

A. To start to pick it up?

O. Yes.

A. Or until I get it up?

O. Well, until you start to pick it up?

A. About thirt}' minutes.

O. Had you started to pick it up that night when

the Henderson ])assed you?

A. No.

O. About how far did you drift below the point

where the Henderson passed you until you started to

pick up. Just about, that is all.

A. Well, that is something I couldn't answer

exactlv. I don't know how long that would be.
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O. What course was the Henderson steering on

when slie passed you?

A. She steered right for the I>ugl)y Hole hght.

O. Was she, or was she not on the Hunting Island

range light ?

A. She was on Hunting Island.

O. On Hunting Island range lights.

A. Yes, sir.

O. Which side of you did she pass?

A. She passed me on her starboard side.

O. Did you show her a light to do that?

A. I showed my green light.

(.). How far awav from vou did she pass?

A. Passed me about twenty feet away from me.

O. Then what did she do?

A. Went by, up the river.

O. Went bv up the river. How did she seem to

be steering?

.\. She steered fine when she went by me.

O. Where do you lay out your net?

A. I lay out my net below—below^ the bluff.

"O. Below the bluff. How far out into the river

does your net reach after it is laid?

A. It reaches to the range lights.

O. W^hy is it you never cross the range when you

lay out your net?

A. I'^or one reason is, if we did we would sure get

a steamer what cross on that. Another reason is,

there is snags, bad snags on the inside, and we would

get them every time.
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O. Where are those snags.

A. About the middle of the drift.

O. What relation to the lower point of Puget

Island?

A. That would be between Cathlamet Slough and

Cathlamet Channel about half way.

0. Somewhere down near the sand bar?

A. Yes, sir.

O. What is the course of your net after you lay

her out? How does she drift?

A. It goes straight down the river, right across,

follows the range lights down.

'O. That is, the Puget Island side of your net

drifts right along the range?

A. Yes, sir.

COURT: Right across, you mean? Right across

the stream?

j\Ir. GUTHRIE: Right across towards the Wash-

ington shore rather than across stream. Not right

across the current.

:\Ir. ERSKINE WOOD: He hasn't said so. He

said drifted right down.

Mr. GUTHRIE* No, he said across.

COURT: He said something about right across.

You mean one end of your net wouldn't drift faster

than the other would go. Right across the stream?

A. Yes.

O. In the freshet season, in July, and the tide at

half ebb, nine foot tide, with the water at that stage,

is there any tendency for your nets to go down Clifton
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Channel?

A. No.

O. If the colhsion happened over on the Pn!2;"et

Island side, abreast of that little slouch where the

l)iling- is driven—occurred somewhere in that neii^h-

horhood, and the Henderson drifted from about that

l)oint, could she have drifted over to where you saw

her the next morning?

A. No.

O. Did vou see her—vou saw her the next morn-

mg
A. 1 saw her the next morning*. 1 saw her the

same night.

O. Was the Henderson the next morning in the

same place you saw her that night, off the ])oint of

Tenas Illihee Island.?

A. Yes, sir.

O. How does the current set from the bluff? How
does the current run from the bluff?

A. Do you mean close in to shore, or way out in

the river?

O. Well, I mean if you start—if you start some-

thing adrift in the river, say, 500 feet out from the

bluff, where will it go? with that kind of water?

A. Why, I think she would go right for the ])oint

on Tenas Illihee Island. Well, T don't know. If you

throw a piece of wood or anything, 1 couldn't say,

])Ut the bigger thing, you know, like a steamer, or

anything, why if that struck the shallow water, why,

I belie\'e that would go down the channel.
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Q. Which channel?

A. Columbia River.

O. Not the Clifton Channel?

A. No.

Cross Examination.

Questions by Mr. MINOR:

Mr. Johnson, I understand the Henderson came up

the river and passed you, at what point?

A. She passed me just a little below Cathlamet

Channel.

O. The Henderson did?

A. The Henderson did.

0. T understood you to say Cathlamet Slouch.

A. Cathlamet Slough, yes. I beg pardon.

O. What is the difference between Cathlamet

Channel and Cathlamet Slough?

A. The channel is Cathlamet Channel, that is for

steamers to go back to Cathlamet. Further tip is the

slough. Kind of cut off that goes right over in Cath-

lamet Channel.

O. As a matter of fact, isn't there a channel which

runs down, enters, 1 may say, or begins, just below

Cathlamet, and runs down towards Skamokawa,

which is called Cathlamet Slough?

A. There is a slough.

'O. Isn't that called Cathlamet Slough?

A. I don't know what we call that. That is some-

thing I don't know. I think we got another name.

O. My recollection is that is called Cathlamet
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Slough.

COURT: ^^)ll are talking of the one back of

flnnting Island?

A. 1 can show it on the chart.

O. That is the slough that puts out just below

Cathlamet and runs around the island, doesn't it?

A. What?

O. Puts out just below Cathlamet, and runs

around a little island?

A. Yes.

(). Did vou never hear that called Cathlamet

Slough ?

A. I have heard another name on it, but I can't

just think of the name.

O. Xow, the slough you mean, I understand, is a

little narrow channel between Puget Island and a

little sand

—

A. (Interrupting) That little sand bar.

O. Little sand island?

A. Yes.

O. That little sand island formed there in the last

eight of ten years, hasn't it?

A. What is that?

Q. That little sand island formed there in the last

eight or ten years, hasn't it.

A. I don't know. That is before my time.

O. How long did you say you had been down

there?

A. Nine years.

Q. Now, you then were right opposite the little
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channel which runs between the sand island and

Puget Island?

A. No, I was a little below it.

Q. A little below it?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Then you were about the upper end of the

sand bar which lies just below Sand Island?

A. Correct.

O. Is that right?

A. Yes, sir.

'Q. You were there when the Henderson passed

you?

A. Was there when the Henderson passed me.

O. And at that time vou hadn't begun to take in

your nets ?

A. No.

O. And you were drifting?

A. I was drifting.

0. At that time?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And the Daniel Kern passed you when you

were on the tow head—is that right?

A. I was tied up at the time the Daniel Kern

went down the river.

O. Tied up where?

A. At the tow liead.

Q. At the tow head. How long did you remain

tied up after the Daniel Kern passed you?

A. Not very long.

'O. Well, how long?
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A. Well, I cannot say on the minute. That is

something I don't know.

(). AW^ll, tell as near as von can. That is all T

want to know.

A. Tt might he three minutes, and it might be

seven.

O. It was not less than three, you think, nor more

than seven ?

A. Xo.

O. Is that right ?^

A. Yes.

O. Now, after the Daniel Kern passed, then you

went out and laid out your net?

A. Correct.

O. And you say it takes you about seven min-

utes to lay your net?

A. Yes, sir.

0. And to drift down to that point takes how

long?

A. To that point?

g. Yes.

A. It takes me about—well, not more than twenty

minutes.

(). Twentv minutes. And how much below that

point do you drift before you begin to take in your

net ?

.\. i said I think something around, might be fif-

teen minutes, I think.

O. Fifteen minutes more?

A. Xo, ten minutes, we will say.
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Q. Ten minutes more before beginning to take in

your net ?

A. Yes, sir.

O. How long does it take you to take the net in

after you begin to take it in?

A. Depends on just how hard I work.

Q. Well, take an average case, working as you do

in an average way.

A. Well, at that time the freshet was high, and

it was a little harder to take up the net as the tide

was so strong. Why, I don't know. I don't think I

ever took the time when I started and when I get

through. I never did. I don't believe I have.

O. How far did vou drift while vou were takinjj

in your net?

A. Well, that depends a whole lot on how your

net comes. If it goes in deep water or in shallow

water. A net like that drifts slower in shallow water

than in deep.

Q. I thought you said your net always drifts the

same way right down the channel.

A. Tt drifts the same way, but not in the sanu/

(lce])ness.

O. If the net drifts the same way, it must be in

the same place when }'ou begin to take it u]) exerv

time?

A. X(^t necessarily—how it that?

O. If your net drifts the same way, you begin to

take it up in the same way, don't you?

A. Whv no, I d<^n't see whv thev should.
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(). From what side do voii bei^in to take it up?

A. From the east side.

O. That means tlie side next to Washini^ton ?

A. riie Washington side.

O. And that side I understand—vou bes^in to take

it up right on the ranges?

A. Ricrht on the ran^fes.

O. And the net floats, as I understand, practically

right directly across the channel?

A. Yes.

'O. Xovv, what difference would there be in the

circumstances of one drift with another in the place

and manner of taking it up?

A. That is quite a lot of difference. If I lift my
net out of two feet of water, or lift it out of twenty

feet, or fifty feet, why the current is much stronger

in that deep water, and it takes more—the current is

stronger in that deep water, then.

O. The deeper the water is, then, the longer it

takes to get the net up?

A. Yes, the heavier it is.

O. Take a ni^^ht like fulv 22, 1911, how would it

weigh then ?

A. It was a pretty strong current.

O. Deep water, was it?

A. Yes, sir.

O. How long did it take you to take your net up

after you began—a night like that?

A. Well, I say 1 never took the time exactly. I

couldn't answer. I don't know if I could answer that
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question.

O. Can you tell approximately how long it would

take?

A. Well, if I worked good, why, T would take it

up in ten minutes.

'O. Take it up in ten minutes?

A. Yes,

O. How far would you drift in that ten minutes,

do you think?

A. Well, I would have my net in when I was down

to the range lights.

0. You mean, when you get opposite Hunting Isl-

and?

A. Yes, sir.

O. And how far is it from the place where you

begin to take up your net to the range light of Hunt-

ing Island?

A. From low water mark or from the lights?

Q. Well, from where you say you have your net

completely taken up. I just want to get the distance

between those two points.

A. Well, I will say I will drift—well, I don't

know. It is—a quarter of a mile.

O. A quarter of a mile. Where was the Hender-

son when you first saw her that night?

A. She came up the channel.

'O. And where vvere vou at that time?

A. I was on the drift.

O. You didn't see lier then, at the time the Kern

passed you. when y(^u were on the tow head?
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A. No.

O. She wasn't in sight at that time?

A. She mig"ht. I never looked for it.

O. Never looked ?

A. No, sir.

O. Tf she had been in si«ht, do vou think vou

would have seen her?

A. If I had looked that way, and looked for her,

T would.

O. Now, vou didn't see the Samson at all that

night?

A. No, sir.

O. Not at all?

A. No.

O. And the first that you knew of any trouble was

when vou heard the whistles blowing"?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Vou didn't hear the passing signals, did you?

A. No.

(). When the Henderson passed you, she passed

on which side?

A. She passed me on her starboard side.

( ). Bv her starboard side; and what light did vou

show ?

A. 1 showed a green.

O. (jreen lie^ht. At that time vou were drifting?

A. [ was drifting, yes, sir.

O. At the time she passed you, did you see the

Kern ?

A. Xo.
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O. Didn't sec the Kern at all then?

A. No, sir.

O. And she passed you, as T understand now, be-

low the point of Puget Island—the Henderson?

A. Well, what is the point of Puget Island? The

point of the sand bar?

'Q. No, I mean the point of the island; not thcj

point of the sand bar but the point of the island.

A. She passed me below it.

O. BeloAv the point of Puget Island and above the

point of the sand bar; that is the way it is?

A. Correct.

O. And you think at that time that 25 minutes

had elapsed since the Kern had passed. That is what

I understand. Is that correct?

A. No, it would be more than that. Well, some-

thing around there—thirty minutes, twenty-five or

thirty minutes.

Q. Twenty-five or thirty minutes had elapsed?

A. I should think so.

Q. Between the time the Kern passed you and

the time the Henderson passed you. You say you lay

out your net below the bluff. How far out in the river

do you commence?

A. I commence 160 fathoms from the range light,

and lead to the range light.

Q. And how far are you then from the Oregon

shore?

A. Well, I cannot say exaclK', but I will— I might

be 800 feet.
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O. 800 feet, you think. Not ftirther than that,

you think? Not further than that, you think?

A. Well, that is something I cannot say. I don't

know.

'O. When I say the Oregon shore, I don't mean the

shore of Tenas Illihee Island.

A. No. 1 understand that.

O. How far would vou he when vou start to put

out your net, from the point of Tenas Illihee Island?

A. Tenas Illihee Island is way down the river

from us.

O. Well, how far would you be from that?

A. How many ieet ?

O, Well, measure it any way you choose. I don't

care whether you measure it in feet or fathoms, or

anything else.

A. Well, that is hard to answer. I don't know

where the channel is there.

O. Well, you are acquainted with the channel

there, aren't you?

A. Say 1500 feet.

g. 1500 feet?

A. Ves.

O. Would you be up the river from that i)oint, or

right opposite that point ? Would you be uj) the river

from the point of that island, or opposite that point

when vou beoin to i)Ut vour net out ?

A. 1 would be u]) the river.

'O. Now, where does your range end, of the net?

It g<>es, as I understand opposite— it goes to the
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ranges and at that time how far would that end be

from Puget Island^ Tliat is what you call the east

end of your net?

A. How far it would be from the range lights to

Puget Island?

O. Xo. How far would that end of your net be

from Puget Island?

A. It would be in the middle—my net would l)e

in the middle of the channel.

O. How far would that be from the Island, Puget

Island?

A. Well, I don't know how wide the river is.

O. Well, you know the channel there. You say

you know the river down there. You certainly ought

to be able to estimate distances.

A. Well, I should think about 900 feet.

Q. 900 feet?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And about what point of Puget Island would

your net be opposite to, the range end of your net?

What point on Puget Island would it be opposite

when you got it out?

A. It would be abreast of—well there is an old

slat trap—it would be abreast of that. That is as

near as I can come to it. It would be a little up the

river from that, a little up the river,

O. Slat trap you call it?

A. Yes, sir.

•Q. How far would that be with reference to what

vou call the towhead?
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A. just a little below.

O. A little below the tow head?

A. Yes.

O. So when your net goes out and you lay it all

out, the east end of your net would be just a little be-

low

—

A. (Interrupting) the towhead.

Q. (Continuing) The towhead?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Is the point, the upper point of Tenas Illihee

Island above or below the tow head?

A. It is below.

O. Below the tow head?

A. Yes, sir.

O. How much is that below the tow head?

A. Well, I said once I thought it was 800 feet.

Q. Now, I haven't understood you to say that at

all. You think the upper point of Tenas Illihee Island

is about 800 feet below the tow head—is that right?

A. I think so.

Q. You think that is right. That is, measured

straight across the channel, is it?

A. Yes.

O. When you saw the Henderson, you say she was

steering to Bugby Hole light? Can you see Bugby

liole r.ight from that point?

A. Yes, sir.

( ). You can acttiallv see Bugbv Hole lii'ht?

A. I could see it.

(). Xow, is Bugby Hole light above or below tiic
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point where the range Hghts strike the Oregon shore?

A. If the Hght is up above

—

0. What is that?

A. I didn't understand that quite.

O. Take the range Hghts, and sight the range

Hghts to a point where they strike the Oregon shore.

Understand that now?

A. Yes, sir.

'O. Now, is Bugby Hole Hght above or below that

point?

A. 1 am not sure. I don't believe I can answer.

O. What is your best recollection of that?

A. I cannot answer it.

Q. You can't answer it. You don't know wheth-

er it is above or below the point where the ranges

would strike the Oregon shore. Well, then, when the

Henderson passed you, was she steering on the

ranges ?

A. She was steering on the ranges, yes, sir.

O. If she was steering on the ranges, and you saw

her steering toward Bugby Hole light the Bugby Hole

light must be the place where the ranges strike the

Oregon shore, wouldn't it?

A. When she passed me, I was afraid she was

going too close to me, so I looked down the river, and

I saw them two lights over on shore, and I was pretty

close in, so I showed by light in good time. 1 was

afraid he was going to come too close to me. That is

the reason I know he was right on the course.

O. Then when she passed you, I understand you
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to say that she steered straig"ht tor liughy Hole Light.

A. She might have steered a few feet up above, or

further down. That is more than 1 know. I say she

was steering the course when she passed me.

O. I may have your answer wrong. I just got the

answer this way. 1 just want to see whether I am

right, or not. "Henderson was steering to Bugby

Hole hght on the range lights." I want to see

w^hether Bugby Hole light is the ])lace where the

range lights strike the Oregon shore. That is wdiat

suggested it to me. I say that could be the same

point. Is that your best recollection?

A. I said she was steering for Bugby Hole. F

didn't mean to say she was steering right for the

light, or anything of that kind she was steering. \o\\

asked me what direction she went. I said, she went

for Bugby Hole light.

O. I didn't ask you the question at all. Mr. Wood
asked you that question. It was his question. You

said she was steering to Bugby Hole light on the

range lights, is the way I have it down, but I may

have got it wrong. Xow, were you a witness before

the Inspectors?

A. No, sir.

O. When did }'()U first learn that you were going

to be a witness in this case, and from whom?

A. I learned it from Mr. Shaver and froi^.i—what

is liis name? Mr. W^ocds.

O. Mr. Erskine Wood? When?
A. Last fall, f believe, ^'es, last fall.
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O. What time last fall?

A. I don't know. I was going to—he just asked

mc if T knew it and if I was there. That is all.

O. What time last fall?

A. Well, 1 can't remember if it was in—if it was

in September or

—

O. Some time in September, you think?

A. Some time around September.

Q. And when the Kern passed you, I want to

know whether you looked up the river, or not?

A. Why, yes, I did.

O. And at that time you didn't see the Samson?

A. No.

Redirect Examination.

Questions by Mr. ERSKIXE WOOD:
About how far is Rugby Hole light up above the

point where the Henderson passed you?

A. Bugby Hole light is—well, that nuist l)e a mile

any way.

O. Just come down here, and I will ask you on the

chart—Libellant's Exhibit 1. Tf that is the lower

point of Puget Island, and this is the upper point of

Tenas Illihee Island; here is the lower point of the

bluff: that the old fish trap or piling, Joe's old fish-

ery: this is the sand bar?

A. This is the sand bar? (Indicating).

O. (Indicating) (irove Slough : Ostervolt's sein-

ing ground; Bugby Hole. Where now

—

A. Is that the slough I was referring to?
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(). 1 was croinir to ask vou to mark tlial. Where

do you think now thai TUi^^^hy hgiit is, ahont?

A. Bugby Light?

(). P)uH)v Lio^ht?

A. Well, I couldn't tell exactly where tlie light is.

*0. I don't want you to tell exactly. I just want

you to indicate about where you think it is.

A. Tt should be here somewhere.

O. 1 w^ill show you. This is Coffee Island up here

(indicating).

A. Oh, there is Coffee Island? Well, it should be

there.

O. All right. Mark it there where you think it is.

(Witness Marked Exhibit 1). Mark ''Cy by the

cross, right close beside the cross which you indicated

as being Bugby light.

Mr. MINOR: Mark the cross.

Mr. ERSKIXE WOOD: He pointed to that.

Air. MIXOR: He didn't understand it.

A. Yes, I did. Here is Bugby. That is all right.

I just w^anted to find out where I am at.

Mr. MIXOR: (io ahead. Where do you think it

i s ?

A. I think it is here (indicating).

'O. All right. Mark that ''CJ^' there.

Mr. MIXOR: Xow, ])ut "Bugby Light" by that.

Mr. Erskine Wood marks on Libellant's Exhibit 1,

point indicated l)y witness as Btigby Light.

O. Now, when you said that the Henderson

passed you down b\- the sand bar steering on the
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ranges, and was lieading for Bugby light, do you

mean she was headed right for that Hght, and steering

for it, or that was her general direction?

A. I mean that was her general direction, and she

had them lights—that was the light I was referring

to—she had one light over the other. I don't mean

steering exactly for the light, steering that direction.

O. Now, will you mark the slough that you call

Cathlamet Slough?

A. Here is the slough.

O. Mark it there (Witness marks ''Cathlamet

Slough CJ").

O. Do you know anything about the speed of the

Samson ? Have you ever followed her with your

boat?

A. Why, T don't suppose it makes the same speed

vA\ the tiriic.

Q- Well, 1 just want to know if you know how she

runs down the river, with her barges, whether you

have run your boat behind her or alongside her, or

have you any means of knowing that?

A. When she is loaded?

O. Yes, loaded; coming down the river with a

half eblj tide, ;it tlic end of a June freshet.

A. Xo, T couldn't answer that question.

O. Did you make a drift agciin that night after

the collision ?

A. No, T didn't make no other drift, before in the

day light.

Mr. MINOR: I didn't cross examine on that, but
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can cross examine again.

Mr. ERSKINE WOOD: We will recall him.

Mr. MINOR: That is all right; just so I can cross

examine.

O. Did you make a drift again?

A. Not before dav liijht in the morn in sf.

O. How long after day light did you make a drift?

A. Seven o'clock.

O. Had the stone barges been moved at that time?

A. Xo.

O. Were they still there?

A. They were still there.

*'0. Do you know anything about their location?

A. I do.

O. Where were they?

A. That is the head of Tenas Illihee. (Tndicat-

O. This is the liead of Tenas Illihee Island. There

is the foot of Puget Island. There is the sand bar (in-

dicating).

A. Where is the range there? (Mr. ]\[inor indi-

cates on Libellant's Exhibit 1). Why, this one was-

laying, 1 should judge, she was laying here (indicat-

ing).

O. Mark it. (Witness does so). \\.)U mean that

was one or two?

A. That is the one.

Mr. ERSKIXE WOOD: Where I have indicated

'*one stone barge" and "Cj" under it?

A. \'es. Them other two were laying

—
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Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: You will have that chart

perfectly illegible pretty soon.

A. Where are the tow heads supposed to be on

this chart?

Mr. C E. S. WOOD: The tow heads are right

here (indicating).

A. That is the tow head. It was somewhere be-

tween here and here. But T don't know that to be

just the exact location of it.

Mr. ERSKINE WOOD: These are meant to be

the little sloughs.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD : Here is Grove Slough where

Ostervolt lives up here. Here is the next slough, and

there is the next slou^ii.

A. Well, they lay on this side, the east side—not

the east side, the wt-st side of the range. If that is the

to\v head, why they lay down here.

O. Mark it. (Marks "two stone barges CJ").

About how far—do you mean that would indicate that

they were on the Tenas Tllihee side of the range?

A. Well, I cannot state exactly. I cannot do that,

but they was not very far from the range.

Rccross Examination.

Questions by Mr. MINOR:

Mr. Johnson, were those tow boats the same ])lacc

when they were ])icked U]) by the Samson the next

day?

A.. Why, this is the place where I saw them when
it got dav light.
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(). Were tliev juichored then?

A. They was anchored then.

'O. W'cre tliey in tliat same place when the Sam-

son i)ickc(l them up? Or did you see them pick them

up?

A. I saw him pick them up, but I never looked

—

never noticed.

O. They were in the same place, as well as you

could tell?

A. Ves, sir.

O. Xow, how far was the one stone barge from the

shore of Puget Island?

A. Well, I don't know how wide the river is at

that point there.

O. W^ell, you ougiit to be able to tell pretty nearly

how far it was from the point of Puget Island.

A. Well, if I come within a couple of hundred feet

of it, whv

—

]\Ir. SNOW: Well, what, if you come within a cou-

])le of hundred feet of it—what?

A. I make a mistake.

O. How far do you think they were—your recol-

lection, not looking at the map.

A. Well, I think they would be

—

O. Mow far do you think it was from the shore?

A. r)00 feet.

O. 600 feet from the shore?

A. ^'es, sir.

•Q. And how far do you think the two were from

I he shore?



The Steamer Samson 413

A. Well, I—they was at least—from the Wash-

ington shore?

O. Yes—from Paget Island shore.

A. 900 feet.

O. 900 feet. And were they anchored in deep wa-

ter?

A. Well, I don't know for sure how deep that is

there. I think there is between five and six fathoms.

Q. Between five and six fathoms. The place

where the first barge was anchored was very near

where you were when the Henderson passed you,

was it ?

A. Yes, just about.

O. Just about the same place?

A. Yes.

O. Did the Henderson pass to the Puget Island

side or to the Orei^on side of where that stone baree

was anchored when she passed you down there?

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: The stone barge wasn't

there.

Mr. MINOR: I know, but he knows where the

point is.

A. To my judgment, she would go just between

me, about, and where the stone barge was lying.

O. Just between you and where the stone barge

way lying. And how close do you think she would

pass to where the stone barge was lying?

A. Well, say there would be—if the stone barge

was laying 200 feet from the range, why she passed

200 feet awav.
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Q. 200 feel '^

A. Yes.

O. ^()^ know where the stone harg'e was lyins^?

A. Yes.

O. How close do yon tliink she passed to where

the stone harg'e lay? Yon know where she passed,

and yon know wliere the stone har^^e was lyin^^?

A. Yes.

Q. Xow, tell us how close she passed to where the

stone barge was lying?

A. Piow close to the range?

O. No. How close the Henderson with her tow

passed to where the stone barge was lying?

A. I don't understand that question. If she

passed

—

O. Leave the cliart alone for a moment.

A. Yes, sir.

'O. You know where the stone bar^-e was an-

chored, this one stone barge?

A. Ves, sir.

O. And you know where the Henderson passed

at that point, don't you?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How far was it—was the stone barge from

where the Henderson passed along that place?

A. ^'ou mean to say, how far up from the range

lights?

O. Xo, I am just talking about the ])lace where

the barge was, and the place where the Henderson

was.
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A. 200 feet.

O. She passed 200 feet to the Oregon side of

where this barge was anchored, or to the Washing-

ton side of it?

A. Yes, to the Oregon side of it.

O. Tn your judgment, then, the stone barge, one

of them, was anchored, we will say, right off Cathla-

met Slough, and the Flenderson passed about 200 feet

towards the Oregon shore from her, when she passed

that point. That is right now, is it?

A. Yes, sir.

O. And the other two barges, you say, were about

900 feet from the Puget Island shore?

A. About, yes, sir.

Q. And on the Oregon side of the ranges?

A. On the Oregon side, yes.

Mr. SNOW: On the Oregon side of the ranges?

A. On the Oregon side of the range.

Mr. MINOR: That is what he said.

Redirect Examination.

By Mr. C. E. S. WOOD:
I would like to ask one or two questions. You

haven't pretended to fix the place in the river of these

barges exactly?

A. No, sir, I couldn't do that.

O. Have you any knowledge of the speed of the

Samson goin^" down the river with her barsres?

A. Not at that time.

Mr. MINOR: That is not redirect.
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^Jr. C. K. S. WOOD: 1 will ask leave to ask the

question. T don't think he understood the question.

T didn't mean at that time. That is exactly the point.

I will ask leave to ask this one question.

^Tr. MINOR: That opens up another subject.

COURT: If the witness misunderstood, let him

answer.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: We want to let him go to-

night, and that is why I wash to ask it now.

O. Do you know anything about the speed of the

Samson going down the river with loaded barges at

any time—not this night. Have you any knowledge

of her speed .^

A. Have seen her many times come down, but it

is hard for me to state just exactly what speed she

makes.

Q. Have you ])assed her, or in an}- way kci)t up

with her, with your own boat?

A. Ves, sir, I have.

O. And what is the rate of speed of your boat?

A. Well, with the tide I can run 11 miles an hour.

(). I mean, the same wav the Samson sfoes. How
docs her speed going dow^i loaded, com])are with your

speed, when you are running together?

A. Well, she wouldn't go that fast.

O. Xo. I want you to give an idea about what her

speed is.

A. Well, 1 don't know. 1 should think with the

tide, she would go four or five miles an hour.
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Mr. MINOR: Four or five miles an hour?

A. Yes, with the tide.

'O. Going down ?

A. Going down.

Q. How would she compare with your boat in

speed, relatively? If you could go 11 miles an hour,

would you think she would only go four or five? Have

you ever gone along with her, traveled with her?

A. I have not—yes, I have ; I have when she is

empty, I have gone with her; not when she is loaded.

Q. You don't know about when she is loaded.

A. No.

Witness excused.

Whereupon proceedings herein were adjourned un-

til Thursday, January 10, 1913, 10 A. M.

Portland, Ore., Thursday, Jan. 10, 1913, 10 A. M.

:\lr. ERSKINE WOOD: Mr. O'Reilly will be the

next witness testifying on the relation between the

Transportation and the Standard Oil Company as to

the contract of hiring. Mr. Snow is not here, and I

would like to wait until he gets here. This testi-

mony will probably be antagonistic to Mr. Snow's

contention, and as he is not here, I will put on an-

other witness.

OLE GROVE, called as a witness for the libellant,

being first duly sworn, testified as follows.

Direct Examination.

Questions by Mr. ERSKINE WOOD:
Mr. Grove, where do vou live?



41G The Steamer Samson

Mr. C. K. S. WOOD: I will ask leave to ask the

question. T don't think he understood the question.

T didn't mean at that time. That is exactly the point.

I will ask leave to ask this one question.

Air. MINOR: That opens up another subject.

COURT: If the witness misunderstood, let him

answer.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: We want to let him go to-

night, and that is why I v^ash to ask it now.

Q. Do you know anything" about the speed of the

Samson going down the river with loaded barges at

any time—not this night. Have you any knowledge

of her speed
""

A. Have seen her many times come down, but it

is hard for me to state just exactly what speed she

makes.

Q. Have you passed her, or in an}- way kept up

with her, with your own boat?

A. Ves, sir, I have.

O. And what is the rate of speed of your boat?

A. Well, with the tide I can run 11 miles an hour.

O. J mean, the same way the Samson goes. How
docs her si)eed going down loaded, compare with your

speed, when you are running together?

A. W>11, she wouldn't go that fast.

O. Xo. I want you to give an idea about what hcr

speed is.

A. Well, I don't know. 1 should think with the

tide, she would go four or five miles an hour.
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Mr. MINOR: Four or five miles an hour?

A. Yes, with the tide.

'O. Going down?

A. Going down.

Q. How would she compare with your boat in

speed, relatively? If you could go 11 miles an hour,

would you think she would only go four or five? Have

you ever gone along with her, traveled with her?

A. I have not—yes, I have; I have when she is

empty, I have gone with her; not when she is loaded.

O. You don't know about when she is loaded.

A. No.

Witness excused.

Whereupon proceedings herein were adjourned un-

til Thursday, January 10, 1913, 10 A. M.

Portland, Ore., Thursday, Jan. 10, 1913, 10 A. M.

Mr. ERSKINE WOOD: Mr. O'Reilly will be the

next witness testifying on the relation between the

Transportation and the Standard Oil Company as to

the contract of hiring. Mr. Snow is not here, and I

would like to wait until he gets here. This testi-

mony will probably be antagonistic to Mr. Snow's

contention, and as he is not here, I will put on an-

other witness.

OLE GROVE, called as a witness for the libellant,

being first duly sworn, testified as follows.

Direct Examination.

Questions by Mr. ERSKINE WOOD:
Mr. Grove, where do vou live?
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A. Well, in winter time I live in Portland, and

summer time I live down on Puget Island.

O. How long have yon lived dr)wn on Puget Isl-

and?

A. 24 years.

O. Do you live up that slough which is named for

you?

A. Yes.

Q. Grove Slough?

A. Yes, sir.

*0. And what husiness are you in down there?

A. Fishing.

Q. Have you been fishing all that time?

A. , All that time since I come.

O. Along that part of the river?

A. Yes, along that part from there and down to

Astoria.

O. Are you the father of Eddie Grove who testi-

fied before?

A. Yes.

Q. Where were you on the night of the collision

between the Samson and the Henderson with her oil

barge?

A. I was lying what we call at the tow head, about

a (|uarter of a mile above tlie lower end of Puget Isl-

and.

O. Laying at the tow head?

A. Yes.

O. In your boat?

A. Yes, sir.
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'Q. Who was your partner?

A. There was Ehas Dahl was my partner that

time.

O. In the hoat with }'ou?

A. Yes.

O. What were vou doino', Ivins: there at the tow

head?

A. We was lying there waiting our turn. A good

many boats, and we had to wait so long.

O. Did you notice the Henderson?

A. Yes, sir.
'

Q. Coming up the river?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Did you notice the Samson when she came

down?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Wliere was the Henderson when you noticed

her—when vou first noticed her?

A. The Henderson was a little above the range

lights the first time we seen it.

*'Q. That is the first time you saw it?

A. Yes.

Q. A little toward Puget Island—a little up the

river from the Hunting Island range lights?

A. Yes, about half way, something like that.

Q. Did you observe her course at all?

A. No, we didn't notice that at that time, because

we were laying pretty close to the shore, and they

were out in the river.

O. Did you—well, just describe her course after
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she came up abreast of the tow head, as near as you

can tell.

A. Then they Ciime just on the rans^e as possible

to come, 1 think. The fishermen there had laid out

the net, and he made kind of a little—
Q. Talk louder.

A. He made kind of a little turn and to us people

there, made a little to miss that l)oat.

(J. That boat Rddie was in?

A. That boat Eddit was in. They missed that

boat. I suppose that they turned off a little bit to

the Puget Island side.

O. You saw him turn out to pass Eddie?

A. Yes.

•Q. Then what did he do?

A. After he passed Eddie, he turned a little back,

I suppose to get exactly on his course on the range;

a little bit more. He sheared a little more over.

O. Which way?

A. Over to the Oregon shore. Most all deep wa-

ter vessels, they head for that point there.

O. Which point?

A. Hunt's Mill Point, on the bluff above.

O. Which way is Hunt's Mill point from that

high bluff?

A. Well, the Hunt's Mill point is right under-

neath the bluff—right on the bluff there.

O. Right at the bluff?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you have any thought that the Henderson
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was going pretty far over to the Oregon shore in

the shallow water, or did you think anything ahont

that?

A. No, I didn't think anything about too far over;

can go pretty far over; there is deep water.

O. Then did yon see the Samson at this time?

A. I saw the Samson, yes. The Henderson passed

that fisherman, and then as he passed him, about

abreast of the tow head, he blowed the first whistle.

=0. What is that?

(Answer read).

O. And how far below the tow head, did the Hen-

derson pass Eddie?

A. Oh, I don't know. T suppose he passed him

just about 100 feet, something like that. T didn't

measure that. Something in the neighborhood ; some-

thing like that.

O. Then tell what whistles you heard, and what

you saw?

A. They blowed one whistle.

O. Who did ?

A. The oil barge or the Henderson—T don't know

which one blowed.

O. And was that answered?

A. That was answered by one from the Samson.

O. And then what happened? What did you hear

or see?

A. Well, the Henderson—the oil l)arge, they kept

on going their course pretty near—kind of on the

Oregon shore from iliere and the Samson came down
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and then in a litllc while—we didn't take much notice

—the second whistle was hlown from the oil barge or

the Ilenderson, and llien \ve g"o to look around and

see what was going to be, and then we didn't take

much particular notice before was three or four more

whistles l)lew.

O. Is that what caused you to take particular no-

tice?

A. Yes, the Henderson blew a second whistle, and

we didn't hear no answer, and we thought it funny

she blew one more.

'O. Then I understand you heard the danger whis-

tle?

A. Yes, after T heard the two whistles.

O. And then you paid particular attention—is that

it?

A. Yes.

O. Then what happened?

A. Well, it ha])pened, the Samson came down and

didn't seem to change his course at all, and the first

thing we knew, we heard them three whistles, or

about four— T don't know how' many, and then a lit-

tle—in a second or two— I don't know how man\-

there was—and the}' run right together. We heard a

crash, and we heard the anchors, and we saw the Sam-

son ])ut the search light on the Henderson. .Xnd we

saw sinking down, sinking down stern fast, and he

sunk ])retty cpiick.

O. Then what did \'ou say or do? Did you say

an}lhing to your partner?
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A. I says, ''We will go over there."

O. Did you say anything about that boat sinking?

A. I says, ''The boat is sinking", I says.

O. And said vou would have to go over there?

A. Yes.

O. Did vou go over there?

A. T went over there as fast as we could go, and

we got just pretty near over, and some one on the

Samson—I don't know^ who it was, hollered, "Hurry

up. for we need help over here.'

'O. Where did } ou go? Did you reach the Hen-

derson ?

A. Yes, we reached the Henderson, right along-

side of them. We passed the Samson and the stone

barges first, you know\ and had to go the northwest

side of them until we got to the Henderson.

O. Went on the northwest side of them?

A. Yes.

O. Did }'ou take an}' ])eople off the Henderson?

A. Three, I think. John Anderson and some more

w'as all going down in my boat—two women and a

man, went off in another fellow's boat that w^ent

there.

O. How was the Plenderson then? How was she

lying?

A. Lying on her side.

O. ( )ver on her side?

A. Yes.

Q. Sunk?

A. Yes.
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O. How long do you think it look you to run over

to her?

A. ()h, it took, say four or five minutes—five any-

how, something near that.

'O. You had a gasoline hoat?

A. Yes.

O. How long after the collision did you hear these

anchor chains you spoke of?

A. They was just ahout the same time.

O. Could you see from the lights of the boats or

the outline of the boats or anything, could }ou see

them when they came together?

A. Yes, we could see by the lights. Yes, we could

see the lights when they came together.

(}. ^\)U could see the collision ?

A. Yes.

O. Where do you think it was?

A. Well, I don't know if there was 50 feet below

that i)oint, you know the sharp point, kind of a point

here. They was right at the i)oint, so near that we

couldn't see it. Th.u was the l.)luff and the trees we

could see right there.

O. You could tell it was close to the bluff?

A. Yes.

O. Did you see the oil barge anchored the next

Tnorning?

A. Yes.

O. Where was she?

A. The oil barge was Ixing :: little below the point

there, near that old piling. They are old jailing and



The Steamer Samson 425

old fish trap a little below that point.

COURT: Did they come together above or below

the point?

A. Well, I think they were there right at the

point, or a little below, as near as T can get at it.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: Did your Honor ask the

point of collision ?

COURT: Yes.

O. Where do you think the point of collision was,

as compared to where the oil barge lay the next morn-

ing?

A-. They were just at the same place.

O. What did you do after you took the people off

the Henderson ?

A. We was around there and looking to see if

anything to pick up is what first we do. Run around

there a little while, and stop and the Samson blew

—

there was a boat come down Cathlamet, and they

blew a signal for him to stop, and take the people

down to Astoria. That boat didn't seem to hear, and

he l)lew twice, and it didn't seem as though they

wanted to stop. And we was going around there

looking at the Henderson, and we took a notion to

go and lay out the net again.

O. Before I go into that, before we leave the oil

barge, how far off the shore was the oil barge an-

chored ?

A. r don't know: about 230 feet, something like

that.

O. You say you looked around to see whether you

would make another drift?
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A. Ves.

O. Did you make another drift?

A. Well, we st<irted to make another drift, and

then you see them two stone bar^^^es was in the road,

and then it got dayhght, too, pretty soon, and we seen

another barge laying down the river. Then we

thought would be all in the road, and we went home.

O. Vou didn't make your drift?

A. Xo, we went home and had breakfast, and

came right back out again.

•Q. Did you notice where these tw^o stone barges

were lying in the river?

A. Yes.

O. Where were they?

A. Well, they were laying—what we call just out

off the tow head. They were lying northwest, right

square out from that. That would be northwest to

the Oregon shore.

O. Square out from the tow head?

A. West, that would be northwest, right sr|uare

across the river.

O. \\niich side of the rancfc were thev on?

A. About 7?) fathoms on the Oregon side of the

range.

O. I didn't understand whether you started to

make a drift, and sto])pcd, or whether you just looked

around and decided not to make a drift at all.

A. The reason we stopped, we saw another barge

down the river, and we thought in the way, and the

tide was strong", and no use to make anv drift.
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O. Where do you lay out your fishing net?

A. We lay it out from the Oregon shore always,

just a little below that point where we was talking

about.

O. Which point—Hunt's Mill?

A. Hunt's Mill Point.

'O. A little below that?

A. A little below that.

O. Where does the other end of your net reach

when it is laid out ?

A. Oh, it reaches to the range.

O. And these two stone barges were anchored in

such a position that would prevent your drifting with

the net?

A. Yes.

O. When you lay out your net up there off Hunt's

Mill Point, and extend out to the range, how does it

drift?

A. Thev drift naturally down the river, accordincf

to the tide; straight down sometimes, and high tide

they might draw over to the east side, to the Wash-

ington shore, where you get a little below Puget Isl-

and.

O. Where vou get a little below Pusret Island?

A. Yes.

Q. Well, with the conditions that night, with a

nine foot tide, half ebb, how would she drift?

A. She will draw in to the Washington shore with

that tide.

O. At what point will she draw in to the Washing'-
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ton shore?

A. When you "et just about abreast Tenas Illihee

Point, tlien slie start to draw over toward the Wash-

in i^^ton shore.

O. And from the place you lay out, until you get

down abreast Tenas Tlliliee point, she v\ill go straight

down tlie river?

A. Nearly; on that tide she will go about straight

down the river then.

O. Will there be any suck dowm the Clifton Chan-

nel?

A. No, no.

O. Hid you see the Henderson the next morning?

A. Yes.

O. Where was she lying?

A. Well, he was lying a little above Tenas Illihee

—the point of Tenas Illihee Island ; was near between

the two points and a little up the river from Tenas

Illihee.

O. Between the range and Tenas Illihee upper

point ?

A. N'es.

(). If the collision hap]:)ened over near the Oster-

volt seining ground, over on this side of the river

somewhere, somewhere near that little slough where

the ])iling is, do you think the [Henderson could have

drifted from that place over to where you saw her

the next morning?

A. Xo.

(). W'hv un\-^
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A. Can never have clone it on no kind of tide.

'O. The current isn't that way?

A. No.

O. Well, how is that current from that point over

near the OstervoU seining" ground?

A. The current goes right straight down along

the beach there.

O. Did you notice the Daniel Kern pass that

night, or not?

A. I noticed her pass, yes.

O. How long do you think the Daniel Kern passed

down the river before the Samson came into your

sight?

A. \\'ell, we didn't—we didn't get so exactly—we

didn't look at the clock, but anyhow, that must be

over 40 minutes.

O. What makes you think it was that long?

A. Well, we had a certain time on the towhead,

vou know, was from 15 to 20 minutes between everv

boat, and there were two boats ahead of me, and T

go to lay out. Charlie Johnson he lay out after the

Kern g-o by, and Eddie was next and T would be the

next, and I didn't lay out, of course.

O. Did you know anything about the speed of the

Samson coming* down the river with a load?

A. Makes about eig-ht miles, something- like that.

I couldn't say exactly, but anyway between seven

and eight.

O. How do you determine that?

A. Can tell that bv own j^-asoline boat.
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'(). Have vou ever run with vour own "gasoline

boat alono" with the Samson coniinp^ dowm with loaded

barges?

A. Yes.

O. How^ fast does your boat run ?

A. Well, we can run eight miles and a little bet-

ter, and I can't follow^ the Samson.

O. Can't follow the Samson?

A. Xo.

O. Can't kee]) \\\) with her?

A. No.

O. Vou mean, she runs about eight miles or a lit-

tle better coming down with the current the way it

was that night, half ebb tide?

A. \'es, he was between seven and eight. You

see, our boats don't run always the same. If you got

them in good trim w^e might— I don't know—the

Samson boat don't run all the same, either. Seven

or eight miles is as near as I can get to the speed they

make.

O. Have you run alongside the Samson the same

way she was g'oing very often?

A. Oh, quite a number of times.

Questions by Mr. C E. S. WOOD:
Now, that is your slough where you live?

A. ^'es. (Referring to drawing).

O. And this is Puget Island, and this is Hunt's

r>iill Point, and here are tlie Hunting Island range

lights; that is the range; here is Clifton Channel, and

there is the tow head somewhere, just off this little
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slough.

A. And Biigby range must be here.

Mr. ERSKTNE WOOD : Bugby light isn't marked

there.

A. The light and the range isn't the same place.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD : We don't seem to have Bug-

l)y light, ^'ou will have to fix that yourself. This is

not intended to be exact; just to enable you to show.

T offer this in evidence.

Drawing marked *'Libellant's Exhibit 5."

Mr. ERSKINE WOOD: Now, Ole, about where

do vou start to lav out vour nets when you first start

to lay?

A. We started about here that day. We started

here and came down here (indicating on Libellant's

Exhibit 5). We lay out sometimes straight across

this way, and other times slantways down this way,

but not over that line. We are supposed to finish at

that line. We come so far. Sometimes we come

that far (indicating).

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD : By "that line" you mean the

range line?

A. Yes, that range line.

O. (C. E. S. WOOD) : You keep to the Oregon

side of that?

A. We keep to the Oregon side of that.

O. Now, show again where you begin to lay out

generally?

A. We begin just about here (indicating).

O. At the point marked ''A" you mean?
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A. \'cs, tliat is as near as T can get at it.

O. And tlien lay out in what direction?

A. We lay out this way (indicating).

O. Mark it there.

A. lust about there. (Indicating.)

O. At the point 'T>.'*

A. Of course we go down with the tide, ^ou know,

and when we finish we get right down to here. We
start there and drift with the tide, and come to op-

posite here, the tow head, you understand. The cur-

rent is going down the river pretty fast.

'O. Opposite the tow head at the point "C", is that

it?

A. Yes.

O. And yoin* buoy drifts down with you?

A. Yes.

O. How does the net run as being across the chan-

nel or slanting?

A. Goes across. The end goes faster down. That

is the reason we lay out that way in different tide.

We are supposed to keep even with the buoy. The

l)UO}' drifts with the tide. There is the direction we

go when we lay out. We lay out with that buoy just

up here (indicating).

O. The buoy end drifts faster than you?

A. Deeper water o\'er there.

O. \{)\\ watch the ])Uoy end.

A. Yes.

Questions by Mr. ERSKIXE WOOD:
T didn't ask about the snags there. Eirst, \ \\\\\
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ask you, why do you always lay out to the ranc^e, and

not further?

A. Well, we got snags right here some place.

O. Just show about where.

A. We got two or three right there. (Indicating).

We got to lay out a certain place. We got a mark

on the trees and mountains that we lay out by, so we

get clear of them snags.

^[r. C. E. S. WOOD: Locate that one snag again.

A. On the Washington side?

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: Yes.

A. I think somewhere about here.

'O. ^lark *'snag" below the point of Puget Island.

Well, Ole, if the Henderson was cut loose from the

oil barge at the point where you think the collision

occurred, near Hunt's Mill Point, and drifted from

there, where do you think she would go at that stage

of the tide?

A. She go just as near straight down the river as

can be. Prol^ably would draw the least thing over

this way and the Henderson, he was lying right

there.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD : By "the least over this way,"

what do you mean ?

A. A little northwest. You go from here, and

would go down that w ay. ^'ou see goes a little bit to

the northwest. ( Indicating.)

O. (Mr. ERSKTXE WOOD): Mark about

where you think the Henderson was.

A. That is the point of Tenas Illihee?
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O. Ves.

A. It must be somewhere around here (indicat-

ing).

A[r. C. E.S.WOOD: The point marked "D." Let

liim locate in a rough way where he thinks the col-

Hsion occurred, and then see what the Hue of drift

would be.

A. Well, there it is around that point. That would

be all right. Now, we call the point right there, and

take the collision point just right there. The point

—

—there is a little difference. Of course it is so close,

but a few feet, if you are out we can't tell.

Mr. C. E. S. Wood marks the point "E".

Q. If the collision occurred at "E", do you think

that the Henderson would have drifted at that stage

of the tide, to the point ''D" where you have located

her?

A. Ves, that is just where he would drift.

Witness temporarily excused.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: Mr. O'Reilly is here now,

and I would like to defer the cross examination.

D. C. O'REILLY, a witness called on behalf of the

libellant, being first duly sworn, testified as follows.

Direct Examination.

Questions by Mr. C. E. S. WOOD:
IVIr. O'Reillv, vou are the President of the Ore^-on

Round Lumber Company?

A. ] am.

(). And the acti\'e business manager?
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A. I am.

O. Were you such in July, 1911?

A. T was.

•Q. Part of the business of that corporation is tow-

ing on the river, is it?

A. Yes.

O. I wish you would explain the facts connected

with the hiring of the Henderson to tow Oil Barge

93 up from Astoria on July 21st, the time she was

wrecked.

A. We— I think we either got a wireless from the

shi]), or from San Francisco, or both,—I don't remem-

ber exactly—that the Atlas would be off the bar into

Astoria at such a time, and asked us to arrange to tow

the barge up the river; take the barge away from

the Atlas and

—

Mr. MINOR: Speak louder, Mr. O'Reilly, will

you ?

A. As we had no boat of our own available to

make the tow

—

Mr. C K. S. WOOD : Speak a little louder for ^\r.

Elinor.

A. I asked l\lr. Shaver, or asked the Shaver Trans-

portation Com pan}' if tlie}' would take the tow. lliey

said they would, and the}' sent the Henderson down

for 93.

O. \o\\ turned the order o\ er to them?

A. Yes.

O. And hcive }'ou an}' interest in the Henderson

you or your corporation?
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A. Xone.

O. Or in this lilii^alion at all?

A. Xone at all.

Cross examination.

Oncstions by Mr. SXOW:

Mr. O'Reilly you had a contract

—

A. T he^ pardon.

O. You had a contract with the Standard Oil

Company to tow these bar,i[;-es from Astoria to Port-

land and return.

A. Didn't have a contract. We had an under-

standing that we would tow their barges when they

asked us to do that.

O. You had some letters passing, didn't you?

A. Yes.

Q. Betw^een yourself and the Standard Oil Com-

pany?

A. Yes.

O. I show you, y\r. O'Reilly, a letter from you to

Mr. Rholfs, Manager of the Marine Department of

the Standard Oil Company, dated February 2, 1907,

and what purports to be a rei)ly to that letter from

the Standard Oil Company to you, dated February 15,

1907; another letter from you to ^V. S. Rheem, Man-

ager Marine Department, Standard Oil Com])any,

dated February 18, 1907, and re])ly to that letter, dat-

ed February 21, 1907. T show you also a letter of

July 19, 1907, purporting to come from }'our C(^m-

l)any signed I). C. O'Reill}', and a re])l}' to that letter
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dated July 22, 1907. Do you recognize that corres-

pondence as passing between you and the Standard

Oil Company, on this subject of towage?

A. Why, .1 certainly recognize my own letters,

and I have no doubt that I received the others also.

O. Vou have the original letters from the Stand-

ard Oil Company to your company?

A. ] believe we have. yes. sir.

yiv. SXOW: I offer that correspondence.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: Xo objection.

]\Ir. SXOW: I will read them and withdraw them.

(Reads as follows)

:

"DIAMOXD O LIXE
Oregon Round Lumber Co.

Portland, Oregon, Eeb. 2, 1907.

T. G. Rholf,

^larine Department, Standard Oil Co.,

Oakland, Calif.

Dear sir:

I have been unable to write you sooner in the mat-

ter of towing your oil barges, as the O. R. & X Co.,

had no established rate for a service from Astoria to

Portland and return other than rate from the sea ta

Portland and return, and before T could make figures,

necessarily had to know what they would do, and I

now beg to advise, we can engage to tow your barges

X(\ 3 or Xo. 91 from Astoria to Portmouth and return

at a rate of $280.00: from Goble to Portsmouth and

return to Astoria $175.00. It would take about 20

hoiu's to tow a loaded baro-e from Astoria to Ports-
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uunnh, and al)()iU 10 hrs. for the empty from Ports-

mouth to Astoria; from Cioblc 10 lirs., loaded to

Portmoiith, and about 10 hrs. empty from Portsmouth

to Astoria. This is allowing- ample time, and I be-

lieve we can do better.

Yours truly,

Diamond O Line

DCO'R D. C. O'Reilly."

COURT: Where is Portsmouth?

:\lr. SNOW: Below Portland on the Willamette

River, maybe a mile or two down the river here.

y\v. SXOW (Continuino)

:

"February 15th, 1907.

SUBJECT:
TOWAGE—Baro-e No. 91.

Mr. D. C. O'Reilly, Algr.,

Diamond O Line,

Portland Ore.

Dear sir:

—

We beg- to acknowledge receipt of your letter of the

2nd quoting us rates for towing our barges in tl'c

Columbia River.

Wish to stale that the Str. "Atlas" will leave San

i'^rancisco about February 17th with Barge Xo. 91 in

tow, and we wish you to have your tugboat at Astoria

on the arrival of this barge and low her to Ports-

mouth; after she is discharged tow her back to As-

toria and deliver her to the Str. "Atlas."

I will lclegTai)h }'()U the date and time this outfit

leaves San Francisco in order that }'ou may be pre-
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l^ared to pick up the barge without delay.

Yours truly,

FRC/C "

"DIAMOND O LINE
Portland, Oregon.

February 18, 1907.

\V. S. Rheem, Manager,

Marine Dept., Standard Oil Co.,

Oakland, Calif,

i^ear sir:

—

Referring to your letter of February 15th. In writ

iiig our letter of February 2nd, we did not go into

subject with the detail we might, particularly, as the

writer discussed the matter pretty fully with your

Mr. Rholf.

I explained to ^Iv. Rholf that we towed on the river

with a stern wheel river boat, and not a tug, and that

there might be times when the weather in Astoria

harbor was so rough that a stern wheel boat could no^

make fast alongside a vessel, in which case it would

be necessary for the "Atlas," or other Ocean boats to

bring the tow up river to a point where we could

safely take hold. We would like to know if this con-

dition is understood bv vou?

In the matter of Pilot, we wired you yesterday, ask-

ing if the Captain of the barge would arrange for a

pilot on arrival at Astoria, being uncertain if you un-

derstood that it would be necessary to employ a reg-

ular branch pilot for the barge. We assume that the

"Atlas" will l)e in Astoria Wednesday morning, and
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we fig"ure on sending our tow boat down Tuesday

ni^lit. Please advise.

Yours truly,

Diamond O Line

D. C. O'Reilly."

"Feb. 21, 1907.

Tbe Diamond ''O" Line,

Mr. D. C. O'Reilly,

181 Burnside Street, Portland.

Dear sir:

—

\W' received a telegram today from our agent at

Portland, star in r tbat on account of certain u.navoid-
' A.)

able circumstances which have transpired, he is not in

a position to take the cargo of Barge No. 91 this trip.

We wired him today to advise vou of this fact, it be-

ing necessary for us to take Barge No. 91 from As-

toria to Seattle, instead of sending her to Portsmouth,

as originally ]:)lanned. This of course will necessitate

our refusing your services this trip. We are very

sorry these conditions have arisen, and hope you will

look at it in a favorable light, and make us such charge

as you deem just for the time which you tied up your

tow boat.

We are in ho])es in the near future that we shall

send barges of oil to Portsmouth, and shall be ])leased

\o> have you tow these barges at the rates you c|uoted.

We shall telegraph you each time the barge leaves

Richmond for Portland, so that you may be on hand

with your towboat.

Hoping the above ex])lanati()n of this present
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change of orders may be acceptable to you, I remain,

Yours truly,

FRCAI "

"DIAMOND O LINE

July 19, 1907.

Mr. W. S. Rheeni,

Manager Marine Department,

949 Filbert St., Oakland, Cal.

Dear sir:

In the matter of towing your Barge No. 91. At

the time we figured out the rate of $280 for round-trip

between Astoria and Portsmouth, we were under the

impression her registered tonnage was 1750 tons,

and we so ad\ised the O. R. & N. Co. In looking fur-

ther into the matter we now find, however, her ton-

nage is 1850, which would make the towing rate

5^300.00. instead of $280.00. We will have to charge

you on $300.00 basis hereafter.

Yours truly,

Oresfon Round Lumber Co.

DCO'R D. C. O'Reilly, Manager."

"505-18th Street, July 22, 1907.

Subject : Towage—Barge No. 91

The Diamond "O" Line,

181 Burn side Street,

Portland, Ore.

Dear sir:

—

We beg to acknowledge receipt of your favor of

July 19th, changing rate for towing Barge No. 91
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from $280 to $300. This chan,q-e will he satisfactory

to ns.

Yours truly,

FRC/M "

O. Mr. O'Reilly, havino;- no boat available to tow

on that particular occasion, you asked Mr. Shaver if

he would tow the boat?

A. Yes.

'O. And he did take over the tow at the same rate

that you were being paid by the Standard Oil Com-

pany?

A. He did, sir.

O. The Standard Oil Company then paid you no

money for towing the barge in question wdiich was

in this accident?

A. They did, sir.

O. And you paid the Shaver Transportation Com-

pany?

A. Yes.

COURT: This cirrangement regarding Barge 91

was the same w^ith other barges—93?

A. 93 and 91 are the numbers of the Standard Oil

sea-going barges on this coast.

COURT: Is 93 mentioned there?

Mr. SNOW: I will explain that. Tn this corres-

pondence Barge 93 was mentioned. As a matter of

fact, don't you know that the barge was originall}'

called Xo. 3, and then changed to 93?

A. I am not aware of that fact, no.

O. At anv rate, Bar^rc 93 is one of the barQcs
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which this correspondence refers to.

A. Well, if 93 is figured in there, it is, yes.

Q. Well, 93 is mentioned. What we call 93 is

mentioned in your letter as No. 3.

A. Well, that may be. I didn't understand No. 3

was the one in the accident, in the beginning.

Mr. SNOW: Do you want me to offer proof, Mr.

Wood ?

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: Not if you say that is the

fact.

Mr. SNOW: The fact is. Barge 93 was changed

to No. 3 and back to 93 again, because of some confu-

sion in regard to some eastern barges, and for keeping

track of the numbers. And it may be referred to as

Barge 93. It was referred to in the correspondence

as Barge 3, but has been changed since the corres-

pondence to 93.

Mr. WOOD: Well, I understand this change was

never brought to the attention of the Oregon Round

Lumber Company. The Oregon Round Lumber

Company had no knowledge of this change?

Q. Mr. O'Reilly, as a matter of fact, you did not

advise the Standard Oil Company, or any of its offi-

cers at San Francisco, of the turning over of the tow

to the Henderson on this occasion?

A. [ don't remember whether we did or not, but

as a matter of fact, the original, understanding was

—

the question Mr. Rheem put to me originally when

we talked about the business was whether we could

take care of it.
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(). \ don't care about that. I am askin^^ as to

whether or not as a fact, you advised the

—

A. (Interrupting-) T couldn't say without look-

ing up the records.

Redirect Examination.

Questions by Mr. C. E. S. WOOD:
Mr. (^'Reill}', was this the only instance in which

you were unable to tow for them?

A. No.

O. Or did it happen at other times before this?

A. It happened very frecpiently.

O. And did you turn over those orders in the same

way ?

A. Yes.

i). Did the Standard Oil people here in Portland

know about this?

A. They must certainl}- have known.

O. What:^

A. I think— I am sure they did.

Q. What was the understanding that you were

talking about—that you had in the conversation with

Mr. Rholfs?

A. 1 said Mr. Rheem.

Mr. SXOW: This con\'ersation occurred in wSan

Francisco, before the correspondence?

A. It was the conversation referred to in the cor-

respondence.

Mr. SXOW: The only contract you have with the

Staiulard Oil Company is set forth in the corresj)ond-
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ence?

A. That is only a small part of the correspondence

that passed between us.

Mr. SNOW: Then you have other correspondence

with them on this?

A. Yes.

Mr. SNOW: We ask for the correspondence, if

the Court please, instead of havin,e^ any talk in San

Francisco. We object to this.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: We will be g-lad to produce

such correspondence as is relative. I didn't antici-

pate it, but will be glad to produce it; but outside of

that—this is not a formal contract.

COURT : Objection overruled. It is better to have

the matter in the record, than run the risk of reject-

ing something that should be in. Exception allowed.

Mr. SNOW: My objection goes to the conversa-

tion which the witness was asked about by counsel,

on the ground that the conversation is irrelevant and

immaterial, and there is written correspondence

which forms the contract.

01\jection overruled. Exception allowed.

Q. State first the conversation with Mr. Rholfs.

A. T hai^pencd to be in San Francisco, and Mr.

Rheems sent for me. One of the pilots had given him

my name. I went over to see him, and he said he

wanted to make arrangement for the prompt handling

of their oil ]:>arges when tliey came in the river, and

said {h:\\ the O. R. (Jv N. Company would not agree

to have a boat at Astoria immediatelv on arrival of
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one (^f tlic vessels. And T discussed the matter with

him, and he asked as to our capacity to do the work.

T told him we had hut (^ne towhoat that was suitable

to make such a tow, but that w^e would undertake to

see, if we didn't have a boat, that some of our neigh-

bors would do the towing for them, and I thought

possibly the O. R. & X. would be in a position to do

it at times, but we would look after it for them. And

we discussed rates and times in an offhand wav, and

then I l>elieve he turned me over to Mr. Rholfs and

we discussed it, and as a result of the conversation,

I came home and wrote that first letter referred to,

O. \\\\\ you look over your files and produce any

further correspondence relating to this particular

matter?

A. Yes.

Mr. SXOW: Or relating to any matter of towing

barges of the Standard Oil Company.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: By this particular matter,

T don't mean this one barge. T mean the matter of

towing these boats.

COURT: Did you make any charge for commis-

sion, or anything of that kind, where you turned it

over to some one else?

A. None whatever.

W^itncss excused.

The follow'ing letters and telegrams were later pro-

duced by Mr. O'Reilly, Mr. Wood and ]\lr. Snow

stii)ulating that they should be copied into the record.
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"WESTERN UNION TELEGRAPH CO.

July 5, 1911.

Ca])tain Kirkwood,

Standard Oil Barge No. 93,

c|o Standard Oil Co., Astoria, Ore.

On instructions from San Francisco arranged to

bring ninety three direct to Portsmouth and sto]) at

St. Helens and Astoria returning. If you change this

arrangement will make increase in cost of tow.

Oregon Round Lumber Co."

"NIGHT LETTER
AVestern Union Telegraph Company

San Francisco, Cal. July 19, 1911.

Oregon Round Lumber Co.,

Portland, Ore.

ATLAS with Barge No. Ninety three sailed last even-

ing for Portland. Will want you to handle barge from

Astoria as usual. Captain of ATLAS has been in-

structed to advise you by wireless what time he will

have the barge at Astoria.

748pm J. C. Rohlfs."

"NIGHT LETTER
THE WESTERN UNION TELEGRAPH COM-

PANY.
San Francisco, Cal. Aug. 23, 1911

Oregon Round Lumber Co.,

Portland, Ore.

Barge ninety one sailed from here yesterday in tow

of tug Hercules for Astoria and Portland. We will

not require your tow boat this trip as Hercules will do
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Xo\\\\\^ np and down the C()lnni])ia River.

J. C. Rohlfs. 916pm."

"STANDARI^ OIL COMPANY,
505 18th St., Oakland, Cal. Nov. 8, 1907.

Subject: Towing- Barge No. 91.

The Oregon Round lAimber Co.,

181 llurnside Street,

Portland, Ore.

Gentlemen :-

We return herewith your l)ill of October 22nd,

and would ask if you cannot kindly reduce the terms

therein. \o\\ \\\\\ remember that your charge for

towing from Astoria to Portland and return to As-

toria was $300.00, and on a mileage basis your bill

wT)uld seem to be entirely out of reason. We under-

stand the distance from the mouth of the Willamette

to our Portland wharf is about 8 miles, making a

total tow of—say 16 to 18 miles, and we think $75.00

would be a very fair rate for this towag^e, and hope

you can meet us to this extent.

^^)ur charge of $20.00, for two hotu's' delay, we

can haxe no objection to.

Yours truly,

JCR|M 1 enclos. W. S. Rheem, per j. C. Rohlfs.

P. S. We also enclose your second bill which has

just come to hand |. C. R."

"Nov. 13, 1907.

W. S. Rheem, Manager ^larine ne])artment. Stand-

ard Oil Co., Oakland, Calif.

Dear sir:-

Rc])lying to your favor of November 8th, and re-
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turning herewith bills for towing Barge No. 91. We
charged you for this service the same figures that we

charge other companies for a like service, and, al-

though the charge does seem high for the distance

traveled, the rates are in line with the customary

charge of all tow boat companies, particularly, the

O. R. & N. Co; as a matter of fact, the O. R. & N.

Co. are supposed to do all the ship towing, and fix the

rates, and whenever any of the outside boats get any

of the work to do, they have to conform to the O. R.

& N. Co's rates.

Wq don't want you to feel that we are overcharg-

ing you for this service, and will be glad if you will

confer with the O. R. & X. people in the matter for

your satisfaction.

Yours truly,

DCO'R. DIAMOND O LINE."

"Dec. 23, 1907.

W. S. Rheem, Manager,

Marine Dept. Standard Oil Co.,

Oakland, Calif.

Dear sir:

Referring to your letter of November 19th in the

matter of our bills for towing barge No. 91 between

Morgan's and Portsmouth. We would like to satisfy

you in this matter, but cannot see how we can consist-

ently reduce our charges. They are in accordance

with the prevailing rates which are paid by other

Companies without demur. As a matted of fact we
had to engage an outside boat to make one of these
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tows, and j^aid them what we charged you.

The charge does appear higii as compared with

prices quoted for a longer tow, l:)Ut where the shorter

tows are made entirely at convenience of the ship it

often occurs that the move kills as much time for the

tow boat as a much longer run, and other business

has to be refused, and the tow boat lavs idle in order

to move an oil vessel when it is ready to go.

In (|uoting figures on the Astoria and Goble tows,

it was the understandino: of the writer that baro^es

would be brought into Astoria by steamers en route

to Puget Sound, and taken away on their return trip

which would enable us to do the towing somewhat at

our convenience, but this hasn't been the case with

the No. 91 ; as a matter of fact, there has been very

little in the towing for us as it is worked.

Yours truly,

DCO'R. DIAMOND O LINE."

''STANDARD OIL COMPANY,
461 Market St. San Francisco, Cal. June 6, 191 1.

The Oregon Round Lumber Company,

Portland, Ore.

(ientlemen

:

This is to advise you that our Steamer "ATLAS"
and Barge "No 93" will be due at Astoria about June

9th or 10th. Will you kindly have your tow boat

meet the Barge at Astoria and tow her to P(^rtland?

After her cargo is discharged, please tow the Barge

to anchorage off Astoria, where the Steamer "AT-

LAS" will acrain take her in tow. We ha\'e instructed
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Captain Daniels of the Steamer ''ATLAS" to advise

vou bv wireless just what time these vessels are due

at Astoria.

Yours truly,

J. C. Rohlfs, Manager,

JEH|ES By J. E. Hutchinson.

"July 7, 1911.

Mr. J. C. Rohlfs, Mgr.,

Marine Dept. Standard Oil Co.,

San Francisco, California.

Dear sir:-

In accordance with vour favor of June 29th, we

arranged to tow barge No. 93 from Astoria to Ports-

mouth, stopping at St. Helens with oil for the Mc-

Cormack Lumber Co., on the way down, and also

docking the barge at Astoria on the return trip to

pump out the oil for that place which your Mr. Mc-

Dermott advised us would be necessary.

L^pon arrival of tow boat at Astoria, Capt. Kirk-

wood of the barge insisted upon being docked at that

point and pumping out the Astoria oil and stopping

at the McCormack Lumber Co., St. Helens, on the

way up claiming he had positive orders from you to

do this and under the circumstances we changed our

arrangements accordingi}'.

There will be an additional charge for docking

barge at Astoria and making the run into St. Helens

Slough to the ^IcCormack plant which will be includ-

ed in our bill which we will forward in due time.

To avoid any friction or misunderstanding in the
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future would respectfully suggest that your orders

to the harge captain he the same as are given to us,

or let it he understood that we are to follow the harge

captain's orders regardless of instructions received

from your office.

Yours truly,

OREGON ROUND LUMBER COMPANY.
R.J.A.O'R."

OEE GRO\'E resumes the stand.

Cross Examination.

Ouestions hv Mr. MINOR:

Mr. Grove, the tow head that you speak of, lies

ahout the mouth of a little slough, doesn't it?

A. A little above.

'O. Right ahove the mouth of a little slough?

A. Yes, a little ways ahove the island, a quarter

of a mile.

O. A quarter of a mile from

—

A. (Interrupting) The point of the island up.

Q. That is the northwest point?

A. Well, it is the northeast, you may say. The

island lays south and north right there. Erom Rug-

by Hole down to the point, the island is north and

south.

O. How far is it from the tow head to the land

of the island?

A. Well, on low water, there might be ten fathoms

and four or five different poles there, one boat tied to

one pole and another another pole; might be twenty
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boats tliere; might be fifteen fathoms apart, and yet

we call it a tow head.

0. Is there any object at this tow head that you

speak of?

A. What ?

Q. Is there any object there that marks the tow

head ?

A. I don't understand that.

O. Is there any object, any structure, any object

of any kind that marks the tow head?

A. 1 don't know what that means.

O. Well, I mean to say, is there any house there

that marks the tow head?

A. Yes, a little bit of shanty and the slough.

O. How far is that shanty from land?

A. You can walk from the shanty to land on both

sides.

O. You can walk?

A. Yes.

0. When you speak of the tow head, do you speak

of the shanty or some point outside?

A. Outside the shanty, then pilings.

O. How far out from the shanty to the point you

designate as the tow head?

A. I guess about 50 feet, something like that.

Q. 50 feet?

A. Might be 50; might be 7S. I never measured

that there, you know.

Q. Any piling around this point and shanty?

A. Outside the shantv.
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'O. How far out docs tliis piling extend?

A. 1 don't know; never measured; that is what I

told you. Anyhow, I think 50 or 75 feet.

O. How far is it from this tow head to the mouth

of the slough on which you live?

A. Three-quarters of a mile.

Q. Three-quarters of a mile. How far is it from

the tow head to the hluff on the Oregon side?

A. Well, that I haven't measured. I couldn't say

exactly how far that is.

O. Well, give your best judgement.

A. Oh, I couldn't, because that is a thing I haven't

measured, from the tow head to the bluff. \'ou know

that is southwest, a w^ays up the river. That would

be quite a little ways. I don't know exactly how far

it is.

O. Well, how far do you think it is? Give your

best judgement about it.

A, Well, maybe half a mile—probably a lit lie

more.

O. It is further, vou think, from the mouth of

your slough to the tow head, than it is from the bluff

to the tow^ head?

A. Sure it is.

•'O. How far is it from the tow head over to Tenas

Tllihee Island?

A. Well, that is more than I know. I never meas-

ured it.

O. Well, give your best judgement about it.

A. Well, that is hard to tell. Plalf a mile on water
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won't show very far, and there is more than half a

mile.

O. More than half a mile?

A. Yes, more than half a mile.

Q. How far from the tow head to the range line?

A. From the tow head to the range line is 110

fathoms.

O. From the tow head to the range line is 110

fathoms?

A. Yes, straight east and west ; not slantways

;

up and down the river you can make 120; can make

more out of it. Straight east and west, straight in

from the range is 110 fathoms.

O. You have measured that, have you?

A. I measured my net, yes.

O. Xow, I understand when you first saw the

Henderson she u'as below the tow head?

A. She was a little below there.

Q. How much below the tow head when you first

saw her?

A. Just about abreast the point of the island,

passing that fisherman we call Charlie Johnson.

O. About the point of the island?

A. A little below the point of the island.

O. At that time you saw she was above the range

lights?

A. What was above?

O. The Henderson ?

A. I don't know whether was off the range, or not.

I was lying on the tow head and the Henderson w^as
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down below the Point of Pnget Island.

O. 1 understood you to say that at that time the

Henderson was a little above the ran^^e lights.

A. Couldn't be above the range lights; had to be

out of sight for me if above the range lights. There

was another fisherman, so he went around. He went

around both of them. He passed my son Eddie.

Q. Then I misunderstood you. I understood you

to say that when you first saw the Henderson, she

was above the range lights.

A. (.)h, above the Hunting Island range, yes.

O. Hunting Island range light.

A. That is right, above there.

O. How much did you say she was above that?

A. We haven't measured all them things, you

know. I don't know exactly how far it is. We know

the distances what we fisherman talk. It might be

way off. Some call it one mile, some a mile and a

half, some a mile and a quarter, whatever it is.

O. I understood you to say— I want to get the

matter straight, because I don't understand you very

well, and I don't want to be misrepresenting the re-

cord. I understood you to say when you first saw the

Henderson, she was above the range lights, and about

half way between the range light and the island.

A. That would be just about right, at the sand bar,

about half way, yes.

O. Now, at that time did you see the Samson?

A. No, we didn't see the Samson }'et.

( ). Hadn't seen the Samson tlien?
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A. No.

O. And she passed your son after you saw her?

A. Well, yes.

O. Where did she pass your son?

A. She passed my son a little below the tow head,

what we call.

Q. How far below the tow head?

A. Well, I didn't measure, but anyhow there was

60 fathoms anyhow.

'Q. You think she passed your son about 60 fath-

oms below the tow head ?

A. Yes.

O. That means below the east and wxst line of

that tow head?

A. North and south, that goes. Down the river

is north, then, and up the river south.

O. You say about 60 fathoms?

A. That would be 60 fathoms below—down the

river.

Q. 1 want to know how you measure that 60 fath-

oms.

A. T am sitting here. Here is the tow head line

here, and he is laying there, and I calLthat 60 fathoms,

(indicating on Exhibit 5).

O. Wait a minute. What I want to get at is, when
they passed Eddie.

A. Yes.

O. It was more than 60 fathoms from vou to

where Eddie was?

A. Yes.
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O. Xow, }'on say 60 fathoms. That means 60

fathoms below a Hne drawn east and west of the tow

head, does it not?

A. 60 fathoms means he is down the river, and

from the tow head, and out to tlie ran,^'e is 110 fath-

oms. Out to tlie range west and had to go north,

wlicre Eddie was lying. The Henderson came up,

and he was below. Below is down the river, we al-

ways call it.

O. That is all right, but I want to get the meas-

urement, when you say 60 fathoms below the tow

head, I want to know whether you mean 60 fathoms

below a line drawn out straight east and west from

the tow head.

A. r mean 60 fathoms north, down the river.

(). North of that line?

A. ^^es, sir.

'O. Xow, the Henderson made a turn to pass Va\-

die?^

A. Yes.

O. And where did the Henderson get back on the

range lights, or get on the range lights?

A. They came ])ack on the range lights al)out

abreast of the tow head ; maybe a little above, but that

is as near as I can get.

Q. Just about opposite the tow head?

A. Yes.

O. Where was the Samson when you first saw

her?

A. Came in sight in Hugby Hole.
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0. Rugby Hole?

A. Yes.

Q. And where was the Henderson when you saw

the Samson come in sight ?

A. The Henderson—he just passed round Eddie

when we seen the Samson come in sight.

0. Just passed around Eddie?

A. Yes.

'O. Where was the Henderson when she gave the

first whistle?

A. She was just a little bit above the tow head,

what we call.

O. Above the tow head?

A. Yes, a least little bit.

O. Was she on the ranges then, or not?

A. Was on the range then.

O. On the range then ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, that whistle you heard answered by the

Samson ?

A. The Henderson or the oil barge blew the first

one, and the Samson answered one.

O. You heard that whistle answered?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What lights did you see on the Samson at that

time?

A. We saw the green lights.

O. Anything else?

A. We saw the headlight—two headlights and see

the lights on the barge and we see the green light.
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Q. Couldn't see the red lig"ht?

A. No.

O. The red hi^ht wasn't in sii^-ht tlien?

A. No.

(J. That was at the time when the Henderson

blew?

A. That was the time when the Henderson blew,

yes.

O. So at the time the Henderson blew, there was

only a green light of the Samson showing?

A. That was all we could see. All that showed.

I don't know what the Henderson can see. We were

lying on shore on one side, and we couldn't see

anything but the green light.

O. Now, from where the Henderson was could

she see anything but the green light?

A. That is more than 1 could tell. 1 didn't watch

that. I wasn't out there where the Henderson was.

O. The Henderson, after she passed the range

light, as I understand, went over toward the Oregon

shore?

A. \'es. She kept on sheering a little, striking the

deep water there; she goes there; heads for that point.

O. In going over to the Oregon shore, she was

heading directly into the teeth of the current, wasn't

she?

A. Heading against the current; heading" south-

west, and headed for the point over there, and that

sheers over to the Oregon shore.

( ). Tliat was right towards the current, wasn't'
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it?

A. Right against the current, yes; a Httle by the

side of the current ; she had a Httle on one side.

O. And the current on that side is stronger than

it is on the Puget Island side?

A. Yes.

O. How long was it after the Henderson blew the

first whistle before she blew the second whistle?

A. Well, we didn't take no notice of the time, be-

cause I don't know how long it was. We didn't pay

no attention to time. We w^ere laying there talking

by ourselves.

0. You didn't see the Henderson after the first

whistle was blown?

A. Yes, but we didn't take no notice of either the

Samson or the Henderson before the Henderson and

the barge l:!lew the second whistle, and we was won-

dering what that second whistle was supposed to be

for and then we looked up.

O. Now, you didn't pay any attention to the Hen-

derson after she blew the first whistle until the sec-

ond whistle blew?

A. Xo.

Q. Was she in sight?

A. What was in sight?

O. The Henderson?

A. The Flenderson was coming up the river. Yes

she was right abreast of us.

0. What could you see ?

A. We could see the lights anvliow, if we couldn't
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see anyihinq; else. T could see them masts; they was

sticking l)retty hi^^h up; could see them pretty near

over the mountain.

O. Could see the mast and see the lights?

A. Yes.

O. What lio^hls did vou see?

A. We didn't see nothin<y hut the hri!S};-ht li^^'hts,

we didn't.

O. Nothing- hut tlie hri^ht lights?

A. Xo, he had his head awav from us.

O. Could you see any lights on the oil harge?

A. No, the oil barge was on the other side.

O. Could you see the outline of the boats?

A. I could see the bright lights on the boat.

'(}. Could you see the outlines of the boats, I say.

Could you see the shape of the boats?

A. What?

O. Could you see the hulls (^f the boats—the out-

line of the boats?

A. I couldn't see those very good; so dark.

O. Now, when the second whistle was blown,

what could you see of the boats?

A. All we could see was those lights.

(X \o\\ could see lights?

A. Yes.

O. What lights could vou see?

A. Well, we seen the bright lights, the Samson,

we seen the green light on him and two head lights

and one or two lights on that stone,—maybe one light

on the stone barge.
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Q. Could you see the red light of the Samson?

A. No.

O. You couldn't see that at all?

A. No.

'O. Did vou see the red lio:ht of the Samson at all?

A. No.

Q. Never saw that at all?

A. I couldn't see that, no.

O. How far was the Henderson from you in your

judgment at the time she blew the second whistle?

A. Well, I don't know. We didn't never measure

that very close you know. Dark you know, and it

shows a little funny on the river. I couldn't say how

far it was.

O. Give your best judgment.

A. Judgment might be no good at all. We got

'an idea to ourselves, and I suppose the Henderson, at

the time he blew the second whistle, he was in the

neighborhood of v300 fathoms awav.

0. When she blew the second whistle?

A. Yes.

Q. 300 fathoms. And you didn't hear the Samson

answer that whistle?

A. Xo, I didn't notice the answer.

O. flow long after the second whistle was sound-

ed before you heard the number of whistles?

A. Oh, it wasn't very long.

O. Well, how long?

A. Oh, well, we didn't have no watch in our hands.

We couldn't tell.
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O. (mvc your ])cst judgment.

A. Tliose boats were cjiiite a little distance at the

time. One was going down with a strong current and

another coming up, and it didn't take long to make

400 or 600 feet. One going down, one going up, takes

pretty cjuick to get together.

O. Give your best judgment. That is what I

want.

A. Might be two minutes ; might be less than that.

I don't know what it was.

O. You can't approximate that time?

A. What?

O. You can't approximate that time?

A. We didn't take no notice: we didn't watch the

time.

O. Xow, when the Henderson gave the second

whistle, did you see the Samson?

A. Yes.

(). How far was the Samson from the Hender-

son at that time?

A. Well, that is what you tried to ask, and that is

what I say T couldn't tell. We was in the dark, and

was quite a distance apart, and how far—how man}'

feet there was is more than I know, because T wr.s

half or three-c|uarters of a mile aw^ay.

O. What is your best judgment of the distance

between them at that time?

A. T couldn't tell that: something a fellow don't

know: no use to talk about it.

'O. Did vou hear the crash between the Hcnder-
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son and the rock barges?

A. Yes.

O. How long was the crash after the danger signal

that you have described?

A. There is another thing you know. We didn't

have a watch in our hand and didn't take the time.

They was pretty close together. They might be half

a minute or might be more or less. We didn't pay so

close attention to it.

Q. 1 understand you to say you also, heard the

anchors?

A. Yes.

Q. How long was it after

—

A. Well that crasli and the collision came and the

anchors, they were just near the same time. Maybe

a man had time to turn around if he had done it quick.

Q. It took you I understand about five minutes

to go out from the towhead to the Henderson?

A. Yes.

O. And when you got there where was the Sam-

son?

A. The Samson was backing out, that is the scows

out from the Henderson.

O. Still backing from the Henderson with his

scows?

A. Could say backing; kind of drifting down the

river. Had his light on the Henderson.

'O. Had his light on the Henderson?

A. Yes.

Q. Where was the Henderson at that time?
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A. They was laying bottom side up a little below

that point we was speaking about.

Q. It wasn't at the same ])lace it was the next

morning?

A. Oh, no, no, no.

O. How much was it above that?

A. Oh, it was quite a little distance, a quarter of a

mile anyhow above it—more.

O. A quarter-of-a-mile]^

A. Well, probably more than that. \\> didn't

measure that. I know where she was lying that time,

and I know where she was lying the next morning. I

haven't measured the distance between there.

Q. Is the point of Tenas Illihee Island above or

below the towhead?

A. It is a little below.

O. The point of Tenas Tllihee is a little below the

towhead ?

A. Below.

•Q. So you think a little north of the towhead?

A. A little north of the towhead—a straight line

west. They can be a little below you see, below the

tow head awa\' and below the point; but take a

straight line east and west, would be below.

O. Would be north of the towhead?

A. Not exactly a line. On the coast, then it would

be below.

O. What I want to know is: Is the ])oint of Tenas

Illihee Island north of the towhead or south of the

towhead ?
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A. That is west ; northwest.

O. I know it is west, but is it further north or

further south than the tow head?

A. Further west than the tow head is.

Q. But further north or further south?

A. Yes, further north.

Q. Now, the Henderson, when you got there were

lier Hghts still burning?

A. I don't understand.

Q. When you got to the Henderson were her

Hghts still burning?

A. Oh, no, no.

•'Q. They were not burning?

A. Couldn't burn with it bottomside up.

Q. Were any boats there when you got there?

A. A little row boat came over from the Samson

;

we got there the same time.

Q. You got there the same time as the row boat

from the Samson?

A. Yes.

O. Were you there at the time the Samson put

the line on the Henderson ?

A. Yes.

Q. Where was the Henderson at the time the

Samson put the line on her?

A. He was gradual!}' drifting down the river. T

don't know exactly where he was. We didn't pay no

attention to that.

Q. How long after you got there when the Sam-

son put the line on the Henderson ?
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A. ^Ve only been there a little bit; people starting

to get off. We had nothing to stand by for; we

wasn't going to lay there. We wanted them people

to get off the boat and get in onr boat. We didn't

know; one man was walking over and back on the

side of the Henderson. I suppose he made fast that

line and was i)iilling on it. T don't know whether

pulling; hanging fast.

O. T don't understand; what I want to know is

this: Had the Samson i^ut the line on the Henderson

when you got there ?

A. No, not when I got there.

'O. She did put a line on the Henderson, did she?

A. ^^es.

O. Did she pull the Henderson any where?

A. No, don't think they could pull her anywhere.

O. Don't think she could pull her anywhere?

A. No.

O. She tried to pull her, did she?

A. Well, he pulled on her.

O. Which way was he trying to i)ull her?

A. Trying to ])ull her out in the channel; he back-

ed up east.

O. Trying to pull her towards the channel?

A. Yes.

*0. That is: Was the Samson when she i)ut the

tow on the Henderson trying to tow the Henderson

northeast?

A. Well, something near east; across the river

anvhow, toward Pu^'et Island side.
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O. Toward the Puget Island side. Now, when

you went over to the Henderson, did you pass above

or below the Samson ?

A. We passed below.

O. Passed below the Samson?

A. Yes.

O. Did you pass below the rock barges?

A. Yes.

O. How many rock barges did you see at that

time?

A. They were all three there then.

Q. All three?

A. Yes, one of them was a little bit further down

than the others. I didn't know whether was fastened

to the Samson with one line. I didn't know; we had to

swing off in order to avoid that barge.

O. Which barge was that you had to swing down

to avoid?

A. I don't know which one. There was one.

'O. Do you know whether the first one you struck

—the first one you got to or the last one you got to ^

A. The other two were a little further up. I think

they were fast to the Samson yet.

Q. Was it the first barge you got to or the last

one?

A. The first one; we swung below when we saw

the first and went around the west side to g*^^ ^o the

Samson.

O. When you saw the first one?

A. Yes.
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O. How far do you say the Samson was at that

time, in your judgment, from the Henderson?

A. That time I came over there?

O. Yes.

A. Well, it couldn't he very far; might he 50 feet.

T didn't measure it.

O. Can you see the Bughy light from the tow

head?

A. Yes.

O. Where does the range light strike the Ore-

gon shore?

'O. The Hunting Island Range you mean?

O. Yes, the Hunting Range light?

A. Ouite a little helow Bughv light.

O. Strikes ahove Bughy?

A. Yes.

O. Do they strike above or below the bluff points?

A. Goes way above the bluff, you know.

O. Way above the bluff?

A. This way—U]) above it.

O. But below Bughy light?

A. Below Bughy light, yes.

'O. How far is it from Bughy light to the bluff?

A. Well, I couldn't tell you exactly how far it is.

It might be three-quarters of a mile.

O. How far is it from Bughy light to the mouth

of \()ur slough ?

A. Well, that is a little over half a mile too, but I

have never measured that there. Wliat did }ou say

—what is it from the light to the slough or from the
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])luff to the slough?

Q. From the Hght to the slough?

A. From the light to my slough?

O. Yes.

A. Is that the question?

O. Yes, from the light to your slough—Bugby

light?

A. Oh, mine is three-quarters of a mile.

O. Plow wide is the channel between the mouth of

your slough and the bluff?

A. Well, that is a thing I haven't measured either.

You can put out 325 fathoms of net and you are pretty

close, shore to shore. You can figure out how far it

would be.

Q. About 325 fathoms is it?

A. Yes.

'Q, Now at the time you first saw these barges,

rock barges, were they anchored?

A. Now, that is something I couldn't tell you. I

don't think so. I think they was fast to the Samson

yet. I don't know if got clear of them or not.

O. Did you see any lights on them?

A. I didn't notice that either, but must be lights

on them T suppose, but I didn't notice them lights.

Q. You didn't notice?

A. No.

O. And you don't think they were anchored at

that time?

A. No.

0. How long did you stay over where the Hen-



472 The Steamer Samson

(lerson was, llien?

A. Well, we didn't take no time on that either.

We stayed there long enough to get them people out

of the boat and on the Samson, and was laying there a

little while, and kept on looking around a little bit.

T don't know how long that was. That is more than

I can tell you.

O, Then vou went back to the towdiead, did you?

A. No.

O. Where did you go then?

A. AVe went a little up the river. We was going

to lay out the net and make a drift.

'O. Went a little up the river?

A. Yes, a little up the river from where we was

that time.

O. So where 'the Samson was lying at the time

you saw her that night was above the point where

you usually put out your net?

A. No, no; they was below; we was way down,

pretty near to Tenas Illihee that time, and we went

up to make the drift, and the Samson he was lying

there, and a little above Tenas Tllihee point too.

O. Both above Tenas Tllihee point?

A. Yes.

O. I understood you to say you went down the

river to put out your net.

A. When we was laying; we went a good ways

down the river to where we was laying. We went

down with the tide and the tide goes about three

miles an hour.
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O. You undertook to lay out your net but changed

your mind?

A. We couldn't lay out. Them stone barges—we

seen two of them, and then it got pretty near daylight

and we seen another barge down the river and we

thought they was in our road, and we went home and

had breakfast and came out again.

Q. Did you go to this rock barge?

A. Went to two of them.

0. Went to two of them?

A. Yes.

'Q. Were they anchored?

A. Yes, were anchored then.

0. Did you go to the one?

A. No.

O. Now, when you saw them, the two were laying

on which side of the range lights?

A. They was laying about 75 fathoms the Oregon

side of the range.

Q. 75 fathoms the Oregon side of the ranges?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you see them the next morning when the

Samson picked them up?

A. No, didn't see them the next morning. The

next morning when we come out, they was gone.

Q. You didn't go to the one barge?

A. No.

O. Don't know where that was anchored?

A. I know by sight down there ; know just about

where it was, but didn't go down to it.
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'O. Which side of the ranoe H^lils was it on?

A. That is something T couldn't say from where^

I was. As near as I could say he was on the Wash-

ington shore, I think.

O. You say the Daniel Kern passed forty minutes

before you saw the Henderson. Is that what I under-

stand?

A. That is the nearest T can get at it. We didn't

have a watch in our hand. That is the closest I can

tell of it.

O. Where were you when the Daniel Kern

passed ?

A. Waiting at the tow head.

O. Waiting your turn ?

A. Waiting my turn, yes.

O. Anybody else on the tow head with you?

A. Yes, a number of the boys.

O. Who was there?

A. I don't know. Charley Johnson ; he was the

first one to lay after the Kern went by and the next

one was Eddie and the next turn was mine, and T

didn't lay out. The collision came between then, and

I didn't lay out at all.

O. Xow, how long does it take to lay out your

net?

A. From we leave the tow head and come back

take just about—ten minutes to leave, and then you

lay out.

'O. Ten minutes?

A. Yes.
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Q. And there were just two ahead of you?

A. Two ahead of me.

O. Take them longer than it does you?

A. You misunderstand me there. They was ten

minutes laying out and we wait for our turn, maybe

fifteen or twenty minutes; we wait for that turn then

we go and lay out, and it took us so long.

O. Anybody ahead of Charley Johnson ?

A. Eddie was ahead of him.

O. Eddie was ahead of him?

A. Not ahead of him. He was next. Johnson

was first and Eddie was next.

O. And you were next?

A. Yes.

Q. Anybody ahead of Johnson?

A. T suppose some body ahead; T don't know. T

can't remember in my head; there was fifteen or

twenty boats.

•Q. How long after the Kern passed when John-

son laid (Hit his net?

A. He laid out just as the Kern passed.

O. In your judgment the Samson coming d(3Wii

through the waters there, with the tide like that, goes

about eight miles an hour. Is that right?

A. Yes.

O. Is this seining ground you speak of above the

tow head?

A. Yes.

O. How much above it?

A. Quite a little bit above that. Three-quarters
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of a mile above that.

O. It runs up three-quarters of a mile.

A. Well, the seining ground don't reach down to

the tow head and there is 80 rods—what the men use

as seining ground; from the slough is 160 rods from

the tow head and up to the middle of the seining

ground.

O. Vou don't know what anchor chains they were

you heard run out, do you?

A. Oh no, we heard a chain was going; that is all

we know.

'O. That is all you know, you heard the chains go

out?

A. Yes.

Redirect Examination.

Questions by ERSKIXE WOOD:

]\Ir. Grove, just one point I first want to clear up.

That is, Mr. Minor asked you whether you first saw

the Henderson passing the fishermen way down the

river below the foot of Puget Island, and whether she

was then above the range, or he may have said abo\'e

the range lights.

A. That could be above. There is the Hunting

Island Range, }'ou know, is below there. Thai is the

reason he was nearer Puget Island a good deal than

the range—the reason I say above the range lights.

O. What I want to know is: Do you mean when

vou first saw the Henderson, when yow spoke of her

passing that fisherman down the river, do you mean

she was u])-stream from the range lights?
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A. She was upstream from the range lights.

Q. That is what I thought you meant.

A. Yes.

O. You say the Henderson blew her first whistle

when she was about opposite the tow head?

A. Yes.

Q. And you said to Mr. Minor that she was on

the range, you thought when she blew her first whis-

tle?

A. Well, he was a little bit above the towhead

;

he passed Eddie below and by going around him ; Ed-

die was crossing in the range, and by going up and

past him ; he blew the whistle when he was on the

range, yes.

Q. He miglit have been on the Oregon side of the

range and you couldn't tell exactly?

A. Yes, I couldn't see that from me.

'O. You said that the Hunting: Island Ranee

struck the bluff or struck the shore, the Oregon shore,

below the Rugby Light?

A. Yes.

O. But way up above the bluff?

A. Yes—
O. (Interrupting) I just want to know what vou

mean by bluff. Do you mean Hunt's Mill Point?

A. Mean Hunt's Mill Point when talking about

the bluff, yes.

O. Another thing I don't understand. I thoueht

I was confused myself. Did you say that after you

went over to the Henderson, you went down the river
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to lay out your net?

A. No, no.

O. Did vou sav tliat?

A. No, we went over to the Henderson. First we

liad to turn down the river on account of going around

them stone harges; tlien we come hack and we go to

lay out.

'O. I don't understand that vet. Tell me again.

A. Do you mean as we went over to the Hender-

son or as we went down?

O. I mean when you went over to the Henderson

and found her tliere, then vou didn't go down the

river to lay out your net, did you?

A. We went twice over there. The first time we

went over we went over to see the Henderson; that

was the time we went over and had to go down the

river, and go around them barges.

O. Hut when you first got over there you say you

thought the Samson still had a line on the port barge?

A. Well, I thought he had a line on all of them

because I am not sure of one, but he had lines on two

of them because he wasn't clear of them.

'O. What is that? (Answer read.) Is that right?

A. Yes.

O. Were the barges all close together?

A. Two of them was close together, but one was

hanging a little further down the river, and that is

the reason I don't know whether had a line on to the

Samson or not.

O. They were all pretty close—the Samson and
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her barges were pretty close together?

A. They were close together, two, and one a lit-

tle further down the river. I don't know whether

fast to tlie Samson or not.

O. The two were close to the Samson, is that

right?

A. Yes, sir.

Mr. GUTHRIE: And the Samson was backing up

at that time?

A. He was backing up, yes.

O. Now, as near as you can remember it, do you

think the Samson had a line on the port barge or not?

What is your best recollection of it?

A. No, I couldn't tell that.

COURT: By backing up, which direction was she

backing?

A. He was backing towards the island, east.

Witness excused.

JOE OLESON, a witness called on behalf of the

libellant, being first duly sworn, testified as follows:

Direct Examination.

Questions by Mr. ERSKINE WOOD:
Mr. Oleson, what is your business?

A. Engineer. Marine engineer.

O. Where are you working now?

A. Kellogg Transportation Company, on the

Cowlitz.

'O. On the Cowlitz, you say?

A. River.
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O. \o\\ were on the Henderson the nii^hl of this

colHsion?

A. Yes.

O. In wliat capacity?

A. Assistant engineer.

O. Were you on watch?

A. Yes, sir.

O. How long had you been on watch ?

A. Oh, about 40 minutes, I should judge; three-

quarters of an hour or something.

O. What time did you go on watch?

A. One o'clock.

O. Did you hear the whistles of the oil barge ])rior

to the collision ?

A. I didn't pay no attention to them. I don't re-

member hearing them.

'Q. Well, what bells did you get just prior to the

collision?

A. I got one bell to stop and got a reverse bell

and full speed astern.

O. How did those follow each other?

A. Just as quick as they could be given.

O. Indicating that the intention of the pilot w\'is to

back her just as c|uicklv as you could?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Did you get any more bells after that? First,

I will ask \'ou whether you obeyed that order.

A. Yes.

(). How long do you think you l)acked her?

A. Oh, probably less than a minute.
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O. What bells, if any, did you get after that?

A. I got a stop bell after that, and then go ahead,

and then I got another back up bell.

O. How long were you going ahead?

A. Not very long; I couldn't say. Just a very

short time.

O. How vvxre the engines working after you got

that bell to go ahead?

A. Why, they wasn't working very good.

O. What?

A. Steam had started to go down you know.

Q. Why was that?

A. The collision had broke off the blow-off pipe

on the boiler and other pipes alongside, and the

steam started to go down.

Q. Do you know whether the water was going

into the fire-hold or not?

A. I couldn't tell from where I was.

O. Now, I have left you going ahead. Did you

get any signals after that?

A. T got one to stop.

O. Then what?

A. Another one to stop, reverse and back again.

O. Did you obey them?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you have any power at that time?

A. Not very much. Just barely would back;

didn't amount to anything.

O. What was the condition of the boat?

A. About that time the water started to come in
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tlic engine room, and [ looked at the steam gauge and

it was about six pounds of steam, is all.

O. How deep was the water in the engine room?

A. When I left about a-foot-and-a-half, I judge.

O You were standing in about a-foot-and-a-half of

water when you left?

A Yes.

O. How long do you think that was after the col-

lision ?

A. Probably two minutes.

O. All those bells, then, followed each other very

rapidly?

A. V^ry rapidly, yes.

O. Could you tell whether the Henderson was

torn loose bv the collision?

A. Yes, I could tell by the way she was kind of

tipping and swing-ing.

'O. Torn loose immediately by the collision?

A. Yes.

Q. Could you see either shore at that time?

A. No, I couldn't see. T couldn't tell nothing

about it.

Q Just tell what happened after the collision;

what the Henderson did, and how you got off her.

A. Well, after the water came in the engine room

that deep—it all came in just at once it seemed like

—

I left; I went up the after stairway and went to my
room; thought I would get my life preserver, but

when I was up there, she was full of water up there,

and I had to o^et off there, and run to the hurricane
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deck; the mate wanted me to loosen the Hfe boat, but

as I got there on top

—

O. When you got to the hurricane deck, did you

notice any shore?

A. No, I didn't pay any attention to the shore.

And I sHd in the water, and he did, I guess.

O. You sHd in the water from the hurricane deck?

A. Yes.

O. Was she tipped that far?

A. Yes, when she dove I went in.

O. Which side?

A. Starboard.

O. She tipped starboard, and you slid in the

water?

A. Yes.

O. Then what did you do?

A, I came up, caught on something, climbed

around on the hull.

Q. Which way did the Henderson drift?

A. I couldn't tell that.

O. Did you see the Samson?

A. Yes. Seen the Samson kind of towards the

right. Towards the— I should judge towards the

Washington shore, I seen her.

Q. How far away was she?

A. Not very far.

O. Now, I will ask you what time could you see

her?

A. That was after the boat was tipped over.

O. After you were out on the bottom of the boat?
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A. Yes.

O. She was over towards the Puget Island shore.

How far?

A. Just a Httle ways from the Henderson. T

couldn't tell.

Q. See her harges?

A. Yes, could see them, hut couldn't tell ahout

where thev were.

O. Were they close to her?

A. Not very far, didn't look when T seen her.

O. Do you know whether they were lashed to her

or not?

A. No, I couldn't tell.

Q. Couldn't tell?

A. No.

Mr. MINOR: How^ long do you think it was after

the collision before the Henderson sunk?

A. About three minutes.

Witness excused.

OLE GROVE recalled by the Libelant.

Direct Examination.

Questions by Mr. ERSKINE WOOD:
Mr. Grove, at this time of the year, July 22, 1911,

what stage of water is that in relation to the June

freshet?

A. It was going down a little at that time.

'Q. Was that towards the end of the June freshet ?

A. Yes, starting to go down, yes.

(). The water was still high.

A. ^'es, still high, yes.
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Cross Examination.

Questions by Mr. MINOR:
The June freshet in 1911 was a very small freshet,

wasn't it?

A. Yes, wasn't very big.

O. Tt went down very quickly?

A. Went down pretty fast, yes.

Q. At that point down there, Mr. Grove, the fresh-

et doesn't make much difference, does it?

A. Oh, they make some.

O. Don't raise the water on the bank at all, does

it?

A. Yes, makes a couple or three feet, yes.

O. Sometimes two or three feet?

A. ^'es, sir.

Q. So a freshet up here of 20-feet or so, down

there is two or three feet?

A. Yes, about what is down there. Well, if 20-

feet up here, you might have 3>2 down there on the

average, and might be tide, you know. The tide raises

down there.

O. T understand, but when the tide is high, you

don't observe the freshet at all, do you?

A. Yes, some. Alxjut three feet, .a little more;

more or less.

O. Three feet or more.

Mr. ERSKINE WOOD: When the tide is full

flood at that stage of the water, the way it was that

night, is there any current upstream?

A. No, there was too much freshet for that.
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Q. You sav when the tide is full there is no cur-

rent. No tide anywhere, where it is full?

A. Yes, partly; the tide is some.

O. I say, when the tide is full no current there.

A. T don't know what you mean by full.

O. That is what I want to know.

Mr. ERSKINE WOOD: When the tide is high-

high tide.

A. The current goes down the river, just the same.

Q When the tide is coming up, the current goes

down the river just the same?

A. Yes.

'O. The tide doesn't affect the current at that

point at all?

A. Not when that much freshet in the river, don't

affect : they go down the little slough.

O. At the time this accident took place, the 22nd

day of July, 1911, did the tide affect the current

in the river at all?

A. Affected a little bit; got slack of tide, we call.

O. Didn't affect it much to speak of?

A. No.

Air. ERSKINE WOOD: Explain what you mean

by tide slacking the current.

A. The tide backing up the water and it gets

slacker that far down the river.

Mr. ERSKINE WOOD: Did affect it that much?^

A. Did affect as went down.

Mr. ERSKINE WOOD: And after the tide ends,

the current runs faster again?
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A. So much faster again.

Witness Excused.

HENRY F. STAYTOX a witness called on behalf

of the libellant, being first duly sworn, testified as

follows:

Direct Examination.

Questions by ERSKIXE WOOD:
]\Ir. Stay ton. how old are you?

A. Twenty-six.

Q. What is your business?

A. Steam-boating.

0. What is your duty, as a steamboat man?

A. Pilot.

Q. Speak louder?

A. Pilot.

O. Are you piloting now?

A. "S'es, sir.

O. How long have you been piloting?

A. About four years.

O. \\>re you on the Henderson on the night of

this collision—the morning of July 22, 1911 ?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Where were you on the Henderson?

A. Pilot house.

O. What was your duly ?^ ^^'hat capacity were you

serving in?

A. Acting as pilot under the charge of Captain

Sullivan.

O. I'ilot on the H'^nderson?

A. Yes, sir.
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•Q. Were you steering or handling your ship at

all?

A. No, sir. T was acting under orders from Cap-

tain Sullivan.

O. Speak up louder.

A. I was acting under orders from Captain Sulli-

van.

O. How was the helm of the Henderson kept?

A. Midships.

O. Unless he g^ave an order.

A. Unless he gave orders.

O. What time did vou "o on watch?

A. What was the (luestion.

O. What time did you go on watch ?

A. About 1 :20 by the pilot-house clock when I

went in the pilot-house.

^Iv. SNOW: One-twenty by what?

A. By the pilot-house clock when T went in the

pilot-house.

(J. ^^ou must learn to speak up loud, so we can all

hear.

Mr. SNOW: The acoustics of this building are

very bad.

O. About where were you in the river when you

came on watch?

A. Well, we were on Hunting Island Range lights,

somewhere about abreast of lower Puget Island.

COURT: Abreast the point of Puget Island.

A. About somewhere abreast the ])()int of Puget

Island. I couldn't tell exactlv. It was m the shadow
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of the bank.

O. The lower point of Puget Island?

A. Yes.

O. Was the Samson in view then?

A. No, sir.

O. When you first came on watch?

A. No, sir.

O. When did she come in view?

A. Well, shortly afterwards.

'Q. Shortly after you went on watch?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Can you just guess or approximate how far

up the river you were when she came in sight?

A. Well, I couldn't tell exactly, only being on the

range lights and then I couldn't tell the exact point.

O. None of this is exact.

A. Being up and down the river, I couldn't tell

exact Iv.

O. Well, about how^ far above the point of Puget

Island had you got when she came in sight?

A. Well, between that sand bar and the point of

the island, I should judge; somewhere along there.

O. I thought you said you were abreast the point

of the island when you went on watch.

A. That is what I mean, when I went on watch.

O. I say where were you when you saw the Sam-

son?

A. Probably was c.bout—])robably 600 feet past

the point of the island.

'O. Describe the course that vou took from that
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time on.

A. I didn't notice the exact movement of the ves-

sel until I noticed her swinging off the starboard, and

at that time I noticed she was swinging off the range

lights, and I kept watching closely, and we swung

below the range lights and oj^ened them up fairly

well; at that time we seemed to steer a course which

kept the range lights open to a certain extent, or act-

ually might say, opened uj) a little more at the point

of collision.

O. What range lights do you mean?

A. Hunting Island Range lights.

O. Did you have any a])prehension that you were

getting over too far where the water was shallow, or

not?

A. ^^s. I didn't know at that time the exact lo-

cation of that bar at the head of the Tenas Illihee

Island, and kind of thought it would be pretty shallow^

over there for dee]) draft vessels; thought would prob-

ably run aground.

O. You thought Sullivan was going pretty far

over.

A. Yes, I didn't know^ the exact location of that

bar. Knew^ it was shoal over there; didn't know the

exact location of that bar—for a vessel of that draft.

[). Then what was your course?

A. Well, after we swung there and got pretty well

over, the range lights opened u]) pretty well, we steer-

ed a coiu'se along about i)arallel with the range lights,

or opening them u]) a little more, might say.
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O. About what point on the shore would you be

headed for—just about?

A. Somewheres up in the bluff; towards the lower

end of the bluff, I should say.

Q. Did you hear the w^histles given from the

steamers ?

A. Yes, sir.

O. What whistles did you hear?

A. Well, one whistle given from the oil barge;

the Samson answered immediately and shortly after-

wards a

—

O. (Interrupting) what did she answer with?

A. One whistle. Shortly afterwards the oil barge

gave another whistle. I don't remember hearing an

answer to that.

O. Had you pulled off to the starboard side of the

range when the oil barge blew the first whistle?

A. Yes, we were on the starboard side of the

range at that time.

Q. When did }'ou notice the range lights opening?

Did you notice them more than once?

A. Yes, sir. T noticed them all the time from the

time that we opened up the range lights to the point

of the collision, off and on. Noticed them prettv reg-

ularly.

Q. Have you any idea how far apart the two boats

were when the first whistle was given ?

A. Well, somewhere close to half-a-mile.

O. How far apart do you think they would be

when the second whistle was given?
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A. Five or six huiulred feet.

O. Five or six hnndred feet?

A. ^ es, sir.

O. What was the course of the Samson as you

observed it from her lights, we will say from the time

you first saw her?

A. As I first saw the Samson coming around the

point of Puget Island, I saw her green lights and her

two mast-head lights, and the light on the starboard

barge, at least I thought it was on the starboard barge

—white light.

O. Did you see the red light after that?

A, ^'es, shortly after that T seen the red light.

O. Xow just go ahead. First you saw the green

light and very shortly after you saw the red light?

A. Ves, sir.

Q. And did the green light keep in view or shut

out?

A. Remained in view up to the accident.

O. After you saw the red light then you saw both

lights?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Both side lights Did they remain in view from

that time on or not?

A. Ves, they remained in view up to the time of

the accident.

O. Tell about this order you got from Captain

Sullivan to put your helm hard aport and back.

A. That was shortly after the second whistle had

been given.. He gave me orders to stop, port and
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back, which I immediately did.

O. Where was the Samson at that time with rela-

tion to the bow of the oil barge?

A. She was pretty close; well, pretty well abreast

of the oil barge at that time. The bow of the rock

barge was

—

Q. (Interrupting) The bow of the rock barge

would be.

—

A. About abreast of the bow of the oil barge.

Some wheres in there, T should judge.

O. Did you obey this order?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Immediately?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. When you got that order, w^e will say, did you

notice the point of the shore towards which your

barge was heading?

A. Not much more than I could see we were head-

ing into the bluff—towards the bank.

O. You could see the bank plainly, could you?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. About how^ far away do you think it would be?

A. Couldn't see the biuik exactly plainly, but I

could see it from the shadow^s of the l)luff—top of the

bluff.

'O. You mean you couldn't see the water line or

shore line?

A. Xo, because it was in the shadow of the bluff.

O. How did the Samson and her rock barges ap-

pear to you to strike the Henderson?
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A. Why the port rock barge struck the Henderson

on the port bow about the corner of the deck house.

O. About how far abaft the stem would that be?

A. Al)out 35 feet I guess.

O. The corner of the house would be 35 feet abaft

the stem.

A. The stem of the Henderson?

O. The stem of tlic Henderson.

A. Yes, sir.

O. Did you see any barge strike the oil bar^e?

A. No, sir.

O. Could you have seen it if it had struck there,

do you think?

A. Yes, sir.

•Q. If it had struck there, that would have been

right in front of you, would it?

A. Yes, sir, I could have seen it if it had struck.

O. How far do you think it was from the stem

of the Henderson to the oil barge—to the side of the

oil barge?

A. About fifteen feet.

O. Do you know the beam of these rock barges?

A. No, sir.

O. If the beam of these rock barges is 37 or 38

fee, do you think it would have been possible for the

port rock barge to have hit tlie side of the Henderson

—the side of the oil barge and have slid on down and

been struck by the stem of the Henderson, so as to

make a dent in the starboard side of the bow of the

])ort rock barge?
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A. No, sir.

Whereupon proceedings herein adjourned until

1:30.

Thursday, January 9, 1913, 1 :30 p. m.

HENRY F. STAYTON resumes the stand.

Direct Examination continued.

Questions by ERSKINE WOOD:
Mr. Stayton, did you give any danger whistles that

night?

A. Yes, sir, just prior to the accident.

Q. What do you mean by just prior to the acci-

dent?

A. Just before.

0. E>ut about how long? uive an idea. Just pre-

ceding, or some minutes or what?

A. Well just—almost instantly—just two or three

seconds before the crash.

*Q. And what is your danger signal?

A. Several short and rapid blasts, not less than

four.

O. Did you blow any other whistles to wake up

the crew or not ?

A. Blew the donkey whistle after we blew the

danger signal, to wake up the crew.

O. What was the purpose of your blowing the

danger signal? To warn the Samson, or to wake up

the crew or both ?

A. Well, it was used for both purposes, and to

notify Captain Sullivan that we were going to be

struck by the Samson and couldn't assist him anv
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more.

COURT: Yoii will have to speak louder.

O. State about your wakini^ up Captain Stimson.

A. Well, about the time or a little after the second

whistle was blown, it appeared to me there was going

to be trouble, so I kicked on the wall of the pilot-house

—after side of the pilot-house, to wake up the captain

so as to be there in time to see the accident.

Q. Where was the captain sleeping?

A. Just aft the pilot-house.

Q. In a room adjoining?

A. Yes, what they call the texas, just aft the pilot-

house.

Q. What kind of a partition between the pilot-

house and the room where he was.

A. Just a thin partition made out of ^" stuff.

O. And you kicked on that to wake him up?

A. ^^es, sir; the floor was made about three or

four feet below the roof the room.

O. Did you succeed in waking him up?

A. Not just at that time. He was a little sleepy.

He didn't come out until I blew the danger signal.

O. That is when he came in the pilot-house?

A. Xo, he came in about the time of the crash.

He went out on deck as soon as T blew the danger

signal.

O. What did you do when he came in the pilot-

house? Did you stay there or go out?

A. I went out; went below.

O. lust lo cret this straight: Vou gave this back-
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ing bell in compliance with Captain Sullivan's order.

Is that right?

A. Yes, sir.

O. And then did Captain Stimson come in after

that or before that or when?

A. He came in after I had been backing.

O. After you gave the backing bell?

A. After I got her to back.

O. Before you turned the wdieel over to him?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Where is Captain Stimson?

A. He got killed in the explosion of the Sarah

Dixon boiler..

O. Just describe briefly the tow lines that lashed

the Henderson to the barge. Just call them over

and tell w^hat kind they are.

A. They have a one inch wire tow line. Tell

where they are made fast ?

O. Yes. Take them up in order. I will ask you

to describe the head line.

A. The head line is a seven inch line with a 7-P>''

wire pendant.

O. And where does that lead from on the Hender-

son, and where to on the l)arge?

A. Leads from the bow of the Henderson up for-

ward on the oil barge, close to the bow, in through

a hawser-pipe, on the port bow of the oil barge.

O. Now, wdien you say a seven-inch line, what do

vou mean bv that—diameter or circumference?

A. Circumference.
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O. Is that a manila line or a wire line?

A. Manila line.

O. With a wire pendant on the end of it. What

is the pendant for?

A. The pendant is the end of the line; it is not

necessary to have it all line; in a hoat we use rope

mostly in order to take around the bit or capstain

;

wire line kinks so easy. That is why we use a rope

line.

O. What is the purpose of the head line?

A. For backing up; back up, to hold your tow

—

back up—pull it back.

O. Xow, describe the breast lines.

A. We had two breast lines, ^" wire cable.

O. Where do they lead from, and where to?

A. They lead from the bits straight into the oil

barge.

Q. From the bits on the bow of the Henderson ?

A. On the bow of the Henderson, straight in and

made fast to the oil barge.

O. Straight across from the bow of the oil barge.

What are they for?

A. They are to keep the boat over steady. To keep

her from swinging back and forth.

O. Tell about your tow line.

A. The tow^ line was an inch wire cable made fast

on the towing kevcl, starboard bow, pretty well for-

ward.

Q. The starboard bow of the Henderson?

A. Yes, sir.



The Steamer Samson 499

O. And leading to where on the barge?

A. Aft on the oil barge?

O. Aft on the oil barge?

A. Yes, sir.

'Q. What stern lines are out?

A. We had two stern lines out, the same size as

the head line.

Q. The same size as the head line?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Lead from the stern of the Henderson around

the stern of the oil barge, is that it.

A. Lead from the gangway door across the stern

of the oil ship, the starboard side.

Q. What are they for?

A. They were to hold her stern from swinging

around.

O. Hold what stern from swinging around?

A. Hold the stern of the Henderson from swing-

ing.

'O. Hold the sterns of the tw^o ships together?

A. Hold her close up together; hold her stead3^

O. Were those lines broken by the force of the

collision?

A. Yes, sir.

O. How many of them?

A. All of them.

Questions bv C. E. S. WOOD:
I will ask a question at the suggestion of j\Ir. Snow.

Who gave orders to blow the danger signals, or did

vou blow them on vour own accord?



500 The Steamer Samson

A. Blew them on my own accord.

O. 1 hand you wooden model, prepared by and

the property of the other side, which 1 understand is

supposed to be drawn to scale, of the oil baro^e. But,

using it just as a model, 1 wish you would—using it

just as a convenience, I will ask you to put it down

on this paper and make a drawing around it, repre-

senting the oil barge. (Witness does so.) I now-

hand you another model prepared by the other side

—

T am only saying that to identify it.

'Wv. MIXOR: I don't know anvthinj^ about those.

O. (Continuing) A wooden model, and ask you to

put that down in relation to this diagram of the oil

barge, in the position in which the two boats were

lashed too:ether for towimj. I want vou to make a

dicigram with these, in the towing position.

Mr. SNOW: What model is that?

'O. That purports to be

—

this wooden model pur-

ports to l)e the Henderson.

A. I don't know as I can ])ut them exact. Maybe

a few feet this wav or that wav, or do vou want them

exact ?

O. As near as you can put, is all. They are su])-

posed, I understand, to be drawn to scale; so I under-

stand. \W' will assume they are. \^ou can just look

at I he two, put them together on the surface, before

you draw it if you want to experiment with them.

A. If tlic measurements arc there, I want to be

looking for that.

O. Put this Henderson model not onl\' in rela-

tion to llu' fore and aft line of the bar<Tfe l)ut also in
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relation to any angle that she had in being fixed to

the barge. There has been some testimony that they

were put together with her nose slightly in to the

side of the barge. Try to get the real position, as well

as you can, (witness places models.) Xow, are they

as nearly parallel in their lines as yon have them? I

want to call your attention to that point.

A. Very nearly.

O. Do they lash them with their lines as nearly

parallel as they are here, or more of an angle?

A. A little angle on there.

O. \\>11, then make what you think is right.

(Witness arranges models.) All right, go ahead

then, if you think you have it. (Witness draws.)

Now, T wish you would locate those lines as they rrm

from one to the other, ^'ou might first, if you will,

state something about

—

A. I don't catch your meaning about the lines.

O. Wait until we get to that. You said some-

thing about the lines going through a gangway or

house opening or something of that kind. Was that

the Henderson or the oil barge? Do you understand

me? I understood you to say in your examination

something about the lines going from one to another

through a gangway or through

—

A. (Interrupting) That is through her after gang-

way door.

O. You better locate that, as well as you can, then

first.

A. It is a little after the stern of the ship, a trifle
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bit. Some whores right in there. Draw a Hne across

where the stern Hne leads to?

'O. How much of a s^ans^wav was that? A few

feet?

A. The gangway ; forward side about even with

the stern of the ship.

O. Now, locate the lines, all of them. Just take

your own plan of it. (Witness draws.) Now what

is that line you just drew?

A. That is the stern line.

O. A-B is the stern line.

A. There was two lines there that had the same

lead.

Q. Two stern lines?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Same lead as A-B?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Now, put on any other lines taking your own

way to do it. That will be the center of the boat, (in-

dicating).

A. I had better make a capstan here first; have

the capstan sit here on the bow. This is the chock on

this side; the flagstaff you might say, on the nosing.

O. The chock on the starboard side of the flag-

staff?

A. Yes, sir.

O. And the flagstaff arises from the stem ?

A. N'es. sir, midships. I guess I got that up a lit-

tle further than necessary; not quite that far; this is

in direct to tlie capstrm.
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O. You say the line C-D, at this forward end the

oil barsre is a little too near the bow; a little further

up than it should be.

A. A trifle bit, I should judge.

O. Now w^hat is the name of that?

A. That is the head line.

O. Just one, is it?

A. Yes, sir.

O. One head line—C-D.

A. (Drawing) That is the tow line—a kevel there,

to make fast to.

O. The spot marked "kevil" is the kevel and the

line E-F is the tow line. Ts that what you mean ?

A. Yes, that is correct.

O. Now, anything else?

A. Yes. We have two breast lines from the bits.

This line leads right across underneath the bits; that

line. There are two of those.

'Q. And the line G-H is the two breast lines. Is

that right—across there?

A. Yes, two of them.

O. Is that all the lines?

A. That is all. Six of them.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: I offer this diagram in evi-

dence.

]\Iarked Libellant's Exhibit 6.

Cross Examination.

Questions by Mr. MINOR:

O. What time did vou come on dutv?
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A. One twenty by the pilot-house clock.

O. What time did the collision take place?

A. About one-forty I believe.

O. Did you look at the time then?

A. No, sir, not just at that moment. I wasn't—

I

left the pilot-house right away after the collision oc-

curred.

O. But you were in the pilot-house when the col-

lision occurred?

A. I was, yes.

'O. And you didn't look at the time?

,\. Not when it occurred, no, sir.

O. Did you look at the time afterwards?

A. No, sir.

O. Where were vou at the time that vou went

on dut}^?

A. I w as off from the lower end of Puget Island ;

a little below that probably. I couldn't tell the exact

spot. Couldn't see on the shore any one object to tell

exactly where I was. I know it was the low^er end of

Puget Island. Close down there.

O. Plow long after you went on duty before you

saw the Samson's lights?

A. Probably three or four minutes.

O. Where did vou see the lights?

A. I seen the Samson's lights coming around the

l)oint of Puget Island.

O. What lights did you see?

A. I seen the two masthead lights, the starboard

light, or her green light, you might say, and the light
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on the starboard barge.

Q. How long after that before you saw the red

Hght of the Samson?

A. Well, just a short time.

Q. Well, how long?

A. 1 don't know as I could tell exactly; probably

a couple of minutes—probably half a minute*

Q. Did you notice the range lights when you went

on duty?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Where were you with reference to those

lights?

A. We were on the range lights at the time I went

on watch.

O. How long after you went on duty before the

first whistle was blown by the barge?

A. Must have been somewheres around fifteen

minutes.

Q. Fifteen minutes. How long after that was

blown before you heard it answered?

A. Answered immediately.

Q. You couldn't tell the time but it was a prompt

answer.

A. I couldn't tell just the exact seconds, no. It

was answered immediately. After the oil barge blew

her whistle, the Samson answered immediately.

O. Where was Captain Sullivan when the first

whistle was blown?

A. He was on the forecastle head of the oil baree.

O. Could vou see him?
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A. No, sir.

O. Why?
A. Dark.

O. How far was it from wliere you were to the

point where he was?

A. About 180 feet— 190.

(J. How IcMio;" after the first wliistle was ])lown

before the barge sounded the second whistle?

A. Oh, somewheres around three minutes, I guess.

O. Three minutes?

A. Yes.

O. Did }'ou hear any whistle answer?

A. No, sir, I couldn't say I did.

O. Did you take any notice to see whether it was

answered or not ?

A. \\'ell, I think T would have heard it if it had

been answered.

'O. Were vou listeninp" for it, do vou know?

A. I was, just immediately after he blew the whis-

tle on the oil barge.

Q. Now, how long after that before you got an}'

order from Captain Sullivan—that is after the second

whistle?

A. Well, probably twenty seconds.

O. Twenty seconds. What order did you get

then ?

.A. Twenty seconds or half a minute. T g(^t orders

to stop, port and back.

O. How long was it after that order before the

collision ?



The Steamer Samson 5()7

A. Pretty close to a minute.

O. Did vou see anv rock bar^^res strike the Hen-

derson ?

A. Well, 1 could see right within a few feet of

where they hit.

O. Did you see any of them hit the Henderson?

A. I couldn't see the exact spot but I could see

within ten feet. Could judge from my appearance,

where I was standing where they would hit.

How manv of those barsres hit the Henderson?Q
A
•Q

A

Q
A

fe

Port barge. One.

Only one?

That is all I seen.

Did the center barge hit the Henderson?

I don't exactly know whether it did or not. I

wasn't watching that at that time.

O. From what you saw of the location of the

barges as they approached the Henderson, in your

judgment did the center barge hit the Henderson?

A. I think it would.

Q. Where would that hit the Henderson?

A. The center barge, I should think, would hit

the Henderson—well, I didn't notice. I wasn't

w^atching at that time. The ])ort barge hit; after it

liit, it looked as if the captain was coming and I went

below as soon as he got there.

COURT: ^'ou didn't answer the cjuestion. He
asked where the center barge would hit the Hender-

son.

A. From appearances the way it was coming from
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where T was standin^^, it would liit fartlier aft from

where the j)ort l)arge hit.

O. Did vou see either of the ban^es hit the oil

])arge?

Q. How is that fjiiestion again?

Question read.

A. No, sir.

O. Do you know whether either of them did hit

the oil barge or not?

A. 1 didn't get that question.

Question read.

A. No, sir.

:\[r. ERSKTNE WOOD : Does lie mean he doesn't

know or it didn't?

Mr. MINOR: No, he doesn't know I guess. T

asked him if he knew. He has answered the question.

O. Did the rock barges go into the Henderson on

a straight line or on an angle?

A. On kind of an angle.

O. How much of an angle do you think it was?

A. Well, I couldn't say that.

O. Take this piece of j^aper and make a mark-

showing about what the angle was, in your judgment.

You have a ruler, have you?

A. Yes. (Witness illustrates on Exhibit 6.)

O. Which of these lines represents the Hender-

son and which the rock barge?

A. I got that line a little too far out there: some-

thing more like thai.

O. Which is the Henderson line mid whicli is the
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rock barge line?

A. This is the Henderson. (Indicating".)

'O. Mark which is the Henderson. You mark

which the Henderson is.

A. This is the Henderson.

O. Put a mark at both ends of it.

A. "a-a'' is the Henderson and this is the Samson

here—the rock barge.

O. Put that B-B. B-B is the rock barge and A-A

is the Henderson. From the time that you saw all the

lights of the Samson, which I understand was about

two minutes after vou first saw her, did vou see all

her lights from that time on until the collision?

A. I don't think I said it was two minutes after T

first saw the Samson until I saw all her lights.

O. How loni:>" was it then? I understood vou to

say that.

A. A very short time afterwards; about half a

minute, I believe.

O. [n about half a minute, you think you saw all

the lights of the Samson ?

A. Yes.

O. {^"'rom that time on until the time of the col-

lision, (lid }ou see 1)oth the red and green lights of

the Sanison ?

A. \'cs, saw all the lights then with the exception

of the light on the port rock barge. Don't remem-

ber seeing that. All the rest of the lights T saw to the

time of the accident.

O. All the rest you saw to the time of the acci-
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dent?

A. Yes, sir.

*0. On what helm were yon running, do yon

know?

A. I had a midships hehii on the Henderson unless

I got orders to change it otherwise from Captain Sul-

livan.

Q. And do you know what helm there was on the

barge?

Mr. ERSKINE WOOD: At what time?

A. They were doing the steering from the oil

baro^e and I know nothing about what helm thev had

under there.

Q. Did the oil barge cross the range lights at a

sharp or an obtuse angle—right angle or short angle,

or how?

A. Well, fairly sharp.

O. It wasn't running then on much of a port helm,

in your judgment?

A. Yes, she swung her helm pretty well over from

where she went over.

COURT: By sharp angle, do you mean short an-

gle ?
I

A. Went across the channel fairly rpiick to the

starboard side.

Q. You say she swung over on a heavy ])ort helm?

A. Well, fairly heavy, yes.

O. And how long did she run on that helm?

A. Well, she swung over until she got the range

lights well open up, and then she steadied it and run
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kind of parallel line with the range line.

O. Parallel with the range line. How long did she

run on that port helm before she steadied?

A. Well, I don't know just how long that was.

Wasn't very long on that,

'Q. Well, give your best judgment.

A. From the time I seen her swing—start to

swing until got steadied up, I guess a couple of min-

utes.

O. A couple of minutes, you think. Was she on

that helm at the time she blew the first whistle?

A. T didn't understand that question.

O. Was she running on that helm at the time she

blew the first whistle?

A. No, sir, running steady helm.

O. At the time she blew the first whistle?

A. Yes, on pretty steady helm.

O. How far below the range of lights do you think

she ran before she went on steady helm?

A. Well, I couldn't say exactly how far above the

range line it would be. T know the lights were opened

up fairly well. Could see between the lights.

O. But your best judgment as to that.

A. Well, T can't give you a very good estimate on

how far down w^e was. I don't know just exactly how
far the range lights are apart. I should judge some-

where about 400 feet.

O. 400 feet?

A. Yes.

Q. After she got down there, she ran on a line.
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as T understand it, ]:)arallel with the ran^e hghts?

A. ^>s ; we probably run off from 350 to 400 feet

l)elow the range Hne.

O. And she continued on that line you think un-

til the second whistle?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Did she change her course after the second

whistle was given?

A. I noticed swinging a little to starboard.

O. She swung to starboard after the second whis-

tie was given ?

A. Yes. Started to swing to starboard, and T

didn't pay much attention to her after that, after seen

swinging to starboard and seen about to be a collis-

ion ; didn't pay much attention to how swinging then.

I know swinging to starboard.

Q. After she gave the second whistle, she swung

to starboard?

A. Yes. Second whistle started to swing to star-

board.

Q. Was she swinging rapidly to starboard then or

only a small helm?

A. I seen going to be trouble, and after I seen

started to swing to starboard, 1 didn't notice her much

after that. Had several other things to do about that

time. Of course I noticed swinging to starboard.

O. When the second whistle sounded, you saw

there was going to be trouble, did you?

A. Yes, sir.

'O. Xo r|uestion in your mind about it?
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A. No, sir.

Q. How long did you say after the second whistle

was blown before you gave the danger signal?

A. How long after the second whistle?

Q. Yes.

A. Oh, let's see. Probably a minute and a lialf.

Q. A minute and a half?

A. Two minutes. I don't know.

O. You didn't change your helm at that time?

A. Not until T got those orders to change.

O. I say you didn't get any orders to give the

danger signal. You did that, you say, of your own

volition.

A. No, I didn't get no orders to change.

Q. And you didn't change your helm when you

gave the danger signal?

A. No. I had got orders before that to stop, port

and back. That was before I gave the danger signal.

•Q. Oh, you were backing when you gave the dan-

ger signal?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How long after the second whistle before you

got the order to stop, port and back?

A. After wdiich whistle?

Q. After the second whistle.

A. About twenty seconds, I guess ; thirty sec-

onds.

Q. Twenty or thirty seconds?

A. About 20 seconds, T guess.

O. And you backed how long?
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A. About a minute, as near as I can tell.

O. Now, after the collision what did you do?

A. Well, the captain came up just as they struck.

He came up and I went below.

COURT: T can't hear you.

A. I say the captain came up just as they struck

and T went below to see what dama^c^e was done.

O. Do you know whether the Henderson contin-

ued to back after the collision or not?

A. I didn't understand the question.

'Question read.

A. Well, I don't know \\'hat she done after I left,

but she couldn't have backed \tr\ lone after I left

the pilot-house. I went out the pilot-house and down

the ladder on the port side and down the stairway to

the lower deck ; so much steam blowing there, and aft

that stairway and down to the firebox. I step])ed in

water on the deck at that time; was just flush on

deck at that time, but I went back and up the after

stairway and I went around the starboard side to the

cooks—told them to get up, we was sinking. Started

to go to Captain Anderson's room; seen him come

out the room, and run back and didn't have time to

go around. By that time the water was U]) pretty well

on the house, so 1 jumped up on the U]3i)er deck and

leaned against a davit; Captain Anderson shoved the

girls up to me; as soon as we got them up, we started

across the deck. 1 couldn't hard)}' get across the deck,

she tip])ed over so much. If had had a little further

to go, couldn't have made it.
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O. You don't know whether she continued back-

ing after the collision or not. Is that correct?

A. No, sir. I know she couldn't have backed very

long.

O. How far were you, in your judgment, from the

range lights at the time the collision took place?

A. How far? They was open; off the range line.

O. About how far do you think you were in a

direct line from the range lights?

C. E. S. WOOD: Do you mean the lights or the

range?

O. From the range of lights.

A. From the island you mean?

Q. No. You know where the range lights strike

across there.

A. I know where the range line is t(^o.

O. How far were you from that range line in vour

judgment in a straight line at the time of the col-

lision?

A. Oh, about 600 feet I guess.

'O. 600 feet. Opposite what point off Puget Isl-

and were you at the time the collision took place?

A. I can't say exactl}' no more than to the range

line—where the ranges ]^oint through tlierc—tlie

lights on the bank.

O. \o\\ don't know how far you were \\\) and

down the island at the time the collision took place,

and you ha\'e no ])oint on the island at which vou can

look—which }'ou can locate as being opposite the

point of the collision, have you?
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A. I know well up into the bluff.

O. 1 am spcakino- about the island now.

A. No, I don't exactly have any marks on the isl-

and—what part it was.

Q. Now, you testified before on the trial of

Charles Jordan, didn't you—before the Tns])ectors?

A. Yes.

O. Vou remember that occasion? About the sec-

ond or third of August—something like that?

A. ^^es, sir.

O. Didn't you testify, in answer to a question put

to you by Captain Edwards, as follows: ''O. And

how long after you came on watch did you see any

lights from an approaching steamer? A. Well, it

was about a couple of minutes, T guess, after I got up

there I seen the Samson's lights coming around the

corner of Puget Island." Did you so testify?

A. Yes, I remember that.

'O. Is that correct now, or is what you say now
correct?

A. What I say now is correct as near as I can.

O. Now, you say about four or five minutes, don't

you ?

A. ^'es, sir.

Q. And you said at that time, when the matter

was fresh in your mind, about two minutes?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Now you think it wris about four or five min-

utes?

A. \'es, sir.
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O. I will ask vou whether on that examination, in

answer to a question addressed to you by Captain

Edwards, I think, you didn't testify as follows: *'Now,

could you show on there approximately about the

point of the river where the accident too place, that

is, about where the conflict was when they jammed

one another? Now, this is the bluff where the barge

was anchored; this is the range light across here;

here is Bugby up here; this is Puget Island, and this

is Clifton Slough, this is Prairie Channel. A. Yes, I

can tell right below the seining ground you will find

a slough; below the seining ground there is some pil-

ing there, as near as I could tell. O. That is on the

Puget Island side? A. Yes, sir. O. And the acci-

dent took place around here somewhere (indicating)?

A. That is where they hit, I mean, up abreast of the

seining ground. There is a little slough runs in there

with some piling at the end of it." Did you so testify

at that time?

A. Yes, sir.

'O. Then at that time you were able to identify

some point on the Puget Island shore which was op-

posite the point of collision?

A. From the indications, where the barge lay the

next morning. I should judge that was the location.

Q. You just judge that by where what barge lay

the next morning?

A. The oil barge.

O. You just judge il from where the oil l)arge lay?

A. Yes, sir.
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O. Not frc^ni an^-tliinc:^ else?

A. It was close abreast of that slotij^h. I had no

way of telling exactly how far tip and down the river

it was.

O. I will ask you whether or not ti])on this same

examination yoti didn't testify as follows. I think in

answer to qtiestions addressed to you by Captain Kd-

W'ards: ''O. And how lono* after vou blew the first

whistle did you hear another whistle blown ? A. I

should judo^e it was a mintite and a half. 'O. A min-

ute and a half, and then you heard another whistle

blown from liarQ'e 93? A. ^'es, sir." Did you so

testify at that time?

A. ^^'ell, I did. }es. but T just gave an approxima-

tion at that time and distance. T couldn't give ex-

actly.

O. Xow you say the time you think was three

minutes. Is that correct ?

A. About that, yes, I think.

O. Then at that time you thought it was a min-

ute and a half.

A. Yes.

O. Xow. which is correct do you think ^

A. I tliink about three minutes.

O. About three minutes, ^'ou think you were in

error then when you estimated it before?

A. ^'es, sir. 1 didn't testify to that as a fact. I

jtist said approximate!}' that : as near as I could judge.

O. 1 will ask you whether (^r not on the same oc-

casion when you testified ])efore the Inj^pectors. \'ou
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didn't testify as follows: "O. T know, ])ut the Island

side is in Washington, ^^ou can speak of it as the

Island side. This is Puget Island on the Washington

side. A. Yes, sir. 'O. Then as near as you can tell

it, the accident took place in around that little swale,

that little slough there, did it? A. Yes, sir, there was

some piling right at the end of it. O. Right in here?

A. Yes, sir, and a little above the swale. O. A little,

if anything, above the swale. W^ould it be around

about where that mark is there, do you think? A.

Well, I don't know whether it would be that high or

not. I don't remember now whether the piling was

right in the slough or not." Did you so testify?

A. Testify to that you mean ?

O. Yes.

A. ^'es. A little more there too, isn't there?

O. What is that?

A. ^>s, I testified to that.

O. Xow, was that testimony correct when you

gave it then?

A. \'es. That was from appearance the next

morning, I should judge about the piling. I didn't

know the slough was there.

O. ^'ou didn't know the slough was there?

A. No, didn't know that the slough was there

that the piling was in. I knew the slough was in. Inn

I didn't know it was right in the slough. From the

location tlie iiext morning, from the barges and

things, I should judge it was right there at that piling.

'(). Xow, when V(^u first saw the Samson's liofhts.
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liad you passed the ranges or not?

A. Well, I noticed the Samson's lights about the

time I swuni>- down off the range.

O. Just about the time you passed the ranges?

A. About the time T swung off the ranges. That

was about the time we got steadied up, is about when

I noticed them.

O. Did the Samson chan^-e her course at all after

}'ou first saw her?

A. Tt looked to me as though she didn't. It

looked to me like they kept on the same course.

O. Now, in putting these models on this paper

here at the suggestion of Mr. Wood, you have set

them at an angle. I will ask you to state whether at

the trial of Captain Jordan at the time and place I

have before indicated, you did not testify as follows:

''O. Do you have any idea as to how far the stem,

taking it for the center, the stem of the Henderson

was out from the side of the barge? What space was

in between barge 93 and the stem of the Henderson?

A. Well, I don't know exactly but I should judge

—

O. (interrupting) Did she lay against the oil barge

on an angle? A. No, sir; she laid parallel with it as

near as I could tell. O. She laid as near as }T)u could

tell parallel with the barge? A. \'es, sir, more than

that. O. ]\rore than that. She laid that way (indicat-

ing) ? A. Xo, they were both straight." ]3id you so

testify at that time?

A. I believe 1 did. T testified at that time they

were i)r()l)al)l}' straight, f beliexe. about twelve feet
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from the stem of the Henderson to the oil barge.

O. Vou did so testify at that time, did yoii?

A. Yes, I believe so.

O. Now, you testified that the Henderson was

lashed to the barge at an angle. Which is right, the

testimony you gave then or the testimony you give

now ?

A. I thought they were very nearly straight. I

didn't notice them so very much. T just come on

watch and it looked to me as though verv nearly

straight, in a ]:)arallel line.

O. Xow, why do you say she was lashed at an

angle, and then you snid they were laying parallel?

A. I probably got those a little more than T in-

tended to get them. I said— T remember telling them

up there that she was very nearly straight.

O. You remember giving the testimony as T read

it to you, don't you?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did any one suggest to you that you had made

a mistake in that particular since you testified before

the Inspectors ?

A. Xo, sir. This is the customary way of mak-

ing fast to barges—ships. It seems to me like that

night it w<is very nearly in a ]:)arallel line.

O. When you saw the Samson could vou tell

whether she was nearer to the Oregon shore or the

Washington shore?

A. I couldn't tell exactly but it looked to me as

though she v/as a little around in the bight of Bugbv
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Hole.

•'(). That \v(ml(l he near the Oresfon shore?

A. 1 couldn't say which side.

O. That is the way it looked to you then?

A. She was out a little from the ])oint of the Isl-

and.

O. That is the way it looked to you?

A. Yes, sir.

O. I will ask you whether or not you didn't tes-

tify, at the time to which vour attention was called, in

answer to questions addressed to you, I believe, by

Mr. Shepherd, as follows: "O. Could you tell which

side of the river the Samson was when she came

around the point? A. Yes, sir. O. You could tell

whether she was on the Puo^et Island side or the

Oregon side? A. Looked like she was nearer the

island side.'' Did you so testify at that time?

A. I don't remember saying she was nearer the

island side.

]\Ir. ERSKINE WOOD: I think you should read

the next question and answer.

]\Ir. MIXOR: I looked and didn't think it neces-

sary to read it. "S'ou can read it if you want to.

Mr. ERSKINE WOOD: (reading) ''That vou

could not tell very well, could you, in the dark? .A.

Xo, not from my position."

O. 1 v/ant to know whether you so testified.

A. That is what 1 say now. \ couldn't tell from

where we were.

( ). lUit vou did tcstifv at that time, did vou, that
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it looked to you as if near the island side?

A. If up past Bugby Hole, looked as though close

to the island. Tf down in Bugby Hole, she could be

close to the Oregon shore.

O. I say, you did testify looked as though close

to the island?

A. Yes, may have been up a way to the point. Tt

had looked close to the island; T couldn't tell that.

O. Is the testimony you gave then or the testi-

mon}' }'ou give now correct, in your judgment?

A. T say now, I can't tell exactly whether in the

middle of the river, next to the island, or the Oregon

shore on account of this point. She could have been

up above the ])oint aways and looked as though close

down, and still she would be closer to the Oregon

shore.

O. I call your attention again to the matter of

your testimony, in regard to tlie manner in which the

Henderson was lashed to the barge. I will nsk you

whether or not you didn't testify at that time and

place to which your attention has been called—didn't

testify as follows: ''O. N'ow, you don't know
the beam of the Henderson, do you? A. Xo, not ex-

actly. O. If this blotter were the oil barge and vou

were to make fast the tow, would your keel be paral-

lel witli the keel of the oil barge, or how would she

set? A. Yes, if we was made fast parallel with the

barge, our keel would be ])ara]lel with their keel. O.

Yes, but do you tow in that position ? Do vou tow

with the keels ])arallcl, or do the boat's tow have a
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different ano-le? A. ^\s, they j^enerally do in a case

of that kind; just furnishini^ l)ower they i^enerally

make fast straight with her. 'Q. Straight with her?

A. ^'es, sir. O. Was that the way you were made

fast? A. Ves, parallel with her as near as I could

figure out." Did you so testify at that time?

A. Well, yes. That is what I say now. That is

was made fast nearly parallel with her.

O. Then vou said parallel. Now you sav nearly

parallel.

A. Well, T don't know whether I said parallel then

or not.

O. The answer here is "Yes, parallel with her as

near as I could figure out."

A. Well, this must have been a little bit off on an

angle.

O. Now, I want to ask you in connection with

this lashing of the Henderson to the oil barge, was

anything put betw^een the Henderson and the oil

barge?

A. Yes.

O. What ?

A. A rope fender, T believe.

O. What is it?

A. l^o])e fender.

'O. How large is the ro])e fender?

A. About four-and-a-half or five feet across it.

About six inches through.

O. Four-and-a-half?

A. ]u)uy feet— four feet six inches. T i^-uess.
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O. How lono* is it ?

A. Well, it is made in the shape of a doughnut,

round with a hole in the center of it. It is put over

the guard of a boat.

O. Over the guard of the Henderson?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Or over the guard of the oil barg-e?

A, Over the g"uard of the Henderson.

O. And about how large is that fender in circum-

ference or in diameter? I don't care.

A. Not made very solid and it hangs. Sometimes

it hang^s up there; kind of droops down, g^ets a little

narrower, and hangs long^ways, up and down—not

so wide.

O. How thick is that fender?

A. After up against the boat and the guard mash-

ing up against it, it is not more than four inches—four

to six inches.

O. Four to six inches?

A. Yes.

O. And at what point on the oil barge is that

fender placed?

A. Right at the corner of the house. On the oil

barge?

O. Yes.

A. That is back on her stern pretty well. I don't

remember at that time whether there was a rake on

the stern of the oil barge set in under or not, but T

thought there was.

O. At what point on the Henderson was that
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fender placed ?

A. Corner of the house of tlic Henderson.

O. Starboard side?

A. Starboard side, forward of the corner of the

house.

O. Tliat is al>out opposite the point wlicre you

think tlie Henderson was struck?

A. Hano'inc;- over the o^uard.

O. At a point about opposite wliere you thinlc the

Henderson was struck?

A. Yes.

O. Was there anv other fender?

A. No, that was tlie only one.

O. When you first came into the pilot-house,

which shore were you nearest to?

A. Why, naturally be Puo"et Island shore, that is,

that vSand Bar below Puo-et Island.

Q. In answer to a question which was propound-

ed to you by Mr. Minor upon the trial of Captain Jor-

dan, I will ask you whether or not you didn't testify

as follows: "O. When you first came up did you

see the Samson? A. Xo, not when T first came u[).

O. How lono;* before }'ou saw the Samson after you

came u])? A. Well, a coui)le of minutes, I guess. O.

Where was the Samson when you first saw her? A.

She was comino^ around the ])oint here. O. "S'ou saw

them with the ^^reen li,£iht? A. ^>s, sir. O. And

where were }()U when you first saw^ her, now? A. I

was in the ])il()t-house. O. I know, but how far down

was the Henderson? A. Well, she was somewhere
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rio-ht along in here. O. She was still on the range

lights, was she? A. Yes, sir. O. Still on the range,

and at that time you saw, I understand, only the

green light of the Samson? A. At that time T only

seen the green light. O. How long after that before

you saw the red and green light, both? A. Of the

Samson? Q. Yes. A. Oh, I should judge it was a

couple of minutes. O. A couple of minutes? A.

When she swung around here (indicating on chart)."

Did you so testify at that time?

A. I think so.

Q. Now w^as that testimony correct or is the testi-

mony you now give correct?

A. I don't think that time is correct now.

O. That was not correct then?

A. No, sir. Not the time. I can't give it ex-

actly.

(). Now, ui:)on the same examination, T will ask

you whether or not, you didn't testify as follows:

"That is what I want to get at. When you came outr

you say you were right on the range? A. ^^es, sir.

O. How long after you came out was it before you

went below the range? A. Well, it was just a few

minutes after 1 got tliere : T don't know just exactly

liow long; five minutes, I guess." Hid you so testify

at that time?

A. Five minutes before whatj^

Q. Before you crossed the range after vou came

on duty.

A. Probabh' 90. T couldn't sav as to tlie exact
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time.

O. I will ask you whether or not upon the ex-

amination before the Inspectors at the trial of Captain

Jordan, you didn't testify as follows: "O. And how

far do you think you were below the rani[2^e lii^hts, the

ran«"e that those two lights made; how far do you

think you were below that range? A. Oh, a couple of

hundred feet. 'O. You think you were a couple of

hundred feet below those? A. Yes, sir." Did you so

testify at that time?

A. I believe T did.

O. Now you say

—

COURT: That c|uestion refers to what time?

Mr. MINOR: That was at the time of the col-

lision, vour Honor.

O. Now you say that at the time of the collision

you think you w^ere about 600 feet below.

A. I believe so.

O. And then you said you thought you were about

200 feet below.

A. Yes, sir. Since I have seized up the situation

more, I think it would be about 600 feet.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD : Repeat that. Wait a minute

—
I want to get that.

A. Since I have been down there several times and

sized uj) the situation, I think 600 feet below the

range line.

(). Mave you been d(^wn there since?

A. ^ es, sir.

(). Wlio did you go with?
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A. Passed down with boats.

O. With whom?

A. Working" on the boats.

'Q. What boats?

A. On the Wanna; on the Henderson.

Q. Anybody call yonr attention to it?

O. I speak about it nearly every time I ^o by

there. I generally say something about it.

O. Who was calling your attention to it?

A. Well, the crew on the boats generally speak

something about the wreck.

Q. What crew?

A. Well, the crew on the Wauna and different

boats have been on as we go by there.

Q. Can't you mention some particular man who

talked to you about it?

A. I spoke to the captain of the Wauna, I believe

about it.

Q. What is his name?

A. Captain Dolby, T believe.

Q. And w^ho else?

A. I don't know who all was around there now.

Not talking to any one man particularly.

O. After talking with them you changed your

mind about how far you think below the range, did

you?

A. No, that wasn't the principal thing that caused

me to change my mind, but I sized up the situation

for mvself and seen where it was; where the oil barge

was anchored; where we was. I think we were at
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least 600 feet from tlie range.

O. How far do you think you were from the Ore-

gon shore at the time of the coUision?

A. Three or four liundred feet.

(J. Three or four hundred feet. Xow when you

were examined before the Inspectors, didn't you testi-

fy that in your judgment you were about a thousand

feet from the Oregon shore?

A. W^ell, you can take that different ways you

look at it. If you look straight across, or if you hap-

pen to look a little slant. Of course I may have

looked in a different direction when I testified there

than I have since.

O. Did you so testify?

A. I remember testifying to that, yes.

O. That you thought it was about a thousand feet

from the Oregon shore?

A. Yes.

O. And you testified at the same time you thought

it was about how far from the Puget Island shore?

Mr. SNOW: Can't you point out the testimony

where he said a thousand feet.

Mr. MINOR: I can point it out.

A. 1 think 1 said in that testimony I tliought 1300

feet from Puget Island.

'•(). Now, how far do vou think it was?

A. Well, I would take it—a straight line across in

that narrow ])art of the river, would be about 1500 on

one side and about that much on ihc <nlier.

O. 1500 on either side?
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A. About 400 on the other.

Q. 400 on the other?

A. Yes, about 1500 on one side and 400 on the

other.

Q. You were talking to the Captain of the Wauna

and other people about that weren't you? About the

mistake you made in that particular?

A. Yes, I have mentioned that, I believe, about

how far we were from the shore.

O. Xow, let me ascertain another thing. How
long did you say it was after the second whistle was

sounded before the collision took place?

A. The second whistle—about a minute-and-a-

half.

COURT : You have been over that.

Mr. MIXOR: I have been over that, your Honor,

but I want to ask him.

Q. About a minute-and-a-half ?

A. I think so. Something like that.

O. After the crash, Mr. Stayton, which way did

the Henderson go?

A. Well, after they came together, or about the

time they came together is when I left the pilot-

house.

O. Well, you were still on the boat, weren't you?

You could tell which way going—forward or back.

A. She was backing when 1 left the pilot-house

but she didn't back very far.

O. Did you see the oil barge after the crash?

A. Xot after we broke loose from her. I didn't
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pay no more attention to it.

O. ^'()u didn't see her after the crash then?

A. No, just about the time of the crash ; that broke

us loose and the crash together. 1 never paid no more

attention to the oil barge.

O. Did you see it?

A. See the oil barge?

O. Yes.

A. Yes, I seen the oil barge at the time of the

crash.

Q. Did you see it after the crash?

A. Xot very long after, no.

'O. Did you see it until after the crash?

A. I seen it until we 2:ot avvav from it.

Q. Which way was the oil barge going?

A. She was swinging to starboard.

O. Was she going forward or back?

A. She didn't have very much headway on her.

I don't know—well she would be going ahead a little

but not very fast.

Q. She was going ahead, was she?

A. Just was going ahead.

O. Going ahead. That is what I want to get at.

A. Not very fast.

COURT: You mean going ahead in the stream

or going ahead as compared with your own boat?

A. We was both going ahead at the same time un-

til the crash came, and of course tore us loose from

the oil barge. Then 1 don't know what became of

her.
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O. Could vou see the bluff on the Oregon shore

at the time of the collision?

A. Yes, I could see the shadows.

O. Could you see the shore?

A. Well, not right in the bluff, I couldn't, but I

could see the lines of the bluff, that is the shadows

of the bluff, the tops of the trees. I would have to

judge by that about where the shore was.

'O. You couldn't see the shore at all, could you?

A. No, not at the bluff.

O. How high is that bluff? I think the chart gives

it a thousand feet, your Honor. I am not sure. The

chart I think gives the bluff at about a thousand feet.

A. I couldn't see how high it was.

O. If the bluff was anything like a thousand feet

high, would that obstruct the shore line, and did it

obstruct the shore line?

A. Well, fairly well, yes, but below the bluff I

could see the shore, that is down stream from the

bluff.

O. Down stream from the bluff?

A. Ves, tliat is I could see the shadow—that is

the outline of the shore.

O. ^'o^ saw the oil barge where she was anchored

the next dav, did vou?

A. Yes, sir.

O. How far was slie anchored below the range

line in your judgement?

A. 700 feet I guess—800.

O. Do vou know where that rauQT line hits tlie
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Oregon shore?

A. Pretty well.

Q. What ?

A. Xot exactly.

O. How far was she anchored below where that

range line hits tlie Oregon shore there?

A. 1 couldn't tell you exactly by telling you, but

T could show you down there, going across.

O. Xow, at the time you were examined before the

Tnepectors, I will ask you whether or not you didn't

testify as follows. I think the examination was then

being conducted by the Inspector, but ] am not sure:

"O. Somewhere between those two sloughs. Xow,

(lid you sec the oil barge after it anchored? A. Yes,

sir. O. Where was it? A. It laid over right in

below—above this fish trap, laid over in here below

the bluff. O. Where it anchored was above or below

the range line? A. Below. O. How far below? A.

Well, I judge it was anchored right in there some-

wheres. 'Q. How far do you think it was below the

range line? A. Oh, it must have been a couple of

hundred or three hundred feet, I guess, may be more,

where the range lights hit in to the point there down

to the bow of the oil barge, ^'es, it was. i). T don't

mean measuring along the shore, but 1 mean—A.

Xow mean direct out? (}. ^^es, direct out; how far

from the range line was it in your judgement? A.

Oh, T should judge it was close to a thousand feet.

Yes, close to a thousand feet out there. Xo, it wasn't

that far. It is hard for me to just sav. I am not
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familiar with towing ships or anything Hke tliat, clown

there. 1 g-uess it is 800 feet anyway."

A. Well, I didn't know at that time just exactly

where the range light would cross that, you know

—

out from that oil harge. I kind of noticed it a little

more since this accident.

O. You didn't know at that time where it crossed?

A. No, couldn't tell just exactly how far out the

range line ran from where we was anchored.

O. Xo. did you see the rock barges after they was

anchored?

A. Well, yes, 1 seen them.

O. How far was the collision from where the rock

barges were anchored?

A. Between a quarter and a half a mile T guess.

O. In what direction?

A. It was off down towards the range lights. I

couldn't say just exactly what direction.

'O. Thev were down towards the rano"e li^fhts?

A. Yes.

Q. Down the river from where the collision took

place ?

A. Yes. When I said the oil barge—where we

stood or the oil bcirge?

O. Xo, from the collision. \Verc the rock barges

down the ri\er from where the collision took place?

A. Yes, they was down the river from where the

collision took place. Where I stood, the oil barge

was looking down towards the range lights.

O. On which side of the ranges were the rock
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hari^cs ancliored, in your jiul^cuient ?

A. Well, I couldn't say as to that for T never took

very much notice of it.

O. You don't know whether anchored on the

Puget Island side or the Oreg^on side of the range

light?

A. No. Off Puget Island somcvvhcres. T forget

now just about where they were.

O. Now, I understood you to say that the rock-

barge didn't hit the oil barge, in your judgement, at

all. Is that right?

A. The rock barge didn't hit the oil barge, no, sir;

not that I seen.

0. Not that you saw. Did you see any injury to

the oil barge the next morning, while you were on it?

A. I seen a little ])lace where the paint was rubbed

off. }'es, along the track of the breast line.

'O. Now, don't that—wasn't that caused by the

rock bargee rubbing against it, in your judgement?

A. No, I couldn't say. It could have been caused

1)}' the boat. I couldn't say she done it. T never seen

the rock barge hit the oil barge and I couldn't say

that was caused by that.

O. What was your judgement in tliat regard at

the time of the accident? Or the next morning when

you saw it ?

A. Well. I thought the guard of the Henderson

had done it.

O. Now, i will ask vou whether on vour examina-

tion before tlic Insjiector?, you didn't testif}' as fnl-
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lows:

A. Mioht have been done 1)y the rock barge I

guess, but 1 thought

—

O. (Continuing): "O. Did you notice on the side

of the oil barge a place where the paint had been ap-

parently damaged? A. I seen a place on the side

where it had been rubbed up against." I will skip

the questions that arc unimportant. "From the ap-

pearance of it, could you tell whether it had been re-

cently made or not? A. It appeared to me as though

it came off the barge, but I could not say. O. You

think that came off one of the rock barges, do you?

A. I think it did. It may have been when the port

stern line broke on the port barge, after hitting the

Henderson there it may have swung around and hit

the oil barge. At that time T didn't see it." Did you

so testify?

A. I believe T did, yes.

O. Now, was that your opinion at that time?

A. Well, I don't know. It could have been made

from either one of them, for that matter, I think.

Q. Mr. Stayton, was the Samson coming straight

down the river, or coming on an angle down the

river.

A. The Samson coming down at an angle or

straight ?

D. Or straight.

A. Well, somewheres just aloout straight willi the

Oregon shore.

O. She was al)out straiirlil witli tlic Orc-o-on sliore?
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A. Yes, T <:^iiess somcwiicrcs like tliat. I couldn't

say the exact course in steering; it would be impos-

sible for me to do.

O. Was she straight up and down the channel or

across the channel?

A. Xo, she was coming down the channel.

O. Straight up and down the channel, was she?

A. ^'es, sir, as near as I could tell.

Mr. ERSKIXE WOOD: He didn't say straight

up and down the channel.

Mr. M IXOR: I understood him to.

Mr. ERSKIXE WOOD: You said that. You put

thcit in his mouth.

Mr. MIXOR: I didn't mean to misquote but he

speaks so low I can't understand.

O. J say, was she laying straight up and down the

channel as she came down?

A. Apparently so after she came around the point

of Puget Island as near as I could tell.

O. After she came arotmd the point of Ptiget

Island, as near as you could tell, she was lying straight

up and clown the channel?

A. Down the Oregon shore, something like that.

O. She was lying up and down the channel?

A. ^'es, up and down the river. I don't know

whether straight with the channel or not, but I know

up and down the river.

O. Xow, again 1 want to call }'our attention, Mr.

Stay ton, to your tcstimou}- before the Inspectors. Do
\()\\ remember there were some models ])roduced at
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that time, of the boats, tacked together?

A. Some what?

O. Some models of the three barges and of tlie

Samson lying between them.

A. I didn't use no models there, tacked together.

Q. Do yon remember something like those being-

shown ?

A. No, sir, didn't have nothing like that.

O. Do you remember some little ])aper models?

A. Had some little paper models there, about half

an inch long, I guess. Something a man couldn't

handle very wxll.

O You remember those, do you?

A. Yes, sir.

'O. Now^, I will ask you wdiether at that time you

didn't testify as follows: ''Could you locate on that

chart about how far below^ the range you were. A.

Oh, T could give you some kind of an idea, I suppose.

O. This is the one marked Henderson (referring to

models). Just put that as near as you can. (Witness

illustrates with models.) A. I don't know^. O. ^\)u

think you were a third of the way below the range,

between there and Tenas Tllihee? A. No, T guess

we were a cou])le of hundred feet. No, we wasn't

that far; somewheres in the neighborhood of—well,

from the middle of the range I guess we were about

a couple of hundred feet. O. Relow? A. \'es, I

should judge." Did you so testify at that time?

A. Probably so, yes.

Mr ERSKTXK WOOD: Nothino- in that testi-
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moil}' to show at what time.

Mr. MTXOR: At the time of the accident.

A. I testified at that time, I believe, we was off

the ranges eight c^r ten feet. I could see between those

two ranges eiglit or ten feet. And I don't know how

far apart them hghts were and consequently I don't

know how far that would take us off the range line.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: .May I interrupt to ask a

question? When you say off the range 8 or 10 feet,

do you mean off the range line, we ran 8 or 10 feet

by angle, or you were 8 or 10 feet off the rang*e?

A. What I mean by that is you can see between

those two lights; one is above the other and the high

one sits back.

O. And it opened up at an angle of 8 or 10 feet

as it looked to you?

A. Yes, if you get out to the side of them you can

see between those lights; I should judge opened up

about 8 or 10 feet. I didn't know at that time how-

far that would take us off the range line.

O After you were taken off the Henderson, where

did }'ou go?

A 1 went on the Samson

O Did you have any talk with any officer of the

Samson while you were on the Samson ?

A Well, T believe Cai)tain Jordan asked if we

heard his whistle. I told him, yes, we heard the first

whistle. I don't remember outside of that having an\'

talk al)()Ut the collision or anxthing.

( ). Didn't he ask \'ou wlictlier vou heard his
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whistles?

A. Well, he might have said whistles, but it meant

one whistle.

O. Don't you remember tliat at that time, after

you were taken off the Henderson and had gotten on

the Samson, in the j^resence of Captain Jordan and

some of the crew, wdiose names T do not know, but it

was immediately after yovi got on the Samson, that

you said to Captain Jordan, or to Captain Anderson

that you did hear the whistles, and that vou thought

it strange Oil Barge 93 should blow one whistle when

she had her green light visible, or in sight?

A. Xo, I don't remember saying that.

'O. Will vou sav that vou did not sav that?
«-<^ ^ ^ .^ •'

A. I am positive 1 didn't say it, yes. If I did say

it, I don't know nothing about it. I am most posi-

tive I didn't say it. I don't remember saying anything

like that.

O. Xow\ T want to call your attention. Captain,

to your testimony in regard to where the rock barges

were anchored. On the trial of Captain Jordan before

the Inspectors, I will ask you whether or not you tes-

tified as follows: "Wb.ere were these barges, the

rock l:)arges, anchored tlic next morning wlicn you

were on the Samson? A. Well, 1 don't know just

the location of them. I didn't pay no attention to

them. O. Could \'ou define on tliat ma]) about where

they were? \o\\ saw them, didn't you? A. Well,

they were anchored over tliis side of the channel

somew liercs rici'lit down in \hc lower end berc (incli-
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catiiiQ' in cliart). It seemed to nie it would be some-

wheres down towards the lower end of the island here

;

and one was over in here somewheres. O. They

were anchored on the starboard side of the ran^c^e

HHit, weren't the\ ? A. ^'es, sir. O. And much

nearer to the Washington shore or the island shore

than the Oregon, weren't they? A. Yes, they were

a little bit closer to the island shore. Here is the

Oregon shore. O. ^ (Ui don't think they were more

than two or three hundred feet from the island shore,

do you? A. 1 don't know just how far they were,

and I know they were pretty well over to the island.

O. Pretty well over to the island? A. ^'es, sir."

Did you so testify ?

A. I told them was down there somewheres, but

I don't know the exact location.

'O. Well, did you testify as I have read those ques-

tions and answers to you?

A. 1 probably did. I don't remember just exactly.

O. Well, was that your best information and your

best belief at that time?

A. I believe so, if that is correct.

O. That is correct vou sav?

A. T say if that is correct. T don't rcmem])cr just

how I did testify on that. \ told him al)out as near

as r could to where they were anchored.

Mr. MINOR: Will you admit he did so testify,

Mr. Wood, or will I have to ])rove it?

Mr. KRSKIXE WOOD: ^'es.

Mr. MTXOR: Tt is admitted by the proctor for the
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IJbellant that he did so testify at that time. I will

offer in connection with that this little diac^rani—this

angle at which he said the vessels approached.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: What is that?

]\Ir. ^flNOR: He made a diagram here showing

the course of the Henderson and the course of the

Samson as they came together.

Diagram a part of Libellant's Exhibit 6.

Redirect Examination.

Questions by Mr. ERSKTNE WOOD:
Mr. Stayton, Mr. Minor asked you this question:

Do you know whether either of the rock barges hit

the oil barge, and you answered ''No, sir." T don't

know^ whether you mean that neither rock barge hit

the oil barge or that you don't know whether they

did or not. A\'hich did you mean ?

A. Well, T don't know. If the port rock barge

hit the Henderson, she probably could have swung

around after I left and hit the oil barge, astern.

O. You mean could have hit the oil barge with her

stern?

A. ^^es, the stern of the rock barge could have hit

the oil barge.

O. Xow, T am not sure just how this testimony

came U]), 1)ut as I remember, it was like this: you

said that when the helm was put hard aport on the

oil barge cind you saw her commence to swing, }'ou

sav; there was going to be trouble; and a little later

on, as I remember it, Mr. Minor asked \'ou when a'ou
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heard llie second whistle blown, then you saw^ tliere

was going to ])e troul)le.

A. "S^s, sir.

O. And I want to know whether you mean that

at the time the second whistle was blown yoti saw

there was going to be trouble, or that you didn't think

there was going to be trouble until a little after that

when you saw the barge swing toward the shore.

Which did you mean ?

A. When he blew the second whistle, I thought

there was probably going to be trouble then. I hadn't

seen the Samson alter her course that 1 could tell. I

thought probably going to be trouble, so I kicked on

the wall to call the captain.

O. Mr. ]\Iinor read to you from your testimony

before the Inspectors on page 144 and another page,

anywa}' it was to the effect that you said that the

collision occurred around this little slough where the

piling was.

A. Abreast of that.

O. Well, I just want you to make that clear. What

did you mean by that?

A. I mean abreast of that; out in the river from

that—across.

O. Xow mean, judging your ])osition ti]) and down

the river you were al)out abreast the little shmgh?

A. Yes.

O. ])Ut you didn't mean you were very near it?

A. No.

O. \(n\ mean were over the OrcQ'on side, on the
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o])]:)Osite side of the ri\er from it. Is that it?

A. Yes, sir.

O. T will ask yoti whether or not you didn't testify

before the fnspectors at the trial of Captain Jordan

as follows on that same point: "O. And then the acci-

dent took place over here? A. No, I didn't say it

took ])lace over there. 'O. Yon said they came to-

gether there? A. No, I said abreast of that, out in

the river from there. Q. No, you didn't say that to

begin with; you said they came together about where

that little swale was. INSPECTOR FULLER: He

said abreast of that. A. T said abreast of it. That is

what T meant." Did vou so testify?

A. 1 did.

O. In answer to a question from Mr. Minor, as T

remember it, vou said that after vou saw both side

lights (^f the Samson, you didn't observe her change

her course, and \ would like to ask you w^hether you

hcid any other means of judging her course than by

her side lights?

A. No, not exactly.

O. What you mean to say is tliat as you were pro-

ceeding up the river you continuously sa\A' her side

lights?

A. Yes.

O. When yow were testifying l)efore the Inspect-

ors, as Mr. Minor lias called to }'our atention, and

said that the Henderson was laying ])arallel on the

\)()V\ (juarter of the oil barge, did you mean to say that

thev were on a dead parallel or that that was their
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approximate position ?

A. \'erv nearly so; very nearly on a parallel line

is what 1 i^enerally call it.

O. J don't exactly understand what you mean in

that same testimony, at the top of page 154; \o\\

testify as follows: This has already been read to

vou. '\She laid as near as vou could tell parallel with

the barge? A. ^'es, sir, more than that." What did

you mean by "more than that?*'

A. A little out of line.

O. What is that?

A. With the nose in a little bit.

•Q. Did you superintend the lashin^g of the barg-es

together— I mean the Henderson and the oil barge?

y\. In Astoria?

Mr. :\IIXOR : I didn't ask about that.

Mr. C K. S. WOOD: He wasn't on deck.

Mr. SXOW: What is his answer to that cpiestion

—whether he superintended the lashing at Astoria?

A. No.

Mr. SNOW: Who did it?

A. The mate.

Mr. SNOW: Where is the mate?

A. I don't know where he is now. I haven't heard

anvthing of him since he left the Henderson.

Mr. MINOR: What was his name? T have for-

gotten.

A. Crosby, T beheve.

O. ( Erskine Wood) Mr. Stayton, at the foot of

Pugel Island, which side of the river is the range
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nearest to? T<^ it closest to Piiget Lshmd or is it

nearest to Tenas Tlliliee Island?

A. Puoet Island.

'O. Is it considerable nearer to Pug"et Island or

not?

A. Yes, I believe it is, tbat way it runs, closer

to tbe foot of Puo^et Island than the other shore.

O. You said before the Inspectors, as has already

been called to 3^our attention, that you thought the

collision occurred about 200 feet off the Oregon

shore, and that since then you have observed the sit-

uation and studied it more and have come to a dif-

ferent conclusion. I would like to ask you whether

you haven't been workin^^ up and down, i)ast that

spot, ever since that collision?

A. Yes, sir, have been goinq- up and down there

considerable.

O. What have you been doin^Q?

A. Runnin![^' ]Mlot on different loo; boats; towin,^;

log's up out of Clifton channel and the otlier shore;

U]) the main channel; that is the other shore, on the

main side of the island.

O. About this ]Kiint you noticed rubl^ed off the

oil bar^^e the next morniniL^, where was that? Was it

abreast of where the bow of the Henderson was

lashed, or was it abaft of that or forward, or wliere?

A. A little aft of the bow.

O. A little aft of the bow?

A. Yes.

O. Is it your o])inion tliat was ru])l)cd off bv tlie
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bow of the Henderson, or by the stern of the rock

baro^e swing-ing around?

A. I thought it was dcMie l)y the Henderson. It

could have been done by the stern of the rock barge

if it swun^ that way.

Mr. KRSKIXE WOOD: Mr. Minor, I understood

that when you read from liis testimony ]:)efore the

Inspectors, commencino^ at page 209 and finishing

at the middle of page 210, were you intending to con-

vey the meaning that at the time of the collision he

was a couple of hundred feet off the range. T think

T asked you what you meant there and you said at

the time of the collision.

Mr. ^^XOR: That is what T said: at the time of

tlie collision.

Mr. ERSKIXE WOOD: T think if you will read

what comes before and after, you will see he doesn't

mean that.

Mr. MTXOR: Read it if that is what he means.

Read just before it, and yr»u will see.

y\r. ERSKIXE WOOD: I will read that.

Mr. SXOW: Read the whole thing.

O. (Mr. Erskine Wood) Mr. Minor read you

p^rt of this and asked you if you so testified. This is

before the Inspectors, at the trial of Captain b^rdan :

"O. Do you remember of noticing that you were be-

low the range when you were coming up with the

tow after you had seen the Samson? A. \'es, sir, I

noticed being below the range. O. Did you notice

about how far below the ranjre vou were with refer-
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ence to the Tenas Illihce shore? A. Well, I didn't

get any line on the point of the island. O. Could

you locate on that chart about how far below the

range you were? A. Oh, I could give you some kind

of an idea I suppose. O. This is the one marked

Henderson, (referring to models). Just put that as

near as you can. (Witness illustrates with models).

A. I don't know. O. ^'ou think you were a third

of the way below the range, between there and Tenas

Tllihee? A. No, I guess we were a couple of hundred

feet. Xo, we wasn't that far; somewheres in the

neighl^orhood of—well, from the middle of the range

I guess we were about a couple of hundred feet. O.

Below? A. ^>s, I should judge. O. Did you ever

lia\e any fear of getting aground because you were

so far below the range? A. ^>s, I did. When T

seen them swinging over there at that time. I don't

know exact!}' how far up we was, that is, to clear

these sands; T don't know the location of these sands

at that time. I seen them swinging over there and T

kept watching the range, and I thought ])robably lie

would run aground there, but I thought he knew his

business better than T did : so T see he made it all

right. [). That was because he was so far below the

range that you had that fear?* A. Yes, he got well

1)elo\v the range. I knew these sands were over here,

and tliey were lower down than I thought they was

when we got over here. At that time T ste])ped for-

ward to tlic forward window in the ])ilot-house to

be sure to listen in case he hollered to sio]), or anv-
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thing'." I will ask you whether you meant hy that

—

first I will ask you whether you so testified.

A. Yes.

O. Now, T will ask you whether you meant by that

testimony that at the time you first swung off of the

range, about a little above the point of Tenas Illihee

Island, about in there, you were 200 feet off the range,

or whether vou meant bv that testimony at the time

of the collision you were 200 feet off the range?

A. At the time we swung over there is what T had

reference to. He came over so far

—

O. Where are those sands you meant here as

causing you to think yoti might get aground?

A. They were further down than what we w^ere.

We were up higher than I thought we were.

O. They weren't anywhere near the point of the

collision, were they?

A. No, sir.

'Questions bv C. E. S. WOOD:
You said in answer to a question by Mr. Minor that

you had been talking this collision matter over with

the Captain and crew of the Wauna, and the crew of

the Henderson. I will ask you wdiether or not they

were present at the time of the collision and profes-

sed to know anything about it.

A. No, sir, none of them were there at that time

of the accident.

O. Were they attempting to give you any informa-

tion or were thev asking vou about it?
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A. They were just asking- me where it happened,

where it was and different places where the things

were.

O. And since this examination at the trial of Cap-

tain Jordan, you have been checking over these mat-

ters of estimates of time and distances down on the

spot there, and the testimony you give today is your

latest and best recollection and opinion of the matters

you testify to, is it?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Who is Captain Jordan?

A. What is he?

O. Who is Captain Jordan?

A. He was pilot on the Samson.

O. That night?

A. At the time of the collision, yes.

Recross Examination.

Questions by Air. MINOR:
Were you working for the Shaver Transportation

Company?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Are now, are you?

A. I am working for ihem, yes, sir.

'O. And have been ever since this collision?

A. Yes, sir.

Air. C. E. S. WOOD: Wlicn you talked about

talking with the crew of the Wauna and the Hender-

son, you meant the new rebuilt Henderson, did vou ?

You meant the new Henderson—tlic one that is run-
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ning now?

A. Yes.

Witness Excused.

HENRY KNESS a witness called on behalf of the

libellant, being first duly sworn, testified as follows:

Direct Examination.

Questions by Mr. ERSKINE WOOD:

Mr. Kness, what is your business?

A. Fireman.

O. Steamboat fireman?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Were you on the Henderson at the time of the

collision with the Samson?

A. Yes, sir.

O. July, 1911?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Were you firing that night?

A. Yes, sir, I was on watch.

O. On watch at the time of the collision?

A. Yes, sir.

'O. When did you go on watch?

A. Well, T went on watch when we left Astoria,

but I let the other fellow slee]:). I stood a part of

his time.

O. You were on watch at the time of the collision ?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Did you hear the testimony of Mr. Oleson?

A. Today you mean?

i). Ves.
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A. Part of it.

O. Did yon hear him mention the bells that he

received?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you hear any of those bells?

A. Yes, sir.

O. What did you hear?

A. Well, I heard the stop bell, and the reverse

and back up bell.

'O. To stop, to back, to reverse. How did they

follow?

A. Stop, reverse and back.

O. Oh yes. How did they follow each other?

A. Rapidly.

O. All tog-ether?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Did you hear the other l)ells he referred to?

A. No, sir.

O. How do you account for the fact that you

didn't hear them?

A. Well, the steam pipes, they broke and so much

steam blowing around me; so much noise I couldn't

have heard it, after they all broke.

O. How near were you standing to the point on

the Henderson where she was stove in?

A. Right abreast of it. I was in the fire hole at

the time.

O. About how many feet away from that place?

A. :\l)out ten feet, T guess; twelve, something like

that.
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*0. How soon did the water rush in after that?

A. Well, the instant [ heard the crash, the water

was up to my knees.

O. Up to vour knees?

A. ^'es, sir.

O. You must have liad to hustle out lively.

A. I did. I shut everything off and left right

away—left the fire hole.

O. Have vou any idea what time the Henderson

was hacking?

A. A very short time; less than a minute.

O. Did she back after the crash?

A. Well, that would be pretty hard for me to say.

O. Do vou know whether her ensfines were in

condition to back or not?

A. After the crash?

O. Yes.

A. T don't see how they could have been for she

was sinking right away and the wheel was going

down in her, .?nd it would take an awful lot of power

to turn the wheel over after she settled down in the

water.

*0. How soon after the crash did she commence

to keel over on her side?

A. Right away. Almost right away.

O. Any idea how long it was after the crash before

she was way over on her side, sunk?

A. Well, about two minutes, I think.

O. Did you notice the shore?

A. 1 did not.
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Q. Didn't notice the shore?

A. No, sir.

O. Were you on the oil barge the next morning?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Did you notice her port r|tiarter? Was there

any paint rubbed oft her ]Mirt quarter?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Where was it rub])ed with relation to the place

where the Henderson was lashed ?

A. Well, the paint was rubbed off about—oh

about 50 or 60 feet from the stern of the oil barge, aft.

'O. The stern of the oil barge aft. Just explain

a little more fullv what is meant bv that,

A. The paint was rubbed off, it looked to me about

15 feet—15 feet—a scratch about 15 feet long.

O. That couldn't be aft the stern of the oil barofe.

A. Well, where the scratch began, from forward

aft about 15 feet.

O. Would that be the natural place where the

guard of the Henderson would rtib?

A. Yes.

Cross Examination.

Questions by Mr. MIXOR: ]\Ir. Kness, Air. Stayton

said that place where it rubbed off was in front of

where the bow of the Henderson was. Are you mis-

taken or is he mistaken?

A. I don't know; that is just how he had. I just

guessed about what.

O. 1 just want to see how accurate it was. You

just guessed at that tlien?
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A. Vcs.

O. Vou don't know wliere it was—didn't observe

it carefully?

A. Xo, sir.

Witness Excused.

CAPT. J. W. SHAX^ER a witness called on behalf

of the Libellant, being first duly sworn, testified as

follows

:

Direct Examination.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: In calling this witness we

would like to have it understood that we think, for

the benefit ni the court and the other side, we will

only use him as far as we desire in this matter of the

collision, but the matter of accounting, or damages,

or ex])enses we reserve. Possibly it may go before an

examiner, and we don't wish to ])ut his entire testi-

mony in at this time.

Ouestions bv Mr. ERSKTXE WOOD:
Captain Shaver, what position do you occupy in the

Shaver Transportation Company?

A. I am secretary and manager.

'Q. The business of that comi)any is steam l)oat-

ing?

A. Ves, sir.

O. That is the company that owned the Hender-

son which was wrecked?

A. X'es, sir, the Shaver Transportation Company.

(). Can vou gi\'e the dimensions of that boat?

A. The Henderson?

O. X\'s, the old Henderson.
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A. Why, she was 160 feet long, or 158.7; 31 foot

beam; 7j4-foot hold.

Q. How wide are her p^uards?

A. 22 inches from hull to outside of the nosin^',

that is 22 inches midships; of course up forward they

are wider there.

Mr. MINOR: How long did you say?

A. That is midships along the straight side of the

boat.

Q. Is that the i)art of the boat which lies along-

side a vessel \\l':en towing?

A. She don't touch alono\side the vessel there ; thev

usually have a l)earing right forward i)art of the

house; the guard would be a little wider there, per-

haps three feet. The hull begins to draw in ; of course

the guard draws in some but the hull draws in a good

deal more than the guard.

O. That was an oil l)urning l:)oat or wood?

A. Oil l)urning.

O. Have you tov^^ed yourself?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How many years?

A. I have been in the l)usiness al)out 32 years. I

liax'c towed iv.ore or less at different times all the

lime.

O. I wish you would explain the manner of lash-

ing one of these river towboats along the side of a

ship to bring her u]), ])articularly with reference to

the angle at which the}- lie. Ex])lain how the current

affects the bow to counteract the steerage.
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A. We always lash a boat a little c|uartering, be-

cause if \n\\ parallel b}' i)ushing on one side, has a ten-

dency to push it around, so we offset that by puttin^;"

it a little (|nartering, so if the current strikes that

side

—

O. Which side^

A. If towin^c^ up the i)ort side, we would luring the

bow of the tow a little toward the tow boat.

Q. How would that cause the water to strike the

bow of the tow?

A. On the op])osite side, so as to kind of offset

that, so as to steer with a straight helm. So you don't

have your wheel over all the time—the rudders. In

a tow like this, I imagine the stem would be about

three feet closer than she would at the stern.

C). Three feet off a parallel line with the keel?

A. ^^es, in a length of about 100 feet. The boat

would lap up on the tow about 100 feet.

0. You said at the point of contact between tlie

tow boat and the tow the hull was drrtwn in a little

but the guard w^as a little wider.

A. Well, the guard goes in a little bit but not near

as much as the hull.

'O. How wide is the hull at that ])oint?

A. Perhaps the forward part of the house there

would be about, I should think two or three feet nar-

rower right there. Two feet an}'how. Of course on

this boat we had big large timber fastened right un-

der the guard there to make it stronger for towing

shi])s.
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O. I will hand you a series of photographs mark-

ed from 1 to 8, and ask you whether you were present

when they were taken. Just look at them and see.

A. Well, some of these I was present and others

I am not certain. Some of these were taken by a

photographer at Cathlamet, these light colored ones,

and these were taken when the boat was brought to

Portland, at the ship yard, these three.

COURT: By light colored, you refer to borders?

A. Yes. These with derrick and barges, I was

present when they were taken, but this first one I

am not

—

C. E. S. WOOD: Call it the number in the corner.

A. Number one, I am not positive whether I was

there when taken or not, the first morning after the

wreck, but I think T was, because T went down the

next day after she sunk. Number two, T was there

when that was taken. This is Bugby Hole there;

that is the point of the island. This is

—

Q. We will show that a little later on.

A. Numl)er 3; 1 was here when that was taken.

Tliat wjis taken in the shi])yard. Number 4, that was

taken just after we first i)ut her on the ways.

(). Were }()U there ?

A. Yes, sir. Number 5, I was there when that

was taken after slie was hauled out on the ways.

O. That was here in Portland, Number 5?

A. ^ es, sir, thrit one there. Number 6 was taken

d(n\'n the river. I was there when that was taken. T

was tliere when seven was taken, also number eight.
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O. The only one yon are not snre ahont is nnni-

ber one ?

A. That is the only one. I think I was there when

that was taken ahhon<;"h I am not real certain, but

that is the way the boat was laying when I went clown

the next day after the accident.

.Mr. MINOR: What is the object of that?

C. E. S. WOOD: To show the court. I think it

is better than any verbal statement. Any objection

to it?

]\Ir. MINOR: Yes, I don't think they show any-

thing.

Questions by C. E. S. W^OOD:
Did those photographs correctly represent the sit-

uation at the time they were taken?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And when were they taken in reference to the

collision? Take Number one, how soon after the col-

lision ?

A. That was taken the next dav after the colli-

sion. That is, the boat lay in that position for per-

haps two days, maybe three before we got chains

under her.

O. And that represents her lying where?

A. Where she was the next day after the colli-

sion; where she drifted down on the sand bar.

O. Did you locate that position by points on the

shore?

A. Ves, sir.

(). What was the location?
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A. That was in ran^^e with point of Tenas IlHhee

Island, and perhaps about twenty feet above the foot

of Puget Island, and in range with either a school

house or a church at Cathlamet. I am not certain

whether a school house or a church.

Q. How, in relation to the range lights?

Mr. MINOR: How did you say?

O. I meant the head of Tenas Illihce Island. I

may have said tlie foot ; I meant head, about twenty

feet above tlie foot of Puget Island, and there was a

cinirch or a school house at Cathlamet. I am not

certain which.

'O. Did you do anything to determine the location

of the wreck in relation to the range light, and if so,

state what you did.

A. Why T took a range from Skamokowa light and

some ])ilings on Furze's point.

:\lr. MIXOR: Skamokowa light ?

A. Some i)iling on Furze's point; there was one

])iling in close to the i)oint and one out about three

hundred feet, two or three hundred feet, and about

half way between these two pilings. And I after-

wards measured the distance from the range lights

to where this boat lay and it was 1530 feet from the

r:inge lights to where the boat is laying.

COURT: That is the range itself or from the

range lights?

A. niic range of the lights, the channel.

COURl : The nearest ])oint on the range?

A. Well, right in range with the lights to where



5V)2 The Steamer Samson

the steamer was laying after slie sank.

O. You are speaking about measurements from

the Hghts themselves or from the range line?

A. No, from the range line. The lights are about

a mile below that.

COURT: But measured at right angles to the

range so as to reach the nearest point on the range.

Ts that it?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Now, just so as to keep the thing plain. Sup-

pose this to be the point of Tenas Illihee Island; this

to be the point of Puget Island and this to be the

Hunting Island range lights, and this the range line of

these lights, as marked on this chart, as I have res-

pectively called them. Now locate the position of

the wreck of the Henderson as you determined it, as

you have just described it.

A. That is 1530 feet from here tow^ard the point

of the island and in line, just about 20 feet above there

to this point. (Indicating on libellant's exhibit 15.)

O. Lay it down on the chart.

A. Now, I can't tell how 1530 feet is there, though.

It is a little over half way across here.

O. Alark it that wav.

A. I don't have to get the scale, do I ?

O. No.

A. It is about there somewhere. It is about two-

thirds of the wa}' across there. (Indicating.)

Mr. SXOW: Two tliirds of the way from the range

(^r from the shore?
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A. No, from the range to the point.

O. Tenas IHihee point?

A. Yes, sir. She was laying right cross v\-ays of

the current.

'O. And this dotted Hne from the range line to the

wreck called A-B, hy measurement was 1500 feet?

A. 1530.

Q. Now, do these other photographs correctly

represent the situation at the time they were taken?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Give me numher five. Does that correctly

represent the stem of the Henderson?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Did you examine her yourself?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Any dent or sign of collision in it?

A. Well, no sign of a collision. There was a very

little crook in top of the stem iron, hut so you couldn't

notice it with the naked eye.

Mr. ERSKTNE WOOD: How did you find out

that crook was there.

A. Some testimony that showed she had a colli-

sion there before the Tns])ectors, and they testified

that there was a crook in the stem, so T took a straight

QiX^Q and i)ut on there. I couldn't see it with the

naked eye, so T took a straight edge and tried to see,

and in a length of about seven feet, there was about

one-quarter inch bent. T don't think it was done with

any collision or anything. It seemed as though it

mieht have l)ecn tlicrc since the l)oat was built. T
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don't know.

O. Now, lake number two. That was taken when?

A. That was taken down at the wreck after we

got there.

Mr. ERSKIXE WOOD: After who got there?

A. After I got there, tliat is a couple of days. We
was there about three days, I think l)efore we got

her out of this position. It was taken some time be-

fore that three days. This is the point of Puget

Island.

'O. Which is?

A. This point right there. This is Bugby Hole

up in here.

Q. Point ''A" is the point of Tenas Illihee Island?

A. Point of Puget Island, the upper point, not the

lower end.

Q. The very upper point?

A. Not clear at the up])er end, but the l)end in

Bugby Hole.

O. It is the point around which the Samson came?

A. Yes.

O. And what is this high head land over here?

A. That is the bluff.

Q. That has been talked about?

A. ^ es, talked about so much. This is Bugby

Hole u]) in here.

Q. And this is Bugby Hole?

A. Yes, that is Bugby Hole.

Mr. ERSKINE WOOD: Is that looking up or

down the river?
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A. This is looking up the river. This is where

Clifton Channel goes down this way; this main chan-

nel goes down this way. (Indicating.)

O. That correctly represents the situation. You

were present when taken?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And these that you have spoken about, these

six, seven and eight, represent the attempt at raising

her with derrick and wrecking barge do they?

A. Yes.

O. Correctly represent it.

A. Yes, sir.

O. Were you present?

A. Yes, sir.

O. And three and four represent her lying out here

at the boneyard or shipyard, do they?

A. Yes, sir. Four is when we just put her on the

cradles after taking barges away.

O. What is three?

A. Three—just after she was hauled out on the

ways.

O. Was she as represented in three, in substantial-

ly the same condition as when you raised her up, and

brought her up?

A. Yes, sir, exactly the same as when we got her

hek*e. I

'O. From Tenas Tllihee bank there?

A. Yes, sir.

^Ir. C. E. S. WOOD We will offer them in evi-

dence in connection with the testimonv.
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Mr. ERSKINE WOOD: Do you mean the house

was not on lier when you raised her off Tenas TlHhee

hank ?

A. No, sir, no house. The house went off. The

house all mashed. When we o^ot down the next morn-

ing, she was laying" on the side; the house and part of

the guard was all gone; that is, when we got her up

so we could see, the guard was off from where hroke

to clear aft.

Mr. MINOR: T want to make objection.

COURT: State you objection.

^Ir. MINOR: As far as number one is concerned,

your Honor, I object to that upon the ground that it

is incompetent, insofar that it doesn't indicate in any

way either the position of the wreck or the condition

of the wreck. It is merely a photograph of something

or other from which no one could guess anything.

A. ^'ou could q-uess all rio-ht if vou had been

there.

Mr. MINOR: It doesn't indicate anything at all.

COURT: Objection overruled.

Marked Libellant's Exhibit 7.

Mr. MINOR: I would like to ask a few^ questions

about number two. From what point was number

twT) taken?

A. Taken from something up somew\ay in the

river.

Mr. MINOR: From what point?

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: About where in the river?

A. AYould be rijjlit below tlic line of Tcnns Illi-
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hee Island and Pnget Island and below the wreck.

Mr. MINOR: Below the point of Tenas Illihee

Island?

A. The steamer is lyin^^ in between Tenas Illihee

Island and Pug-et Island and this was taken from right

below that, with a small boat; we didn't have taken.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: By steamer you mean the

Henderson?

A. Yes, sir.

Mr. MINOR: From what point? From above the

point of Tenas Illihee or below the point of Tenas Illi-

hee or where?

A. A little below the point of Tenas Illihee and

below the point of Pnget Island. The steamer here

is in line with these two islands and the picture itself

is taken upstream.

Mr. MINOR: I have no objection to this one.

Picture marked Libellant's Exhibit 8.

Mr. MINOR: Three I object to as incompetent for

it does not show or tend to show in any way what the

damage was, nor does it give any aid to the court in

determining the damage. It is admitted there were

holes struck in the barge; thai is not denied.

COURT: Objection overruled.

Marked Libellant's Exhibit 9.

Mr. MINOR: I desire to make the same objection

to number 4, that it is incompetent inasmuch as it

doesn't show the extent of the injury or aid the court

in determining the extent of the injur}- and therefore

is incompetent and immateri:il.
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COURT: 0])jcction overruled.

Marked Libellant's Exhibit 10.

Mr. MINOR: As far as number 5 is concerned,

your Honor, \ make the same objection to that, that

it doesn't show or tend to show.

Marked Libellant's Exhibit 11.

Mr, C. E. S. WOOD : That is the one we examined

him on the stem.

Mr. MINOR: Now, six, seven and eii^ht, which

are regarding the operations of wrecking down there,

I don't know for what purpose they are offered in

evidence: that they did have some machines down

there taking up the Henderson and raising her is not

denied. I don't understand that these gentlemen

claim that from these photographs, that the court will

be able to determine what work was done or how any

work was done, the value of the work done or the

nature of the work done.

.Mr. C. E. S. WOCM): We can withhold these un-

til the time of damage: they are not of much value,

but in showing the expense we were put to, we

thought they would help the court in showing the

magnitude of the operations.

COl'RT: Objection overruled.

Pictures marked respectively Libellant's Exhibits

12, 13 and 14.

Mr. C E. S. WOOD: We also offer in evidence

the diagram just referred to and marked with the

name, j. W. Shaver, and ask that it be marked.

Marked Libellant's l^xhibil 13.
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Cross Examination.

Questions by Mr. MINOR:
Captain Shaver, let me g"et the dimensions, will

you? The Henderson is how long?

A. 1587 feet.

O. Does that include her wheel?

A. No, sir, the wheel—that is the hull.

Mr. C. E. S, WOOD: I forgot one question. I

don't remember whether it is admitted in the plead-

ings. Who was the owner of the Henderson at the

time?

A. Shaver Transportation Company.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: Who is the owner now?

A. Shaver Transportation Company.

Mr. C E. S. WOOD: Did the Oregon Round

Lumber Company ever have any interest in her?

A. No, sir.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: And from whom did you

receive your instructions to go down and tow that?

A. To tow the oil barge?

Mr. C E. S. WOOD: The oil barge?

A. The Oregon Round Lumber Company.

Q. (.Mr. MINOR) She is 158.7 feet long?

A. Yes, sir, that is the hull.

O. That is the hull ; how long is her—how much

does the wheel add to that?

A. The wheel and fan tail and all would be about

24 feet— 20-foot wheel, and 18 inches between the

wheel and the fantail would be 2j/ feet ; be about 24

feet—perhaps 25.
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O. She is 31 feet—

A. For beam.

'O. Beam ?

A. ^'es, sir.

O. Aiul she has

—

A. (iiiards on each side 22 inches.

O. ( Jnards 22 inclies?

A. Yes, sir.

O. And she was 7j/4 feet depth of hold?

A. Yes, sir.
•

O. Did she use a fender?

A. Yes a rope fender, always in towing ships.

O. How thick is that?

A. Perhaps about six inches.

Q. Xot a foot, vou think?

A. A foot, no, sir. Some times when we make

them new they are a little thicker, but they usually

squeeze down to about six inches.

O. So }'ou make the Henderson about thirty-four

cii^ht-tenths beam, including her guards?

A. Yes, sir, T think so. Of course that is mid-

ships. She is not that wide at the forward part of

the house.

O. T understand that. Xot at the forward part

of the house. That doesn't make any difference as

far as width there is concerned. She would set off

just as far from the ship there

—

C()UR1': 1 am afraid the bad example is having

effect on you. I couldn't hear the (piestion.

Mr. MIX()R: 1 1)eg x'our j^ardon. 1 confess I was



The Steamer Samson 571

at fault, your Honor. I say that wouldn't make any

difference rs far as the distance from oil barge

is concerned, would it?

A. In what way do you mean? A straight line

will he closer.

O. But if she was sitting parallel with the oil

barge she would be just

—

A. Tf she was sitting parallel, but I never saw

them tow that way.

O. If she wasn't sitting parallel, would be just

the distance the angle would be off?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. The beam has nothing to do there. Only the

angle would have anything to do with that there?

A. The beam would have something to do there,

for anyway two feet narrower at the forward part

of the house than she was back there.

Witness Excused.

:\[r. C. E. S. WOOD: We are about through with

the case with this suggestion of arrangement. We
have a witness, the engineer of the Elenderson at the

time of the collision, who is still on her, and we ex-

pect him to be here tomorrow morning. We can

take the time and read (nn* de])ositions now, or we

can, as the court prefers, let the reading of the de-

positions wait until the last, and rest with the under-

standing that we can ])ut on this witness tomorrow.

COURT: Mr. Minor, are your witnesses here, imy

of them ?

y\r. MIXOR: I don't think so. I told them thev
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needn't be here until tomorrow niorninf^.

COURT: You had better read your depositions.

Mr. C E. S. WOOD: My idea was, if Mr. Minor

had any witnesses to i)ut on now, these depositions

could as well wait. The court suggested the case

might have to g-o to an examiner and I wanted to give

all the lime ])ossible to living witnesses.

COURT: As I understand, Mr. Minor, you are

not ready to put on any witnesses at this time.

Mr. MINOR: I apprehend they w^ill have to put

on their witnesses in reg"ard to damage anyway before

T ]mt on any witnesses, do they not, or does your

Honor intend to refer that to an examiner? That is

one reason why T haven't the witnesses here, your

Honor.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: I thought I made this clear.

This is in my mind: Of course we can go ahead reg"-

ularly, but T thoug-ht the (|uestion of damages often

becomes the subject of reference even after the main

issue is taken and I thought if there was going to be

auA' crowding on time— I am trving to give vou the

Court's ear—and I thought we could reserve the ques-

tion of d:i mages for reference, or something of that

kind, or if the Court sits, take that uj) later.

COURT: I think the Court's time should be as

evenly divided as can be. If I can onl}' be here this

week, I think you should have three days and the

other side too three days.

Mr. C E. S. WOOD: That was my idea.

Mr. MIXOR: There are onlv two more left, anrl
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T want to apologize to your Honor for not having my
witnesses here. If I had known they were not going

on with their case, I would have had them here.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: The court understands my
position. I am trying it in an irregular way in order

to give the Court's time to the main issue. I don't

w^ant to he precluded from putting in my damages

in such a way as the Court sees fit.

COURT: 1 think in the morning, Mr. Minor, you

should he prepared with your main case.

Mr. WOOD: I shall be prepared, your Honor.

Mr. ERSKINE WOOD : I will read the deposition

of Captain C. B. Sorley, who was the captain of the

oil barge. The deposition was taken pursuant to

stipulation in the office of Snow & McCamant on.

Monday, September 16, 1912, i)resent Mr. Zera Snow-

Mr. MINOR: We were all present. No question

about that.

Mr. Erskine Wood reads deposition of C. B. Sorley,

which is marked Libellant's Exhibit 16.

^Ir. ERSKINE WOOD: There is anotlier deposi-

tion stipulated between the parties. We have agreed

to read a certain part or all the testimony of one of

the men on the Henderson who is now in Detroit,

Michigan, as taken before the Inspectors.

Whereupon i)roceedings herein adjourned until 10

a. m., Friday, January 10, 1913.

Portland, Oregon, Friday, January 10, 1913, 10 a. m.

CHRISTOPHER OT>RVAN a witness called on
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behalf of the Libellant, bcinc^ first duly sworn, testi-

fied as follows:

Direct Examination.

Questions by C. E. S. WOOD:

What is your business, Mr. O'Bryan?

A. Chief Engineer Steamer Henderson, at present.

O. What was your business in July, 1911, at the

time of the collision with the Samson?

A. Chief Engineer Steamer Henderson.

O. The old Henderson?

A. Yes, sir.

O. You are now chief engineer of the new Hen-

derson?

A. Yes.

O. How long have you been a marine engineer?

A. About twenty-three or four years.

O. How lone: have vou been on the Columl)ia and

Willamette Rivers?

A. About eleven years.

O. How long have you been with the Shaver

Transportation Company ?

A. Neighborhood of four years.

O. AVere you on duty at the time of the collision?

A. No, sir.

Q. Where were you just prior to the collision ?

A. i was laying in my bed.

O. Where is that in relation to the engine room?

A. Riglit forward. The first room forward on

the l)oal.
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Q. And how far from the bells?

A. From the bells?

Q. Yes, or from the engineer's station—the levers.

A. Well, I don't know exactly the distance.

O. Just give a rough guess at it.

A. Well, I suppose it is 50 or 60 feet, something

like.

O. On the same deck with the engine?

A. No, sir.

Q. On the deck above?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How was the old Henderson lighted, electric-

ally or with oil.

A. With electric lights.

O. The electric power supplied all of the lights

of the boat?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. I wish you would state now briefly what you

know of this collision. Wait, before T get away from

this last subject, I want to ask a cjuestion at the sug-

gestion of counsel. Were the lights in operation?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And the a])paratus in good order that night?*

A. Yes, sir, everything was in working order.

O. Now, I wish you would state what you person-

ally know of the collision, just state what you heard,

what you did.

A. Well, the first I knew there was a crash and

the steam ])ii)es ])reaking off. T jumped out of my
room and rushed down the after stairwav, down the
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deck. 1 saw the water cominjs: towards the after part

as fast as it conld come it seemed to me. I thou^^^ht

it was about two feet deep as near as I could see. I

ran l)ack to my room to ji^'ct some clothes on; I had

none on to amount to anythinf^. I crabbed a pair of

pants and got them partly on and was in some water

then, one foot. I "ot them on and ran aft to o^et

something to do. Saw some lights going by; didn't

pay any attention to what it was at the time and tried

to get the small boat out.

COURT : Which side were the lights going by.

A. They were some lights. I don't know what

they were.

'O. No—which side of you?

A. On the port side.

O. Of the Henderson?

A. Yes. And Paul Peterson, he is the deck boy

on the boat, he and T tried to get the boat down. We
were then in the water, then, trying to get that boat,

and [ rushed back to the wheel house, and I see I

couldn't do anything. T was going to leave the boat,

and r ran back on the house, for I thought to myself

I could stay there for a while. She commenced to

roll one way then the other, and finally she settled

right down.

O. What do you mean—settled down- Did she

settle down on her keel or on her bilge?

A. Well, she rolled over. She seemed to; l(K)king

at it the \\':\y she struck, she seemed to lean a little

bit to where she was struck and then she rolled over
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to the starboard side and then partly back and then

down again.

O. There she stayed?

A. Yes.

O. When was it that you saw these Hghts go by?

As soon as you rushed out of your stateroom?

A. Yes, sir; there was Hghts. I didn't understand

or pay no attention. The steam was what I was look-

ing after. I wanted to go down and shut something

off. I thought something wrong. I couldn't get to

it.

O. But when vou took a sflance, vou remember

seeing lights go by?

A. I saw some lights but I paid not much atten-

tion.

Q. I know, but I want to get the fact that you did

see lights go by?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, did they seem to be going with any

rapidity or speed?

A. They were going right along. I wouldn't say.

I couldn't say for time, or anything about that. I

just simply saw something—lights going by and I

went on about my business. I had something else to

do.

'Q. And all of this was on the port side of (he

Henderson.

A. Yes, sir.

O. How long was it, not in minutes, but in long-

time or short time after the crash before she careened



578 The Steamer Samson

over and was a wreck !^

A. The time?

O. ^'es. I don't mean—yon can g"ive it in minutes,

if you want to, l)ut I say was it a long time or a short

time?

A. Pretty short time.

Q. Could you estimate it in minutes?

A. Well, I could go through the performance, and

I think it would take me ahout three or four minutes,

three minutes anyway.

O. Do vou know whether she was backinsf or

not?

A. I wouldn't say.

O. Supix)se the backing bell had been sounded and

suppose that she was backing at the time the crash oc-

curred, from what you saw of her actions and careen-

ing over, and from what you know of the boat and her

engines, could she have been been backing at the lime

(^f the crash?

A. Well, I don't supi)ose slie could have done

much backing.

T). Could she — how would her wheel be af-

fected by the ])osition that slie was in the water after

the crash?

A. After the crash? Well, the first thino- when

she struck, she sure went down forward. That gave

her no power on the water.

'O. Then when she careened over, could she do

any effective backing?

A. Xo. sir, the steam

—

xnu see when all tliose
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pipes were let go, there is not much power there.

O. Then take it all together, what is your judge-

ment, could she after tlie crash have done any real

effective backing?

A. Xo, sir, not any real effective backing.

O. I wish you would describe the relation of the

stairwa}' that you ran down. I think you said you

ran down a stairway?

A. Yes, sir.

'O. To the engine room or the engineer's station

by the levers. How is that stairway on the boat in

relation to the engine room?

A. \\>11, it leads forward right close to the en-

gine room.

O. L.eads from the main deck to the upper deck

right in front of the engine room?

A. From the main deck.

O. And how far was its lower step or entrance to

it from below to the engine room?

A. Oh, I wouldn't sav exactlv. I should judsre it

is around about 30 feet, something like that. 25 or

30 feet. I don't know exactly. I couldn't tell.

O. Then you said also that you ran to try to get

a l:)oat loose.

A. Yes, sir.

'O. AMiere was that boat situated?

A. Situated on the pnvt side.

O. And on what deck.

A. On the deck that T left mv room on.
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O. That is not tlic main deck hut the upper deck?

A. ^>s.

O. And what kind of a l)oat is it?

A. It was a small skiff or work boat, might call

it a work boat.

O. Where was the ens^ine room in relation to the

hoat itself—forward or aft?

A. The boat was right about over the port cylin-

der.

O. The boat was?

A. Yes, sir.

O. ^^es, but T say where was the engine room in

relation to the deck of the Henderson, forward or aft.

Was the engine room itself forward on the Henderson

or aft on the Henderson ?

A. In the after part.

O. Now, in order that there may be no mistake

about it, I will repeat to you, and you see if I get

it correctly, what you did. When you heard the

crash you jumped out of your room and saw steam

or heard steam from broken pipes.

A. Yes, sir.

O. And you saw those lights go by on the port

side?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And now when was it that you found yourself

in water the first time?

A. After coming back.

Q. Then you went on down to the lower deck, is

ill at ricrht?
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A. No, T went down to the lower deck first, then

came back.

O. I see. I was pickinj:^ it up where I left off. You

jumped out of bed, you heard the broken steam pipes,

saw the steam, saw the lights go by, and ran down

this stairway to the lower deck; there you found your

feet in water. Ts that right?

A. Not on the lower deck.

O. Not on the lower deck?

A. 1 saw the water rushing to me.

O. On the lower deck?

A. On the lower deck.

'O. Then you turned back?

A. And went up the stairway.

O. Went up again and then you went to the boat?

A. I went to my room.

O. Then vou went to vour room?

A. Got a pair of pants.

O. Started to put on your trousers.

A. Put them on.

O. While you were doing that, you found your

feet

—

A. I was in water then. The water was coming

in there then.

O. Then }'ou went to the 1)oat ?

A. I went back to this small boat.

O. And as T understand it, while you were there

she commenced her careening?

A. Down head first and commenced to roll.



582 The Steamer Samson

Cross Examination.

'Questions by Mr. MIXOR:

Mr. O'Bryan, where were you when you went off

duty that night?

A. Sir?

O. Where were you when you went off duty that

nig^ht?

A. Speak up, T am hard of hearino;".

O. Where were you when you went off duty that

nij^lit ?

A. Where was I when T was on duty?

O. When you went on duty?

A. I was in bed.

O. No, where were you in the river? You were on

duty that nio^ht part of tlie time, weren't you?

A. Yes, sir.

O. What time did you leave?

A. I left at one o'clock.

O. And where was your boat then ?

A. The steamer?

O. Yes.

A. She was uj) towards Bugby Hole.

Q. Going up towards Rugby Hole?

A. Yes.

Q. Do vou know whereabouts she was in the river

channel ?

A. Sir?

Q. Do you know where she was in the ri\er chan-

nel?
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A. Well, T generally look out ; we are generally in

the channel.

O. I know, but how far down ? Did she reach the

point of Puget Island?

A. I wouldn't say. I don't know about that.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: That is not cross examina-

tion.

O. Now, you spoke about lights. I believe you

said they were electric lights?

A. Yes, sir.

O. Were your side lights electric lights?

A. Yes, sir.

O. How do you turn those off and on?

A. That is adjusted from the pilot house.

O. Can you turn them both off together, or do vou

turn them off separately?

A. That is up to them. I don't know whether

they turn on and off at any time or how they do it.

'O. You don't know how that is done at all. Do

you know whether they are on one circuit or not?

A. Yes, sir, they are certainly on the circuit that

lights the pilot-house. When the dynamo starts the

side lights are on at all times.

O. And both on the same circuit, are they?

A. Yes, sir.

COURT: Captain from the time you got up and

started on this run you have told about, did you stop

any place to talk to anybody or do anything until you

got back to work at that boat?

A. No, sir.
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COURT: V(m kept moving-?

A. Yes, sir. just kei)t a movinj^.

Mr. C. R. S. WOOD: And did you <^o leisurely or

in a rush ?

A. I was running- all the time.

W^itness excused.

Air. C. E. S. WOOD: With the exception of read-

ing the Crossen testimony, which T think we had bet-

ter postpone, this will be our case in chief.

COURT: X'o question but counsel knows what is

o^oing to be read.

Air. C. E. S. WOOD: We have no objection to all

of it, but it is one of those examinations before the

Inspectors at which everybody took a hand—about

half-a-dozen counsel and we thou.q-ht for this record

we would try to agree with counsel what was to go in.

ATr. MINOR: The understanding: is, vour Honor,

cither side may read what they choose of it.

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: We wish to avoid putting it

all in merely because it will serve no purpose in tliere

and is a repetition.

Mr. SXOW: It is understood that the Crossen testi-

mony is to be deemed read—such parts of it as you

desired? (Page 972)

Mr. WOOD: Yes, we will read it later.

Mr. SXOW: Now, if your Honor please, I want to

understand the order of proof, for I have a motion to

make at the close of the i)roof, that I want to present.

As I understand, now, counsel for Libellant, this cr^n-

stitutes tlie testimon\' in cliicf of the libellant on the
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question of liability?

C. E. S. WOOD: Ves—or there was one thing; T

don't think in the United States Court it cuts any fig-

ure—that is we have a state license. Do you make

any point on that?

Mr. SNOW: No, T don't make any point.

Mr. MINOR: No, T make no point.

Mr. SNOW: Then, if your Honor please, we will

assume that the testimony of the Libellant in chief

is closed, reserving of course the giving of testimony

later on the question of the amount of damages, and

in behalf of the Standard Oil Company, incorporated

under the laws of the State of California, and who is

respondent in personam to the supplemental libel filed

by the libellant in this case, I move for a dismissal of

this supplemental libel as to this defendant—the dis-

missal of the Libellant's suit as to this defendant, on

the ground that the evidence offered by the libellant

does not show^ or tend to show any liability whatever

on the part of the Standard Oil Company. Now, I

will argue that point, if your Honor desires.

COURT: I would rather hear the argument all at

one time. The motion may be considered made at

this time.

Mr. SNOW: M}^ motion, of course, is based upon

the fact that the ])roof, as it now stands, entitles us to

discharge.

COURT: If your motion stands or is overruled at

this time, you wouldn't introduce any more testimonv,

would \'ou, on tliat ciuestion ^ That is a matter of con-
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trnct lliat }'()U arc stanclinc^ on?

AFr. SXOW: Something more than a mere mat-

ter of contract, if your Honor please. We may con-

cede all that counsel for libellant may claim for the

benefit of this contract in order to hold the Standard

Oil Company. He has not only got to show that we

had en^^aged the Henderson,—By the way, Mr. Wood,

has Air. O'Reilly furnished any further correspond-

ence on that ?

Mr. C. E. S. WOOD: No I forq-ot it, hut we prom-

ised to do it and we will do it.

Mr. SNOW: All the way throui^h with this case,

if your Honor please, the Standard Oil Company is

defendant in this case, and while, as far as the proof

is concerned, we are in hearty accord with the libel-

lant's proof, because we think unquestionably the re-

sponsibility belong's where it belongs—on the Sam-

son, nevertheless, as far as the law of liability is con-

cerned, while there may be some disagreement be-

tween Mr. Wood and m3\self on the question of the

law of liability ultimately, there is no question but

that in order to recover against the Standard Oil

Com])any, two things must be shown, one of which is

that wc had engaged the Henderson to do the towing.

The next thing is that the Standard Oil Company,

through its ])ilot—Sullivan, was negligent, which

caused this accident. Now, these two things shown,

under the doctrine announced on exceptions to libel,

we ma}' be held.

COURT: I will hear from the other side.
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ARGUMENT C. E. S. WOOD.

COURT: I think, under the pleadmgs as settled

and the fact that Mr. O'Reilly hasn't produced the

correspondence yet to show what the contract is, and

that in equity and also in admiralty everything de-

cided should be embodied in one decree and not cut

up piece-meal by different orders, that this motion

will have to be denied, without intending to indicate

a ruling as to the sufficiency of the present state of

the proof. Of coiu'se trying a lawsuit like this isn't a

mere game. If the evidence of the respondent is stif-

ficient to show that Captain Sullivan and Oil Barge

93 were to blame, after you were dismissed out of the

case, the court woudn't want to mete out vicarious

punishment to the respondent in order to give the

Henderson what was her due, after vou were out of

the case. The motion will be denied at this time.

Mr. SNOW: If there is any more proof, I want to

see what it is before we close. I will take an excep-

tion, of course.

COURT: Has Mr. Snow anv objection to o-oinor

into the respondent's case?

Mr. SNOW: Upon the understanding that if there

be any correspondence, we can interrupt the proof of

the respondent.

COURT: With that understanding, the Samson

may proceed without prejudicing any of your rights.

Mr. SNOW: Inasmuch as Mr. O'Reilly was asked

on cross examination to ]:)roduce the corres])ondence,

when produced it may go in as a part of his cross-ex-



588 The Steamer Samson

amination and thus end the matter.

COURT: It is so understood.

Libellant Rests.


